
 City Council  

Agenda 

City Hall 

225 Fifth Street 

Springfield, Oregon 97477 

541.726.3700 

Online at www.springfield-or.gov 

 

The meeting location is wheelchair-accessible.  For the hearing-impaired, an interpreter can be provided with 48 

hours’ notice prior to the meeting.  For meetings in the Council Meeting Room, a “Personal PA Receiver” for the 

hearing impaired is available, as well as an Induction Loop for the benefit of hearing aid users.     

To arrange for these services, call 541.726.3700.   

Meetings will end prior to 10:00 p.m. unless extended by a vote of the Council. 

 

All proceedings before the City Council are recorded. 

 

 

May 2, 2016 

_____________________________ 

 

6:00 p.m. Executive Session 

Pursuant to  

ORS 192.502(1) and ORS 192.660(2)(i) 

Jesse Maine Room 

_____________________________ 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___,  

Woodrow ___, and Pishioneri ___. 

 

1. 2014-2015 City Manager Performance Evaluation. 

[Greta Utecht]         (30 Minutes) 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

_____________________________ 

 

6:30 p.m. Work Session 

Jesse Maine Room 

_____________________________ 

(Council work sessions are reserved for discussion between Council, staff and consultants; 

 therefore, Council will not receive public input during work sessions.  

Opportunities for public input are given during all regular Council meetings) 

 

 

City Manager: 

Gino Grimaldi 

City Recorder: 

Amy Sowa 541.726.3700 

Mayor  
Christine Lundberg 
 

City Council 

Sean VanGordon, Ward 1 
Hillary Wylie, Ward 2 
Sheri Moore, Ward 3 
Dave Ralston, Ward 4 
Marilee Woodrow, Ward 5 
Joe Pishioneri, Ward 6 



Council Agenda 

May 2, 2016 

Page 2 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___,  

Woodrow ___, and Pishioneri ___. 

 

1. Main Street Speed Study. 

[Brian Barnett]         (30 Minutes) 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

____________________________ 

 

7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 

Council Meeting Room 

_____________________________ 

 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL - Mayor Lundberg ___, Councilors VanGordon___, Wylie___, Moore____, Ralston___,  

Woodrow ___, and Pishioneri ___. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT 

 

1. Mayor’s Recognition 

 

a. Earth Day Poster Contest Winners. 

[Amber Fossen]         (05 Minutes) 

 

b. Salvation Army Week Proclamation. 

[Mayor Lundberg]        (05 Minutes) 

 

2. Other 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. Claims 

 

2. Minutes 

 

a. March 14, 2016 – Work Session 

b. March 21, 2016 – Regular Meeting 

c. March 28, 2016 – Work Session 

d. April 4, 2016 – Work Session 

 

 



Council Agenda 

May 2, 2016 

Page 3 

3. Resolutions

a. RESOLUTION NO. 1 – A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO

A 5-YEAR, TAX EXEMPT, LEASE PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE

TO FINANCE THE PURCHASE OF A NEW FIRE PUMPER.

4. Ordinances

5. Other Routine Matters

a. Approval of the Liquor License Application for Along Came Trudy, Located at 1486 18th Street,

Springfield, Oregon.

MOTION: APPROVE/REJECT THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request to speak cards are available at both 

entrances.  Please present cards to City Recorder.  Speakers may not yield their time 

to others. 

1. Setting Local and Regional Wastewater and Stormwater User Fees Effective July 1, 2016.

[Katherine Bishop] (10 Minutes) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2 – A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD SETTING LOCAL AND 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER (SEWER) USER FEES AND LOCAL STORMWATER (DRAINAGE) USER 

FEES AS SET FORTH IN THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 

MOTION:  ADOPT/NOT ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2. 

2. Proposed Changes to Springfield Municipal Code 7.330 and 7.332.

[Kristina Kraaz] (10 Minutes) 

ORDINANCE NO. 1 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 

SECTIONS 7.330 AND 7.332 REGARDING PUBLIC PASSENGER VEHICLE SERVICES 

NO ACTION REQUESTED. FIRST READING ONLY. 

3. Licensing Fee for Medical Marijuana Dispensaries.

[Mary Bridget Smith] (10 Minutes) 

RESOLUTION NO. 3 – A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

SPRINGFIELD AMENDING THE MASTER FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE AS ESTABLISHED BY 

THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE TO AMEND THE BUSINESS LICENSE FEE FOR MEDICAL 

MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES. 

MOTION:  ADOPT/NOT ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 3. 



Council Agenda 

May 2, 2016 

Page 4 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE - Limited to 20 minutes.  Please limit comments to 3 minutes.  Request 

to Speak cards are available at both entrances.  Please present cards 

to City Recorder. Speakers may not yield their time to others. 

COUNCIL RESPONSE 

CORRESPONDENCE AND PETITIONS 

BIDS 

ORDINANCES 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY COUNCIL 

1. Committee Appointments

2. Business from Council

a. Committee Reports

b. Other Business

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER 

1. Public Right-of-Way Use Agreement to Allow Private Developer JM Hotel, LLC to Place, Construct, and

Maintain: Earth and Structural Fill, Vegetation, Stormwater Facilities, and Remove and Reconstruct an Existing

Access Road.

[Jeff Paschall]         (10 Minutes)

MOTION:  AUTHORIZE THE DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A 

PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY USE AGREEMENT TO JM HOTEL, LLC TO PLACE, CONSTRUCT, 

AND MAINTAIN: EARTH AND STRUCTURAL FILL, VEGETATION, STORMWATER 

FACILITIES, AND REMOVE AND RECONSTRUCT AN EXISTING ACCESS ROAD. 

2. Refined Franklin Boulevard Resolution of Necessity.

[Mary Bridget Smith] (10 Minutes) 

RESOLUTION NO. 4 – A RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN AND 

AUTHORIZING A RESOLUTION PURSUANT TO ORS 223.005, ORS 223.105 and ORS 35.600-625 

CONCERNING ACQUISTION RIGHT OF WAY NECESSARY FOR THE FRANKLIN BOULEVARD 

REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT (PHASE I)  (Project No. P21066) 

MOTION: ADOPT/NOT ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4. 



Council Agenda 

May 2, 2016 

Page 5 

 
 
 

3. Ratification of the Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) FY 2016-17 Regional 

Wastewater Program Budget and Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 

[Matt Stouder]         (10 Minutes) 

 

MOTION:  MOVE TO RATIFY THE FY 2016-17 REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 

BUDGET AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 

 

4. CDBG Fiscal Year 2016-2017 One-Year Action Plan and Substantial Amendments to Prior Year Action Plans. 

[Erin Fifield]         (10 Minutes) 

 

MOTION:  ADOPT/NOT ADOPT THE SPRINGFIELD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK 

GRANT (CDBG) SECTION OF THE FY2016-2017 EUGENE-SPRINGFIELD ONE-YEAR ACTION 

PLAN. 

 

MOTION:  ADOPT/NOT ADOPT THE SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR CDBG 

ONE-YEAR ACTION PLANS. 

 

5. Glenwood Cross Laminated Timber Parking Garage Design Services Contract with SRG Partnership. 

[Courtney Griesel]         (05 Minutes) 

 

MOTION: AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO COMPLETE MINOR NEGOTIATIONS AND SIGN 

A CONTRACT WITH SRG PARTNERSHIP FOR SCHEMATIC DESIGN AND DESIGN 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES SPECIFIC TO THE DESIGN OF A CROSS LAMINATED TIMBER 

(CLT) PARKING GARAGE IN GLENWOOD. 

 

MOTION: APPROVE THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE SPRINGFIELD 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (SEDA) TO ALLOW SEDA TO MAKE FINANCIAL 

PAYMENTS TO THE CITY FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF SRG DESIGN SERVICES. 

 

6. Other Business 

 

BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ATTORNEY 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Work Session 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Brian Barnett DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 726.3681 
 Estimated Time: 30 min. 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Maintain and Improve 
Infrastructure and 
Facilities 

 
ITEM TITLE: MAIN STREET SPEED STUDY 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Informational Discussion, No Action Required 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) conducted two speed zone 
investigations: Main Street from 20th Street to South 71st Street, and Highway 126 
from Main Street northward approximately 1,000 feet. Staff suggested ODOT 
consider a 5 MPH reduction of the speed limit on Main Street and a 10 MPH 
reduction on Highway 126 in accord with Council input. Based upon their 
investigation ODOT recommends retaining the existing posted speed limits.  

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 – Main Street Speed Study 
Attachment 2 – Highway 126 Speed Study 

DISCUSSION/            ODOT’s cover letter states that lowering the posted speed limit will not change  
FINANCIAL               current driver speeds because drivers will continue to drive speeds they feel fit the 
IMPACT:                    characteristics of the street. Absent vigorous and ongoing enforcement, drivers will   
                                      not comply with a speed they determine as arbitrarily low.  
 
In the Main Street segment studied 83% of crashes were rear-end or turning type which is typical of a 
suburban street. Most crashes listed the cause as following too close or for failure to yield right of way, 
neither of which is affected by reducing speed limits. The primary contributing factors to the pedestrian 
crashes include pedestrians not visible due to dark clothing where street lighting is limited, impaired 
pedestrians, and distracted drivers failing to yield to a traffic control device or failing to yield to a 
pedestrian crossing at a lawful location.  
 
Speed is best managed by the design features of the street observable by drivers including horizontal and 
vertical curvature, number of lanes, lane width, perception of distant and lateral vistas and tunnel effects 
from features such as buildings, trees, etc., raised medians, intersection frequency and type, and type and 
culture of the street side activity and development. Several efforts are underway that will favorably affect 
street safety for pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicle occupants. The Main Street Corridor Vision Plan places 
great emphasis on using street design to create a “complete street” that fosters safety for each type of user. 
The City applied for traffic safety projects through the All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) program 
including adding street lights and adding a raised median. The Main McVay Transit Study is evaluating 
transit improvements which may include a raised median and roundabouts in lieu of several signalized 
intersections. ODOT and City completed a pedestrian safety study resulting in four pedestrian medians 
with rapid flashing beacons (RFB) that are in place at 35th Street, 41st Street, 44th Street, 51st Street, two 
more are expected at Chapman Ln., and 48th Street this summer. Also along Main Street a pedestrian 
hybrid beacon is proposed near 66th Street. ODOT installed reflectorized back plates on signal heads and 
added pedestrian crossing count down heads to all signals. 
 
If an agency doesn’t concur with ODOT’s recommendations an appeal may be filed with the Speed Zone 
Review Panel. The panel is composed of the chair of the Transportation Safety Committee, traffic 
engineers appointed by League of Oregon Cities, Association of Oregon Counties, an ODOT engineer, and 
a State Police representative. The panel will conduct a hearing and consider public testimony and 
information provided by the agency and ODOT and will make a binding determination of the speed limit. 
The panel on occasion will alter the speed recommended by ODOT but generally adheres to their 
recommendation. 
 



 
Oregon Department of Transportation 

Speed Zone Request 
 
  

 

To request a Speed Zone Investigation by ODOT personnel, City or County Engineering 
Department staff should complete this form and email it -  with a map of the roadway - to: 

 

 

 

 ODOTSpeedZoning@odot.state.or.us 
 

 

1. AGENCY NAME 2. DATE 

City of Springfield 5/7/15 
3. CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 4. TELEPHONE NUMBER 
Brian Barnett, PE, PTOE, City Traffic Engineer 541.726.3681 
5.  E-MAIL ADDRESS 6.  FAX NUMBER 

bbarnett@springfield-or.gov       
7. ADDRESS (POSTAL)  
201 South 18th Street, Springfield OR 97477  
8. NAME OF ROADWAY  
Main Street  

9. FROM 10. TO 
200 ft. east of 19th Street 250 ft. east of 54th Street 
11. REQUESTED SPEED - MPH 12. EXISTING POSTED SPEED - MPH 13. EXISTING SPEEDS OF ROADWAY ABUTTING THIS SECTION 
35 40 14a. ENTERING - MPH: 35/20 14b. EXITING - MPH: 45 

existing, 40 
proposed 

15. AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC VOLUME 
16. ROADWAY CLASSIFICATION: LOCAL         COLLECTOR         ARTERIAL 

13600-19400 

17. Speed recommendation from City or County Engineering Department (required per ORS 810.180): 35 MPH 
18. Reasons for this recommendation: 
Main Street is experiencing a marked increase in pedestrian and cyclist volume and conflicts 
with vehicles are also increasing resulting in numerous fatal and injury severity class A 
crashes. Much of the corridor is included in the SPIS inventory of high crash locations. 
 
19. Are curves in this section of roadway signed appropriately?      YES      NO  
20. Is the recommended speed consistent with the speeds of similar roadways in the surrounding area?    YES      NO 
21. Speed Recommendation from enforcement: 35 MPH 
22. Reasons for this recommendation: 
Numerous fatalities on Main Street over the last decade.  Area is heavily congested with vehicle & 
pedestrian traffic. 
 
 
23. Are there special plans to enforce the proposed speed zoning? (explain): 
Springfield Police is adding overtime patrols to the area, plus the agency’s Traffic Team will 
concentrate their resources to enforcing speed violations. 
24. Speed Recommendation from local residents: 25-40 MPH 
25. Reasons for this recommendation: 
Public response to the recent triple fatality of pedestrians varied in the range of 25 to 40 MPH 
with the preponderance of recommendations near 35 MPH. 
 
26. If more than one jurisdiction is involved, describe below (or furnish a map showing) where the city limits lines 
cross the roadway and where maintenance jurisdictional boundaries change.  If there is more than one 
jurisdiction involved, this information must be furnished before the speed zone investigation can be done. 
N/A 
 
If you have questions on speed zones, contact the ODOT Traffic-Roadway Section in Salem at 986-3609, FAX 986-3749, or your local ODOT Region 
Traffic Office (see reverse for addresses). 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 51

mailto:ODOTSpeedZoning@odot.state.or.us
mailto:bbarnett@springfield-or.gov


 
 When should speed zone investigations be requested?  When traffic patterns have changed, 
development has occurred, crashes have increased, or requests have been received from a number of area 
residents or businesses. 
 
Oregon law gives the State Department of Transportation the authority to establish speed zones on all 
roadways in Oregon.  It also states that an engineering investigation will be done to determine what the 
appropriate speed should be (ORS 810.180). 
 
The local roadway authority (the city or county) should perform a field review to determine the most 
reasonable beginning and ending points for the proposed speed zoning.  Then the local roadway 
authority needs to complete this form and submit it to ODOT to request an investigation.  If more than 
one jurisdiction is involved in the request, ODOT needs documentation from each that they both concur.  This 
form facilitates the request by providing ODOT with the pertinent local information needed to complete the 
investigation. 
 
 
 
Further speed zoning information may be obtained from your local ODOT Region Traffic Office at the address 
below: 
 
 
Region 1 
123 NW Flanders 
Portland, OR 97209-4012 
Tele: (503) 731-8200 
FAX: (503) 731-8259 
 
 

Region 2 
Region 2 Tech Center 
455 Airport Rd SE, Bldg A 
Salem, OR  97301-4989 
Tele: (503) 986-2990 
FAX: (503) 986-2839 

Region 3 
3500 NW Stewart Parkway 
Roseburg, OR 97470-1687 
Tele: (541) 774-6335 
FAX: (541) 957-3547 

 
 

 
Region 4 
63055 N. Hwy 97 
PO Box 5309 
Bend, OR 97708-5309 
Tele: (541) 388-6189 
FAX: (541) 388-6231 

 
Region 5 
3012 Island Avenue 
La Grande, OR 97850-9497 
Tele: (541) 963-3177 
FAX (541) 963-9079 

 

 

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 51



 
Oregon Department of Transportation 

Speed Zone Request 
 
  

 

To request a Speed Zone Investigation by ODOT personnel, City or County Engineering 
Department staff should complete this form and email it -  with a map of the roadway - to: 

 

 

 

 ODOTSpeedZoning@odot.state.or.us 
 

 

1. AGENCY NAME 2. DATE 

City of Springfield 5/7/15 
3. CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 4. TELEPHONE NUMBER 
Brian Barnett, PE, PTOE, City Traffic Engineer 541.726.3681 
5.  E-MAIL ADDRESS 6.  FAX NUMBER 

bbarnett@springfield-or.gov       
7. ADDRESS (POSTAL)  
201 South 18th Street, Springfield OR 97477  
8. NAME OF ROADWAY  
Main Street  

9. FROM 10. TO 
250 ft. east of 54th Street 175  ft. east of South 71st Street 
11. REQUESTED SPEED - MPH 12. EXISTING POSTED SPEED - MPH 13. EXISTING SPEEDS OF ROADWAY ABUTTING THIS SECTION 
40 45 14a. ENTERING - MPH: 40 

existing/ 35 proposed 
14b. EXITING - MPH: 45 

15. AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC VOLUME 
16. ROADWAY CLASSIFICATION: LOCAL         COLLECTOR         ARTERIAL 

11,800-24,200 

17. Speed recommendation from City or County Engineering Department (required per ORS 810.180): 40 MPH 
18. Reasons for this recommendation: 
Main Street is experiencing a marked increase in pedestrian and cyclist volume and conflicts with 
vehicles are also increasing resulting in numerous fatal and injury severity class A crashes. Much of 
the corridor is included in the SPIS inventory of high crash locations. 
 
19. Are curves in this section of roadway signed appropriately?      YES      NO  
20. Is the recommended speed consistent with the speeds of similar roadways in the surrounding area?    YES      NO 
21. Speed Recommendation from enforcement: 40 MPH 
22. Reasons for this recommendation: 
Numerous fatalities on Main Street over the last decade.  Area is heavily congested with vehicle & 
pedestrian traffic. 
 
23. Are there special plans to enforce the proposed speed zoning? (explain): 
Springfield Police is adding overtime patrols to the area, plus the agency’s Traffic Team will 
concentrate their resources to enforcing speed violations. 
 
24. Speed Recommendation from local residents: 25-45 MPH 
25. Reasons for this recommendation: 
Public response to the recent triple fatality of pedestrians varied in the range of 25 to 45 MPH with the 
preponderance of recommendations near 40 MPH. 
 
26. If more than one jurisdiction is involved, describe below (or furnish a map showing) where the city limits lines 
cross the roadway and where maintenance jurisdictional boundaries change.  If there is more than one 
jurisdiction involved, this information must be furnished before the speed zone investigation can be done. 
N/A 
 
If you have questions on speed zones, contact the ODOT Traffic-Roadway Section in Salem at 986-3609, FAX 986-3749, or your local ODOT Region 
Traffic Office (see reverse for addresses). 

Attachment 1, Page 3 of 51

mailto:ODOTSpeedZoning@odot.state.or.us
mailto:bbarnett@springfield-or.gov


 
 When should speed zone investigations be requested?  When traffic patterns have changed, 
development has occurred, crashes have increased, or requests have been received from a number of area 
residents or businesses. 
 
Oregon law gives the State Department of Transportation the authority to establish speed zones on all 
roadways in Oregon.  It also states that an engineering investigation will be done to determine what the 
appropriate speed should be (ORS 810.180). 
 
The local roadway authority (the city or county) should perform a field review to determine the most 
reasonable beginning and ending points for the proposed speed zoning.  Then the local roadway 
authority needs to complete this form and submit it to ODOT to request an investigation.  If more than 
one jurisdiction is involved in the request, ODOT needs documentation from each that they both concur.  This 
form facilitates the request by providing ODOT with the pertinent local information needed to complete the 
investigation. 
 
 
 
Further speed zoning information may be obtained from your local ODOT Region Traffic Office at the address 
below: 
 
 
Region 1 
123 NW Flanders 
Portland, OR 97209-4012 
Tele: (503) 731-8200 
FAX: (503) 731-8259 
 
 

Region 2 
Region 2 Tech Center 
455 Airport Rd SE, Bldg A 
Salem, OR  97301-4989 
Tele: (503) 986-2990 
FAX: (503) 986-2839 

Region 3 
3500 NW Stewart Parkway 
Roseburg, OR 97470-1687 
Tele: (541) 774-6335 
FAX: (541) 957-3547 

 
 

 
Region 4 
63055 N. Hwy 97 
PO Box 5309 
Bend, OR 97708-5309 
Tele: (541) 388-6189 
FAX: (541) 388-6231 

 
Region 5 
3012 Island Avenue 
La Grande, OR 97850-9497 
Tele: (541) 963-3177 
FAX (541) 963-9079 

 

 

Attachment 1, Page 4 of 51



Attachment 1, Page 5 of 51



Attachment 1, Page 6 of 51



Attachment 1, Page 7 of 51



Attachment 1, Page 8 of 51



Attachment 1, Page 9 of 51



 On McKenzie Highway Westbound (One Way) 
 From: McVay Highway (OR 225)   1.19W  35 mph 35 mph 3/ 
 To: 300 ft W. of Mill St.    1.47W 
 

On McKenzie Highway Westbound (One Way) 
D From: 300 ft W. of Mill St.    1.47W  20 mph 20 mph 3/ 
 To: 50 ft E. of 11th St.    2.21W 
 
E From: 50 ft E. of 11th St.    2.21W  30 mph 30 mph 3/ 
 To: 110 ft W. of S. 20th St.   2.95W 
 
 On Franklin Boulevard Eastbound (One Way) 
F From: 220 ft E. of Brooklyn St.   1.12  35 mph 35 mph 3/ 
 To: McVay Highway (OR 225)   1.19 
 
 On McKenzie Highway Eastbound (One Way) 
 From: McVay Highway (OR 225)   1.19  35 mph 35 mph 3/ 
 To: 420 ft W. of Mill St.    1.42 
 
 On S. "A" St. Eastbound (One Way) 
 From: 420 ft W. of Mill St.    1.42  35 mph 35 mph 3/ 
 To: 110 ft W. of S. 20th St.   2.96 
 
Investigated 
 
 On Main St.  (Two Way) 
G From: 110 ft W. of S. 20th St.   2.96  40 mph 40 mph 3/ 4/ 
 To: 160 ft W. of 60th Pl.    6.63 
 
H From: 160 ft W. of 60th Pl.    6.63  45 mph 45 mph 3/ 
 To: 175 ft E. of 71st St.    7.84 
 
Not Investigated 
 
H From: 175 ft E. of 71st St.    7.84  45 mph 45 mph 3/ 
 To: 320 ft E. of 75th St.    8.23 
 
 On McKenzie Highway (Two Way) 
 From: 320 ft E. of 75th St.    8.23  45 mph 45 mph 3/ 
 To: 475 ft E. of 75th St.    8.26 
 
 
1/   OTC road authority; City of Eugene interested jurisdiction 
2/   OTC road authority 
3/   OTC road authority; City of Springfield interested jurisdiction 
4/   Beginning milepost = MP 2.95 Westbound 
 
Historical Background: 
Investigation requested by: Brian Barnett, City Traffic Engineer, City of Springfield. 
 
Requested Speed:  35 mph/40 mph 
 
Previous Action: Existing SZ Order J8329 dated December 30, 2009. 

Attachment 1, Page 10 of 51



Investigation:     Section G   Section H 
Section Length    3.67 mile   1.21 mile 
85% Speed     43 mph   51 mph 
2013 Accident Rate*    4.55    2.30 
2013 Average Daily Traffic   17058    11800 
Culture Type & Density   Moderate Business  Moderate Residential 
Horizontal Alignment    0 curves   0 curves 
Vertical Alignment    Mostly level   Mostly level 
Curve Signs & Speed Rider   None    None 
Existing Posted Speed   40 mph   45 mph 
Recommended Speed   40 mph   45 mph 
 
Roadway Data 
Surface     Bituminous   Bituminous 
Width (FL to FL)    56’ – 93’   55’ – 74’ 
Lanes      5 4/    5 4/ 
Parking     Prohibited   Prohibited 
Shoulders     5’ – 7’ BL   5’BL 
Intersecting Streets    49    13 
Paved      49    13 
Stopped     42    12 
Signalized     7    1 
Pedestrian     82    4 
Bikes      23    2 
 
Accident Data: 
Study Period      1/1/2011 – 12/31/2013 1/1/2011 – 12/31/2013 
Total Accidents     307    42 
Injuries     258    38 
Fatalities     2    2 
2013 Accidents     104    12 
2013 Accident Rate (R)*    4.55    2.30 
2013 State Rate (r) 1/   2.82    2.82 
Deviation (R-r)     1.73    - 
 
Spot Speed Data: 
85% Speed     43 mph   51 mph 
Pace Limits 2/    35 – 44 mph   42 – 51 mph 
% in Pace     78%    79% 
Maximum Speed    55 mph   61 mph 
Posted Speed    40 mph   45 mph 
% Exceeding Posted Speed  37%    61% 
Computed Speed 3/    41.27 mph   51 mph 
Recommended Speed   40 mph   45 mph 
 
1/ Urban Principal Arterial - Other 
2/ Ten mile-per-hour range containing the largest number of sampled vehicles. 
3/ 85% Speed minus deviation 
4/ 2 lanes each direction, full CTL, partial LTL and RTL 
 
 
Factors Influencing Recommendation: 85% Speed, pace limits, culture. 

Attachment 1, Page 11 of 51



Attachment 1, Page 12 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

1. Looking east from 160 feet west of S 20th Street. 

2. Looking west from 160 feet west of S 20th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 13 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

3. Looking east from 160 feet east of S 23rd Street. 

4. Looking west from 160 feet east of S 23rd Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 14 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

5. Looking east from 100 feet east of s 28th Street. 

6. Looking west from 100 feet east of s 28th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 15 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

7. Looking east from 100 feet east of 30th Street. 

8. Looking west from 25 feet east of 30th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 16 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

9. Looking east from 300 feet east of 34th Street. 

10. Looking west from 300 feet east of 34th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 17 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

11. Looking east from 25 feet east of 38th Street. 

12. Looking west from 25 feet east of 38th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 18 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

13. Looking east from 100 feet west of 41st Street. 

14. Looking west from 25 feet west of 41st Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 19 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

15. Looking east from 200 feet east of 42nd Street. 

16. Looking west from 200 feet east of 42nd Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 20 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

17. Looking east from 250 feet east of S 44th Street. 

18. Looking west from 300 feet east of S 44th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 21 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

19. Looking east from 200 feet east of s 47th Street. 

20. Looking west from 200 feet east of s 47th Street.

Attachment 1, Page 22 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

21. Looking east from 150 feet east of 49th Street. 

22. Looking west from 150 feet east of 49th Street.

Attachment 1, Page 23 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

23. Looking east from 150 feet east of S 51st Place.

24. Looking west from 150 feet east of S 51st Place.

Attachment 1, Page 24 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

25. Looking east from 100 feet east of S 53rd Street. 

26. Looking west from 100 feet east of S 53rd Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 25 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

27. Looking east from 100 feet west of N 54th Street. 

28. Looking west from 100 feet west of N 54th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 26 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

29. Looking east from 150 feet west of Bob Straub Parkway. 

30. Looking west from 150 feet west of Bob Straub Parkway. 

Attachment 1, Page 27 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

31. Looking east from 150 feet west of S 58th Street. 

32. Looking west from 150 feet west of S 58th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 28 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

33. Looking east from 125 feet west of 60th Place. 

34. Looking west from 60th Place. 

Attachment 1, Page 29 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

35. Looking east from 300 feet west of 62nd Place. 

36. Looking west from 300 feet west of 62nd Place.

Attachment 1, Page 30 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

37. Looking east from 100 feet west of S 63rd Street. 

38. Looking west from 100 feet west of S 63rd Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 31 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

39. Looking east from 200 feet east of Mountain Gate Road. 

40. Looking west from 200 feet east of Mountain Gate Road.  

Attachment 1, Page 32 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

41. Looking east from 200 feet west of 65th Place. 

42. Looking west from 200 feet west of 65th Place. 

Attachment 1, Page 33 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

43. Looking east from 250 feet east of 66th Street. 

44. Looking west from 250 feet east of 66th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 34 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

45. Looking east from 68th Street. 

46. Looking west from 68th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 35 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

47. Looking east from 100 feet east of 69th Street. 

48. Looking west from 100 feet east of 69th Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 36 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

49. Looking east from 50 feet west of 71st Street. 

50. Looking west from 50 feet west of 71st Street.

Attachment 1, Page 37 of 51



TYPICAL VIEWS
MCKENZIE HIGHWAY (OR 126) / (OR 126 BUS)
CITY OF EUGENE / CITY OF SPRINGFIELD / ODOT

August 13, 2015

51. Looking east from 100 feet east of S 72nd Street. 

52. Looking west from 100 feet east of S 72nd Street. 

Attachment 1, Page 38 of 51



CDS150 OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

10/07/2015

Highway 015 ALL ROAD TYPES, MP 2.96 to 6.63 01/01/2011 to 12/31/2013, Both Add and Non-Add mileage

CRASH SUMMARIES BY YEAR BY COLLISION TYPE

TRANSPORTATION DATA SECTION - CRASH ANALYSIS AND REPORTING UNIT

Page: 1

FIXED / OTHER OBJECT 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1

HEAD-ON 1 1 2 4 1 3 1 4 0 4 0 0 0 0

MISCELLANEOUS 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0

ANGLE 0 4 0 4 0 5 0 3 1 1 3 4 0 0

BACKING 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0

PEDESTRIAN 1 2 0 3 1 2 0 3 0 2 1 1 0 1

YEAR: 2011

REAR-END 0 39 24 63 0 72 0 50 13 57 6 21 15 0

PEDESTRIAN 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 1 0 0 0

TURNING MOVEMENTS 0 18 20 38 0 30 1 22 15 32 6 20 1 1

SIDESWIPE - OVERTAKING 0 2 3 5 0 3 0 3 2 5 0 0 2 0

MISCELLANEOUS 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 1 0 1 0 0

ANGLE 0 1 1 2 0 3 0 1 1 2 0 2 0 0

FIXED / OTHER OBJECT 0 2 6 8 0 2 0 8 0 6 2 4 0 8

YEAR 2012 TOTAL 0 64 55 119 0 112 2 87 31 104 15 48 18 9

YEAR: 2012

PEDESTRIAN 0 4 0 4 0 6 0 4 0 1 3 3 1 0

REAR-END 0 25 29 54 0 36 1 43 10 40 14 24 19 0

ANGLE 0 2 1 3 0 2 1 1 2 2 1 3 0 0

FIXED / OTHER OBJECT 0 1 2 3 0 1 0 2 1 0 3 1 0 3

SIDESWIPE - MEETING 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 0 1 0

TURNING MOVEMENTS 0 19 17 36 0 30 0 29 6 27 9 24 0 1

SIDESWIPE - OVERTAKING 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 1 0 0

YEAR 2013 TOTAL 0 53 51 104 0 77 2 83 19 74 30 56 21 4

YEAR: 2013

NON- PROPERTY INTER-

FATAL FATAL DAMAGE TOTAL PEOPLE PEOPLE DRY WET INTER- SECTION OFF-
COLLISION TYPE CRASHES CRASHES ONLY CRASHES KILLED INJURED TRUCKS SURF SURF DAY DARK SECTION RELATED ROAD

Attachment 1, Page 39 of 51



CDS150 OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

10/07/2015

Highway 015 ALL ROAD TYPES, MP 2.96 to 6.63 01/01/2011 to 12/31/2013, Both Add and Non-Add mileage

CRASH SUMMARIES BY YEAR BY COLLISION TYPE

TRANSPORTATION DATA SECTION - CRASH ANALYSIS AND REPORTING UNIT

Page: 2

Disclaimer: The information contained in this report is compiled from individual driver and police crash reports submitted to the Oregon Department of Transportation as required in ORS 811.720. The Crash Analysis and 
Reporting Unit is committed to providing the highest quality crash data to customers. However, because submittal of crash report forms is the responsibility of the individual driver, the Crash Analysis and Reporting Unit can not 
guarantee that all qualifying crashes are represented nor can assurances be made that all details pertaining to a single crash are accurate.  Note: Legislative changes to DMV's vehicle crash reporting requirements, effective 
01/01/2004, may result in fewer property damage only crashes being eligible for inclusion in the Statewide Crash Data File.

TURNING MOVEMENTS 0 12 9 21 0 16 1 11 10 14 7 12 0 1

REAR-END 0 25 20 45 0 41 0 37 8 36 9 14 3 0

SIDESWIPE - OVERTAKING 0 1 3 4 0 1 0 4 0 3 1 0 2 1

YEAR 2011 TOTAL 2 46 36 84 2 69 2 65 19 61 23 31 5 4

FINAL TOTAL 2 163 142 307 2 258 6 235 69 239 68 135 44 17

NON- PROPERTY INTER-

FATAL FATAL DAMAGE TOTAL PEOPLE PEOPLE DRY WET INTER- SECTION OFF-
COLLISION TYPE CRASHES CRASHES ONLY CRASHES KILLED INJURED TRUCKS SURF SURF DAY DARK SECTION RELATED ROAD

Attachment 1, Page 40 of 51



CDS150 OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

10/07/2015

Highway 015 ALL ROAD TYPES, MP 6.64 to 7.84 01/01/2011 to 12/31/2013, Both Add and Non-Add mileage

CRASH SUMMARIES BY YEAR BY COLLISION TYPE

TRANSPORTATION DATA SECTION - CRASH ANALYSIS AND REPORTING UNIT

Page: 1

Disclaimer: The information contained in this report is compiled from individual driver and police crash reports submitted to the Oregon Department of Transportation as required in ORS 811.720. The Crash Analysis and 
Reporting Unit is committed to providing the highest quality crash data to customers. However, because submittal of crash report forms is the responsibility of the individual driver, the Crash Analysis and Reporting Unit can not 
guarantee that all qualifying crashes are represented nor can assurances be made that all details pertaining to a single crash are accurate.  Note: Legislative changes to DMV's vehicle crash reporting requirements, effective 
01/01/2004, may result in fewer property damage only crashes being eligible for inclusion in the Statewide Crash Data File.

BACKING 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0

FIXED / OTHER OBJECT 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 1 1 1 0 0 2

TURNING MOVEMENTS 1 5 1 7 1 8 0 6 1 7 0 6 0 0

ANGLE 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0

REAR-END 0 1 3 4 0 1 0 2 2 3 1 3 0 0

MISCELLANEOUS 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0

YEAR 2011 TOTAL 2 9 5 16 2 12 0 11 5 14 2 10 1 2

YEAR: 2011

TURNING MOVEMENTS 0 6 1 7 0 10 0 6 1 3 4 7 0 0

SIDESWIPE - OVERTAKING 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 0 0 0

REAR-END 0 5 0 5 0 8 0 4 1 4 1 1 1 0

YEAR 2012 TOTAL 0 11 3 14 0 18 0 11 3 8 6 8 1 0

YEAR: 2012

PEDESTRIAN 0 4 0 4 0 4 0 1 3 1 3 1 2 0

BACKING 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0

ANGLE 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 1 0 0

REAR-END 0 1 1 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 0

TURNING MOVEMENTS 0 1 2 3 0 1 0 2 1 2 1 3 0 0

SIDESWIPE - OVERTAKING 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0

YEAR 2013 TOTAL 0 7 5 12 0 8 0 8 4 6 6 7 2 0

YEAR: 2013

FINAL TOTAL 2 27 13 42 2 38 0 30 12 28 14 25 4 2

NON- PROPERTY INTER-

FATAL FATAL DAMAGE TOTAL PEOPLE PEOPLE DRY WET INTER- SECTION OFF-
COLLISION TYPE CRASHES CRASHES ONLY CRASHES KILLED INJURED TRUCKS SURF SURF DAY DARK SECTION RELATED ROAD

Attachment 1, Page 41 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: Various
 

City: Springfield Time: Various
County:  
Location: Various Weather: Various

COMBINED SECTION G
 Direction of Travel: W-E

MPH MPH
W Averaged -E

# of Vehicles 630 1231 601

85th % Speed 43 43 43

Pace Limits 34 - 43 35 - 44 35 - 44

% In Pace 78% 78% 78%

Mean Speed 38.82 38.99 39.16

Median Speed 39 39.5 40

Std. Dev. 4.06 4.17 4.28

Max Speed 52 55 55

Posted Speed 40 40 40

% Exceeding Posted 34% 37% 40%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 42 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: Various
 

City: Springfield Time: Various
County:  
Location: Various Weather: Various

COMBINED SECTION H
 Direction of Travel: W-E

MPH MPH
W Averaged -E

# of Vehicles 203 414 211

85th % Speed 51 51 50

Pace Limits 42 - 51 42 - 51 41 - 50

% In Pace 80% 79% 77%

Mean Speed 46.70 46.48 46.27

Median Speed 47 47 47

Std. Dev. 4.07 4.15 4.22

Max Speed 61 61 58

Posted Speed 45 45 45

% Exceeding Posted 62% 61% 60%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 43 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: 6/8/2015
 

City: Springfield Time: 1:25 PM - 2:10 PM
County:  
Location: @ S 46TH ST Weather: SUNNY

 
 Direction of Travel: W-E

MPH MPH
W Averaged -E

# of Vehicles 95 205 110

85th % Speed 45 45 44

Pace Limits 37 - 46 36 - 45 35 - 44

% In Pace 83% 82% 80%

Mean Speed 41.39 40.98 40.56

Median Speed 41 41 41

Std. Dev. 3.52 3.86 4.11

Max Speed 50 55 55

Posted Speed 40 40 40

% Exceeding Posted 60% 55% 51%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 44 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: 6/8/2015
 

City: Springfield Time: 12:02 PM - 1:10 PM
County:  
Location: 100 E 41ST ST Weather: SUNNY

 
 Direction of Travel: W-E

MPH MPH
W Averaged -E

# of Vehicles 111 202 91

85th % Speed 42 43 43

Pace Limits 34 - 43 34 - 43 34 - 43

% In Pace 88% 86% 84%

Mean Speed 39.05 38.91 38.77

Median Speed 39 38.5 38

Std. Dev. 3.29 3.59 3.93

Max Speed 49 53 53

Posted Speed 40 40 40

% Exceeding Posted 29% 29% 30%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 45 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: 6/1/2015
 

City: Springfield Time: 2:30 PM - 3:12 PM
County:  
Location: 200 E S 34TH Weather: OVERCAST

 
 Direction of Travel: W-E

MPH MPH
W Averaged -E

# of Vehicles 106 207 101

85th % Speed 41 42 42

Pace Limits 32 - 41 33 - 42 33 - 42

% In Pace 87% 82% 77%

Mean Speed 36.92 37.47 38.02

Median Speed 37 38 39

Std. Dev. 3.60 3.98 4.29

Max Speed 45 50 50

Posted Speed 40 40 40

% Exceeding Posted 16% 23% 31%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 46 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: 6/1/2015
 

City: Springfield Time: 12:45 PM - 1:45 PM
County:  
Location: 200 E S 22ND ST Weather: LT RAIN

 
 Direction of Travel: W-E

MPH MPH
W Averaged -E

# of Vehicles 90 203 113

85th % Speed 41 43 44

Pace Limits 33 - 42 34 - 43 35 - 44

% In Pace 84% 84% 84%

Mean Speed 37.91 38.92 39.92

Median Speed 38 39 40

Std. Dev. 3.88 3.89 3.67

Max Speed 47 50 50

Posted Speed 40 40 40

% Exceeding Posted 27% 36% 46%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 47 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: 6/18/2015
 

City: Springfield Time: 1:50 PM - 2:50 PM
County:  
Location: @ 68TH ST Weather: SUNNY

 
 Direction of Travel: E-W

MPH MPH
E Averaged -W

# of Vehicles 110 204 94

85th % Speed 49 50 51

Pace Limits 40 - 49 42 - 51 43 - 52

% In Pace 77% 80% 83%

Mean Speed 45.66 46.40 47.13

Median Speed 46 46.5 47

Std. Dev. 4.27 4.28 4.19

Max Speed 57 61 61

Posted Speed 45 45 45

% Exceeding Posted 56% 61% 65%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 48 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: 6/18/2015
 

City: Springfield Time: 12:25 PM -1:10 PM
County:  
Location: @ S 63RD ST Weather: SUNNY

 
 Direction of Travel: W-E

MPH MPH
W Averaged -E

# of Vehicles 109 210 101

85th % Speed 51 51 51

Pace Limits 42 - 51 43 - 52 43 - 52

% In Pace 82% 80% 78%

Mean Speed 46.33 46.63 46.93

Median Speed 47 47 47

Std. Dev. 3.95 4.02 4.09

Max Speed 56 58 58

Posted Speed 45 45 45

% Exceeding Posted 60% 62% 64%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 49 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: 6/16/2015
 

City: Springfield Time: 12:40 PM - 3:30 PM
County:  
Location: 300 W BOB STRAUB Weather: LT CLOUDS

 
 Direction of Travel: E-W

MPH MPH
E Averaged -W

# of Vehicles 84 209 125

85th % Speed 41 42 42

Pace Limits 32 - 41 32 - 41 31 - 40

% In Pace 77% 76% 75%

Mean Speed 36.14 36.67 37.19

Median Speed 36 37 38

Std. Dev. 4.35 4.30 4.23

Max Speed 48 48 46

Posted Speed 40 40 40

% Exceeding Posted 20% 20% 20%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 50 of 51



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: McKenzie Hwy Date: 6/9/2015
 

City: Springfield Time: 1:22 PM - 2:12 PM
County:  
Location: 200 W S 50TH PL Weather: LT CLOUDS

 
 Direction of Travel: E-W

MPH MPH
E Averaged -W

# of Vehicles 102 205 103

85th % Speed 44 45 45

Pace Limits 36 - 45 36 - 45 36 - 45

% In Pace 86% 88% 89%

Mean Speed 40.77 40.86 40.94

Median Speed 41 41 41

Std. Dev. 3.67 3.55 3.46

Max Speed 49 52 52

Posted Speed 40 40 40

% Exceeding Posted 56% 56% 55%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 1, Page 51 of 51



 
Oregon Department of Transportation 

Speed Zone Request 
 
  

 

To request a Speed Zone Investigation by ODOT personnel, City or County Engineering 
Department staff should complete this form and email it -  with a map of the roadway - to: 

 

 

 

 ODOTSpeedZoning@odot.state.or.us 
 

 

1. AGENCY NAME 2. DATE 

City of Springfield 5/7/15 
3. CONTACT NAME AND TITLE 4. TELEPHONE NUMBER 
Brian Barnett, PE, PTOE, City Traffic Engineer 541.726.3681 
5.  E-MAIL ADDRESS 6.  FAX NUMBER 

bbarnett@springfield-or.gov       
7. ADDRESS (POSTAL)  
201 South 18th Street, Springfield OR 97477  
8. NAME OF ROADWAY  
Eugene – Springfield Highway No. 227 
(OR126) 

 

9. FROM 10. TO 
Main Street 950 ft. north of Main Street 
11. REQUESTED SPEED - MPH 12. EXISTING POSTED SPEED - MPH 13. EXISTING SPEEDS OF ROADWAY ABUTTING THIS SECTION 
45 55 14a. ENTERING - MPH: 45 

existing/ 40 proposed 
14b. EXITING - MPH: 55 

15. AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC VOLUME 
16. ROADWAY CLASSIFICATION: LOCAL         COLLECTOR         ARTERIAL 

19,800 

17. Speed recommendation from City or County Engineering Department (required per ORS 810.180): 45 MPH 
18. Reasons for this recommendation: 
Main Street is experiencing a marked increase in pedestrian and cyclist volume and conflicts with 
vehicles are also increasing resulting in numerous fatal and injury severity class A crashes. A large 
radius exit ramp to Main Street westbound channels high speed expressway traffic into Main Street 
with high volume left turns occurring at commercial driveways and into a nearby traffic signal. 
 
19. Are curves in this section of roadway signed appropriately?      YES      NO  
20. Is the recommended speed consistent with the speeds of similar roadways in the surrounding area?    YES      NO 
21. Speed Recommendation from enforcement: 45 MPH 
22. Reasons for this recommendation: 
Slow traffic from expressway speed of 55 prior to entering Main Street which is recommended to be 40 
mph. Numerous fatalities on Main Street over the last decade.  Area is heavily congested with vehicle & 
pedestrian traffic. 
23. Are there special plans to enforce the proposed speed zoning? (explain): 
Springfield Police is adding overtime patrols to the area, plus the agency’s Traffic Team will 
concentrate their resources to enforcing speed violations. 
 
24. Speed Recommendation from local residents: 35-55 MPH 
25. Reasons for this recommendation: 
Public response to the recent triple fatality of pedestrians varied in the range of 35 to 55 MPH with the 
preponderance of recommendations near 45 MPH. 
 
26. If more than one jurisdiction is involved, describe below (or furnish a map showing) where the city limits lines 
cross the roadway and where maintenance jurisdictional boundaries change.  If there is more than one 
jurisdiction involved, this information must be furnished before the speed zone investigation can be done. 
N/A 
 
If you have questions on speed zones, contact the ODOT Traffic-Roadway Section in Salem at 986-3609, FAX 986-3749, or your local ODOT Region 
Traffic Office (see reverse for addresses). 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 22

mailto:ODOTSpeedZoning@odot.state.or.us
mailto:bbarnett@springfield-or.gov


 
 When should speed zone investigations be requested?  When traffic patterns have changed, 
development has occurred, crashes have increased, or requests have been received from a number of area 
residents or businesses. 
 
Oregon law gives the State Department of Transportation the authority to establish speed zones on all 
roadways in Oregon.  It also states that an engineering investigation will be done to determine what the 
appropriate speed should be (ORS 810.180). 
 
The local roadway authority (the city or county) should perform a field review to determine the most 
reasonable beginning and ending points for the proposed speed zoning.  Then the local roadway 
authority needs to complete this form and submit it to ODOT to request an investigation.  If more than 
one jurisdiction is involved in the request, ODOT needs documentation from each that they both concur.  This 
form facilitates the request by providing ODOT with the pertinent local information needed to complete the 
investigation. 
 
 
 
Further speed zoning information may be obtained from your local ODOT Region Traffic Office at the address 
below: 
 
 
Region 1 
123 NW Flanders 
Portland, OR 97209-4012 
Tele: (503) 731-8200 
FAX: (503) 731-8259 
 
 

Region 2 
Region 2 Tech Center 
455 Airport Rd SE, Bldg A 
Salem, OR  97301-4989 
Tele: (503) 986-2990 
FAX: (503) 986-2839 

Region 3 
3500 NW Stewart Parkway 
Roseburg, OR 97470-1687 
Tele: (541) 774-6335 
FAX: (541) 957-3547 

 
 

 
Region 4 
63055 N. Hwy 97 
PO Box 5309 
Bend, OR 97708-5309 
Tele: (541) 388-6189 
FAX: (541) 388-6231 

 
Region 5 
3012 Island Avenue 
La Grande, OR 97850-9497 
Tele: (541) 963-3177 
FAX (541) 963-9079 

 

 

Attachment 2, Page 2 of 22



Attachment 2, Page 3 of 22



Attachment 2, Page 4 of 22



Attachment 2, Page 5 of 22



 
Investigation:     Section 
Section Length    0.19 mile 
85% Speed     61 mph 
2013 Crash Rate*    2.19 
2013 Average Daily Traffic   19800 
Culture Type & Density   Access Controlled Expressway (rural) 
Horizontal Alignment   0 curves 
Vertical Alignment    Level 
Curve Signs & Speed Rider   None 
Existing Posted Speed   55 mph 
Recommended Speed   55 mph 
 
Roadway Data    Section 
Surface     Bituminous 
Width      25’ FL to FL 
Lanes      2 
Parking     Partially Prohibited 
Shoulders     4’6”-12’6” AC, edge line rumble 
Intersecting Streets    0 
Paved      0 
Stopped     0 
Signalized     0 
Pedestrian     0 
Bikes      0 
 
Crash Data:     Section 
Study Period     01/01/11–12/31/13 
Total Accidents    3 
Injuries     3 
Fatalities     0 
2013 Crashes    2 
2013 Crash Rate (R)*   2.19 
2013 State Rate (r) 1/   0.94 
Deviation (R-r)     1.25 
 
Spot Speed Data:    Section 
85% Speed     61 mph 
Pace Limits 2/    51 – 60 mph 
% in Pace     79% 
Maximum Speed    69 mph 
Posted Speed    55 mph (BR) 
% Exceeding Posted Speed   59% 
Computed Speed 3/    59.75 mph 
Recommended Speed   55 mph (BR) 
 
1/ Other Freeways and Expressways – Urban City - Springfield 
2/ Ten mile-per-hour range containing the largest number of sampled vehicles. 
3/ 85% Speed minus deviation 
 
Factors Influencing Recommendation:  85% Speed, culture, and crash rate. 

Attachment 2, Page 6 of 22



Attachment 2, Page 7 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

1. Looking west on RB1 from 0.19 mile east of 52nd Street. 

2. Looking east on RB1 from 0.19 mile east of 52nd Street.

Attachment 2, Page 8 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

3. Looking north/west on RB1 from 0.40 mile east of 52nd Street. 

4. Looking south/east on RB1 from 0.40 mile east of 52nd Street.

Attachment 2, Page 9 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

5. Looking north/west on RB1 from 0.55 mile east of 52nd Street. 

6. Looking south/east on RB1 from 0.55 mile east of 52nd Street.

Attachment 2, Page 10 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

7. Looking north/west on RB1 from 0.61 mile east of 52nd Street. 

8. Looking south/east on RB1 from 0.61 mile east of 52nd Street.

Attachment 2, Page 11 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

9. Looking north/west on RB1 from 0.71 mile east of 52nd Street. 

10. Looking south/east on RB1 from 0.71 mile east of 52nd Street.

Attachment 2, Page 12 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

11. Looking north/west on RB1 from 300 feet north/west of Main Street. 

12. Looking south/east on RB1 from 300 feet north/west of Main Street.

Attachment 2, Page 13 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

13. Looking north/west on RB1 from 100 feet south/east of Main Street. 

14. Looking south/east on RB1 from 100 feet south/east of Main Street.

Attachment 2, Page 14 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

15. Looking north/west on RB2 from 250 feet south/east of Main Street. 

16. Looking south/east on RB2 from 250 feet south/east of Main Street.

Attachment 2, Page 15 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

17. Looking north/west on RB2 from 125 feet north/west of Main Street. 

18. Looking south/east on RB2 from 125 feet north/west of Main Street.

Attachment 2, Page 16 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

19. Looking north/west on RB2 from 0.22 mile north/west of Main Street. 

20. Looking south/east on RB2 from 0.22 mile north/west of Main Street.

Attachment 2, Page 17 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

21. Looking north/west on RB2 from 0.35 mile north/west of Main Street. 

22. Looking south/east on RB2 from 0.35 mile north/west of Main Street.

Attachment 2, Page 18 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

23. Looking north/west on RB2 from 0.60 mile north/west of Main Street. 

24. Looking south/east on RB2 from 0.60 mile north/west of Main Street.

Attachment 2, Page 19 of 22



TYPICAL VIEWS
EUGENE–SPRINGFIELD HIGHWAY (OR 126)
ODOT / ODOT – CITY OF SPRINGFIELD

JUNE 29, 2015

25. Looking north/west on RB2 from 0.11 mile south/east of 52nd Street. 

26. Looking south/east on RB2 from 0.11 mile south/east of 52nd Street.

Attachment 2, Page 20 of 22



CDS150 OREGON DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION - TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

08/17/2015

Highway 227 ALL ROAD TYPES, MP 9.78 to 9.96 01/01/2011 to 12/31/2013, Both Add and Non-Add mileage

CRASH SUMMARIES BY YEAR BY COLLISION TYPE

TRANSPORTATION DATA SECTION - CRASH ANALYSIS AND REPORTING UNIT

Page: 1

Disclaimer: The information contained in this report is compiled from individual driver and police crash reports submitted to the Oregon Department of Transportation as required in ORS 811.720. The Crash Analysis and 
Reporting Unit is committed to providing the highest quality crash data to customers. However, because submittal of crash report forms is the responsibility of the individual driver, the Crash Analysis and Reporting Unit can not 
guarantee that all qualifying crashes are represented nor can assurances be made that all details pertaining to a single crash are accurate.  Note: Legislative changes to DMV's vehicle crash reporting requirements, effective 
01/01/2004, may result in fewer property damage only crashes being eligible for inclusion in the Statewide Crash Data File.

FIXED / OTHER OBJECT 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1

YEAR 2012 TOTAL 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 1

YEAR: 2012

REAR-END 0 1 1 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 1 0 2 0

YEAR 2013 TOTAL 0 1 1 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 1 0 2 0

YEAR: 2013

FINAL TOTAL 0 2 1 3 0 3 0 2 1 1 2 0 2 1

NON- PROPERTY INTER-

FATAL FATAL DAMAGE TOTAL PEOPLE PEOPLE DRY WET INTER- SECTION OFF-
COLLISION TYPE CRASHES CRASHES ONLY CRASHES KILLED INJURED TRUCKS SURF SURF DAY DARK SECTION RELATED ROAD

Attachment 2, Page 21 of 22



Oregon Department of Transportation

Roadway: Eugene-Springfield Hwy Date: 6/9/2015
 

City: Springfield Time: 11:50 AM - 12:30 PM
County:  
Location: 900 N MCKENZIE HWY Weather: LT CLOUDS

 
 Direction of Travel: N-S

MPH MPH
N Averaged -S

# of Vehicles 103 204 101

85th % Speed 61 61 61

Pace Limits 51 - 60 51 - 60 51 - 60

% In Pace 77% 79% 81%

Mean Speed 56.19 56.55 56.90

Median Speed 57 57 57

Std. Dev. 4.45 4.15 3.82

Max Speed 69 69 66

Posted Speed 55 55 55

% Exceeding Posted 54% 59% 64%

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.80

0.90

1.00

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50 55 60 65 70 75 80

C
um

ul
at

iv
e 

Pe
rc

en
t

% of Veh. Speed Limit 85th Percentile

Attachment 2, Page 22 of 22



May 2, 2016 

Springfield Upbeat 

Earth Day Poster Contest 

(Amber Fossen – Presenter) 

 

The 10th Annual Earth Day Poster Contest was a success with nearly 430 fourth grade students in the 

Springfield Public School District participating. The 2016 theme is “Earth Heroes!” Protecting our planet 

is everyone’s responsibility so we asked students what they do to help save Planet Earth.  

The top five entries are as follows: 

 

Fourth Grade Winners 

 First Place: Jillian Chamberlain-Seitz 

 Second Place: Cohen Rose 

 Third Place: Mirella Farias 

 Fourth Place: Madison Blaine 

 Fifth Place: Lesly Deskin 

 

The winning posters are on display in the City Hall lobby through mid-May. 

 

This is the first year the poster contest was held for fourth grade students only. Last year, we invited 

both fourth and fifth grades to participate as part of a transition plan to move the popular contest from 

fifth grade to fourth grade.  

The intent of moving the poster contest to fourth grade is to create more connections with multiple 

grades at Springfield Public Schools. Staff determined this Earth Day contest is a perfect fit for fourth 

graders, while we continue with Public Works Week for third grade students and Clean Water University 

for fifth grade students. 

 



 

PROCLAMATION 
SALVATION ARMY WEEK 

 

WHEREAS: The Salvation Army, has been meeting human and spiritual needs, 

motivated by the love of God, since 1865 when it was founded in England and has spread 

globally to provide services in 127 countries; and  

 

WHEREAS:  The Salvation Army has been meeting physical, emotional, and 

spiritual needs of the people of Oregon for 129 years; and has been serving our military 

men and women since World War I, including the present Home Front War Relief for 

soldiers and their families, who were recently and are currently deployed; and  

 

WHEREAS:  The Salvation Army provides services for over 300,894 Oregonians 

each year, which includes, but is not limited to, 104,052 nights of lodging, over 425,576 

meals, and over 600 underprivileged children go to summer camp for a week to ten days; 

and  

 

WHEREAS:  The Salvation Army has been serving the Lane County since 1895; and 

assisted nearly 13,000 less fortunate individuals with food, rental and utility assistance, 

clothing voucher, household items, and other basic needs this past year; and 

 

WHEREAS:  The Salvation is fighting human trafficking, domestic violence, 

additions, hunger, homelessness and unemployment for our most vulnerable Oregonians 

without discrimination; battling hard to meet the widespread needs of men, women and 

children here in Oregon and around the world; and  

 

WHEREAS:  The Salvation Army plays a critical role in responding to disasters 

locally and worldwide, including earthquake and tsunami, tornados and floods, fire and 

famine. They respond compassionately and practically and stay long in order to help with 

the cleanup and rebuilding; and  

 

WHEREAS:  The Salvation Army humbly appreciates the support of thousands of 

donors, volunteers and staff who believe in the mission and enable the Army to make a 

difference in multitude of lives. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE: I, Christine Lundberg, Mayor of the City of Springfield, Oregon, hereby 

proclaim May 9-13, 2016 to be THE SALVATION ARMY WEEK in Springfield and encourage 

all citizens of Springfield to join in this observance. 
 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Christine L. Lundberg 

      Mayor 



AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Amy Sowa 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-3700 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE:  

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

 
By motion, approval of the attached minutes. 
 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

 
The attached minutes are submitted for Council approval. 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
Minutes: 
 

a. March 14, 2016 – Work Session 
b. March 21, 2016 – Regular Meeting 
c. March 28, 2016 – Work Session 
d. April 4, 2016 – Work Session 

 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

 
None. 
 
 

 
 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY MARCH 14, 2016 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Library Meeting Room, 225 Fifth Street, 
Springfield, Oregon, on Monday March 14, 2016 at 5:30 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Wylie, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and 
Pishioneri. Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City 
Attorney Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
1. Historic Commission Interview. 
 
Jim Donovan, Planning Supervisor, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
There are four vacancies on the seven-member Historic Commission as a result of two term 
expirations and two resignations.  After a 3-month recruitment period that closed on February 8, 2016, 
the Department received applications from Kristina Koenig, Mackenzie Karp and Jonathan Siegle.  
Ms. Koenig and Ms. Karp were interviewed at the Council Work Session held on February 22, 2016.  
Mr. Siegle will be interviewed tonight.   
 
The vacancies on the Historic Commission are a result of term expirations for Commissioners Dannie 
Helm and Kuri Gill, and the resignation of Commissioners Vincent Martorello and Kerry Barbero.    
 
Qualifications for membership on the Historic Commission include expertise in the fields of 
architecture, history, architectural history, planning, or archeology; residency within the Metro Plan 
boundaries; or as residents, electors, or property owners within Springfield.  In addition, the Council 
shall solicit recommendations for appointment from Willamalane and School District #19 (Municipal 
Code Section 2.502). The School District declined to recommend appointees to fill these vacancies; 
Willamalane recommended applicant Kristina Koenig to fill the vacancy created by Commissioner 
Martorello’s resignation.   
 
State and Federal funding of the City’s historic preservation activities stipulate that a majority of the 
Commissioners have professional qualifications in a field related to historic preservation.  Two current 
members and two applicants possess these qualifications and also meet or partially meet the 
qualifications and standards set forth by the National Park Service regarding commissions (See 
Attachments 3 and 4).  Mr. Siegle’s education experience is in Architectural History and Cultural 
Anthropology, he resides in the Washburne District and has previously served on Springfield’s 
Planning Commission and Historic Commission. 
 
Springfield Municipal Code Section 2.506 states that any vacancy shall be filled for the unexpired 
portion of the term of the member creating the vacancy, and Section 2.504 states that appointed 
members shall hold office for four years with the terms staggered to provide overlapping and 
continuity.  The candidates appointed for a first term are eligible to serve for four years beginning on 
the date of appointment by City Council.  The candidate appointed to fill Commissioner Martorello’s 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 2 
 
vacancy is eligible to serve the remaining portion of this term, which expires on February 2, 2018.  
Appointment of Historic Commission applicants is currently scheduled for March 21, 2016.     
 
The Mayor and Council introduced themselves to Mr. Siegle. 
 
Council interviewed Mr. Siegle with the following questions: 
 

1. Describe your professional and personal experience as it relates to your desire to become a 
Historic Commissioner.  (Councilor Wylie) 

2. Describe your familiarity with the City’s historic resources. (Councilor Ralston) 
3. What is it about Springfield’s history that interests you most?  (Councilor Pishioneri) 
4. Why are you interested in serving on the Historic Commission?  (Councilor Woodrow) 
5. What initiatives are you interested in working on if you are appointed as a Commissioner?  

(Councilor VanGordon) 
6. Have you attended a Historic Commission meeting? If so, what were your impressions? 

(Councilor Moore) 
 
Council discussed the qualifications of all three applicants and decided to appoint all three to the 
Historic Commission during the March 21, 2016 Council meeting. 
 
2. Budget Committee Interviews. 
 
Bob Duey, Finance Director, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Applicants are being sought to represent Wards 3, 5 and 6 where former committee members’ terms 
expired.  The recruitment for these vacancies opened on January 5, 2016 and closed on March 4, 2016.  
No candidates applied for Ward 3 however an interim candidate has been identified for a one year 
term ending on December 31, 2016.  The appointee for both Ward 5 and Ward 6 will serve a three 
year term that will expire on December 31, 2018. 
 
The Council is requested to interview three applicants. Budget Committee appointments are scheduled 
to be ratified at the Regular Session Meeting on March 21, 2016. 
 
The Mayor and Council introduced themselves to the applicants (Nathan Mischel, Victoria Doyle, and 
Diana Alldredge) and asked them the following questions: 
 

1. Describe your professional and personal experience as it relates to your desire to become a 
committee member.  (Councilor Wylie) 

2. If you were on the Budget Committee and were looking at one of the City’s services to decide 
how much should be funded through general taxes and how much through specific fees on 
customers, what questions would you want to have answered in order to make your decision?  
(Councilor Ralston) 

3. The Budget Committee meets on Tuesdays in April and May, generally for a total of four or 
five meetings.  The meetings start at 5:30 or 6:00 and usually last three hours.  There is 
occasionally a mid-year meeting in December or January. Will you be able to meet the time 
requirements of the Committee? (Councilor Pishioneri) 

4. While all of Springfield services seem to have strong support from different areas of the 
community, it is often necessary to prioritize services for budgetary reasons.  How would you 
go about the task of establishing priorities among services?  (Councilor Woodrow) 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 3 
 

5. Why are you interested in serving on/continuing to serve on the Budget Committee? (Mayor 
Lundberg) 

6. Describe your familiarity with the City’s budget.  (Councilor VanGordon) 
7. Often times the members of the Budget Committee have different opinions on how the 

citizens’ money should be spent.  What is your experience with working as a member of a 
diverse group and helping to ensure that all opinions are heard and considered?  (Councilor 
Moore) 

 
Council discussed the qualifications of each applicant and decided to appoint all three at the March 21, 
2016 regular meeting. Mr. Mischel’s appointment will be for one year only. 

 
3. Master Fees and Charges Schedule – Spring 2016 Update. 
 
Bob Duey, Finance Director, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Each year, Council and staff review existing fees and charges for appropriateness of rates for meeting 
cost recovery targets as well as reviewing for areas where new or additional fees should be considered.  
This spring of 2016 review will focus on updates for annual impacts of inflation, new fees and 
omissions as directed by Council. 
 
The City’s schedule of fees and charges is established by Council action.  The work in the spring of 
2013 by the Council and staff consolidated past documents describing the City’s various fees and the 
method for making changes into a single document titled Master Fees and Charges schedule.  This 
document provides an easy reference for citizens, Councilors, and staff to identify the current fees 
authorized to be levied and collected by the City.  
 
Changes to the City of Springfield’s fees and charges can be modified through action by the Council 
or staff.  The most common of actions by the Council is by simple resolution.  The authorization to 
levy the fee may be contained in the municipal, building, development, or fire codes, but the actual 
amount of the fee itself is established by resolution.  These most commonly are brought to the Council 
with a public hearing and are adopted at that time.  
 
Other fees may be authorized by the municipal, building, development, or fire codes and the specific 
amount of the fee is also contained within that same code.  In those cases, the respective code itself 
must be amended by ordinance and most commonly requires a public hearing, a first reading and a 
second reading prior to adoption. 
 
In this review, the following changes in the Master Fees and Charges Schedule are being considered: 
 
All fees and charges are examined by City staff to evaluate if a yearly adjustment should be 
considered. Most changes being identified are increases for a 2% Cost-of-Living-Adjustment (COLA) 
and/or minor changes in descriptions.  However, for the proceeding fees and charges, either changes 
are being recommended above a 2% COLA, there are new fees, or there are significant changes in 
descriptions.  Please note, the City Attorney’s Office is working on the Recreational Marijuana and 
Growers/Processors fee, which will be effective this year.  An Emergency Ordinance will be applied 
for to establish the municipal code and corresponding fees, so those fees are not reflected in this 
update.  The City Manager’s Office is reviewing the Downtown Parking Program and if there are 
recommendations to change the current fees, they will come to the Council in a separate action. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 4 
 
Mr. Duey said setting fees and charges is important as they go through the Priority Based Budgeting 
(PBB) process. Staff has identified a list of fees and charges to go through this spring and fall to look 
at from a cost recovery standpoint and how should be paying fees. They expect to come back with 
those adjustments in October or November. He described some of the adjustments in fees. The Fire fee 
is a new fee to match both the Eugene and Springfield departments, keeping them consistent. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri asked about the Manufactured Dwelling Park License and why the category for 
over 100 spaces is per space, rather than a flat fee. The narrative has it written out per unit for all 
categories. 
 
Ms. Lewis said the Manufactured Dwelling Park License always had a flat rate, yet were inconsistent 
in each level. When trying to apply the COLA adjustment, she looked at what the per space rate was 
for the maximum number of spaces and apply the COLA so there would be a consistent COLA 
adjustment from year to year. She tried to match the per space rate as closely to what it was 
previously. 
 
Mr. Duey referred to Section 6: Building and Safety Fees. These are fees currently not in the fee 
schedule. Upon providing a draft of the revised Building and Safety Fees to the State of Oregon 
Building Code Division, we were found non-compliant.  A number of additional charges were added 
to bring us into compliance.  Fees were established based on local market rates. 
 
Matthew Ruettgers said the permits are required per ORS. The State helped several jurisdictions add 
these into their fee schedule. Springfield staff did look at the market rate to set the fee. This could 
provide opportunity to combine permits for developers. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri asked about the CAD Reports under Section 5. He asked if this brought us to the 
same fee as Eugene uses. He said many jurisdictions have a one-time fee, plus a per page charge. 
 
Mr. Duey said this is different from Police Reports which do have a higher cost for the first four 
pages. The fee of .15/page for miscellaneous copies makes it consistent with other city departments. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri asked if the City was planning on how to anticipate requests for digital copies. 
 
Ms. Smith asked if he was referring to data such as body cameras, etc. Yes. She said the Police 
Department is looking at a trial program. They would then need to draft a policy that would address 
data collection and providing for public records request as required by statute. She agreed it was a big 
issue that included storage and accessibility, and would be addressed. 
 
Other examples of digital records included audio recordings from meetings and building surveillance 
(both internal and external). 
 
Mr. Duey said he would contact the appropriate staff and add that to the Fall discussion. 
 
Councilor Moore asked about Rental Licenses on page 8 of Attachment 2 of the agenda packet. She 
asked for clarification. 
 
It is for rental properties starting at four-plexes and has been in place for a while. 
 
Councilor Moore said with such a minor increase, she wondered if it was worth changing. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 5 
 
Mr. Duey said that is the challenge of being consistent and applying COLA’s to everything. Some fees 
it didn’t make sense to raise it to an odd amount, so they rounded it up or down. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said Council had asked for smaller increases rather than waiting several years and 
making larger increases. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked about the meeting room fee and when that was last increased. 
 
Mr. Duey said that fee had not been changed in some time. There are ongoing internal discussions 
about when to charge for meeting rooms and they try to keep it to a minimum. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said we only charge when it is outside normal operating hours. 
 
Mr. Duey noted an error under Dog Licenses. There was an earlier discussion among staff about these 
fees. They decided not to look at it from a regional perspective and forgot to include a COLA increase. 
He asked if they wanted to look at making a COLA adjustment in the Fall, or a regional comparison. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said there was a separate meeting to discuss dog fees. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she would like to see the COLA increase. 
 
Mr. Duey said they would bring back that COLA adjustment to dog license fees in the Fall. Staff will 
bring these updates back for adoption on March 21 during the Council meeting. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri asked for a definition of Watchdog. 
 
Mr. Duey said he would get that information and get back to the Council. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked that when they look at cost recovery targets, they look at more than one 
year. 
 
Mr. Duey said the next discussion will look at a high level. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the number of Budget Committee meetings. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said he would like to see a comparison of where Springfield is compared to other 
neighboring jurisdictions. 
 
Mr. Ruettgers said staff did an evaluation when they did a fee increase last year. They met with the 
HomeBuilders’ Association and made an adjustment they were more comfortable with. When they did 
that, they did an analysis of the City of Eugene and Lane County’s fees which showed that 
Springfield’s fees landed in about the middle. He can put that information in a Communication Packet 
for the Council if they would like. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi asked if that analysis included System Development Charges (SDCs). 
 
Mr. Ruettgers said that is a different piece. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said Springfield tends to be higher in SDCs. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 6 
 
Mayor Lundberg said Willamalane also charges SDCs in Springfield, which adds to the full cost. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said he would like a full picture of what it would cost someone to build in 
Springfield compared to what it would cost to build in Eugene. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said they had received that information in the past and Springfield is higher. 
 
4. Strategizing for Long-Term Fiscal Health. 
 
Michelle Lewis, Management Analyst, and Bob Duey, Finance Director, presented the staff report on 
this item. 
 
The City is beginning its third year using the methodology of priority-based budgeting as a tool to help 
focus the allocation of available resources to those services that help most to advance Community and 
Council goals.  For this annual budget process to prove successful, it is important that the City has 
established long-term fiscal targets or performance measurements that support the long-term fiscal 
stability for both a consistent level of base services year after year and plan in advance for expanded or 
new and innovative services.  This second work session reviews three proposed financial policies 
concerned with defining the elements that make up a fiscally healthy organization.  Council is being 
asked to review and provide input on the proposed financial policies for adoption at a regular session. 
 
Transitioning from traditional to priority-based budgeting involves learning curves for annual 
budgeting as well as strategic planning, performance measurement, and evaluating long-term fiscal 
health of the organization.  The ultimate goal is to be able to provide consistent services to City of 
Springfield citizens, now and in the future.  In order to realistically assess that possibility, the City 
needs to objectively identify and establish its long-term fiscal health goals for 5, 10 or 20 years into 
the future.   
 
This discussion, the second in a series on Fiscal Health, is intended to review three proposed financial 
policies.  Topics will include: 

• Purpose of Updating Policies 
• Rolling Schedule for Policy Updates 
• Policy Impacts to Fiscal Health 

o Categorizing Reserves 
o Diversifying Revenues 
o Seeking Excellence in Financial Reporting 

 
Staff’s goal is that Council reviews the proposed policies for adoption at a regular session. 
 
Ms. Lewis presented a power point on this topic. Fiscal health requires prioritizing services and long-
term strategizing. There have been no major revisions to the City’s financial policies for over 22 years 
and Springfield’s economic reality has shifted a lot since that time. She noted that $600,000, or about 
1.7% of our operating expenditures or four days, had been set aside in the General Fund for emergency 
funds. The City’s dependence on property tax revenue has increased over the past ten years. The City 
has an opportunity now to shape its fiscal health moving forward and financial policy updates can help 
make that happen. The objective in updating the financial policies is to develop a strategic long-term 
approach to achieving fiscal health. Each of the policies should be meeting one or two of the following 
goals:  

• Minimize the cost of government and reduce financial risk 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 7 
 

• Maintain appropriate financial capacity for present and future needs 
• Ensure the legal use of financial resources through an effective system of internal controls 

 
There are 9 financial policies that the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) lists as 
essential or highly advisable. The City’s present financial management policies only cover three 
pages, some conflict with current practices, are out of date, or ambiguously worded. The new policies 
are more robust and a lot easier to understand. 
 
Ms. Lewis reviewed the Reserve Policy. Although she is mainly talking about General Fund reserves, 
if the Council decides to adopt the Reserve Policy, staff will also be trying to establish these Reserve 
categories in other operating funds. The primary goal of this policy is to categorize reserves in order to 
help the City and bond rating agencies identify different financial priorities and determine if there is 
enough or not enough allocated to those different priorities. Our current City policy states “the City 
will maintain adequate cash reserves in both Contingency and Working Capital”, but is not clear what 
that means. For the General Fund, the working capital needs to cover five months cash flow. For the 
General Fund, there is a revenue gap between July and when we receive the predominant amount of 
property tax revenues at the end of November and December. Staff is suggesting a higher contingency 
amount, up to 3%, which would cover roughly 7 days of normal General Fund activities in the event of 
an emergency. That would be just under twice the current amount.  
 
Councilor VanGordon asked how far our working capital drops during the period between July and 
November. 
 
Mr. Duey said it is close to about $900,000 between revenue coming in and our expenses going out. 
 
Councilor Ralston asked for the definition of working capital. 
 
Mr. Duey said it is mostly personnel. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said there is a balance in the General Fund that can be put into these categories. 
 
Ms. Lewis said they were hoping to categorize the funds to make sure they have enough funds for the 
City’s priorities. 
 
Mr. Duey said the figure they are coming up with may actually be less than what we are currently 
carrying. 
 
Ms. Lewis said the third category is the Revenue or Rate Stabilization. This is meant to cover 
unanticipated fluctuations in revenues or expenses. For the General Fund, it is revenue stabilization. 
Projections are made early in the budget cycle on property tax increases for the next several years. The 
revenue stabilization being suggested is a 1% difference in our projections versus the actuals we 
receive. That is meant to be over three years. For the General Fund revenue stabilization amount, staff 
is suggesting a $1M set aside to cover the potential shifts between our projections and actual amounts. 
 
Mr. Duey provided an example with property taxes. This type of fund could help the City get through 
those gaps and projections that are lower than expected. It can also help keep rate changes remain 
more steady rather than going up and down.  
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 8 
 
Ms. Lewis said the remaining balance is represented by unrestricted reserves. Those fund are set aside 
for program development and unmet needs. Other funds have different circumstances, so 
categorization ensures that financial priorities are met. 
 
Mr. Duey said a good example of unrestricted revenues for the General Fund is looking at what is 
coming in the next three years that doesn’t fit into the other categories. The Fire Levy is one example 
of something they are looking at moving into the General Fund over the next few years. 
 
Ms. Lewis said other parts of the Reserve Policy include how we will build up the reserves initially, 
how we re-establish the reserves once used, etc. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked what kind of discussions had been held about the replenishment plan and 
how funds would be added back. 
 
Ms. Lewis said the replenishment policy they have discussed involves using one-time dollars to set up 
those amounts. Planning fees have been well above what was anticipated. Those extra dollars would 
be set aside to build up a reserve. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked how the Council would know that is occurring. 
 
Mr. Duey said they would have line items and it would come to the Budget Committee for discussion. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said in the past, it was difficult to show the contingencies. Having these policies in place 
will allow them to see them more clearly. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said it would be helpful to have it more distinct and brought to their attention. 
 
Councilor Wylie asked if things like equipment reserves per department would still remain separate. 
 
Mr. Duey said they are in a restricted reserve fund, which is an internal service fund managed by 
Finance. There are also restricted funds for particular capital projects. These won’t interfere with those 
restricted funds. One of the projects staff will be undertaking is to look at those funds to make sure 
they are adequate. They will be kept separate from these four categories. Another advantage in having 
these types of policies in place is for bond rating. Staff is discussing the first three policies tonight, and 
will bring the other six policies to Council in the future, three at a time. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said it will be simpler as long as they have clear definitions.  The amount needed for 
each category, such as working capital, is easy to understand when presented with the amount needed 
to see us through a certain period of time. Rate stabilization is not as clear. 
 
Ms. Lewis said for rate stabilization, staff would explain how they get to a certain number by looking 
at projections compared to reality.  
 
Mr. Duey said their plan is to be consistent from year to year of what’s normally used for a formula. 
He noted that compression is more of an issue. They need to consider adding something in their 
formula that not only addresses property taxes, but the effect of compression on our revenues. 
 
Councilor Moore asked about volatile funds and what factors were included when looking at how to 
fund the reserves. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 9 
 
Mr. Duey said different funds have different volatile actions. They will look at each fund individually. 
 
Ms. Lewis spoke regarding the Revenue Policy. She said the current Revenue Policy says that the City 
will decrease dependence on property taxes, which hasn’t been done. The concept of equitable funding 
is that services having a citywide benefit are financed with revenue sources generated from a broad 
base, and services where the customer determines the use are financed with user fees related to the 
level of service provided. She provided an example of a user-only service, such as a remodel. The 
purpose is to relieve the strain on the property taxes for services that only benefit a handful. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said in this scenario, it would appear a gas tax would fall into the equitable 
funding for street repair. 
 
Ms. Lewis said equitable funding is about the proportion of the revenue sources are paying for a 
particular service. The other piece is revenue diversification. The goal of revenue diversification is to 
maintain a good balance of revenue sources. Currently, the General Fund’s three largest revenues are 
property taxes, internal charges, and in-lieu-of tax fees. These represent over three-quarters of the total 
revenues coming into the City. In order to reduce dependency on property taxes and diversify the 
revenue base, they could look at how to increase other portions of the fund. The City has the most 
control over fees for services, franchise fees, building code related fees, fire code related fees, and 
business licenses. Looking forward, it’s important to plan the revenue areas the City hopes to provide 
a greater percentage of revenue, and recognize areas where percentages will decrease. She provided an 
example. Using the concepts of both revenue diversification and equitable financing, property taxes 
can be allocated more to citywide services as other revenues support more individual based services. 
 
Councilor Ralston said the only way to lower dependency on property taxes is to raise fees on 
everything else. That leads to those who say it is more expensive to build in Springfield.  
 
Mr. Duey said it is a balancing act in looking at revenues and expenditures. The job is figuring out the 
balance between what services should cost less and which services can generate more revenue. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said when someone does a remodel, they are increasing the value of their home, 
which increases the property tax. She would assume that 75% of the 6% increase between 2015-2016 
was personnel costs. Part of what they need to do is decrease the cost of government. If they are going 
to raise fees, they need to offer enough to make it worthwhile. We are always trying to decrease those 
costs, such as saving money on our health insurance. If we are growing 6% in costs every year, yet it 
is not all from personnel, where is that increase coming from and is there a way to reduce or control 
that increase? That is something to keep in mind. 
 
Councilor Wylie asked if we knew the PERS increase in the coming year. 
 
Mr. Duey said there was no increase on July 1, 2016, but there would be an increase on July 1, 2017 of 
approximately $500,000. They lowered the PERS rate for the current two-year period due to the 
legislative action, but because it was overturned, we have to pay back the reduction plus increase 
moving forward. It is been built into the projections for the next few years.  
 
Councilor Wylie asked about an automobile tax compared with a vehicle registration tax. She asked if 
any cities were doing an automobile tax. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 10 
 
Mr. Duey said different states do different ways. Some states set the license fee on the value of the 
vehicle. He doesn’t know of any city in Oregon implementing that tax. He is not sure if cities can do 
that. 
 
Council was generally not in support of considering that tax. 
 
Councilor Moore said the efficiencies are going to make the difference. She gave examples in some of 
the City’s departments where efficiencies through technology have been implemented.  
 
Mr. Duey said Springfield has been a lean service level city for many years. Since 2009, the City has 
lost between 60-70 employees, adding about 20 into the Jail. The efficiencies they are finding now just 
allow services to be provided that we have not been able to do, not necessarily to add new projects. 
We are at a point where it is difficult to see ways to reduce staff more. About 70% of the General Fund 
is from property taxes, and about 75% of General Fund is public safety. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said he agreed with Councilor Moore. He is waiting to see how all of these will 
tie together to create a long-term strategy that will improve our fiscal health. Some of it is structural 
and some is efficiencies. Structurally we are looking to find a way to change our revenue picture by 
the $800,000-$1M. The challenge is that costs are growing faster than our revenues. 
 
Mr. Duey said the General Fund property taxes are growing two to three percent a year, and costs are 
growing about five percent. They are looking at how to close that gap for the next two to four years in 
the future. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said it will be a multi-year process, but will be well worth it. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said they are in agreement that they need to find that balance through policy 
direction. 
 
Councilor Moore said this is a way of redefining how they look at funds, rather than how to decrease 
or increase.  
 
Mr. Duey said they are looking now for establishing targets. 
 
Councilor Moore said she hears of cities that go bankrupt and she wonders how that happens. Mr. 
Duey keeps the Council well informed and aware of our funds. 
 
Mr. Duey said 2007-2008 was the healthiest the City’s budget has been since he has worked here, and 
then the recession hit. Many of the goals from 2007-2008 were put on hold in order to weather the 
recession. We are now trying to come out of the recession. The City of Eugene got out of the recession 
a couple of years ahead of Springfield. Now that we are working our way out of the recession, this is 
our chance to look at a longer path of where we want to go. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said the Council needs to give policy direction to staff. We have had an affordable 
housing target, but not a high-end housing target and they pay more property taxes.  She also noted 
some challenges with businesses and growing that tax base. One way to increase our revenues is to 
increase our property tax base, and commercial is a good way to do that. 
 
Ms. Lewis discussed the Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting Policy. The update is to make 
it more robust and to include obtaining the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence for Financial 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 14, 2016 
Page 11 
 
Reporting. The City receives this consistently, but by putting it on the policy, we can be consistent for 
the long-term. From Council direction, they have discussed the fund structure. 
 
Mr. Duey said they have cut 12 funds, making it more transparent and simplified. He provided an 
example. 
 
Ms. Lewis said staff will continue to review existing policies, revise and incorporate best practices, 
clarify and improve, and implement revised policies.  
 
Council directed staff to bring the three policies presented tonight to the regular meeting for adoption. 
They thanked staff for all of their hard work. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 
 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY MARCH 21, 2016 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday March 21, 2016 at 6:00 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and Pishioneri. 
Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney 
Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
Councilor Wylie was absent (excused). 
 
1. NEDCO Update and Discover Downtown Springfield. 
 
Courtney Griesel, Management Analyst, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
Ms. Griesel said tonight’s presentation would be regarding Discover Downtown and the work 
Neighborhood Economic Development Corporation (NEDCO) has been doing in downtown 
Springfield and Springfield in general.  
 
Ms. Griesel spoke regarding the Food Cart/Mobile Food Vending process and program. An overview 
was included in the agenda packet. It includes information on start-up costs, and ongoing operational 
costs of the carts. Economic Development staff at the City took a hard look at that business model as 
they tried to understand why we were not seeing them come into downtown. They also met with 
business owners and found that part of the issue was lack of employment base downtown creating 
enough demand. Originally, Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds were allocated to 
the Food Cart Program to outline policies, not necessarily to fund an ongoing program. Their hope was 
to have enough interest and foot traffic to fund continued operations. They hope to look further over 
the next month to find ways to provide better access to that path into downtown and hear from the 
vendors the kinds of things they look for that would help improve this program. Erin Fifield, 
Community Development Analyst, was present to answer questions about the CDBG program. 
 
Ms. Griesel said staff had worked with NEDCO over the last six months to understand where 
leadership in the Discover Downtown program should fall. There is currently not a funded Discover 
Downtown Manager which means the urban renewal district has not been putting out funds for that 
position.  
 
Emily Reiman, Executive Director of NEDCO, said she was appointed to this position about 10 
months ago. At that time, she had been the manager of their personal asset building programs for 
about five years. Although she had been with NEDCO for a while, the community economic 
development work, and particularly the work partnering with the City of Springfield, was relatively 
new to her. She knew the first year would be about assessment and evaluation of NEDCO’s programs. 
A couple of trends emerged quickly during that evaluation. The partnerships with the City of 
Springfield were a little tenuous. NEDCO had not always delivered where they could have, had not 
done a good job communicating where those partnership existed, and had not made sure both the City 
and NEDCO had clear and common expectations around the work they had undertaken. These factors 
caused a general level of frustration with some of the areas NEDCO had partnered with the City most 
closely. The other thing that became evident was that in the community economic development work 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 21, 2016 
Page 2 
 
NEDCO was doing, including SPROUT, the Main Street Program, the Food Cart Program and the 
Micro-Enterprise Business Education Services. As a cluster, they are on a very unsustainable path. 
Financially, that set of programming was significantly in the red across the board. The combination of 
the tenuous partnership relationships and the fact the community economic development programs 
were on such an unsustainable path forward, became the work that she, the management team and 
NEDCO Board of Directors had been tackling for the last ten months. It became apparent they would 
need a state of NEDCO union and state of the NEDCO and City of Springfield partnership 
presentation to Council. That is what she and Ms. Griesel have been working on for tonight. She 
outlined her three objectives for tonight’s discussion: 

• General overview of NEDCO services and what they do in the City of Springfield. 
• Discuss the changes NEDCO has gone through in the last year to address the problems faced 

when she started, and put NEDCO on a different footing. 
• Set the stage for ongoing conversations moving forward about how NEDCO and the City can 

be better and more effective partners and provide the most impact possible in a sustainable and 
thoughtful way. 

 
Mayor Lundberg said she would like to hear about those programs that are specific to Springfield. She 
also suggested that Council be able to ask their questions as Ms. Reiman goes through her 
presentation. 
 
Ms. Reiman referred to a chart in Attachment 1 of the agenda packet (NEDCO Update Report) which 
illustrates the rapid growth that NEDCO underwent. In 2009-2010 they were relatively small with a 
budget of about $700,000 and a staff of seven. Over the course of the next four or five years, they 
expanded dramatically mostly in the personal asset building program which includes financial literacy, 
first time homeownership, and foreclosure prevention.  They do work with a lot of families in 
Springfield and the impacts of that work are shown on the final page of the report. That program 
scaled in a way that was sustainable and NEDCO continues to be a leader in the state for both 
foreclosure and home ownership counseling. 
 
Ms. Reiman said the other area NEDCO scaled rapidly was in community economic development. The 
cost for SPROUT was more than the majority of dollars invested in community economic 
development with relatively smaller amounts going to micro-enterprise services and the Main Street 
Program. Between 2009-2014, there was rapid expansion in all of those programs, including the entire 
conception of SPROUT!.  
 
Ms. Reiman noted that the report includes one-page summaries of each of the four departments in 
NEDCO. The Personal Asset Building page shows that most of the programs are break even or require 
minimal subsidy. The subsidies are modest and generally come from private grant sources or 
sponsorships sources that are very stable.  The Community Economic Development page notes that all 
of the programs in this section require substantial subsidies. When she took over as Executive 
Director, they were nearly through half of the fiscal year and were on track to lose a significant 
amount of money in this department.  They are in the fourth year of NEDCO investment into the 
SPROUT! Program. From its concept, it was meant to be on a five-year business plan to a break event 
point. It has taken more investment on NEDCO’s part than originally planned and will likely take 
more than five years to get to the break-even point. They have about $2.5M in NEDCO investment in 
the SPROUT! building, not counting grants. Compared to that, the other programs were smaller 
subsidies but every dollar counts when facing a large deficit. The Springfield Farmer’s Market was 
running at a $20,000 NEDCO investment (deficit) annually, the Main Street Program was running at 
about a $30,000-$35,000 investment (deficit) annually, and the non-profit Incubator Program at about 
a $60,000-$70,000 investment (deficit). NEDCO was not going to be able to sustain that level of 
investment over that number of programs and be able to deliver on any of them well, and could 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 21, 2016 
Page 3 
 
possibly be looking at the complete closure of some of them. Ms. Reiman said she started working 
with the management team, Board of Directors and City staff to try to evaluate which might have 
stable funding sources, whether or not business models or strategies to make them more viable, or did 
they need to shift NEDCO’s focus to areas where they had more sustainable funding sources. Over the 
course of the last year, they decided that because of the level of investment in SPROUT! and the 
unique asset it proved to the community, that (along with the Farmer’s Market) should be the core 
focus of their community economic investment in time and resources. They realized the Main Street 
Programs wasn’t a model they could sustain over the long term and wasn’t at a place that was going to 
be sustainable in a few years. They also realized that their Non-profit Business Incubator was not a 
sustainable concept and that although they could scale down the Micro Enterprise services and find a 
niche that served a community need and was viable in terms of funding, it didn’t include a Non-profit 
Incubator. 
 
Ms. Reiman referred to the section on NEDCO’s Property Development activities which include 
affordable housing, and commercial development acquisition and rehabilitation. The property 
development is one of the more stable program areas outside of SPROUT!. Many of these programs 
are actually income generating and have been for a number of years. She referred to the Community 
LendingWorks Program which was developed about five years ago to do community development 
lending work. That is another area where they have sustainable break even programs that can scale 
without significant grant funding. Those programs are funded primarily through fees and interest 
earned on the lending activity, with a few government grants. They have focused changes and 
adjustments on the Community Economic Development program to make it more sustainable and 
viable. Over the long-term, she feels they will be in a good position to do good community 
development work, but most will need to be done through building development, through micro and 
small business lending, some of the micro-enterprise services and their work at SPROUT!. They have 
a long going expertise in those areas, and can bring the most resources to the table so they are 
sustainable in the long term. 
 
Councilor Woodrow referred to the update report and the organizational summary where it lists 
expansion to Clackamas County and southern Oregon. She was curious how much that was taking 
away from the resources in our area. 
 
Ms. Reiman said NEDCO does have a three-County service area – Lane, Marion and Clackamas 
counties. Their community economic development work is exclusively focused in Lane County now 
and in Springfield.  The programs they have in the other two counties are largely the Personal Asset 
Building programs which scale in a sustainable way and have State and Federal funding; and the 
Community LendingWorks Program which also scales in a sustainable way. Both of those programs 
have an independent funding stream from the Community Economic Development program, and are 
funding models that can cover its costs as it scales. They are remaining focused on Springfield only in 
the Community Economic Development program until they can get to a more stable position. The fact 
that theyhave to scale back on the Main Street Program and Incubator program does not mean 
NEDCO is any less invested in Springfield or are deprioritizing. The management team and Board talk 
frequently about their commitment to Springfield, and realize they have not fulfilled their commitment 
the way they envisioned. With the changes, they are not trying to draw back from Springfield, but to 
position themselves in a way to have a much bigger impact in a more sustainable way. 
 
Ms. Griesel said staff has talked with downtown businesses recently about an upcoming event 
revolving around Mother’s Day that would be sponsored within the urban renewal district. This will be 
a minor investment for a do-it-now activity, with some business-to-business networking and 
consulting. NEDCO staff at SPROUT! has been key in sitting at the table with businesses as another 
downtown business to create momentum and leadership. They are looking at taking some of the funds 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 21, 2016 
Page 4 
 
that were budgeted for Discover Downtown work and applying them towards an actual event. At the 
same time, city staff has been meeting with the Springfield Chamber to discuss ways to generate 
momentum within the organizations to focus it downtown and bring businesses together, asking how 
they would like to be engaged differently in the future, and how the last five years with Discover 
Downtown has been. They are asking for ideas to carry forward. She has been happy to have NEDCO 
and SPROUT! staff as co-businesses at the table with our other downtown businesses. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said you have expanded very rapidly in areas where she feels they can make money 
to expand the services. She noted that the fundraising line under SPROUT! should include much more.  
 
Ms. Reiman said they were working on adding to that. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said SPROUT! is definitely one of the most important things in Springfield and they 
can’t let it fail since it is cornerstone of our redevelopment efforts. Affordable housing is another area 
where NEDCO is an important player. They took part in the foreclosure and threshold programs for 
many years. It’s an important piece in helping people get a leg up on being stable in the community. 
The City is not building affordable housing so depends on having people who can, and want that to be 
successful. We need to find a way that downtown businesses have a support mechanism and involving 
the Chamber of Commerce is one way. She separated food from the Non-profit Business Incubator 
program because that is the cornerstone of SPROUT!. Our other partners can worry about other kinds 
of micro businesses. The idea for food carts came from a need to provide better food options for 
students in downtown. Perhaps they could specialize in a program that brings in our high school 
students and let them do micro entrepreneurship. There is room for developing our food hub engaging 
the high school students, giving them a table at an event, or even a competition at the Farmer’s 
Market. She already talked to School Superintendent Sue Rieke-Smith about the idea. 
 
Ms. Reiman said it is her two-year ambition to get micro enterprise services for youth at SPROUT! 
and in the food world. She loves the idea. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said the big issue is what to do with SPROUT!. One of the issues is that they need to 
rent out the building, and they first need to get the sprinkler system in place so they don’t have to 
charge the extra amount. She requested Council move some of the funding from previous CDBG 
funds that were granted and not used by NEDCO, towards the sprinkler system. If NEDCO can raise 
the rest, they can get it completed. 
 
Ms. Reiman said they were still getting the final bids in for the sprinkler system.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said any money transferred for this project would lower the amount NEDCO needed 
to raise for that system. 
 
Ms. Reiman said the good news is that the events are bigger and more frequent than originally 
thought, which require the sprinkler system. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said if it fails it could sit empty for a number of years. We have the momentum in 
downtown to help it move forward. 
 
Ms. Griesel said staff could go back and look at what we could do regarding re-appropriation of the 
CDBG funds and how much. They will know more once they get the bid. The sprinkler system is 
intended to get SPROUT! ready to rent for events that help fund the facility. There are other 
opportunities to look at other programs, and staff could bring back some funding options. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 21, 2016 
Page 5 
 
Councilor Woodrow said she felt with the funding back and Ms. Reiman’s participation, NEDCO 
could reach out to fundraise and promote the facility for events.  
 
Ms. Reiman said NEDCO is already in talks with potential funders for SPROUT!. They can’t submit 
full proposals until they get back the final bids and know what they need.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said if those sponsors give them the full funding, the City wouldn’t need to transfer 
funds over. 
 
Councilor Moore referred to the Property Development and several foreclosed homes that were 
rehabbed and were now affordable rentals. She asked if NEDCO held the ownership of those homes. 
 
Ms. Reiman said they do for those five. Historically, NEDCO has mostly developed single family 
properties for first-time buyers. Due to the circumstances and a number of foreclosed properties, they 
re-tooled their single-family development for a few years and kept those for affordable rentals. She 
could confirm, but she believes they have 15 or 20 year affordability clauses. 
 
Councilor Moore applauded Ms. Reiman for the report she provided.  It was very comprehensive.  She 
noted the low amount listed that food carts make per day. 
 
Ms. Reiman said it is partly why the shift has been for a permanent location for food carts. 
 
Ms. Griesel said the hourly wage is low partly because they see the food vendors start up as a low-paid 
owner-operator system. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said he was fine reallocating the CDBG funds if they don’t receive additional 
funds through other grants. He would like to see it as a match program to help promote fundraising. 
Even though the City would be taking back the food cart program, it would still be allowed. 
 
Ms. Griesel said City staff will take a six-month look at the food cart program, and look at who should 
be the first point of contact (City or NEDCO). For now it will remain with NEDCO. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked if there were plans to spend the Discover Downtown funds if they take it 
back from NEDCO. 
 
Ms. Griesel said once the Downtown Manager was no longer on salary at NEDCO, they were no 
longer invoicing the City. The funds are still part of the downtown urban renewal district and will go 
through the normal prioritization process for those funds. They are looking at doing a business-to-
business concept and utilizing the SPROUT! venue as a great Mother’s Day event to come, shop and 
eat downtown, with fun activities and music. There will be some advertising for the event. The funds 
will remain in a line item to allow the City to be responsive to opportunities. If we hadn’t had that 
budget, we could have moved funds for this type of activity. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said he would be interested in knowing the game plan for the rest of the fiscal 
year. 
 
Ms. Griesel said she could do an update to the Council regarding the downtown urban renewal agency. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said he would like to move forward with NEDCO, and figure out how to 
continue to grow the partnership and get things in line. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 21, 2016 
Page 6 
 
Councilor Pishioneri thanked Ms. Reiman for her report and the details about NEDCO and their 
programs. He would like to see something subsequent to this about how these issues can be solved. He 
would also like to see if other cities that have these programs in place are also in the red. If not, what 
are they doing that makes them successful that could be used as models. It is a work in progress. He 
appreciates the amount of effort and the communication provided. 
 
Ms. Reiman said she hired Lisa Hardwig with the sole mission of helping NEDCO and the Board 
figure out SPROUT!. They have cut the deficit by about two-thirds. She will make that the focus of 
her next report. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said she would like to see that happen downtown. The short-range action items 
that can bring back unification of the businesses are going to be crucial. Once they have the short-
range items, they can focus on long-range goals and expectations. She previously served on one of the 
downtown committees and it was easy to get bogged down with details rather than making progress. 
 
Ms. Reiman said NEDCO is a member business in those efforts. She also pointed out that their lending 
program has already helped four or six downtown businesses be able to expand and locate in 
downtown. Plank Town is a great example of NEDCO assisting with their location downtown. That is 
a huge resource to assist those invested in making downtown successful. 
 
Ms. Griesel said the City will continue to move some of the funds from the budget for the lighting 
project, crosswalks, beautification and art. They will continue to look for activities to partner with 
downtown businesses and for the basics of business. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she would like to see the next report before they go on Summer Break, even if 
it’s in a Communication Packet. Some things to include are: focusing on SPROUT! and food based 
businesses; lending programs; and affordable housing.  Those are the things most critical to the 
Council. The City will try to find other partners for some of the events. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:51 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY MARCH 28, 2016 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday March 28, 2016 at 5:30 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors VanGordon, Moore, Ralston, Woodrow and Pishioneri. 
Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney 
Mary Bridget Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
Councilor Wylie was absent (excused). 
 
1. Fiscal Year 2015 Federal Grant Compliance Report. 
 
Nathan Bell, Accounting Manager, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
On January 19, 2016 the auditors presented the annual audit and CAFR to the Council. In accordance 
with compliance requirements related to the City expending more than $500,000 in federal awards, the 
City is required to complete an A-133 audit (the Single Audit).  The Single Audit has now been 
completed and will be presented. Kylie McCloskey and Chuck Swank, of Grove, Mueller & Swank, 
will review the audit process, the Independent Auditor’s Reports, and the City’s Federal Grant 
Compliance Report during the work session. 
 
Mr. Swank said when they were here in January, there was discussion about the federal compliance 
audit. The City is required to engage their external auditor to audit a certain percentage of federal 
dollars whenever the City expends more than $500,000 in federal dollars. Because the City met that 
threshold, the City was required to have an annual financial statement audit, but also a federal 
compliance audit.  The auditors don’t look at every program or every dollar. It is a rotational emphasis 
on the amount of dollars spent. A formula determines which programs are audited in which year. 
Programs the City spends a significant amount of dollars have to be audited every third year. They 
were already scheduled to audit the City’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds in 
2015. His report includes a schedule of federal dollars spent on what programs. They are required to 
have two reports: 1) the Auditor’s Report on Internal Control and Compliance (a broad report done in 
conjunction with the audit on the City’s financial statements – completed in December with no 
findings); and 2) an opinion on the federal programs they audited this year. In their opinion on federal 
compliance, they believe their audit is a reasonable basis for compliance on the federal programs 
audited; however, their audit does not provide a legal determination of the City’s compliance. The 
federal compliance is for performance. 
 
Mr. Swank said the first finding was that the City was not timely in filing reports on expenditures. 
Most federal agencies require the City to file quarterly reports, which was not done for several 
quarters. The second finding was that staff had questions about how to handle sub-recipients. 
Sometimes cities have another governmental agency or non-profit expend the funds under their 
guidance. Those agencies are called the sub-recipients. Springfield is the sub-recipient of funds from 
State of Oregon. The City has a responsibility to make sure the sub-recipients are doing everything 
required under the grant, and the second finding relates to notification procedures, monitoring and 
follow-up on sub-recipient dollars. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 28, 2016 
Page 2 
 
Mayor Lundberg said that verified what she thought had happened. We had sub-recipients that forgot 
they were given funds, which was a concern.  There was a gray area for reporting. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said based on what he has read, it seems there has been money that was not 
expended coming back to the City, and lack of tracking. He said it seems to indicate inappropriate 
expenditure of funds or loss of funds somewhere. He wants to make sure we can where all the funds 
went. 
 
Mr. Swank said there was no inappropriate spending. It is more the documentation so they can follow 
the trail. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said when the City awards the grant, we don’t necessarily provide the funds 
immediately.  Funds being returned never left the City. 
 
Mr. Swank said they found no inappropriate spending, but more a lack of the documentation trail. 
Sub-recipient monitoring is difficult. The federal government recently has been looking more closely 
at the tracking, and the City has paid more attention in the last few years to address that. 
 
Ms. Fifield said during HUD’s monitoring last year, they asked what a contract was awarded for, the 
amount, was it paid out, was it matching what was drawn from HUD. From those questions, there was 
a concern from them about documentation. Staff was able to provide documentation, but brought up 
the question of documentation and how to track it better. 
 
Mr. Swank said nothing happens until the dollars are drawn. 
 
Mr. Bell said invoices come into the Finance Department who create the voucher. It then goes to Ms. 
Fifield to review, and then to Tom Boyatt for approval. There are multiple internal controls in place. 
 
Mr. Swank said they have performed a single audit for the City for a number of years and they always 
had good reports. Finance does a really good job.  
 
Councilor Pishioneri said he appreciated the openness on the report. 
 
Councilor VanGordon asked how they were planning for staff turnover in the future to make sure 
appropriate processes are in place for documentation. 
 
Ms. Fifield said staff is working on that internally and with HUD. Currently, there is an informal 
process that worked in the past, but nothing was written down. They are formalizing the process and 
writing it down so any staff member would know the requirements. They are matching it with HUD 
and other requirements. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said part of the result of both Springfield and Eugene not keeping good records is 
that our CDBG funds got split into a more complicated process. We now are in a different program, 
which limits our funds. Some people didn’t know they had the money available. She is glad Councilor 
VanGordon asked about steps to make sure we aren’t in this situation again. The City needs to do 
quarterly reports for the federal funds, and then also require sub-recipients to do the same. She would 
like to see how the sub-recipients are required to report.  We need some assurance from the sub-
recipients so the City knows the status of the funds. She will always be unhappy that the CDBG and 
HOME funds were separated due to our reports.  
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 28, 2016 
Page 3 
 
Ms. Fifield said staff has started to build processes into the contract which started when they were 
drafting the contract with NEDCO for SPROUT!. They looked at what Eugene requires for HUD and 
decided that would work for the quarterly reports showing the work being done. They will build those 
requirements into the contract to track funds to make sure they are spent down appropriately. If the 
sub-recipient does not provide the report, staff would check in with them. They haven’t developed a 
plan for what to do if the sub-recipient fails to provide a report. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she thinks that is something Council should discuss. That is why she is hesitant 
to give NEDCO money because they haven’t used the original funding. They need to decide how they 
want to check in as a Council. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said we are adding something in because we have to be responsible for the funds 
going out to sub-recipients. When requiring reports on a regular basis, there needs to be consequences 
such as a way to put a hold on any additional funds until the report is received. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said part of the issue is reporting, and the other is the fund recipient not doing the 
project they requested the funding for. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said staff could come back annually to Council to report on all existing grants. There 
will be circumstances that need explaining, and other cases where the funds need to be reallocated. 
Sometimes things are beyond the control of the recipient. 
 
Councilor Moore said the last report from Ms. Fifield outlined the recipients and where funds were 
sitting. That report was very helpful. She thought part of the reason the CDBG and HOME Funds were 
split was because of new HUD regulations. 
 
Ms. Fifield said there were two factors that brought about the change. The 2014 HUD monitoring of 
the HOME Program (Eugene and Springfield Consortium) showed issues with several projects in 
Springfield. At the same time, HUD requirements were changing and we had to change our process. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said it took away Springfield’s ability to allocate HOME funds ourselves. 
 
Ms. Fifield said HUD sets the percentage of what Springfield is allocated based on population or need 
compared to Eugene. Eugene now gets the pool of funds, and the intergovernmental agreement (IGA) 
dictates how decisions are made. The funds are received annually, but it is now up to the Governing 
Board whether or not there is room to share.  The process is more complicated, and we are no longer 
managing the HOME funds on our own. 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked if CDBG funds would be revisited again soon, or would be part of the rotation. 
 
Mr. Swank said the auditors must close the loop. 
 
Ms. McCloskey said it will depend on what the City’s other numbers show. What they audit is formula 
based. If they receive a lot more CDBG funds next year, and other programs are smaller, they may still 
have to look at CDBG funds since that is where the bulk of the City’s funds are held. There are a 
number of factors in the formula. They will ask the questions and a look at documentation to close the 
loop. 
 
Mr. Swank said in 2015, the CDBG dollars were almost 50% of the federal dollars. When they are that 
high, the auditors are required to look at it again sooner. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 28, 2016 
Page 4 
 
Mayor Lundberg said staff will work on our report submittals, put together a paper trail for sub-
recipients for reporting and getting the projects done, and a closing the loop report from the audit.  
 
Mr. Grimaldi said staff will also come back annually to give Council a status report on outstanding 
grants. 
 
Councilor Woodrow asked if they could get an update in the Communication Packet once they get the 
forms finalized for reporting.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said she wants to keep track of the SPROUT funds. 
 
Mr. Grimaldi said next week Council will be allocating HOME funds. 
 
Ms. Fifield said a work session will be held on April 18 regarding CDBG allocations. 
 
2. Lane Regional Air Protection Agency (LRAPA) Report. 
 
Gino Grimaldi, City Manager, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
The intergovernmental agreement to form LRAPA in 1968 has allowed local governments to more 
effectively and efficiently reduce air pollution and improve air quality within Lane County. LRAPA is 
asking local jurisdictions to consider an updated IGA to reflect recent changes in Oregon Statutes by 
the 2015 Legislature. 
 
The LRAPA Board of Directors has approved a revised Intergovernmental Agreement consistent with 
changes in Oregon Statutes by the 2015 Legislature. The statute changes allow a second position for 
cities with populations under 25,000. For LRAPA, the changes would essentially convert an at-large 
board position so that both Oakridge and Cottage Grove would have positions on the 9-member 
LRAPA Board. 
 
Springfield currently has two positions, Eugene has four, and Lane County has one. 
For the revised IGA to take effect, all five IGA partners (Lane County and the cities of Eugene, 
Springfield, Cottage Grove and Oakridge) would need to approve. 
 
Merlyn Hough, Director of LRAPA, and Jo Niehaus, Public Affairs Manager from LRAPA presented 
a power point on this topic. Mr. Hough referred to topics for discussion: air quality trends in 
Springfield and Eugene, revised LRAPA IGA, CAC recommended local rule changes, and recent 
LRAPA website updates. 
 
Mr. Hough displayed and explained a chart showing the air quality in the Eugene/Springfield area. For 
the most part, we have maintained good air quality health standards. Ozone is a summer time problem, 
but we have been able to maintain good air quality by keeping good ozone numbers.  He discussed 
particulate matter, which was less of a contributor due to the wood industry having effective controls 
in place. We have seen dramatic improvements with air quality controls at mills and in wood burning. 
He described the standards and noted that Oakridge is often above the standards.  Eugene is 
approaching the standard; however Springfield and Cottage Grove have stayed consistently below the 
standard max. He noted that violating the standards had long-term consequences. 
 
Mr. Hough spoke regarding the IGA which would allow Oakridge and Cottage Grove to each have a 
representative on the LRAPA Board. In the past, the other 8 members of the board have selected the 
at-large position, giving preference for the one at-large seat to rotate between Cottage Grove and 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 28, 2016 
Page 5 
 
Oakridge. This would provide more consistency. For the revised IGA to take effect, all five IGA 
partners (Lane County and the cities of Eugene, Springfield, Cottage Grove and Oakridge) would need 
to approve. 
 
Mr. Hough said the Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) reviews complaints that come into LRAPA. 
Most complaints have decreased except for two – open burning and home wood heating. He spoke 
regarding proposed outdoor burning changes: limits size of ceremonial fire (larger fires would require 
bonfire letter permits with conditions); prohibits outdoor burning in barrels (based on frequent pattern 
of burning garbage and other prohibited materials); prohibits outdoor burning of grass clippings in 
Lane County based on heavy smoke; prohibits outdoor burning of fallen leaves within city limits 
based on heavy smoke; and prohibits outdoor burning in the Eugene and Springfield UGB’s. He 
explained why those changes were being proposed. 
 
Mr. Hough spoke regarding proposed home wood heating changes: clarifies that smoke-density limits 
also apply to low-income exempt homes which are allowed to burn even on RED advisory days; 
reduces the smoke-density limits to 20% opacity, consistent with Oakridge and other areas in the 
Pacific Northwest, if approved by Eugene and Springfield in their city ordinances; extends the home 
wood hearting advisory season to October – May (from November – February) beginning Oct. 1, 
2015. 
 
Mr. Hough reviewed some of the updates to the website.  
 
Mr. Hough said they would like to get the IGA signed by Springfield if they approve, and would also 
like the Council to provide feedback on the recommended changes to local rules from the CAC. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the 20% opacity not being visible. 
 
Councilor Moore asked if gas fireplace inserts were allowed anytime since they don’t create smoke.  
 
Mr. Hough said that was correct. 
 
Councilor Moore said she was pleased to see the State providing funds to put in those inserts. 
 
Mr. Hough said fireplaces are not energy efficient. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri asked about the word “standard” and if it was a state or federal law. 
 
Mr. Hough said they are national air quality health standards, set by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency (USEPA) with the advice of a non-EPA group appointed by Congress made up of 
scientists and medical professionals. They make recommendations to the EPA, who then decide 
whether or not to take action. The most recent update was in October 2015. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said it made sense to include representatives from Cottage Grove and Oakridge. 
He had concerns about some of the code changes. 
 
Council agreed that the changes in the IGA were appropriate. It will be brought to the Council during 
a regular meeting for formal approval. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri spoke regarding the proposed code changes. The trend shows that Springfield is 
below the standards so he sees no need to place controls on our citizens. We have some complaints, 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 28, 2016 
Page 6 
 
but part of that may be due to more outreach. He doesn’t want to put restrictions on citizens if he can’t 
show there is an issue. He asked about the size of ceremonial fires allowed currently. 
 
Mr. Hough said currently it does not specify the size. A three-foot diameter was first requested by the 
tribes. They found that people claimed large fires were ceremonial fires. These fires were actually as 
large as bon fires and presented a fire concern as well as pollution. By including a limit on size, it 
gives a framework already in place for bonfires which does require coordination with the fire 
department. They have more than several per year. He can give specific numbers if needed. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri spoke regarding burning in barrels and if they issue citations for that. 
 
Mr. Hough said a citation would be issued if someone is burning prohibited materials. It is difficult to 
find evidence once they get the complaint, but if they do find prohibited materials, they issue a 
citation. They are looking for a way to make it clear that garbage burning is not proper. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri said before he can support these changes, he wants to know how big of a problem 
they are. 
 
Mr. Hough said they had 40 complaints for outdoor burning in 2010, 75 complaints in 2011, over 50 
in 2012, and over 50 in 2013. 
 
Ms. Niehaus said their head enforcement office said almost always when people are burning in barrels, 
it is prohibited materials. She can pull data on the number of tickets issued for burn barrels. 
 
Mr. Hough said recreational fires are allowed as long as they use clean dry firewood and it is not a 
yellow or red woodstove day. They are not allowed for debris disposal or garbage. They are limited to 
a 3-foot diameter, the same as what is being proposed for ceremonial fires.  
 
Mayor Lundberg said the main concern is debris, such as grass, weeds, and garbage. 
 
Councilor Ralston said the grass and leaves do create a lot of smoke and can be taken to Rexius or 
other places instead of burning. Springfield’s air quality is well below restrictions so we don’t have a 
problem. People should be cited for burning illegal materials, but not just because it is in barrels. He 
wouldn’t want to change the provision allowing outdoor burning on ½ acre or larger lots.  The urban 
growth boundary (UGB) twists around and some areas are in the City and others are not.  Regarding 
opacity, there is not much difference between 20% and 40% even if someone is burning correctly. He 
can understand some of the suggested changes, but not others. Besides prohibiting burning of grass 
and leaves, he wouldn’t change anything. 
 
Councilor VanGordon said he would need more information on the ceremonial fires to see what kind 
of problem it truly is. He also needs data to show why these changes are needed in Springfield. As 
long as we are far below the standard, there is no need to change. He would want to know how much 
lower making these changes would put us below the standard. He is fine with grass and leaves 
prohibitions, but not prohibiting burning on ½ acres lots. He would need more information to make a 
decision about some of the other changes.  
 
Councilor Moore asked is weed burning with propane torches is allowed. She asked if the air quality 
could be separated from Eugene on the website. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
March 28, 2016 
Page 7 
 
Ms. Niehaus said website shows where the air quality is worse in Eugene and Springfield. When you 
go in further, you can see the monitors by City. Springfield is consistently below, in part due to 
location and ventilation and landscape. 
 
Councilor Moore said would tend to want to look at the 20% opacity because she is not clear the 
difference. Much of this is education.  
 
Councilor Woodrow said she feels good that Springfield is below the standard for a twenty year range.  
She agrees that the grass clippings and weeds could be prohibited.  She is having difficulty 
understanding what is considered outdoor burning that would be prohibited.  
 
Mr. Hough said if someone is cooking food, it is a State exemption, but must be sized appropriately 
for what you are cooking. That can be an issue with ceremonial fires, mostly where they hold big 
events. Recreational fires are allowed if it is clean dry firewood on green days. Yard debris cleanup is 
allowed if the lot is ½ acre or more.  
 
Councilor Woodrow asked if it is collective data that creates the point of penalty for our area. 
 
Mr. Hough said when the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) sets air shed boundaries, they start 
from a countywide boundary. Jurisdictions have to argue to make it a smaller area. UGB’s around a 
contiguous area are often a logical boundary, so it is the Eugene and Springfield UGB. Lane County 
has several air sheds in a single county. They argued for a long time to have the boundary reduced and 
they went down to an area covering Oakridge and their UGB, plus all of WestFir, even though those 
are two separate air sheds. If Eugene violates, it has consequences for Springfield because it is the 
Eugene/Springfield area. Some of the highest levels we have had were in 2013. Once they receive 
2016 data, the average is likely to improve. He is optimistic that the next check point will improve.  
They are confident the Springfield area is going to be fine as long as we continue to pay proper 
attention.  He noted that most of the LRAPA board members are opposed to vehicle inspections. He 
asked that the Council begin the process to approve the IGA. He will report back to the Advisory 
Committee with the Council’s comments. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she didn’t want to do things that caused more running around of someone to 
monitor when we don’t have that big of a problem.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 



City of Springfield 
Work Session Meeting 
 

MINUTES OF THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF  
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD 

MONDAY APRIL 4, 2016 
 
The City of Springfield Council met in a work session in the Jesse Maine Meeting Room, 225 Fifth 
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday April 4, 2016 at 6:30 p.m., with Mayor Lundberg presiding. 
 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Present were Mayor Lundberg and Councilors Moore, Woodrow and Pishioneri. Also present were 
City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery, City Attorney Mary Bridget 
Smith, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the staff. 
 
Councilors VanGordon, Wylie and Ralston were absent (excused). 
 
1. 2016 HOME Project Proposal. 
 
Erin Fifield, Community Development Analyst, presented the staff report on this item. 
 
The Eugene-Springfield HOME Consortium’s 2016 Housing Request for Proposals (RFP) received 
four applications for affordable housing development and acquisition, one of which is in Springfield. 
This application was reviewed by an Evaluation Committee, which recommended the proposal for 
allocation. Springfield City Council is being asked for their approval of the project moving forward. 
The Intergovernmental Governing Board will make the final decisions for use of HOME funds based 
on the decisions of the Evaluation Committee and respective City Councils. 
 
Springfield has about $700,000 in HOME funds available to allocate. Through the 2016 HOME RFP, 
the Consortium received one proposal for a project in Springfield. This proposal was from St. Vincent 
de Paul to build 35 new affordable housing units at 10th and Main St, next to the Afiya apartments. St. 
Vincent de Paul is requesting $600,000 in HOME funds.  
 
Final approval will be made by the Governing Board on May 2. 
 
Councilor Pishioneri was pleased and felt this is just what this funding is for. It will remove an old 
building and replace it with new affordable housing. He is amazed at the amount of money St. Vincent 
DePaul is putting into the project. He likes the way it is put together. 
 
Councilor Moore asked where St. Vincent DePaul was getting the rest of the funding. 
 
Ms. Fifield said they applied for a large portion from the Oregon State Low-Income Housing Credit. 
They hope to find out if they have received that funding sometime this Fall. The City can contingently 
reward funds on the basis they receive those funds later. 
 
Councilor Moore asked if there would be support for the people affected by the removal of the old 
housing. 
 
Ms. Fifield said that was part of the proposal. 
 
Councilor Woodrow said she is thrilled with this project and the location. Not only is it close to the 
Afiya Building, but also makes that area more attractive having those two buildings side by side as 
you come into town. 
 



City of Springfield 
Council Work Session Minutes  
April 4, 2016 
Page 2 
 
Mayor Lundberg asked if the $700,000 was money earmarked for Springfield. She asked if that would 
change next year. 
 
Ms. Fifield said they were still playing catch-up with past funds. Assuming we draw all of the 
$700,000 this year, we will start with new funds to feed into our future pot of funds. There were three 
other projects that came in for funds – two for acquisition of multi-family housing and one for new 
construction. Those are going through the same process of review by the Eugene City Council, and 
ultimately to the Governing Board. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said Springfield is creating more new affordable housing through this project. There 
is always concern that we don’t create enough new affordable housing. She is happy to support this 
project to provide affordable housing at this location. 
 
Councilor Moore asked if these were funds set aside for the low-income housing in Glenwood. 
 
Ms. Fifield said they are the funds that were set aside for Glenwood Place. Based on the Housing and 
Community Services Agency’s (HACSA) planned proposal for when they would need those funds, it 
is projected it would be Fall of 2017. If Springfield receives funds from Congress, we will be able to 
build those funds back up to give to HACSA. In the meantime, HUD’s requirements meant we needed 
to award the funds now. 
 
Councilor Moore said Afiya is a wonderful building and she is pleased we are looking at having 
another nice housing facility. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said Bascom Village is also a HACSA project. She asked if they were done with 
their funding requests for that project. 
 
Terry McDonald, Executive Director from St. Vincent DePaul said all of the funding has been secured 
for both phases of Bascom. 
 
Mayor Lundberg said she wanted to make sure Springfield was in the pipeline for funding to go 
towards Glenwood Place. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 
Minutes Recorder – Amy Sowa 
 
 
 
 
       ______________________ 
       Christine L. Lundberg 
       Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________ 
Amy Sowa 
City Recorder 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
Staff Contact/Dept.: Joe Zaludek/Fire 
Staff Phone No: 541-682-7103 
Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 

S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Strengthen Public Safety 
by Leveraging 
Partnerships and 
Resources 

ITEM TITLE: APPROVAL TO LEASE/PURCHASE ONE (1) FIRE PUMPER 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Adopt/not adopt the following resolution: A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE 
THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A 5-YEAR, TAX EXEMPT, LEASE 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE TO FINANCE 
THE PURCHASE OF A NEW FIRE PUMPER.  

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

PNC Equipment Finance requires a Council Resolution to authorize Fire & Life 
Safety (FLS) to lease purchase one (1) fire pumper for front-line service. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The current 75’ ladder truck is a 2001 E-One that has exceeded its’ reliable lifespan 
and is in need of replacement. The lease/purchase of a new Pierce Velocity fire 
pumper was approved by Council on 3/21/16, but PNC Equipment Finance is 
requiring a Council Resolution as well. 

Springfield has had a Master Lease Agreement in place with Oshkosh Capital for 
financing of fire apparatus the past several years. Oshkosh Capital is now PNC 
Equipment Finance. As part of the new PNC Master Lease Agreement, they are 
requiring a Council Resolution, which was not required by Oshkosh Capital. 

The City is using a five year lease purchase option, based on the significant cost of 
the apparatus. The lease payments will be $127,628 per year. 



AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 1 of 2



AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 2 of 2



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Sophia Seban – DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 726-2295 
 Estimated Time: Consent Calendar 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION FOR A LOCATION CHANGE, ALONG 

CAME TRUDY, LLC, DBA: ALONG CAME TRUDY.   
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Endorsement of OLCC Liquor License Application for Along Came Trudy, an 
entertainment style location, located at 1486 18th Street, Springfield, Oregon 97477. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The owner of Along Came Trudy, LLC has requested the City Council to endorse 
its OLCC Liquor License Application. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1.  OLCC Liquor License Application 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The license endorsement for Along Came Trudy, LLC, DBA: Along Came Trudy is 
for a Change of Location with Limited On-Premises Sales and applying as a 
Limited Liability Company.  The new license application has been reviewed and 
approved by the appropriate City Departments. 
 

 







 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Matt Stouder 
 Staff Phone No: 541-736-1006 
 Estimated Time: 10 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and 
Innovative Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE: SETTING LOCAL AND REGIONAL WASTEWATER AND STORMWATER 

USER FEES EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2016 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

1)  Conduct a public hearing on local and regional wastewater and local stormwater 
user fees. 
2)  Adopt A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD SETTING LOCAL 
AND REGIONAL WASTEWATER (SEWER) USER FEES AND LOCAL 
STORMWATER (DRAINAGE) USER FEES AS SET FORTH IN THE 
SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE. 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Each year, the City Council reviews and establishes the rates for local wastewater and 
stormwater user fees and adopts regional wastewater user fees set by the Metropolitan 
Wastewater Management Commission. Council action is needed to establish new 
user fees for FY 16-17. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Resolution 
2.  Council Briefing Memorandum from April 25, 2016 work session 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Each year, the City Council reviews and establishes the rates for local wastewater and 
stormwater user fees. These rates are established to provide adequate revenue to fund 
operation and maintenance (O&M) of Springfield’s wastewater (sanitary sewer) and 
stormwater systems, and a portion of the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for 
each program. The Council also adopts the user fees set by the Metropolitan 
Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) for the Regional Wastewater 
Program. 
 
The City Council reviewed and discussed options for local wastewater and 
stormwater user fee adjustments at its April 25, 2016 work session. Detail on the 
discussed options is provided in Attachment 2. Council provided guidance to staff to 
prepare a resolution based on Option 2 for both wastewater and stormwater services. 
Staff has prepared a schedule of user charges for a public hearing, based on the 2.5% 
increase in the local wastewater user fees and a 3.5% increase in the local stormwater 
user fees. In addition, the Council was informed that the MWMC adopted a 2.0% 
increase in the regional wastewater user fees that also needs to be incorporated into 
the schedule of user charges for FY 16-17.   
 
Staff continues to explore options to reduce pressure on user fees while continuing to 
meet environmental and regulatory standards. A successful strategy will take multiple 
years to implement and will, in part, depend on the City’s ability to significantly 
reduce reliance on user rates as a source of capital, by improving the ability of System 
Development Charge (SDC) revenues to fund a greater portion of the capital 
investment. This could reduce and/or defer the need to rely on future debt financing 
and reduce the importance of providing coverage for debt service as an operating 
budget constraint in the long-term financial forecast.  
 
Attachment 1, a resolution establishing the local and regional wastewater and local 
stormwater user fees for FY 16-17, is provided for Council consideration. Staff 
requests that the Council act on the resolution following the public hearing. 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 
Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 
NO.________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SPRINGFIELD SETTING LOCAL AND REGIONAL 
WASTEWATER (SEWER) USER FEES AND LOCAL STORMWATER (DRAINAGE) USER FEES AS 
SET FORTH IN THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Springfield has established a system of wastewater and stormwater drainage 
sewer systems; and 
 
WHEREAS, under the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) entered into by the City of Springfield, the 
City of Eugene and Lane County in February, 1977, and as subsequently amended, the Metropolitan 
Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) constructs, operates, and maintains the regional 
sewerage facilities, as described in the IGA; and 
                                                                                                            
WHEREAS, the costs related to operation, maintenance and certain capital improvements of the local 
and regional wastewater sewer systems, and the local stormwater drainage systems are funded 
through user fees; and  
 
WHEREAS, Sections 4.206 (3) and 4.208 (2) (a) (i) and (ii) of the Springfield Municipal Code authorize 
the setting of wastewater and stormwater charges by resolution of the Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, the MWMC approved Resolution 16-07, adopting the Regional Wastewater Program 
Budget and Capital Improvements Program for fiscal year (FY) 2016-2017, and Resolution 16-06, 
adopting a new schedule of user fees for FY 16-17 operations and capital programs, on April 8, 2016, 
after reviewing the proposed Resolutions in a series of public meetings and public hearings; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 8(c) of the MWMC IGA obligates the City to “adopt user charges required by 40 
CFR 35.929 in an amount not less than adopted by the Commission”; and  
 
WHEREAS, the schedule of sewer user fees, attached as Exhibit “A,” and incorporated herein, is 
needed to collect revenues necessary to fund the operations, maintenance and certain capital 
improvements of the local and regional wastewater (sewer) system and the local stormwater drainage 
system in FY 16-17. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Springfield as follows:   
 
1. The City of Springfield Schedule of Local and Regional Wastewater (Sanitary Sewer) User and 
Local Stormwater (Drainage) Fees, which is attached as Exhibit “A,” is hereby adopted and shall take 
effect with bills rendered on or after July 1, 2016. 
 
2. This Resolution shall take effect upon its adoption by the Council and approval by the Mayor. 
 
ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this _____ day of May, 2016, with a vote 
of _____ for and _____ against. 
 
 

 ________________________________ 
      Christine L. Lundberg, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Amy Sowa, City Recorder  



ATTACHMENT 1 
Page 2 of 2 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Wastewater (Sanitary Sewer)
 Beginning with bills rendered on or after July 1, 2016
 Wastewater charges shall be as follows:

Low Medium High Very High Super High
Strength Strength Strength Strength Strength

400* 800* 1200* 1600* Over 1600*
MWMC $1.872 $2.515 $3.665 $5.200 $6.740 $8.276

City of Springfield $3.338 $3.338 $3.338 $3.338 $3.338 $3.338
Total $5.210 $5.853 $7.003 $8.538 $10.078 $11.614

 * Average total biological oxygen demand and suspended solids in milligrams per liter (mg/L)

Base Charge:  A regional (MWMC) monthly base charge of $12.58 is applied to each account

Wastewater Monthly Fee Schedule

Wastewater Flow-Based Fee (per unit - 748 gallons)
Residential 
Customer

Commercial / Industrial Customers

Stormwater (Drainage)
 Beginning with bills rendered on or after July 1, 2016
 Stormwater charges shall be as follows:

* Residential:  $14.09
Very Heavy Heavy Moderate Light Undeveloped

 >70%     41-70% 20-40% <20% 0%
Base Fee per 1,000 sq ft $1.636 $1.636 $1.636 $1.636 $0.000

Impact Fee per 1,000 sq ft $2.456 $1.432 $0.411 $0.000 $0.000
Total Rate per 1,000 sq ft $4.092 $3.068 $2.047 $1.636 $0.000

 *Residential includes single family residential and duplex households
**Commercial is based on percentage of property development (impervious surface)
**In addition to the total Commercial rate displayed above, an Administrative Fee of $1.625 per account is applied

Stormwater Monthly Fee Schedule

** Commercial



  

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

Page 1 of 6 
 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: 4/25/2016  

To: Gino Grimaldi COUNCIL 
From: Anette Spickard, Development and Public Works Director 

Matt Stouder, Environmental Services Manager 
Katherine Bishop, ESD Program Manager 
Tonja Kling, ESD Management Analyst  

BRIEFING 
MEMORANDUM 

Subject: Wastewater and Stormwater User Fees FY 2016-17  

ISSUE:  
User fees for local wastewater and stormwater services are reviewed annually by the Council as part of 
the City’s budget development process. Staff is in the process of updating the local user fees for Council 
consideration, and is seeking direction at the April 25, 2016 work session. A public hearing is scheduled 
for May 2, 2016. Additionally, the Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) 
approved a schedule of FY 16-17 regional wastewater user fees on April 8, 2016 and will be forwarding 
them to Springfield and Eugene for implementation.  
 

COUNCIL GOALS/ 
MANDATE: 
Provide Financially Responsible and Innovative Government Services 
 

To fund services associated with the City’s wastewater and stormwater programs and adopted Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP), a revenue plan that includes an increase in user fees for FY 16-17 has been 
prepared for Council consideration. Revenues generated from user fees fund ongoing system maintenance, 
investments in capital improvements to replace existing infrastructure and accommodate new 
development, meet revenue bond covenants, ensure environmental and regulatory requirements are met, 
and maintain operating and capital reserve levels. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
As part of the budget development process, the City develops an annual CIP and operating budget for the 
local wastewater and stormwater programs. These programs face many challenges including; fixed 
operating and maintenance costs that are based on the size of our system regardless of usage (and 
wastewater generated), capital project costs that are impacted by inflation rates higher than the Consumer 
Price Index, and costs to comply with Federal and State environmental mandates. 
 
To meet these challenges, the city develops the CIP, operating budget, debt service obligations, and 
reserve levels as established by the Council which are then used to determine the annual funding 
requirements. Primary funding sources include wastewater and stormwater user fees (for operating and 
capital expenses), and system development charges (SDCs) for capital only expenses. In addition to the 
local fees, MWMC establishes regional wastewater charges to fund the Regional Wastewater Program. 
  
The services the City provides in the local programs are vital to economic development activity and the 
health and safety of the City’s local waterways, and are often taken for granted by users. That said, recent 
surveys of Springfield residents (by both the City and the MWMC) indicate “promoting economic 
development, maintaining a healthy environment and overall water quality” are a very high priority. A 
brief description of the City’s local wastewater and stormwater programs is discussed below:   



  

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 
Local Wastewater Program 
The wastewater system serving the City of Springfield has two components: (1) a local wastewater 
collection system, and; (2) a regional conveyance, treatment and disposal system. The local system is 
comprised of over 240 miles of collection pipelines and 17 pump stations, which are owned and operated 
by the City of Springfield. Operations and maintenance of the local collection system is funded entirely by 
revenue from local wastewater user fees. In addition, user fees are the primary source of funding for the 
City’s CIP, which provides for system preservation, major rehabilitation, and expansion to support growth 
and development. Through previous rate actions, revenues for this program have stabilized and current 
and projected CIP priorities have been programmed based upon moderate and incremental rate increases. 
 
Local Stormwater Program 
The local stormwater management services are an important part of the community’s effort to improve 
water quality, protect fish habitat and recreational opportunities, and protect properties and infrastructure 
from flooding. The City’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Stormwater Permit 
and Council adopted Stormwater Management Plan implement Federal and State water quality standards 
and guide the delivery of stormwater services for the community. The City’s storm drainage system 
includes 206 miles of stormwater pipe, 6,520 catch basins, and 30 public water quality facilities (including 
the Mill Race Stormwater Facility, which requires ongoing inspection, maintenance and vegetation 
control). In addition, street sweeping and leaf cleanup support surface stormwater quality activities that 
address permit compliance. Stormwater operations and maintenance services are funded entirely by 
revenue from the stormwater user fees. User fees are a primary source of funding for the maintenance, 
rehabilitation and preservation of the City’s stormwater capital infrastructure assets. The current and 
projected stormwater CIP program is based upon moderate and incremental rate increases.  
 
PROPOSED LOCAL WASTEWATER AND STORMWATER USER FEE OPTIONS 
Proposed FY 16-17 user fee options are discussed below for a typical residential monthly bill (assuming 
6.684 units or 5,000 gallons of wastewater generated per month). The following options are presented for 
discussion and Council consideration. 
 
Option 1: Combined Local Wastewater and Stormwater User Fee – 2.7% increase 
The table below displays the proposed combined rate increase as a percentage (2.7%) and dollar amount 
($0.94) for a typical residential monthly bill. The level of projected rate change for future years is also 
displayed, with 2.6% in FY 17-18 followed by incremental increases in the forecast.  
 
Option 1 funds basic system operations, maintenance and regulatory obligations, as well as the Council 
approved FY 16-17 CIP. The proposed rate changes are aligned with the prior year rate forecast, while 
considering customer activity trends including a reduction in generated wastewater volumes. Stormwater 
rates consider the projected impact of an upcoming NPDES permit renewal that will result in an increased 
service level to meet more stringent regulatory and environmental requirements. For the typical residential 
customer, Option 1 includes a monthly increase of $0.94 per month for combined local services. This 
option displays the lowest rate increase that will fund basic program activities, meet current debt service 
obligations, provide contributions necessary to fund the capital program, and continue programs required 
to meet permit requirements. 
 
 
 



  

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 
Option 2 (Recommended): Combined Local Wastewater and Stormwater User Fee – 2.9% increase 
The table below displays the proposed combined rate increase as a percentage (2.9%) and dollar amount 
($1.02) for a typical residential monthly bill. The level of projected rate change remains moderate with 
incremental increases throughout the forecast. Option 2 is $0.08 greater monthly than Option 1 for the 
typical residential monthly bill, and $0.11 less monthly than Option 3.  
 

 
 
Option 2 fully funds existing system operations, maintenance and regulatory obligations, as well as the 
Council approved CIP. Option 2 also provides a more responsive forecast to the continued and projected 
decrease in wastewater volumes by users, and positions the City to better mitigate revenue losses when 
major system users close their doors or make major modifications to their business practices. Option 2 
takes into consideration the Engineering News-Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (CCI) data relative 
to inflation on construction materials and labor. The ENR CCI rate of inflation is generally higher than the 
Portland-Salem All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) inflation index, and more closely aligned with costs 
associated with the City’s capital construction projects.  

16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21
Proposed Projection Projection Projection Projection

Local Wastewater Services
 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 22.21$        22.65$          23.22$        23.91$        24.75$        
 Local Rate Increase 2.0% 2.0% 2.5% 3.0% 3.5%
 Avg. Mo. Residential Increase 0.44$         0.44$            0.57$         0.70$         0.84$         
Stormwater Services
 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 14.11$        14.61$          15.12$        15.65$        16.27$        
 Local Rate Increase 3.7% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 4.0%
 Avg. Mo. Residential Increase 0.50$         0.50$            0.51$         0.53$         0.62$         
Local Wastewater & Stormwater Combined
 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 36.32$        37.26$          38.34$        39.56$        41.02$        
 Local Rate Increases Combined 2.7% 2.6% 2.9% 3.2% 3.7%
 Local Rate Increases 0.94$         0.94$            1.08$         1.22$         1.46$         

Combined Local Wastewater and Stormwater FY 16-17 Rates and Forecast - Option 1

 Fiscal Year

16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21
Proposed Projection Projection Projection Projection

Local Wastewater Services
 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 22.31$        22.87$          23.56$        24.27$        25.11$        
 Local Rate Increase 2.5% 2.5% 3.0% 3.0% 3.5%
 Avg. Mo. Residential Increase 0.54$         0.56$            0.69$         0.70$         0.84$         
Stormwater Services
 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 14.09$        14.58$          15.09$        15.69$        16.32$        
 Local Rate Increase 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 4.0% 4.0%
 Avg. Mo. Residential Increase 0.48$         0.49$            0.51$         0.60$         0.63$         
Local Wastewater & Stormwater Combined
 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 36.40$        37.45$          38.65$        39.96$        41.43$        
 Local Rate Increases Combined 2.9% 2.9% 3.2% 3.4% 3.7%
 Local Rate Increases 1.02$         1.05$            1.20$         1.31$         1.47$         

Combined Local Wastewater and Stormwater FY 16-17 Rates and Forecast - Option 2

 Fiscal Year



  

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Option 2 allows for larger transfers to capital reserves (particularly in wastewater) to position the City to 
delay future financing and move towards a pay-as-you-go utility.  Pay-as-you-go (cash) investments in 
capital infrastructure projects are more cost effective than a future revenue bond issuance or loans that 
include financing interest expenses and additional cash reserve requirements over a 20-year term. For 
reference, the recent 2009 local sewer revenue bond sale total expenses exceeded $34 million, for a 
principal amount of $23 million.  
 
As shown in the table above, Option 2 includes a greater rate increase for wastewater services over the 
five year forecast, with the projected stormwater service rate change slightly less than with Option 1 in FY 
16-17, and anticipates an increase in stormwater permit standards within the forecast and an increased 
level of service to meet future permit requirements.  
 
Option 3: Combined Local Wastewater and Stormwater User Fee – 3.2% increase 
The table below displays the proposed combined rate increase as a percentage (3.2%) and dollar amount 
($1.13) for a typical residential monthly bill. The level of projected rate change is greater for wastewater 
services when compared to options 1 and 2 to generate a greater level of pay-as-you-go capital 
investments thereby deferring future financing and associated interest expenses. Option 3 includes a 
slightly greater rate increase and forecast for wastewater services, when compared to options 1 and 2. 
Stormwater service rates remain the same in Option 3 as Option 2. Option 3 is ($0.19) greater monthly for 
local wastewater and stormwater combined than Option 1 and ($0.11) greater monthly than Option 2 for 
the typical residential monthly bill.  
 

 
 
Option 3 provides a greater level of transfers to the local wastewater capital reserves, to be able to move 
towards pay-as-you-go-financing, and to defer future financing and associated interest expenses with the 
local wastewater system and investments in capital infrastructure. The stormwater service rates in Option 
3 are the same as proposed in Option 2. 
 
WASTEWATER PROGRAM FUNDING AND RATE HISTORY: 
Wastewater user fees on customers’ monthly bills have a local (Springfield) and regional (MWMC) 
component. In FY 15-16, for a typical residence using 6.684 units or 5,000 gallons per month, the local 
wastewater bill is $21.77. The combined typical wastewater bill, including the regional component is 

16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21
Proposed Projection Projection Projection Projection

Local Wastewater Services
 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 22.42$        23.10$          23.79$        24.62$        25.61$        
 Local Rate Increase 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.5% 4.0%
 Avg. Mo. Residential Increase 0.65$         0.68$            0.69$         0.83$         0.99$         
Stormwater Services
 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 14.09$        14.58$          15.09$        15.69$        16.32$        
 Local Rate Increase 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 4.0% 4.0%
 Avg. Mo. Residential Increase 0.48$         0.49$            0.51$         0.60$         0.63$         
Local Wastewater & Stormwater Combined
 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 36.51$        37.68$          38.88$        40.31$        41.93$        
 Local Rate Increases Combined 3.2% 3.2% 3.2% 3.7% 4.0%
 Local Rate Increases 1.13$         1.17$            1.20$         1.43$         1.62$         

Combined Local Wastewater and Stormwater FY 16-17 Rates and Forecast - Option 3

 Fiscal Year



  

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

Page 5 of 6 
 

$46.37. Residential customer bills are used as a benchmark for wastewater rates because the volume and 
strength of the wastewater generated is similar within the customer class. The usage (and therefore the 
bills) of commercial and industrial users vary significantly because their wastewater volume and strength 
varies greatly.  
 
In FY 15-16 the Council increased local wastewater user fees by 2.5%, which followed a 3% increase 
annually in FYs 14-15 and 13-14, and a 4% increase in FYs 12-13 and 11-12. Also in FY 11-12, a right-
of-way use fee of 3% (of total user fee revenue collected) was implemented and is assessed annually. In 
FY 15-16 local wastewater user fees are projected to generate approximately $7,080,000, while SDC 
revenues are expected to generate approximately $800,000. The FY 15-16 budget includes $2.48 million 
to fund the local capital program, and just over $1.7 million in annual debt service payments. The $22.8 
million wastewater revenue bond issued in 2009 is fully expended, and the revenue bond debt obligation 
continues through 2029. A history of the local and regional user fees over the last several years is 
provided in Attachment 2. 
 
STORMWATER PROGRAM FUNDING AND RATE HISTORY: 
In FY 15-16, the current residential stormwater fee is $13.61. For commercial customers, rates are 
calculated on the percentage of impervious area on the property as well as the total square footage of the 
property. Commercial properties include a base fee (per 1,000 square feet of property), as well as an 
impact fee based on the amount of impervious surface on the property. FY 15-16 stormwater user fees are 
projected to generate approximately $6.3 million, while revenues from SDCs are projected at $240,000. 
The FY 15-16 budget includes $925,000 to fund the capital program, and approximately $706,000 in 
annual debt service payments. The $10 million stormwater revenue bond issued in 2010, includes bond 
proceeds that are currently programmed in the City’s FY 16-17 Capital Budget. The stormwater bond debt 
obligation continues through 2031. 
 
In FY 15-16, the Council increased stormwater user fees by 3.7%, which followed a 4% increases 
annually in FYs 14-15, 13-14 and 12-13, and a 3% increase in FY 11-12.  Also, In FY 11-12, a right-of-
way use fee of 3% (of total user fee revenue collected) was implemented and is assessed annually. A 
history of the stormwater user fees over the last several years is provided in Attachment 2. 
 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER USER FEES: 
At the March 11, 2016 MWMC meeting, staff presented the Preliminary FY 16-17 Regional Wastewater 
Program Budget and Capital Improvement Program, and proposed regional wastewater user fee rates. 
Based on discussions and input provided by the Commission, staff returned to the Commission on April 8, 
2016 at a public hearing where the Commission adopted resolutions recommending a 2.0% user fee 
increase in FY 16-17, and the Regional FY 16-17 Budget for implementation by the cities of Eugene and 
Springfield. The table below shows the adopted FY 16-17 regional wastewater user fees.   
 

 
 

16-17 17-18 18-19 19-20 20-21
Adopted Projection Projection Projection Projection

 Avg. Monthly Residential Bill 25.09$       25.97$       27.01$       28.09$       29.21$        
 Regional Rate Increase 2.0% 3.5% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0%
 Avg. Mo. Residential Increase 0.49$         0.88$         1.04$         1.08$         1.12$         
 Avg. Annual Residential Increase 5.88$         10.54$       12.46$       12.96$       13.48$        

MWMC Regional Wastewater FY 16-17 Adopted Rates and Forecast

 Fiscal Year



  

 
ATTACHMENT 2 

Page 6 of 6 
 

With the recommended Option 2 including a local wastewater rate change of 2.5% ($0.54/month), a 
proposed stormwater rate change of 3.5% ($0.48/month), and the MWMC adopted regional wastewater 
rate change of 2.0% ($0.49/month), the typical residential bill (assuming 6.684 units or 5,000 gallons of 
wastewater generated) would increase by $1.51 monthly resulting in a combined overall increase of 2.5%. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff has carefully considered the funding requirements associated with the proposed FY 16-17 
budget and recommends Council consider a local wastewater rate increase of 2.5% and a 
stormwater rate increase of 3.5% (Option 2). If adopted, the proposed increases will provide 
sufficient revenues in FY 16-17 to continue to defer the need for future financing, maintain 
adequate debt service coverage, meet strict environmental regulations and NPDES Permit 
requirements, fund necessary capital improvements and system maintenance obligations, and 
provide quality services to existing customers and new development.  
 
Staff requests Council’s consideration, comments and direction on the proposed rate changes. 
The schedule of wastewater and stormwater fees, including the regional MWMC adopted rates 
for FY 16-17, will be reviewed and considered at the public hearing currently scheduled for May 
2, 2016. 

 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Kristina Kraaz/City 

Attorney’s Office 
 Staff Phone No: 541.746.9621 
 Estimated Time: 10 minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Promote and Enhance 
our Hometown Feel 
while Focusing on 
Livability and 
Environmental Quality 

 
ITEM TITLE: PROPOSED CHANGES TO SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 7.330 AND 

7.332. 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Conduct a public hearing and first reading on the following ordinance:  AN 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 
SECTIONS 7.330 AND 7.332 REGARDING PUBLIC PASSENGER VEHICLE 
SERVICES 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

Amend SMC 7.330 and SMC 7.332 to reflect changes made in the identical Eugene 
Code provisions, EC 3.005 and EC 3.345, to allow transportation network providers 
like Lyft and Uber to operate within the City and subject these services to the public 
passenger vehicle company license requirements. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Council Briefing Memo – Follow-Up on Proposed PPV Ordinance 
2. Proposed Ordinance amending SMC 7.330 and SMC 7.332 

 
DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT 

The City of Eugene administers and enforces the business license requirements for 
public passenger vehicles for both Eugene and Springfield.  Eugene recently 
updated their code and license regulations to allow for transportation network 
companies (TNCs) to operate in the area.  For those operators to be able to conduct 
business in Springfield with the license issued by Eugene, the City Council needs to 
co-adopt the code amendments.  There is no cost to Springfield for Eugene to 
provide this service, nor does Springfield receive any license revenue. 
 
A work session was held on April 11 to discuss this proposed ordinance and the 
City of Eugene’s proposed PPV rules.  Feedback was provided to the City of 
Eugene regarding the sufficiency of background checks, simplifying the insurance 
requirements, and simplifying the signage requirements.   
 
In response to Council’s feedback and requests for further information on behalf of 
the Council, the City of Eugene has provided additional information, which is 
attached. 
 
Adopting the proposed code amendment will have no financial impact to the City.  
From the operator perspective, it is more cost effective to obtain one license and 
follow one set of standards in order to operate in both cities. 
 

 



 

 M E M O R A N D U M                                                                   City of Springfield  

Date: April 25, 2016  
COUNCIL 
BRIEFING 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Gino Grimaldi 

From: Kristina Schmunk Kraaz, Assistant City Attorney 
Anette Spickard, Director DPW 

Subject: Follow-up on Proposed PPV Ordinance 

ISSUE AND BACKGROUND:  
 
On April 11, 2015, the Council held a work session to consider adopting new public passenger 
vehicle (PPV) license code provisions in order to make Springfield’s PPV code consistent with 
the City of Eugene’s PPV code, as Eugene currently administers and enforces the PPV license 
program for both jurisdictions. 
 
The Council directed staff to provide specific feedback to Eugene regarding their proposed rules, 
and also asked for clarification on several points. This memo contains the feedback and requests 
for clarification that was forward to the City of Eugene on behalf of Council, and the City of 
Eugene’s response. 
 
Council Concern #1: Background checks – The Council was concerned with the scope and 
thoroughness of the background checks.  Specifically, Council is not comfortable with just using 
a drivers’ license and personal contact for the checks, and would prefer fingerprinting.  Council 
also suggested that the same standards currently used to screen tow drivers (i.e. in terms of 
disqualifying convictions) should be used for all PPV drivers.   
 

Eugene’s Response:  We appreciate the Council’s concern regarding identity 
verification. We have considered adding fingerprinting to the background check process, 
but decided not to add it at this time. Currently, most of jurisdictions that we reviewed 
are not using fingerprinting checks for drivers. In addition, in our conversations with 
TNCs regarding background checks, one primary concern is the length of time that it 
will take the City to process background checks of their potential drivers; using 
fingerprints to check drivers will likely increase the processing time for background 
checks.  That said, recognizing that the addition of fingerprinting to the City’s 
background check process would enhance the City’s current process, we will be actively 
monitoring this issue and could add this requirement in the future. 

 
Council Concern #2: Insurance – The Council expressed concern with the way Eugene’s 
insurance requirements for TNCs are written.  They expressed support for the $2 million 
requirement while transporting passengers, but suggested that Portland’s PPV insurance 
requirements could be used as a model for the requirements while the app is merely on but the 
driver is not transporting a passenger. 
 

Eugene’s Response:  Currently, Portland requires insurance coverage during “Period 1” 
(when a driver has the app on and is looking for a passenger) with minimum liability 
limits of $50,000 per person for death and injury, $100,000 per incident for death and 
injury and $25,000 for property damage. We heard from both TNCs and current PPV 
companies regarding insurance requirements.  The proposed administrative rules do not 
establish tiered insurance coverage for TNCs for two primary reasons:  (1) having one 
insurance requirement that applies to all PPVs, regardless of the particular “activity” that 
the PPV is engaged in at the time, establishes a consistent and level playing field among 
all of the PPV companies; and, (2) a non-tiered insurance coverage requirement for all 
PPVs supports the goal of ensuring adequate insurance coverage whenever a driver is 
working. Our research found there have been reports of tragic accidents that have 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 4



 4/26/2016 Page 2 

occurred during “Period 1” and the City feels it is critical for community members and 
drivers that all TNCs have adequate commercial coverage during that time. 
 

Council Concern #3: Signage – The Council would prefer that the signage requirements not be 
excessive, and that perhaps the window signs that TNCs including Uber and Lyft already require 
would suffice, rather than on both sides, etc. 

 
Eugene’s Response:  Thank you for this input. Our main concern is related to vehicles 
being clearly marked so that passengers can easily recognize the vehicle they should 
enter. The relatively small dashboard markings are helpful, but not easily visible from a 
distance or at night. Clear markings also help ensure that public safety personnel or 
community members who wish to submit a complaint to the City regarding a particular 
vehicle can identify which company it is affiliated with.   

 
Request for Clarification #1: Background checks –  Our Council has asked for more 
clarification on what jurisdictions are checked when the background checks are conducted.  
Eugene-Springfield share one system, but Lane County and Florence are on difference systems, 
as I understand it.  Would the check be limited to Eugene-Springfield, state, and national 
databases, or would convictions out of Florence and Lane County also be considered?  Also, 
going with point 1 above, what standards/convictions will be used to disqualify drivers from 
receiving a PPV permit? 

 
Eugene’s Response:   

What are the databases that the Eugene police access during a PPV background check?  

As a law enforcement agency EPD has access to the state’s Law Enforcement Date 
System (LEDS).  LEDS is a portal to many different databases.  The databases first run 
on all PPV driver applicants is Oregon DMV via a direct link to DMV and then Oregon 
Computerized Criminal History Records (CCH) through LEDS.   CCH record checks 
show record of criminal activity in Oregon and they can contain returns indicating 
criminal activity in other states.  The type of return that appears on an applicant’s CCH 
will dictate the next step in the background process.   For example, an FBI number on 
the CCH will indicate an arrest in another state and such a return will steer the 
background investigation and lead to additional research we would have to use other 
sources than LEDS (call the other state).  Outside of the LEDS portal, EPD itself 
maintains a number of databases that contain all of the documented contacts that an 
individual has with local law enforcement, including law enforcement contacts where 
there is an arrest but the police investigation is not yet complete.  These local databases 
(which you may hear referred to as RMS) are also checked as part of the background 
process.    

 
Upon what basis can the City deny a PPV license application?  

Eugene Code 3.050 governs the City’s denial or revocation of a PPV license.  Regarding 
the basis upon which the City can deny a license, EC 3.050 states, in part:   

3.050     Business Licenses - Denial or Revocation of License.  

(1)        The city may deny or revoke a license upon finding that: 

(a)        The licensee fails to meet the requirements of this code, or is 
doing business in violation of this code or applicable federal, 
state or county law, ordinance, rule or regulation. 

(b)        The applicant has provided false or misleading material 
information, or has omitted disclosure of a material fact on the 
application, related materials, or license. 

(c)         The applicant has violated a law, including a violation which 

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 4



 4/26/2016 Page 3 

does not lead to a conviction, unless the applicant demonstrates 
to the satisfaction of the city manager that the violation has no 
bearing on the applicant's fitness to undertake the licensed 
activity without endangering property or the public health, 
safety or welfare.  The city manager may consider as a basis for 
denial or revocation:  

1.          Only those violations which would constitute felonies, 
if convicted, which occurred within the preceding ten 
years; 

2.          All other violations only if they occurred within the 
preceding three years. 

(d)        The information supplied for the review does not indicate that 
the applicant has the special knowledge or skill required to 
perform the licensed activity. 

(e)        The licensed activity or device would endanger property or the 
public health or safety.  

(f)         A license fee or installment payment of a fee has not been made 
by the due date. 

 
Regarding EC 3.050(c), which states that “. . . .unless the applicant demonstrates to the 
satisfaction of the city manager that the violation has no bearing on the applicant’s 
fitness to undertake the licensed activity without endangering property or the public 
health, safety or welfare.”  Thus, the consideration of whether the City should certify a 
PPV driver applicant that has violated the law starts with a request from the applicant.   
That can occur in one of two ways.  First, sometimes an applicant will include in his/her 
application a narrative explaining a prior arrest/conviction.   When the Eugene Police 
Department (EPD) records supervisor reviews the applicant’s application form and 
criminal history, the applicant’s narrative is taken into account in the decision whether 
or not the applicant should be certified as a PPV driver. If the applicant did not disclose 
criminal history they would fail because they omitted criminal history information (EC 
3.050(1)(b)).   In this situation, the EPD records supervisor would make the decision.  
Second, if an applicant is denied a PPV driver certification, the applicant can appeal the 
decision to a City hearings official.   In that appeal hearing the applicant has the 
opportunity to demonstrate to the hearings official that his/her prior arrest/conviction has 
no bearing on the applicant’s fitness to be a PPV driver.  In this situation, the city 
hearing official would make the decision.   

 
Request for Clarification #2:  LTD – Council wants follow up information on whether LTD is 
now satisfied with the amendments to the proposed PPV rules, in light of the feedback that they 
previously gave to the City of Eugene. 
 

Eugene’s Response:  LTD representative were included in the original stakeholder 
meetings last May and City staff followed up with LTD after receiving their feedback on 
the initial rules in November, 2015. They did not submit any additional comments 
during the public comment period in March. Our understanding is that they are satisfied 
with the current rules, however, they do still want the issue of ADA accessible vehicles 
to be addressed. We recognize this is an important issue. Our plan is to work on 
addressing ADA requirements as soon as possible, through a specific process that 
focuses on these issues and works with key stakeholders.  

COUNCIL GOALS/MANDATE: 
Promote and Enhance our Hometown Feel while Focusing on Livability and Environmental 
Quality; 

Attachment 1, Page 3 of 4



 4/26/2016 Page 4 

Strengthen Public Safety by Leveraging Partnerships and Resources 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Conduct first reading on the proposed public passenger vehicle ordinance. 

N:\OneDrive for Business\City\CITYMANA\Uber\CBM 2 PPV ordinance & TNC overview.doc 

Attachment 1, Page 4 of 4



ORDINANCE No. __________ (General) 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE SECTIONS 7.330 
AND 7.332 REGARDING PUBLIC PASSENGER VEHICLE SERVICES 

 
The City Council of the City of Springfield finds that: 

WHEREAS, the City of Eugene administers public passenger vehicle company licenses 
and public passenger vehicle permits on behalf of the City of Springfield;  

WHEREAS, transportation network companies, such as Uber and Lyft, are a new industry 
and the city seeks to develop reasonable regulations that protect public safety; 

WHEREAS, transportation network companies have been operating in the city’s 
jurisdiction; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Eugene has amended the Eugene Code to allow transportation 
network companies in Eugene to use smart-phone applications to calculate and charge fares 
under a public passenger vehicle company license and the City of Springfield has determined 
that it is in the best interest of the citizens of this city to make similar amendments to the 
Springfield Municipal Code; 

NOW, THEREFORE, based on the foregoing recitals, the Common Council of the City of 
Springfield ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Subsection 7.330 of the Springfield Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

“7.330 Definitions. 

            Accessible Vehicle. Any public passenger vehicle for hire that is constructed and 
equipped to meet ADA standards for the nonemergency transportation of persons in 
wheelchairs, persons using other mobility aids, or with other mobility impairments. 

            ADA. Americans with Disabilities Act. 

            Business. Any business, institution, association, occupation, and calling of every kind. 

            Charter Vehicle. A motorized vehicle originating from the Eugene/Springfield 
metropolitan area, marked with the company’s business name, operated for hire to transport a 
group of seven or more persons with the fare based on a group rate rather than an individual 
basis. 

            Club Car Service. Vehicular passenger transportation service provided by a business to 
club members or by a residence home to its residents. 

            Courtesy Car Service. Vehicular passenger transportation service provided by a 
business to its clients or customers at no cost. 

            Employee. Any person employed for remuneration or under any contract of hire, 
written or oral, express or implied, including independent contractors. All persons who drive 
public passenger vehicles, including any person who has an ownership interest in the company, 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 5

http://qcode.us/codes/springfield/view.php?topic=7-public_passenger_vehicle_services-7_330&frames=on


shall be considered employees of the public passenger vehicle company for purposes of sections 
7.330 to 7.332. 

          Hailable Vehicle. A vehicle-for-hire that can be immediately summoned by a passenger 
without the use of any dispatch.   

Manager. Any person in charge of the operation or management of the public passenger 
vehicle company, any person who can direct or control the activities and scheduling of the 
company’s employees, and any person who can hire or fire the company’s employees. 

            Motorized Vehicle. A public passenger vehicle other than a horse-drawn carriage or a 
non-motorized bike cab. 

            Operator. Any person who is a principal in a public passenger vehicle company. A 
principal includes all owners, shareholders, partners, directors, officers and managers. 

            Public Passenger Vehicle. Any vehicle which is used for the transportation of 
passengers for hire, including, but not limited to, shuttles, horse-drawn carriages, non-
motorized bike cabs, and taxicabs. However, the following shall not be considered public 
passenger vehicles for purposes of sections 7.330 to 7.332: 

            (1)        Vehicles, other than shuttles, operated pursuant to written authority by the 
city, state or federal governments, or political subdivision thereof; 

            (2)        Vehicles commonly known as rent-a-cars, that are rented to be driven by the 
renter or agent; 

            (3)        Courtesy car services; 

            (4)        Tour bus services; 

            (5)        First aid vehicle or medical transport vehicle; and 

            (6)        Limousines. 

            Public Passenger Vehicle Company. Any business which operates one or more public 
passenger vehicles, regardless of who owns the vehicle operated. 

   Public Passenger Vehicle Driver. An employee of a public passenger vehicle company 
that operates a vehicle-for-hire by transporting passengers for compensation. 

            Shuttle. A motorized vehicle for hire that transports passengers between predetermined 
destinations (e.g., motels, airport, downtown passenger station), at fixed rates on a fixed 
schedule. 

            Taxicab. A motorized vehicle that is operated for hire by the public passenger vehicle 
company, other than a shuttle, limousine, or charter. 

            Taximeter. A mechanical or electronic device which calculates and displays a fare. 

            Tour Bus. A motorized vehicle accepting individual passengers for a fare for sightseeing 
or guided tours, making occasional stops at certain points of interest and returning the 
passengers to their point of origin. 

Attachment 2, Page 2 of 5



   Transportation Network Company. A person or business that provides a digital or 
software application scheduling platform or service that enables a prospective passenger to 
connect to a vehicle-for-hire. 

   Transportation Network Driver. An employee of a transportation network company that 
operates a vehicle-for-hire by transporting passengers for compensation utilizing the 
Transportation Network Company’s digital or software application scheduling platform or 
service.  

   Vehicle-for-Hire. A vehicle used for providing shared transport, which transports one or 
more passengers for a fee between locations of the passengers’ choice, including, but not 
limited to, all public passenger vehicles. 

   Vehicle-for-Hire Company. All public passenger vehicle companies and all 
transportation network companies.” 
 
Section 2. Subsection 7.332 of the Springfield Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

“7.332 License and/or Permit Required. 

(1) Licensure Requirements. 

(a) No person or business may operate a public passenger vehicle or vehicle-for-hire 
company without a public passenger vehicle company license; however, an unlicensed 
vehicle-for-hire operating outside the jurisdictional limits of Eugene and Springfield may 
deliver a fare from outside those limits to a location within the limits, and if the vehicle waits 
for the person, retrieve the person for the return trip back outside the jurisdictional limits. 
No unlicensed public passenger vehicle company may solicit or accept any passenger within 
the city limits except as provided in this subsection. 

(b) No person or business may connect, or attempt to connect, a prospective passenger 
to a vehicle-for-hire by providing a digital or software application scheduling platform or 
service without first obtaining a public passenger vehicle company license. 

(c) Unless driving a vehicle-for-hire for a person or business that has obtained a public 
passenger vehicle company license, no person may drive a vehicle-for-hire without first 
obtaining a public passenger vehicle company license. 

(d) No person or business required to obtain a public passenger vehicle company license 
may solicit or accept any passenger within the city limits except as provided in this 
subsection. 

(2) No person or business required under subsection (1) of this section to obtain a 
public passenger vehicle company license may operate a motorized vehicle that lacks a 
public passenger vehicle permit. 
 
(3) No person may drive a motorized vehicle-for-hire, and no vehicle-for-hire company 
may hire a person as a driver, either as an employee or an independent contractor, unless 
that person possesses a valid public passenger vehicle driver certification. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, a person who has applied for such a certification may drive a taxicab if the 

Attachment 2, Page 3 of 5

http://qcode.us/codes/springfield/view.php?topic=7-public_passenger_vehicle_services-7_332&frames=on


person has obtained from the city a temporary certification; such certification shall not be 
valid for more than 30 days, or until the city grants or denies the person’s application for a 
public passenger vehicle driver certification, whichever is sooner. 
 
(4) No public passenger vehicle company may locate any part of its operation in a 
residential zone unless expressly authorized by the city manager or designee pursuant to 
the Springfield Municipal Code or the Eugene Code. 
 
(5) All persons and businesses required to obtain a public passenger vehicle company 
license under subsection (1) of this section shall provide the city manager or designee with 
written notice of the maximum rate to be charged passengers. No public passenger vehicle 
company shall change its maximum rate without first providing the city manager or 
designee with a minimum of 10 days advance written notice of the new rate. No public 
passenger vehicle company shall charge more than the rate on file with the city. Upon 
request, the city manager may exempt, by administrative order, a public passenger vehicle 
company from the provisions of this section if the public passenger vehicle company does 
not operate any taxicabs. 
 
(6) The actual fare charged for each trip by a taxicab shall not exceed the higher of 
either: 
 
(a) The meter calculated rate, including authorized and posted surcharges; or 
 
(b) The minimum fare as posted on the interior and exterior of the vehicle. 

 
(7) The city manager or designee shall adopt rules setting standards and establishing 
requirements for vehicle-for-hire companies, vehicles-for-hire, public passenger vehicle 
drivers and transportation network drivers; and the issuance of licenses for companies, 
permits for vehicles, and certifications and temporary certificates for drivers. Such rules shall 
be consistent with this code and be designed to ensure that the public safety is protected, 
the public needs are met, and the public convenience is promoted. 
 
(8) In addition to requirements established by rule to obtain a license, each public 
passenger vehicle company must designate a registered agent who may be served with any 
process, notice or demand required or permitted by law to be served upon the company. 
The registered agent shall be an individual or business located in Eugene or Springfield, and 
must be available for service of legal process during all hours that the public passenger 
vehicle company is in operation. 

 
(9) The term for a license issued hereunder shall commence on January 1st and expire 
on December 31st of the year issued. The license fee for applications received after January 
1st shall be prorated on the basis of that term. An application for extension or renewal of an 
existing license must be submitted by November 1st, accompanied by the required license 
fee. Failure to submit the license fee with the extension or renewal application, or to pay the 
same before the end of the current license term may result in the licensee being required to 
submit a new application and pay an application fee. A licensee who submits an extension 
or renewal application after November 1st may be assessed a penalty fee of $10.00 per day 
for each day between November 1st and the date the application is submitted.” 

Attachment 2, Page 4 of 5



 
Section 2: Except as specified herein, all other provisions of Springfield Municipal Code 
remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance 
is held, for any reason, invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and individual provision and such holding shall not 
affect the validity of the remaining portion hereof. 
 
Section 4: This Ordinance shall take effect 30 days after its adoption by the Council and 
approval by the Mayor. 
 
ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this _____ day of 
_______________, 2016, by a vote of _____ for and _____ against. 
 
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this _____ day of _______________, 2016. 
 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Christine Lundberg, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Amy Sowa, City Recorder 
 

Attachment 2, Page 5 of 5



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Mary Bridget Smith, 

CAO 
 Staff Phone No: 541-746-9621 
 Estimated Time: 10 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Enhance Public Safety 

 
ITEM TITLE: LICENSING FEE FOR MEDICAL MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Conduct a public hearing and adopt/amend/not adopt the following Resolution: A 
RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SPRINGFIELD AMENDING THE MASTER FEES AND CHARGES 
SCHEDULE AS ESTABLISHED BY THE SPRINGFIELD MUNICIPAL CODE 
TO AMEND THE BUSINESS LICENSE FEE FOR MEDICAL MARIJUANA 
DISPENSARIES. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The city seeks to lower the licensing fee applicable to medical marijuana 
dispensaries in the City of Springfield. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 – Proposed Resolution 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Medical marijuana dispensaries are currently required to obtain a business license 
from the City and pay a fee of $1,092 per year under SMC 7.600 et seq. The City 
Council has recently adopted new business license and associated regulations for 
recreational marijuana businesses. The Council has set the license fee for 
recreational marijuana businesses at $2,000 per year. There are currently 8 medical 
marijuana dispensaries located in the City of Springfield, and to date, 7 of those 
have applied to OLCC to become licensed as recreational marijuana businesses. If 
those facilities become licensed as recreational businesses, they will pay the higher 
recreational marijuana license fees and will no longer pay the medical marijuana 
dispensary fee. The new proposed fee for medical marijuana dispensaries is $750 
per year. If this Resolution is adopted, the medical marijuana dispensary fee will be 
lowered in the City’s Master Fees and Charges Schedule and updated as per 
Council direction in the future. 
 
The financial impact is unknown because it is not definitely known how many 
current medical marijuana dispensaries within the City of Springfield will convert 
to recreational marijuana business, and whether any new medical marijuana 
dispensaries will locate in the City of Springfield.  If 7 out of the 8 existing 
dispensaries convert their licenses to recreational marijuana businesses, and no new 
medical marijuana dispensaries locate in Springfield, then the financial impact of 
this proposed fee decrease would be a loss of $342 per year to the City of 
Springfield.  This loss from the single remaining dispensary would be offset by 
$6,356 in additional revenue from the 7 potential recreational businesses, for a net 
gain of $6,014 to the City of Springfield. 
 

 





 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
Staff Contact/Dept.: Jeff Paschall 

Development and Public 
Works 

Staff Phone No: 541-726-1674 
Estimated Time: 10 Minutes 

S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Maintain and Improve 
Infrastructure and 
Facilities 

ITEM TITLE: PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY USE AGREEMENT TO ALLOW PRIVATE DEVELOPER 
JM HOTEL, LLC TO PLACE, CONSTRUCT, AND MAINTAIN: EARTH AND 
STRUCTURAL FILL, VEGETATION, STORMWATER FACILITIES, AND REMOVE 
AND RECONSTRUCT AN EXISTING ACCESS ROAD. 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Approve or reject the following motion:   
AUTHORIZE THE DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR TO ISSUE A 
PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY USE AGREEMENT TO JM HOTEL, LLC TO PLACE, 
CONSTRUCT, AND MAINTAIN: EARTH AND STRUCTURAL FILL, VEGETATION, 
STORMWATER FACILITIES, AND REMOVE AND RECONSTRUCT AN EXISTING 
ACCESS ROAD. 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

JM Hotel LLC, the developers of the Fairfield Inn and Suites, is requesting approval to 
construct a privately owned and maintained earth and structural fill, vegetation, and 
stormwater facility within the Franklin Boulevard public right-of-way. In addition, the 
developer has proposed removal and reconstruction of a maintenance access road.  Staff has 
prepared a Public Right Of Way Use Agreement for Council's consideration to allow the 
proposed improvements. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Public Right of Way Use Agreement
2. Vicinity Map

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

Local developer JM Hotel, LLC, have proposed to build a four story 81 room Fairfield Inn 
and Suites in Glenwood. The new hotel will be along the south side of Franklin Boulevard 
just west of the existing Candlewood Suites Hotel. As part of the Development, the 
developers have proposed to use a portion of existing public right of way to construct 
stormwater improvements and vegetation for site beautification and amenity. In addition, 
the developer will remove and reconstruct an existing gravel road that provides access to the 
Whilamut Passage Bridge, the Glenwood North Channel, and the Glenwood Slough.  

Chapter 3.224 of the Springfield Municipal Code provides for utilizing a public way use 
agreement to authorize the placement of privately owned devices or structures within a 
public way.  The developers of the Fairfield Inn and Suites desire to use approximately the 
southern 45 to 20 feet of the Franklin Boulevard right-of-way to construct the desired 
facilities.  These facilities will be built using private funds, and maintained by JM Hotel, 
LLC.   

The proposed Public Way Use Agreement allows the developer to build and maintain the 
fill, vegetation, and stormwater in perpetuity while preserving the public's rights and 
releasing the City from financial liability regarding the installed facilities.  The Agreement 
binds the developer, JM Hotel, LLC, and future heirs and successors. In the unlikely event 
that the facilities become problematic for the City, Section 10 of the Agreement provides the 
opportunity for the City to terminate the Agreement upon 60 days' notice. 



Attachment 1, Page 1 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 2 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 3 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 4 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 5 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 6 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 7 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 8 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 9 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 10 of 11



Attachment 1, Page 11 of 11



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Hotel and facilities to be constructed in Phase 1 West. 
 

 Area addressed with Public Right of Way Use Agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Attachment 2, Page 1 of 1



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Mary Bridget Smith, 

CAO 
 Staff Phone No: 541-746-9621 
 Estimated Time: 10 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Maintain and Improve 
Infrastructure and 
Facilities 

 
ITEM TITLE: REFINED FRANKLIN BOULEVARD RESOLUTION OF NECESSITY 

 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Adopt/not adopt the following Resolution: RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE 
POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN AND AUTHORIZING A RESOLUTION 
PURSUANT TO ORS 223.005, ORS 223.105 and ORS 35.600-625 
CONCERNING ACQUISTION OF RIGHT OF WAY NECESSARY FOR THE 
FRANKLIN BOULEVARD REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT (PHASE I) 
(Project No. P21066) 
 
Authorize City Manager to execute IGA with Lane County for delegation of 
eminent domain authority. 
 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

The City of Springfield has completed 90% design of Franklin Boulevard (Phase I) 
Reconstruction Project and is requesting the Council adopt a Refined Resolution 
Authorizing Right of Way Acquisition Needed for Phase I as required by law. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. Resolution of Necessity with Exhibits A and B: List of Properties, Descriptions 
and Diagrams 

2. 90% Design Diagram 
3. IGA between City and County for delegation of eminent domain authority 

 
DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The City has completed the 90% design of the Franklin Boulevard Reconstruction 
Project (Phase I) and is presenting this refined Resolution of Necessity and IGA 
pursuant to state law. 
 
Council adopted a previous Resolution of Necessity in July of 2015 but that was 
based on an earlier design and 90% design impacts less property.  The project goal 
remains to successfully negotiate with the property owners and come to an 
agreement for just compensation to acquire property needed for the project.  
However, this refined Resolution of Necessity and IGA will allow the City to 
proceed with condemnation proceedings in those situations when agreement on 
public acquisition cannot be reached. 
 

N:\OneDrive for Business\City\Condemnation\Franklin Right of Way\AIS for Resol 



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION EXERCISING THE POWER OF EMINENT DOMAIN AND 
AUTHORIZING A RESOLUTION PURSUANT TO ORS 223.005, ORS 223.105 

and ORS 35.600-625 CONCERNING ACQUISTION OF RIGHT OF WAY 
NECESSARY FOR THE FRANKLIN BOULEVARD REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

(PHASE I) 
(Project No. P21066) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Springfield may exercise the power of eminent domain pursuant 
to Springfield City Charter and the law of the State of Oregon, generally, when the 
exercise of such power is deemed necessary by the governing body to accomplish 
public purposes for which the City of Springfield has responsibility; 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Springfield has the responsibility of providing safe 
transportation routes for commerce, convenience and to adequately serve the traveling 
public; 
 
WHEREAS, the project known as the Franklin Boulevard Redevelopment Project (Phase 
I) has been planned in accordance with appropriate engineering standards for the 
construction, maintenance or improvement of said transportation infrastructure such 
that property damage is minimized, transportation promoted, travel safeguarded; 
 
WHEREAS, to accomplish the project or projects set forth above, it is necessary to 
acquire fee interest and temporary construction easements in the property for roadway 
purposes listed in “Exhibit A” and described and depicted in “Exhibit B” which are 
attached to this Resolution and, by this reference incorporated herein; 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the Franklin Boulevard Redevelopment Project (Phase I) is 
to build a multi-way boulevard that will have roundabouts, sidewalks, separate 
pedestrian and bicycle facilities from vehicle traffic, provided bicycle access and better 
safety for those traveling on the road; 
 
WHEREAS, the City has funding from federal, state and local sources for the Franklin 
Boulevard Redevelopment Project (Phase I); 
 
WHEREAS, the City is engaged in public outreach regarding this project since 2007; 
 
WHEREAS, the envelope design of Phase I was revised from the initial concept in 2009 
to lessen the business impact and remove any residential impacts; 
 
WHEREAS, in July of 2015, the City adopted a Resolution of Necessity based on the 
30% design of the Franklin Boulevard Redevelopment Project (Phase I); 
 
WHEREAS, in March of 2016, the City completed a 90% design of the Franklin 
Boulevard Redevelopment Project (Phase I); 
 
WHEREAS, the properties listed in Exhibit A of this Resolution are impacted by the 90% 
design; Attachment 1, Page 1 of 61



 
WHEREAS, the public good realized by this project far outweighs any damage that the 
property owners might sustain, particularly in light of the City’s obligation to provide 
just compensation to the affected property owners; 
 
WHERAS, the appropriation of such land is reasonably necessary to protect the full use 
and enjoyment by the public of Franklin Boulevard. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, based on the above findings, the Common Council of the City of 
Springfield does hereby resolve as follows: 
 
Section 1:  The foregoing statements of authority and need are, in fact, the case.  The 
project for which the property is required and is being acquired are necessary in the 
public interest, and the same have been planned, designed, located, and will be 
constructed in a manner which will be most compatible with the greatest public good 
and the least private injury. 
 
Section 2:  The power of eminent domain is hereby exercised with respect to acquiring 
right of way and easement interests in properties described in Exhibit A.  Each is 
acquired subject to payment of just compensation and subject to procedural 
requirements of Oregon law. 
 
Section 3:  The City of Springfield’s staff and attorneys are authorized and requested 
to attempt to agree with the owner and other persons in interest as to the 
compensation to be paid for each acquisition, and, in the event that no satisfactory 
agreement can be reached, to commence and prosecute such condemnation 
proceedings as may be necessary to finally determine just compensation or any other 
issue appropriate to be determined by a court in connection with the acquisition.  This 
authorization is not intended to expand the jurisdiction of any court to decide matters 
determined above or determinable by the City of Springfield. 
 
Section 4:  If the City of Springfield and the owners or persons in interest as to the 
compensation paid for each acquisition as described in Exhibit A agree on the amount 
of just compensation, the City Manager is authorized to negotiate and execute 
acquisition agreements for those properties.   
 
Section 5:   Upon the trial of any suit or action instituted to acquire the real property 
or any interest therein, the attorneys acting for and on behalf of the City Springfield be 
and hereby are authorized to make such stipulation, agreement or admission as in their 
judgment may be for the best interest of the Franklin Boulevard Redevelopment Project 
(Phase I). 
 
Section 6:  The Common Council further declares that the real property interests 
described in Exhibit A shall be used by the City of Springfield for public purposes at the 
earliest possible date and, in any event, no later than ten years from the date this 
Resolution is adopted by the Council. 
 
Section 7:  This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption by the Council and approval 
by the Mayor. Attachment 1, Page 2 of 61



 
ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Springfield this _____ day of May, 
2016, by a vote of _____ for and _____ against. 
 
APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Springfield this _____ day of May, 2016. 
 
 

______________________________ 
                                 Christine L. Lundberg, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
Amy Sowa, City Recorder 
  

Attachment 1, Page 3 of 61



EXHIBIT A 
Project Name and Number: Franklin Boulevard Reconstruction Project P21066 

 
 
 OWNER MAP AND TAX LOT 

NUMBER 
Square Feet of 
Fee  

Square Feet of 
Temporary 
Construction 
Easement 

1 Roth and Roth LLC 17033442 1600/ 
2100 

 409  

2 Ramsey Properties LTD 
PTRSHP 

17033442 900 930 1036 

3 Ramsey Properties LTD 
PTRSHP 

17033442 800 1825 2199 

4 Ramsey Properties LTD 
PTRSHP 

17033442 700 3917 3687 

5 Skillern Investments LTD 
Partnership 

17033442 600 3070 1217 

6 Skillern Investments, LLC 17033441 2100 3029  
7 FPS Investments, LLC 17033441 2000 3821 1956 
8 Karotko, LLC 17033441 1500 16797 9787 
9 Karotko, LLC 17033441 400 7953 1635 
10 Too Blue, LLC 17033441 300 9612 1859; 2031 
11 4340, LLC 17033441 200 5327 2813; 6886 
12 Dormar-Glenwood, LLC 17033443 9300 2394 3686 
13 Dormar-Glenwood, LLC 17033443 9200 2425 1686 
14 T1-4197 Franklin Blvd, 

LLC 
17033443 100 9974 7046 

15 Six Sac Self-Storage Corp. 17033444 900 223 1147 
16 Six Sac Self-Storage Corp. 17033444 800 356 2108 
17 Six Sac Self-Storage Corp. 17033444 1100  3108 
18 Moe, S. Stephen & Karen 

J. 
17033444 700 117 1645 

19 Wells Fargo 17033444 1000 1411 4256 
20 Franklin Blvd., LLC 17033444 3100 3375 4126 
 
 

Exhibit A, Page 1 of 1

Attachment 1, Page 4 of 61



McKENZlE RIVER HWY

February 24,2016

EXHIBIT A

FUe No. 8A

Tax Map No. 17033442 02100

PARCEL 1 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portionof that tract ofreal property lying in the Charles B. Sweet
Donation Land Claim No. 61, and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, LaneCounty, Oregon andbeingmoreparticularly described as Parcel 6 in
a deed to Roth & Roth, LLC, recorded in DocumentNo. 2000-005337 in the Lane County Book
of Records, saidparcel being thatportion of saidproperty included in a strip oflandvariable in
width, lyingon the Northerly sideof the centerline of McKenzie Highway, which centerline is
described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center lineStation 217+00.00, saidstation being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17South, Range 3 West of theWillamette Meridian; thence N 84®06'21" E,349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feetalong the arcof a 477.46 foot radius curve to the rightwitha central angle of
28°05'30" (thelongchord of which bears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet alongthe arcofa 1432.39 foot radius curveto the left witha
central angle of 9°40'30" (thelong chord of which bears S 72°38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28*39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip of land more particularlydescribedas follows:

All that portion of saidproperty lyingsoutherly ofthe following described line:

Beginning at a point 39.81 feet leftof Engineer's center lineStation 235+00.00; thence S
77°22'38" E, 120.71 feet to an angle point; thence N 57°46'41" E, 14.42 feet to an angle point;
thence N 3°33'04" E, 45.04feet to an angle point; thence S 64°29'44" E, 21.82 feet to the
terminus of saidlineat a point being 89.34 feet leftof Engineer's centerline Station 236+45.18.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126) and N.
Concord Street.

Parcel 1 contains409 square feet, or 0.01 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City of Springfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County SurveyC.S. 41541, Lane CountySurvey Records.

PAGE I OF 1

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

{J OREGON
)AN. t4.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS >

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: 'T.Mh'Jb

Exhibit B, Page 1 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 5 of 61



EXHIBIT B
SECTION 34 AND D.L.C.

T.17S., R.3W., W.M.
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

§ ^ R
V t\l y

R to CNj p: c9 to <\j R Uj
03 g 1-1 OvJ

PARCEL 1
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 409 S.F.±

(0.01 ac.)

Sta 255+00.00
39.81'Lt

FB-016A

17055445

TL9500

Doc No. 2011-015685
Dormar-Glenwood LLC

1":60'

FB-008A

17035442.

TL2100
Doc No, 2000-005537

Roth & Roth LLC

O C>J
O 00
ctj m

C_i ^^ K^
§ cgin ^ 6
V ^ O.

Sfa 256+45

8934'it

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD. OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
FEBRUARY, 2016

CH2MHILL

Exhibit B, Page 2 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 6 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZm RIVER HWY FUe No. 7C
October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033442 00900

PARCEL 1-FEE

Aparcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in theDaniel McVay
Donation Land ClaimNo. 82, the Charles B. SweetDonation Land ClaimNo. 61, andin Section
34, Township 17 South, Range 3West ofthe Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and
being more particularly described as Parcel IIinadeed toRamsey Properties Limited
Partnership, recorded inDocument No. 95-69582 inthe Lane County Book ofRecords, said
parcel being that portion ofsaid property included ina strip ofland variable inwidth, lying on
the Northerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway, which centerline is described as
follows:

Beginning atEngineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feetfrom theNW comerofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82,Township
17 South, Range 3West ofthe Willamette Meridian; thence N84°06'21" B, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along the arc ofa 477.46 foot radius curve tothe right with a central angle of
28°05'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S67®48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39 foot radius curve to the left with a
central angle of9°40'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S72®38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center lineStation 240+17.76.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerly ofthe following described line:

Beginning atapoint 59.50 feet left ofEngineer's center line Station 236+18.82; thence S
64°29'44" E, 43.63 feet toapoint ofcurvature; thence 56.33 feet along the arc ofa 70.00 foot
radius curve to theleftwitha central angle of46°06'34" (the long chord of which bears S
87°33'01" E, 54.83 feet) to the terminus ofsaid line ata point being 59.29 feet left ofEngineer's
centerline Station 237+15.31.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Hi^way (OR126).

Parcel 1 contains 930squarefeet, or 0.02 acres, moreor less.

The basis ofbearing isCity ofSpringfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry isbased on
County Survey C.S. 41541, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE 1 OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 3 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 7 of 61



RXHTRTT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY File No. 7C

October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033442 00900

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82, the Charles B. Sweet Donation Land Claim No. 61, and in Section
34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and
being more particularly described as Parcel II in a deed to Ramsey Properties Limited
Partnership, recorded in Document No. 95-69582 in the Lane County Book ofRecords, said
parcel being that portion of said property included in a strip ofland variable in width, lying on
the Northerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway, which centerline is described as
follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02M0" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range 3 West ofthe Willamette Meridian; thence N 84°06'21" E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along the arc ofa 477.46 foot radius curve to the right with a central angle of
28°05'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 81®50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39 foot radius curve to the left with a
central angle of9®40'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 72°38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip ofland more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerlyofthe followingdescribedline:

Beginning at a point 94.24feet left of Engineer'scenterline Station 236+23.93; thenceS
64°29*44" E, 21.82 feet to an angle point; thence S 15°55'32" E, 29.41 feet to an angle point;
thence S 28°21 '01" E, 10.95 feet to an angle point; thenceS 77°20'54" E, 17.89feet to an angle
point; thence N 13°33'50"E, 1.77feet to an anglepoint; thence S 76®48'17" E, 9.62 feet to an
anglepoint; thence N 14°31 '59" E, 5.65feet to an angle point; thence S 76°54'07"E, 15.39 feet
to an anglepoint; thence N 2°43'16" E, 7.03 feet to an anglepoint; thenceN 85°25'47" E, 24.55
feet to the terminus ofsaid line at a point being 76.45 feet left ofEngineer's centerline Station
237+31.76.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126) and the above
described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 1,036 square feet, or 0.02 acres, more or less. REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

PAGE 2 OF 2

7 OREGON
' 1AK1 1AJAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS J

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: loH'il if

Exhibit B, Page 4 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 8 of 61



0 z M

:u
rr

i:
b

'

••
p

m

P
o

>
»

o
l«

j:
:d

i\
)

(\
)C

T
>

^

B
si

i
/I

^

:^
)r

T
ii

s.
rn

m
^

la
.

O

&

=
3-

P

u

r
-

r
-

r>

CT
)

u
o

-l
\

O
l\

)

O
!2

».

g
>

8
-^

o o
4!

*.
iN

a

'
N

C
O

N
C

O
R

D
<

;t
.

F
B

-0
0

7
C

1
7

0
3

5
4

4
2

T
L

9
0

0

D
o

c
N

o
.9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sf
lip

C
O

m O o z
:

>
*

4s
».

r
n

S
y

'^
x

o
'

2
—

'

o
^

z
C

D
o

.
o

z
o

F
B

-0
0

7
B

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

8
0

0
D

o
c

N
o

.
9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

o C
X

I
K

)

F
B

-0
0

7
A

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

7
0

0
D

o
c

N
o.

9
5

-6
9

5
8

2
R

am
se

y
P

ro
p

er
ti

es
L

im
it

ed
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip

F
B

-0
0

6

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

6
0

0
D

o
c

N
o.

9
6

-6
5

2
3

6

S
k

il
le

rn
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

ts

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

N
B

R
O

O
K

LY
N

ST
.

Exhibit B, Page 5 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 9 of 61



EXHTRTT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FUe No. 7B

October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033442 00800

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcel of land being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described as Parcel IV
in a deed to Ramsey Properties Limited Partnership, recorded in Document No. 95-69582 in the
Lane County Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip
of land variable in width, lying on the Northerly side of the centerline ofMcKenzie Highway,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range 3 West ofthe Willamette Meridian; thence N 84°06'2r' E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along the arc ofa 477.46 foot radius curve to the right with a central angle of
28°05'30" (the long chord of which bears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39 foot radius curve to the left with a
central angle of9°40'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 72°38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77®28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip ofland more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerly ofthe following described line:

Beginning at a point 49.70 feet left ofEngineer's center line Station 236+61.33; thence 56.33
feet along the arc ofa 70.00 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of46°06'34" (the
long chord ofwhich bears S 87°33'01" E, 54.83 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence
61.23 feet along the arc ofa 100.00foot radius curve to the right with a central angle of
35°04'50" (the long chord of which bears N 86°56'07" E, 60.28 feet) to the terminus ofsaid line
at a point being 75.49 feet left ofEngineer's centerline Station 237+73.37.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126).

Parcel 1 contains 1,825 square feet, or 0.04 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City of Springfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 41541, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE 1 OF 2

3Exhibit B, Page 6 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 10 of 61



EXHTBTT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FUe No. 7B

October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033442 00800

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion of that tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described as Parcel IV
in a deed to Ramsey Properties Limited Partnership, recorded in Document No. 95-69582 in the
Lane County Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip
ofland variable in width, lying on the Northerly side of the centerline ofMcKenzie Hi^way,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence N 84°06'2r' E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along the arc ofa 477.46 foot radius curve to the right with a central angle of
28°05*30"(the long chord ofwhich bears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39 foot radius curve to the left with a
central angle of9®40'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 72°38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28*39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip of land more particularlydescribed as follows:

All that portion ofsaid propertylying southerlyof the followingdescribedline:

Beginning at a point 62.46feet left ofEngineer's centerline Station236+94.09; thenceS
76°54'07" E, 15.39 feet to an angle point; thence N 2°43'16" E, 7.03 feet to an angle point;
thenceN 85°25'47" E, 24.55 feet to an angle point; thence N 4°28'23" W, 7.49 feet to an an^e
point; thenceN 85°04'02" E, 6.58 feet to an anglepoint; thenceN 2°47'17" E, 55.10feet to a
pointof curvature ofa non-tangent curve; thence 49.72 feet alongthe arcofa 170.00 footradius
curve to the right with a central angle of 16°45'27" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 83°54'11"
E, 49.54 feet) to the terminusofsaid line at a point being 145.44feet left ofEngineer's
centerline Station 237+75.76.

EXCEPT therefrom thatportionlyingwithin McKenzie River Highway (OR126) and the above
described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 2,199 square feet, or0.05 acres, more orless. r REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

PAGE 2 OF 2

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JAN. 14.2005

JOSEPH W. HURUMAN
58960LS y

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED:

Exhibit B, Page 7 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 11 of 61



0 z M

rr
i^

:i
3

o
^

ii
Q

iN
)

o
r
o

s
0

)
0

:>
p

^

33
O

^3
{-^

^
S

Cj
g

I
O

4^
O

O
r
-
o IJ

l
O

j
L

tj
"
N

F
B

-O
O

T
C

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

9
0

0

D
o

c
N

o.
9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

7
B

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

8
0

0
D

o
g

N
o

.9
5

-6
9

5
8

2
R

am
se

y
P

ro
p

er
ti

es
/P

A
R

C
E

L
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/

L
im

ite
d

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

7
A

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

7
0

0
D

o
c

N
o.

9
5

-6
9

5
8

2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

g
Li

m
ite

d
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

6

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

6
0

0
D

o
c

N
o.

9
6

-6
5

2
3

6
S

k
ll

le
rn

In
v

e
st

m
e
n

ts

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

N
B

R
O

O
K

LY
N

ST

Exhibit B, Page 8 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 12 of 61



EYHTRTT A

McKENZJE RIVER HWY FUeNo.TA

October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033442 00700

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcel ofland being a portionofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
WillametteMeridian, Lane County, Oregonand being more particularlydescribedas Parcel V in
a deed to Ramsey PropertiesLimitedPartnership, recorded in Document No. 95-69582in the
Lane CountyBook of Records, said parcel being that portion ofsaid propertyincludedin a strip
ofland variablein width, lying on the Northerlyside of the centerlineofMcKenzieHighway,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's centerline Station217+00.00, said stationbeingN 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range3 Westofthe Willamette Meridian; thenceN 84°06'21" E, 349.56feet; thence
234.09 feetalong the arc of a 477.46foot radiuscurveto the rightwith a centralangleof
28°05'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67®48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39 foot radius curve to the left with a
central angleof 9°40'30" (the longchordof whichbears S 72°38*24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip ofland more particularlydescribedas follows:

All thatportion ofsaidproperty lying southerly ofthe following described line:

Beginning at a point59.29 feet leftofEngineer's cent^ lineStation 237+15.31; thence 61.23
feetalong the arcofa 100.00 footradius curve to the rightwitha central angle of 35°04'50"(the
long chord of which bears N 86°56'07" E, 60.28 feet) to a pointofreverse curvature; thence
228.54 feet along thearcofa 835.00 foot radius curve to the leftwitha central angle of
15°40'55" (the long chordof whichbears S 83°21 '56" E, 227.83 feet) to the terminus of said
lineat a point being98.86 feet leftofEngineer's centerline Station 240+00.00.

EXCEPT therefrom that portionlying withinMcKenzie RiverHighway (OR126).

Parcel 1 contains3,917 square feet, or 0.09 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is CityofSpringfield Geodetic Control. Centerline geometry is based on
CountySurveyC.S. 41541,Lane CountySurvey Records.

PAGE 1 OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 9 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 13 of 61



EXHTRTT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FUeNo.7A

October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033442 00700

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described as Parcel V in
a deed to Ramsey PropertiesLimitedPartnership, recordedin DocumentNo. 95-69582 in the
Lane County Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip
ofland variable in width, lying on the Northerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range3 West ofthe WillametteMeridian; thenceN 84°06'21" E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along the arc ofa 477.46 foot radius curve to the right with a centralangle of
28°05'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39foot radius curve to the left with a
central angle of9°40'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 72°38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip ofland more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid propertylying southerlyof the followingdescribedline:

Beginning at a point 139.90 feetleft of Engineer's centerline Station 237+26.53; thence 49.72
feet alongthe arc ofa 170.00foot radiuscurveto the right with a central angleof 16°45'27" (the
long chordofwhichbears S 83®54'11" E, 49.54feet) to a point of reversecurvature; thence
24.10 feet alongthe arc ofa 765.00 foot radiuscurveto the left with a central angleof 1°48'18"
(the long chordofwhichbearsS 76°25'37" E, 24.10feet) to the endofthe curveandbeingnon-
tangent; thence S 2°H'17"W, 60.44 feet to a point of curvature of a non-tangent curve; thence
82.75 feetalongthe arcofa 824.50 footradius curve to the left witha central angleof 5°45'02"
(the long chord ofwhichbearsS 80°58'08"E, 82.72 feet) to the terminus of said line at a point
being 90.58 feet left ofEngineer's centerlineStation 238+93.26.

EXCEPT therefrom that portionlying withinMcKenzie RiverHighway (OR126) and the above
described Parcel 1.

REGISTERED
Parcel 2 contains 3,687 square feet, or0.08 acres, more orless. [ PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

PAGE 2 OF 2

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
V 58960LS y

RENEWAL: 7/01/17.
SIGNED:

Exhibit B, Page 10 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 14 of 61



0 z N

r
n

^
3

)

gi
^S

^
m

;5
;U

:5
3

r-
o

?
^

v
:

rn
rn

^
>

-
n

A

o
H

^
o

^
S

'̂

F
B

-0
0

7
C

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

9
0

0

D
o

c
N

o.
9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

st
)i

p

ro
C

o
F

B
—

0
0

7
B

is
3

-1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

80
0

4-
D

oc
N

o.
9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

7
A

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

7
0

0

D
o

c
N

o.
9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

6

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

6
0

0
D

o
c

N
o.

9
6

-6
5

2
3

6
S

k
il

ie
rn

In
v

e
st

m
e
n

ts
L

im
it

ed
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip

N
BR

O
O

K
LY

N
ST

C
O

m o —
I

'o

O
:

z
P

O

.-
<

:g

m

z
O

D
o

—
:

O
Q

N
)

Exhibit B, Page 11 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 15 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McK£NZI£ RIVER HWY FUe No. 6

October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033442 00600

PARCEL l-~ FEE

A parcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described as Parcel 1 in
a deed to Skillem Investments Limited Partnership, recorded in Document No. 96-65235 in the
Lane County Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip
ofland variable in width, lying on the Northerly side of the centerline ofMcKenzie Highway,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02*40"W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence N 84°06'21" E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along the arc ofa 477.46 foot radius curve to the right with a central angle of
28°05'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39 foot radius curve to the left with a
central angle of9°40'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 72®38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip ofland more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerly of the following describedline:

Beginning at a point 75.49 feet left ofEngineer's center line Station 237+73.37; thence 247.41
feet alongthe arc ofa 835.00 foot radius curve to the left with a centralangle of 16°58'36" (the
long chord ofwhich bears S 84°00'46" E, 246.51 feet) to the terminusofsaid line at a point
being 98.86 feet left ofEngineer's centerline Station 240+00.00.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126), and North
Brooklyn St.

Parcel 1 contains 3,070 square feet, or 0.07 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City of Springfield GeodeticControl.Center line geometryis based on
County Survey C.S. 41541, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE 1 OF 2

5
Exhibit B, Page 12 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 16 of 61



EXHTRTT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY File No. 6
October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033442 00600

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of landbeing a portion of that tract ofreal propertylying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane Coimty,Oregon and being more particularly described as Parcel 1 in
a deed to Skillem Investments Limited Partnership, recorded in Document No. 96-65235 in the
Lane County Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip
of land variable in width, lying on the Northerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Hi^way,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVayDonation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence N 84°06'2r' E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along the arc ofa 477.46 foot radius curve to the ri^t with a central angle of
28°05'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39 foot radius curve to the left with a
central angle of9°40'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 72°38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip ofland more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 85.55 feet left ofEngineer's center line Station 238+10.69; thence 82.75
feet along the arc ofa 824.50 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of5®45'02" (the
long chord ofwhich bears S 80®58'08"E, 82.72 feet) to the end ofthe curve and being non-
tangent; thence N 2°11'17" E, 19.55 feet to an angle point; S 85°00' 18" E, 35.32 feet to the
terminus of said line at a point being 114.44 feet left ofEngineer's centerline Station 239+24.77,

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126), North
Brooklyn St., and the above described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 1,217 square feet, or 0.03 acres, more or less.

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

PAGE 2 OF 2

OREGON
)AN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: /o/>V/r

Exhibit B, Page 13 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 17 of 61



0 z N

:o
rr

i>
.

r
n

s
t

••
o

m

P
lV

ji
"

o
-^

:5
D

ro
U

-
N

"
^

Q
C

o
D

>
>

i:
p

r
n

r
n

s
3

>
D

r
o C
o

C
o

F
B

-0
0

7
C

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

9
0

0

D
o

c
N

o.
9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

7
B

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

8
0

0
D

o
c

N
o.

9
5

-6
9

5
8

2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

7
A

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

7
0

0
D

o
c

N
o.

9
5

-6
9

5
8

2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

6
1

7
0

3
3

4
4

2
T

L
6

0
0

D
o

c
N

o.
9

6
-6

5
2

3
6

S
k

iU
e
rn

In
v

e
st

m
e
n

ts
L

im
it

ed
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip

N
B

R
O

O
K

LY
N

ST

Exhibit B, Page 14 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 18 of 61



(o
EXHIBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY File No. 05

October 29,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 02100

PARCEL 1~ FEE

A parcel of land being all of that tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay Donation Land
Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian,
Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to Skillem Investments,
LLC recorded in Document No. 2008-003008 in the Lane County Book ofRecords, said parcel
being more particularly described as follows:

Beginningat a point which is found as follows: Beginningat the Northwestcomer ofthe Daniel
McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe Willamette
Meridian; run thence South 2.49 chains; thence South 78 1/2° East along the North line of
CountyRoad 3.17 chainsand 13 feet, this beingthe beginning point; runningthenceSouth78
1/2° East 60 feet along the North line ofCoimtyRoad; thence North 60 feet; thenceNorth 78
1/2° West 60 feet, and thence South 60 feet to the place ofbeginning, in Lane County, Oregon.

EXCEPT that certain tract ofland conveyed to State ofOregon, by and throu^ its State
Highway Commission, by Deed recordedJune 24,1942, ReceptionNo. 111258, Lane
County Oregon Deed Records, in Lane County, Oregon.

Parcel 1 contains 3,029 square feet, or 0.07 acres, more or less.

/ REGISTERED
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS /

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: loh'flW<~

PAGE I OF 1

Exhibit B, Page 15 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 19 of 61



n

§•

F
B

-0
0

7
B

1
7

0
5

3
4

4
2

T
L

8
0

0

D
o

c
N

o,
9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

7
A

1
7

0
5

5
4

4
2

T
L

7
0

0
D

o
c

N
o

,
9

5
-
6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

6

1
7

0
5

5
4

4
2

T
L

6
0

0
D

o
c

N
o

.
9

6
-6

5
2

5
6

S
k

i/
fe

rn
In

v
e
st

m
e
n

ts

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

N
B

R
O

O
K

LY
N

ST

Exhibit B, Page 16 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 20 of 61



EXfflBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FaeNo.04
October 12,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 02000

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcelof landbeinga portionofthat tractof real property lyingin the Daniel McVay
Donation LandClaimNo. 82 and in Section34, Township 17 South, Range3 Westof the
WillametteMeridian, Lane Coimty, Oregon and being more particularlydescribedas Parcel 3 in
a deedto FPSInvestments, LLC recorded in Document No.2009-003172 in the Lane Coxmty
BookofRecords, saidpared beingthat portion ofsaidproperty included in a stripof land
variable in width, lying on theNortherly sideof the centerline of McKenzie Highway, which
centerline is described as follows:

Beginningat Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03,said stationbeing S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from theNWcomerof the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82,Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet; thence
592.50 feet along the arc ofa 954.93 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of
35°33'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 84°44'51 E 583.04 feet); thence N 66°58'21" E,
566.20 feet to Engineers center line Station 251+75.97.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 83.02 feet left of Engineer's center line Station 238+95.00; thence 125.09
feet along the arc of a 835.00 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of 8°34'59" (the
long chord ofwhich bears S 88°12'34" B, 124.97 feet) to a point ofreverse curvature; thence
31.48 feet along the arc ofa 60.00 foot radius curve to the right with a central angle of30°03'53"
(the long chordofwhich bears S 77°28'08" E, 31.12 feet) to a point of tangency; thence S
62°26'H" E, 33.69 feet to the tenninus ofsaid line at a point being 95.14 feet left ofEngineer's
centerline Station 240+88.61.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126).

Parcel 1 contains 3,821 square feet, or 0.09 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearingis City ofSpringfield GeodeticControl. Centerline geometry is basedon
County Survey C.S. 39717, Lane County Siurey Records.

PAGE I OF 2

7
Exhibit B, Page 17 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 21 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY File No. 04
October 12,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 02000

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of landbeing a portionofthat tractofreal propertylyingin the DanielMcVay
Donation Land ClaimNo. 82 and in Section34, Township 17 South, Range3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and beingmore particularly described as Parcel3 in
a deed to FPS Investments, LLCrecorded in Document No. 2009-003172 in the LaneCounty
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portionofsaid property includedin a strip of land
variable in width, lyingon the Northerly sideof the centerline of McKenzie Highway, which
centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86®54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe DanielMcVayDonation LandClaimNo. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" B, 1036.24 feet; thence
592.50 feet along the arc ofa 954.93 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of
35°33'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 84°44'51 E 583.04 feet); thence N 66°58'21" E,
566.20 feet to Engineers center line Station 251+75.97.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 112.57 feet left ofEngineer's center line Station 238+89.26; thence S
85°00'18" E, 35.32 feet to an angle point; thence S 50°59'19" E, 25.52 feet to a point of
curvature ofa non-tangent curve; thence 68.46 feet along the arc ofa 820.00 foot radius curve to
the left with a central angle of4°47'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 89°53'26" E, 68.44
feet) to the end of the curve and being non-tangent; thenceN 79°26*29" E, 28.75 feet to a point
ofcurvature ofa non-tangent curve; thence 15.04 feet along the arc ofa 84.00 foot radius curve
to the right with a central angle of 10°15'22" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 67°33'53" E,
15.02 feet) to the terminus ofsaid line at a point being 128.60 feet left ofEngineer's centerline
Station 240+61.04.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126) and the above
described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 1,956 square feet, or 0.04 acres, more or less.

REGISIERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

/ OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: io/UHr

PAGE 2 OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 18 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 22 of 61



N s

Q
to

D
s^

O
n

N
D

"n
P

-<

o

p
o

C
o

i
n

r\
>

F
B

-0
0

7
B

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

8
0

0

D
o

c
N

o.
9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

F
B

-0
0

7
A

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

7
0

0

D
o

c
N

o.
9

5
-6

9
5

8
2

R
am

se
y

P
ro

p
er

ti
es

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

&

F
B

-0
0

6

1
7

0
3

3
4

4
2

T
L

6
0

0

D
o

c
N

o.
9

6
-6

5
2

3
6

S
k

il
le

rn
In

v
e
s
tm

e
n

ts

L
im

it
ed

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

N
B

R
O

O
K

LY
N

ST

m

i^
o-

X
.y

i
CD

Exhibit B, Page 19 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 23 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FUeNo.OSB

October 12,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 01500

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal propertylying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described as Parcels 2
and 3 in a deed to Karotko, LLC recorded in Document No. 2000-073786 in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property includedin a strip of land
variable in width, lyingon the Northerly sideof the centerline of McKenzie Hi^way, which
centerline is described as follows:

Beginningat Engineer's center line Station229+81.03, said stationbeing S 86°54*54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 Westofthe Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39"E, 1036.24 feet; thence
592.50feetalongthe arc ofa 954.93 footradius curveto the left with a central angleof
35°33'00" (the long chord ofwhichbearsN 84°44'51 E 583.04feet); thenceN 66°58*2r' E,
566.20 feet to Engineers center line Station 251+75.97.

Saidstrip of landmoreparticularly described as follows:

All that portion of saidproperty lyingsoutherly ofthe following described line:

Beginning at a point 106.29 feetleftof Engineer's center lineStation 240+17.85; thence 31.48
feetalong the arcof a 60.00 foot radius curve to theri^t witha central angle of 30°03'53" (the
long chord of which bearsS 77°28'08"E, 31.12 feet) to a pointof tangency; thence S 62®26'H"
E, 33.69 feet to a point of curvature; thence 55.18 feet along the arcof a 82.00 foot radius curve
to the left witha central angleof 38°33'18"(the longchordof whichbearsS 81°42'50"E, 54.14
feet) to a point of tangency; thence N 79°00'31" E, 31.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence
19.57 feetalong the arcof a 140.00 foot radius curve to the leftwitha central angle of 8°00'29"
(thelongchord of which bears N 75°00'16" E, 19.55 feet) to a point of compound curvature;
thence 27.46 feetalong the arcof a 485.00 foot radius curve to theleftwitha central angle of
3®14'38" (thelongchord of which bears N 69°22'43" E, 27.45 feet) to a point of reverse
curvature; thence 40.78 feet along the arc of a 107.00 foot radius curve to therightwitha central
angle of21°50'08" (the long chord of which bears N 78°40'28" E,40.53 feet) to a point of
tangency; thence N 89°35'32" E, 86.10 feet to theterminus of said lineat a point being 115.12
feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 243+75.75.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzieRiver Highway(OR126).

Parcel 1 contains 16,797square feet, or 0.39 acres, more or less.

The basisof bearing is Cityof Springfield Geodetic Control. Center linegeometry is basedon
CoimtySurveyC.S. 39717, LaneCountySurvey Records.

PAGE 1 OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 20 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 24 of 61



EXfflBlT A

McKENZlE RIVER HWY FUe No. 03B

October 12,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 01500

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described as Parcels 2
and 3 in a deed to Karotko, LLC recorded in Document No. 2000-073786 in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip ofland
variable in width, lying on the Northerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway, which
centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet; thence
592.50 feet along the arc ofa 954.93 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of
35°33'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 84°44'51 E 583.04 feet); thence N 66°58'21" E,
566.20 feet to Engineers center line Station 251+75.97.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion of said property lying southerly of the following described line:

Beginningat a point 120.78 feet left of Engineer's center line Station 240+13.89; thence N
79°26'29" E, 28.75 feet to a point ofcurvature ofa non-tangent curve; thence 15.04 feet along
the arc ofa 84.00 foot radius curve to the ri^t with a central angle of 10°15'22" (the long chord
ofwhich bears S 67°33'53" E, 15.02 feet) to a point oftangency; thence S 62°26'H" E, 33.69
feet to a point ofcurvature; thence 4.55 feet along the arc ofa 58.00 foot radius curve to the left
with a central angle of4°29'52" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 64°41 '08" E, 4.55 feet) to the
end ofthe curve and being non-tangent; thence S 1^41'17" W, 7.97 feet to an angle point; thence
S 88°18'43" E, 89.22 feet to an angle point; N 1°41'17" E, 54.20 feet to a point ofcurvature ofa
non-tangent curve; thence 63.91 feet along the arc ofa 162.00foot radius curve to the right with
a central angle of22°36'07" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 78°17'28" E, 63.49 feet) to a point
of tangency; thence N 89°35'32" E, 73.03 feet to the terminus ofsaid line at a point being 171.44
feet left ofEngineer's centerline Station 243+70.00.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126) and the above
described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 9,787 square feet, or 0.22 acres, more or less.
/" REGISTERED ^

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

PAGE 2 OF 2

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURUMAN
58960LS V

- -

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: lo/lb/lf

Exhibit B, Page 21 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 25 of 61



CO

CD

EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34, AND D.L.C. NO. 82

T.17S.. R.3W.. W.M.
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

FB-004

17033441 TL2000
Doc No. 2009-003172

FPS Investments LLC

Sfa 240-1-13.89 120.78'Lt^..
Sfa 240+17B3 106.29'Lf

FB~005

J7033441

TL2100

Dog No.S008-00300a

SklUern Im.LLC

PARCEL
FEE
AREA: 16.797 S.F. ±

(0.39 ac.)

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA:9J87 S.F.±

(0.22 ac.)

FB-003B

17033441 TL1500

Doc No. 2000-73786

Karotko LLC

PARCEL 2

PARCEL

1":60'

FB-003A

17033441 TL400
Doc No. 2000-73786

J . Karotko LLC

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER. 2015

CH2IVIHILL

Exhibit B, Page 22 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 26 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZm RIVER HWY File No. 03A
October 12,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 00400

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcel of landbeing a portion of thattract ofrealproperty lying in theDaniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 andin Section 34,Township 17South, Range 3 Westof the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon andbeing more particularly described as a portion of
Parcel 1 in a deedto Karotko, LLC recorded in Document No.2000-073786 in the Lane County
BookofRecords, saidparcelbeingthatportion ofsaidproperty included in a stripofland
variable in width, lying on the Northerly sideof the centerline of McKenzie Highway, which
centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer*s centerlineStation 229+81.03, saidstation beingS 86'̂ 54'54" W, 732.19
feet fromthe NW comerof the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82,Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the WillametteMeridian; thence S 77°28'39" B, 1036.24feet; thence
592.50 feetalong the arcof a 954.93 foot radius curve to the leftwitha central angle of
35°33*00" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 84°44*51 E 583.04 feet); thence N 66°58*2r' B,
566.20 feet to Engineers center line Station 251+75.97.

Said strip ofland more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 123.59 feet left ofEngineer's center line Station 242+77.78; thence N
89°35'32" E, 86.10 feet to a point ofcurvature; thence 30.83 feet along the arc ofa 100.00foot
radiuscurve to the left with a central angleof 17°40'01" (the longchordofwhichbears N
80°45'3r* E, 30.71 feet) to a point oftangency; thence N 71°55'3r' E, 69.00 feet to the terminus
ofsaid line at a point being 120.28 feet left ofEngineer's centerline Station 244+89.11.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway(OR126).

Parcel 1 contains 7,953 square feet, or 0.18 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearingis City ofSpringfield GeodeticControl. Centerline geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 39717, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE I OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 23 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 27 of 61



EXfflBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY File No. 03A

October 12,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 00400

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel ofland being a portion of that tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
WillametteMeridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described as a portion of
Parcel 1 in a deed to Karotko, LLC recorded in Document No. 2000-073786 in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip ofland 15.00
feet in width, lying along the Northerly side ofthe above described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 1,635 square feet, or 0.04 acres, more or less.

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HUREJMAN
58960LS

RENEWAL: 7/01/17,
SIGNED:

PAGE 2 OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 24 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 28 of 61



FB-003B

17033441 TL1500
Doc No. 2000-73786

Karotko LLC

EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34. AND D.L.C. NO. 82

T.17S.. R.3W.. W.M.
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

FB-003A
17033441 TL400

Doc No. 2000-73786

J Karotko LLC

FB-002

17033441 TL300
Doc No, 98-57393

Too Blue LLC

4340 LLC

Sta 242+77J8

12359'Lf
I

Sta 244+89.11

120.28'Lt

PARCEL 1
FEE
AREA: 7.953 S.F.±

(0.18 ac.)

DOC. No.

2006-076635

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 1.635 S.F. ±

(0.04 ac.)

PARCEL 1

1":60'

DOC. No.

2006-62064

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER. 2015

CH2IWIHILL

Exhibit B, Page 25 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 29 of 61



EXfflBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FUe No. 02

October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 00300

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described as Parcel 2 in
a deed to Too Blue LLC recorded in Document No. 9857393 in the Lane County Book of
Records, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip ofland variable in
width, lying on the Northerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway, which centerline is
describ^ as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54*54"W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South,Range 3 West ofthe WillametteMeridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24feet; thence
592.50 feet along the arc ofa 954.93 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of
35°33'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 84°44'51 E 583.04 feet); thence N 66°58'21" E,
566.20 feet to Engineers center line Station 251+75.97.

Said strip of land more particularlydescribedas follows:

All that portion of said property lying southerlyof the followingdescribed line:

Beginningat a point 114.70feet left ofEngineer's center line Station244+10.67; thenceN
71°55'31" E, 69.00 feet to an angle point; thence N 72°40'55" E, 99.14 feet to a point of
curvature; thence 77.24feet along the arc ofa 115.00foot radius curve to the right with a central
angle of38°28'54" (the longchordof which bears S 88°04'38" E, 75.79 feet) to the terminus of
said line at a point being 85.10 feet left of Engineer's centerline Station 246+71.95.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126).

Parcel 1 contains 9,612 square feet, or 0.22 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City of Springfield GeodeticControl.Center line geometryis based on
Coimty Survey C.S. 39717, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE 1 OF 2

\o
Exhibit B, Page 26 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 30 of 61



EXHTBTT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY File No. 02
October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 00300

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel ofland being a portionofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No, 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, LaneCounty, Oregonand being more particularlydescribedas Parcel 2 in
a deed to Too Blue LLC recorded in Document No. 9857393 in the Lane County Book of
Records, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property includedin a strip of land 15.00feet in
width, lying along the Northerly side ofthe above described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 1,859 square feet, or 0.04 acres, more or less.

PARCEL 3 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane Coimty, Oregon and being more particularly described as Parcel 2 in
a deed to Too Blue LLC recorded in Document No. 9857393 in the Lane County Book of
Records, said parcel being that portion of said property included in a strip ofland variable in
width, lying on the Northerly side of the centerline ofMcKenzie Highway, which centerline is
described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet; thence
592.50 feet along the arc of a 954.93 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of
35°33'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 84M4'51 E 583.04 feet); thence N 66°58'21" E,
566.20 feet to Engineers center line Station 251+75.97.

Said strip ofland more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 132.45 feet left of Engineer's center line Station 245+97.92; thence N
0°12'05" W, 104.39 feet to an angle point; thence N 89°48'39" E, 69.47 feet to the terminus of
said line at a point being 201.77 feet left ofEngineer's centerline Station 247+04.09.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126) and the above
described Parcels 1 and 2. A BPf;TSTFBRn"~*N

Parcel 3 contains 2,031 square feet, or 0.05 acres, more or less. ^
^ LAND SURVEYOR

PAGE 2 OF 2

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
V 58960LS ^

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: JjdiMJZ

Exhibit B, Page 27 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 31 of 61



EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34, AND D.L.C. NO, 82

T.17S.. R.3W., W.M.
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

FB~003A
17033441 TL400

Doc No, 2000-73786
J Karotko LLC

FB-002
17033441 TL300
Doc No. 98-57393

Too Blue LLC

Sfa 245+97,92 132.45'Lt

PARCEL 1
FEE
AREA',9.612 S,F,±

(0,22 ac,)

Sta 244+10.67

114.70'Lt

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 1.859 S,F, ±

(0,04 ac,)

PARCEL 3
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 2.031 S,F.±

(0,05 ac,)

PARCEL

1":60'

Sta ^47+04.09

ZQlJTLt
+

FB-001
17033441 TL200

Doc No,

2012-045229
4340 LLC

246+71

DOC, No,

2006-62064

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD. OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER. 2015

CH2MHILL

Exhibit B, Page 28 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 32 of 61



EYHIRTT A

McKENZIE RTVER HWY FUe No. 01

October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 00200

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcel of land being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to
4340, LLC recorded in Document No. 2012-045229 in the Lane County Book ofRecords, said
parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip of land variable in width, lying on
the Northerly side ofthe centerlineofMcKenzieHighway, which centerlineis described as
follows:

Beginningat Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet; thence
592.50feet along the arc ofa 954.93 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of
35°33'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 84®44'51 E 583.04 feet); thence N 66°58'2r' E,
566.20 feet to Engineers center line Station 251+75.97.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaidpropertylying southerly ofthe following described line:

Beginningat a point 120.28 feet left ofEngineer's center line Station244+89.11; thenceN
72°40'55" E, 99.14 feet to a point ofcurvature; thence 77.24 feet alongthe arc ofa 115.00 foot
radius curve to the right with a central angleof38°28'54" (the long chord ofwhich bears S
88°04'38" E, 75.79 feet) to a point of tangency; thence S 68°50'H"E, 36.21 feet to a point of
curvature; thence 53.67feet along the arc ofa 102.00foot radius curve to the left with a central
angleof30°08'50" (the longchordofwhichbears S 83°54'36" E, 53.05 feet) to the tenninusof
said line at a point being34.05feet left ofEngineer's centerline Station 247+44.26.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzieRiver Highway(OR126).

Parcel 1 contains 5,327 square feet, or 0.12 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City ofSpringfieldGeodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 39717, Lane Coimty Survey Records.

PAGE I OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 29 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 33 of 61



EXfflBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FOeNo.Ol
October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033441 00200

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
DonationLand ClaimNo. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to
4340, LLC recorded in Document No. 2012-045229 in the Lane County Book ofRecords, said
parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip of land 25.00 feet in width, lying
along the Northerly side of the above described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 2,813 square feet, or 0.06 acres, more or less.

PARCEL 3 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to
4340, LLC recorded in Document No. 2012-045229 in the Laie County Book ofRecords, said
parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip ofland variable in width, lying on
the Northerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway, which centerline is described as
follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West ofthe Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet; thence
592.50 feet along the arc of a 954.93 foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of
35033*00" (the long chord ofwhich bears N 84°44'51 E 583.04 feet); thence N 66°58'21" E,
566.20 feet to Engineers center line Station 251+75.97.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying southerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 228.73 feet left of Engineer's center line Station 246+40.06; thence N
89°48'39" E, 69.47 feet to an angle point; thence S 0°12'05" E, 69.22 feet to an angle point;
thence N 86°36'39" E, 98.49 feet to the terminus ofsaid line at a point being 104.87 feet left of
Engineer's centerline Station 247+70.00. ^ n.f REGISTERED
EXCEPTtherefrom that portionlying within McKenzie River PROFESSIONAL
Highway (OR126) and the above described Parcels 1and 2. LAND SURVEYOR

Parcel 3 contains 6,886 square feet, or 0.16 acres, more or less.

PAGE 2 OF 2

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS /

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: lo/l'ljzoir

Exhibit B, Page 30 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 34 of 61



FB-003A

17033441 TL400
Doc No. ^000-73786

J Karofko LLC

PARCEL 1
FEE
AREA: 5.327 S.F.±

(0.12 QC.)

PARCEL 2
TEMP0RAR7 CONSTRUCTION EASEMEtIT
AREA: 2.813 S.F.±

(0.06 ac.)

PARCEL 3
TEMPORARf CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 6.886 S.F.±

(0.16 ac.)

EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34. AND D.L.C. NO. 82

T.17S., R.3W., W.M.
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

Sta Z4S+40.06

228.73'Lt +-

FB-OOZ

17033441 TL300
Doc No. 98-57393

Too Blue LLC

244+89.11

12028'Lt

yPARCEL

1":60'

PARCEL

PARCEL

DOC. No

2006-62064

FB-001
17033441 TL200

Doc No.

2012-045229
4340 LLC

--^ta 247+70.00
104£7'U

247+4426

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD. OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER. 2015

CH2IVIHILL

Exhibit B, Page 31 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 35 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FUe No. 16A

February 24,2016 Tax Map No. 17033443 09300

PARCEL 1 —FEE

A parcel of land being a portion of that tract ofreal property lying in the Charles B. Sweet
Donation Land Claim No. 61 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described as the first
parcel in a deed to Dormar-Glenwood, LLC,recorded in Document No. 2011-013685 in the
Lane CoimtyBook ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property includedin a strip
of land variable in width, lying on the Southerlyside ofthe centerlineofMcKenzieHighway,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range3 West of the WillametteMeridian; thenceN 84°06'2r' E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along the arc ofa 477.46 foot radius curve to the right with a central angleof
28°05'30" (the long chord of which bears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67®48*09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39 foot radius curve to the left with a
central angle of 9°40'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 72°38'24 E, 241.59feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying northerly of the followingdescribed line:

Beginningat a point 37.46 feet right ofEngineer's center line Station233+90.00; thence S
77°26'13" E, 60.65 feet to a point of curvature; thence 10.47 feet alongthe arc of a 20.00foot
radius curve to the right with a central angle of30°00'00" (the long chord ofwhichbears S
62°26'13" E, 10.35feet) to a point of tangency; thence S 47°26*13"E, 39.13 feet to a point of
curvature; thence 26.34 feet along the arc ofa 50.00 foot radius curve to the left with a central
angleof30°11 '07" (the long chordofwhichbears S 62°31 '46" E, 26.04feet) to a pointof
tangency; thenceS 77°37'19"E, 67.38 feet to the terminus of saidline at a pointbeing66.32 feet
right of.Engineer's centerline Station 235+87.07.

EXCEPT therefi*om that portion lying within McKenzieRiver Highway (OR126).

Parcel 1 contains 2,394 square feet, or 0.06 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City of Springfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 41541, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE I OF 2

12-Exhibit B, Page 32 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 36 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FOe No. 16A

February 24,2016 Tax Map No. 17033443 09300

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion of that tract ofreal property lying in the Charles B. Sweet
Donation Land Claim No. 61 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane Coimty, Oregon and being more particularly described as the first
parcel in a deed to Dormar-Glenwood, LLC, recordedin DocumentNo. 2011-013685 in the
LaneCountyBook of Records, said parcelbeing that portionofsaid property included in a strip
of land variable in width, lying on the Southerly side of the centerline ofMcKenzieHighway,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range 3 West of the WillametteMeridian; thenceN 84^06*21" E, 349.56feet; thence
234.09 feet along the arc ofa 477.46 foot radius curve to the right with a central angle of
28®05'30" (the long chord ofwhichbears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39foot radius curve to the left with a
central angleof9°40'30" (the long chord ofwhichbears S 72®38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77®28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip of land more particularlydescribed as follows:

All that portionofsaid propertylying northerlyof the followingdescribedline:

Beginning at a point 47.96 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station233+90.00; thenceS
77°26'13" E, 60.65 feet to an angle point; thence S 12°33'55" W, 55.91 feet to an angle point;
thenceS 77°26'05" E, 35.79 feet to an anglepoint; thence N 12®49'41" E, 25.03 feet to an angle
point; thence S 77®10'19"E, 44.35 feetto an angle point; thence S 12°28'25" W,27.39 feet to
an anglepoint; thence S 73°40'17"E, 40.63 feet to the terminus of said lineat a pointbeing
109.24 feet ri^t ofEngineer's centerline Station 235+71.44.

.EXCEPTtherefromthat portion lying within McKenzieRiver Midway (OR126) and the above
described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 3,686 square feet, or 0.08 acres, more or less.

PAGE 2 OF 2

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURUMAN
58960LS

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED:

Exhibit B, Page 33 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 37 of 61



FB-012B

17033443 TL10600

Doc No. 2001-081195

Green Valley Endeavors LLC

PARCEL
FEE
AREA: 2.394 S.F.±

(0.06 ac.)

PARCEL 2
TEMPORART CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 3,686 S.F.±

(0.08 ac.)

Sta Z33'f-90.00

37A6'Rt

Sta 233+90.00

47S&Rf

EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34, AND D.L.C. NO.

T.17S., R.3W.. W.M.
I AKir iMTv nDCT'nM

61

PARCEL

FB-016A

17033443

TL9300

Doc No. 2011-013685
Dormar-Glenwood LLC

PARCEL

Sta E35+87.07

6SJ2'Rt

.+Sfa 235+71.44
109.24'Rf

rr) t\j

o tn

CD P H (NJ Cp

1":60'

FB-018

17033443 TLIOO

Doc No. 2011-037377
71-4197 Franklin Blvd. LLC

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
FEBRUARY, 2016

CH2MHILL

Exhibit B, Page 34 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 38 of 61



EXfflBIT A

McK£NZl£ RIVER HWY File No. 16B
February 24,2016 Tax Map No. 17033443 09200

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcel of land being a portion of that tract of realproperty lying in the Charles B.Sweet
Donation Land Claim No. 61 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, LaneCounty, Oregon andbeingmoreparticularly described as the second
parcel in a deed to Dormar-Glenwood, LLC, recorded in Document No. 2011-013685 in the
Lane County Book of Records, saidparcel being thatportion of said property included in a strip
of landvariable in width, lying on the Southerly sideof thecenterline ofMcKenzie Higjiway,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center lineStation 217+00.00, saidstation being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South, Range 3 West of theWillamette Meridian; thence N 84°06'21" E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along thearc of a 477.46 foot radius curve to theright witha central angle of
28°05'30" (thelong chord of which bears S 81°50'54 E,231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arcof a 1432.39 foot radius curve to theleftwith a
central angle of 9°40*30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 72°38*24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip of land moreparticularly described as follows:

All thatportion of said property lying northerly of thefollowing described line:

Beginning at a point 66.49 feet right of Engineer's center line Station 235+19.69; thence S
77037'i9" 573g ^point of curvature; thence 42.98 feet along thearc ofa 500.00 foot
radius curve to theright with a central angle of 4°55'32" (the long chord of which bears S
75°09'34" E, 42.97 feet) to theterminus of said line at a point being 68.06 feet ri^t of
Engineer's centerline Station 236+30.00.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126).

Parcel 1 contains 2,425 square feet, or 0.06 acres, more or less.

Thebasis of bearing is City of Springfield Geodetic Control. Center linegeometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 41541, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE I OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 35 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 39 of 61



McKENZIE RIVER HWY

February 24,2016

EXHIBIT A

FUe No. 16B

Tax Map No. 17033443 09200

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of landbeing a portion of thattract of realproperty lying in the Charles B. Sweet
DonationLand Claim No. 61 and in Section34, Township 17 South, Range3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon andbeingmoreparticularly described as the second
parcel in a deed to Dorraar-Glenwood, LLC, recorded inDocument No. 2011-013685 in the
Lane County Book of Records, said parcel being thatportion of said property included in a strip
of landvariable in width, lying on the Southerly sideof the centerline of McKenzie Hi^way,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center lineStation 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02'40" W,
1971.11 feet from theNW comerof the Daniel McVay Donation LandClaim No. 82,Township
17 South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence N 84°06'21" E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feet along thearcof a 477.46 foot radius curve to theright with a central angle of
28°05'30" (thelongchord of which bears S 81°50*54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67®48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet alongthe arcofa 1432.39 foot radius curveto the leftwitha
central angle of9°40'30" (the long chord of which bears S 72°38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77®28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip of land moreparticularly described as follows:

All that portion of said property lying northerly of thefollowing described line:

Beginning at a point 106.54 feet right of Engineer's center line Station 235+30.90; thence S
73°40'17" E, 40.63 feet to an angle point; thence N 12°22'41" E, 32.87 feet to an angle point;
thence S 77°37'19"E, 58.64feetto the terminus of saidline at a pointbeing76.21 feetrightof
Engineer's centerline Station 236+30.00.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126) and the above
described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 1,686 square feet, or 0.04 acres, more or less.

PAGE 2 OF 2

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLDVIAN
58960LS y

RENEWAL; 7/01/17
SIGNED:

Exhibit B, Page 36 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 40 of 61



EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34, AND D.L.C. NO. 61

T.17S., R.3W., W.M.
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

FB-012B
17033445 TL10600

Doc No. ZOO1-081195
Green Valley Endeavors LLC

Sta Z35+19S9

66,49'Rt

Sta 235+3030
10654'Rt

FB-016A

17033443

TL9300

Doc No, 2011-013685
Dormar-Glenwood LLC

PARCEL 1
FEE
AREA: 2,425 S.F,±

(0.06 ac.)

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 1,686 S.F.±

(0.04 ac.)

PARCEL 1

PARCEL

FB-016B

17033443
TL9200

Doc No, 2011-013685
Dormar-Glenwood LLC

Sta 236+50,00

68,06'Rt

Sta 236+30,00

7621'Rt

FB-018

17033443 TLIOO

Doc No. 2011-037377
Tl-4197 Franklin Blvd. LLC

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD. OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
FEBRUARY, 2016

1":60' CHZMHiLL

Exhibit B, Page 37 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 41 of 61



F YHTRTT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FOe No. 18

October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033443 00100

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcelof landbeing a portion ofthat tractofreal property lyingin the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
WillametteMeridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularlydescribed in a deed to
TI-4197 Franklin Blvd., LLC, recorded in DocumentNo. 2011-037377 in the Lane County Book
of Records, said parcelbeingthatportionof saidproperty included in a stripof landvariable in
width, lyingon the Southerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway, whichcenterline is
described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer'scenterline Station217+00.00, said station beingN 84°02'40"W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17South, Range 3 Westof the Willamette Meridian; AenceN 84°06'21"E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09 feetalong the arc ofa 477.46 foot radiuscurveto the ri^t witha centralangleof
28°05'30" (the long chordofwhichbears S 81°50'54 E, 231.76feet); thenceS 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39 foot radiuscurveto the left with a
central angle of 9°40'30" (thelongchordof which bearsS 72°38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip of land more particularlydescribedas follows:

All thatportion of saidproperty lyingnortherly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point79.50 feet rightof Engineer's center lineStation 237+20.00; thence S
77°28'39"E, 129.53 feet to a pointofcurvature; thence 121.02 feetalongthe arc ofa 734.50
foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of9°26'24" (the long chord ofwhich bears S
82°11 '51" E, 120.88feet) to the terminus ofsaid line at a point being 69.44 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station 239+70.00.

EXCEPT therefrom thatportion lyingwithin McKenzie RiverHighway (OR126), Brooklyn St.
and Concord Ave.

Parcel 1 contains9,974 square feet, or 0.23 acres, more or less.

Thebasis of bearingis Cityof Springfield Geodetic Control. Center linegeometry is basedon
CountySurveyC.S. 41541, Lane County SurveyRecords.

PAGE I OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 38 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 42 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZlE RIVER HWY File No. 18

October 23,2015 Tax Map No. 17033443 00100

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
WillametteMeridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularlydescribed in a deed to
TI-4197 Franklin Blvd., LLC, recorded in Document No. 2011-037377 in the Lane County Book
ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip ofland variable in
width, lying on the Southerly side of the centerline ofMcKenzie Highway, which centerline is
described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 217+00.00, said station being N 84°02*40" W,
1971.11 feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township
17 South,Range 3 West ofthe WillametteMeridian; thenceN 84°06'21" E, 349.56 feet; thence
234.09feet alongthe arc of a 477.46 foot radiuscurveto the ri^t with a central angleof
28°05'30" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 81°50*54 E, 231.76 feet); thence S 67°48'09" E,
455.48 feet; thence 241.87 feet along the arc ofa 1432.39foot radius curve to the left with a
central angleof9°40'30" (the long chord of whichbears S 72°38'24 E, 241.59 feet); thence S
77°28'39" E, 1036.75 feet to Engineers center line Station 240+17.76.

Said strip ofland more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying northerly ofthe following described line:

Beginning at a point 174.97 feet right ofEngineer'scenterline Station237+20.00; thence N
46°06'28" E, 66.33 feet to an angle point; thence S 77°07'19" E, 11.19 feet to an anglepoint;
thence N12®52'41" E, 6.06 feet to an angle point; thence S77°07'19" E, 10.94 feet to an an^e
point; thence S 12°52'41"W, 3.16feet to anangle point; thence N 87°41 '31" E, 29.11 feetto an
angle point; thence S 77°28'39"E, 42.54feet to an angle point; thence S 79°16'52"E, 39.34 feet
to an anglepoint; thenceS 82°55'19" E, 65.16feet to an anglepoint; thenceS 7°04'41" W, 0.79
feet to an anglepoint; thence S 85°24'23" E, 16.37 feet to the terminus ofsaid line at a point
being 100.60 feet right of Engineer's centerline Station 239+70.00.

EXCEPT therefrom thatportion lying within McKenzie RiverHighway (OR126), Brooklyn St.
Concord Ave., and the above described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 7,046 square feet, or 0.16 acres, more or less.

PAGE 2 OF 2

REGISTERED ^
PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

V OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED:

Exhibit B, Page 39 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 43 of 61



PARCEL
FEE
AREA: 9.974 S.F.±

rO.23 OC.J

PARCEL
TEMPORARf CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 7.046 S.F.±

(0.16 ac.)

EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34, AND D.L.C. NO. 82

. T.17S., R.3W., W.M.
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

1":60'

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 2

FB-018
17033443 TLIOO

Doc No. EO11-037377

T1-4197 Fronklin Blvd.LLC

^fa Z59mn0 69.55'Rt

"Sta Z39+70.00 100.60'Rt

FB-019

17033444 TL3100

Doc No. 2015-034082

Franklin Blvd.. LLC

ACQUISITION MAP
OF SPRINGFIELD. OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER, 2015

CH2MHILL

Exhibit B, Page 40 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 44 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY File No. 21A

October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033444 00900

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to
Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation, recorded in Document No. 99001515 in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion of said property included in a strip of land
variable in width, lying on the Southerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway/ McVay
Highway, which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 - '*M" 70+42.90; thence continuing S
77°28'39" E, 371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along the arc ofa 286.48 foot radius curve to the
right with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 46°37'39 E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15°46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineers center line Station "M" 80+00.00,

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion of said property lying northerly of the following described line:

Beginningat a point 43.94 feet right ofEngineer's centerline Station "M" 72+71.66; thence
82.91 feet along the arc ofa 107.00foot radius curve to the left with a central angle of44°23'42"
(the long chord ofwhich bears S 83°48'02" E, 80.85 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N
74°00'07" E20.46 feet to the terminus ofsaid line at apoint being 25.26 feet ri^t ofEngineer's
centerline Station "M" 73+70.00.

EXCEPT therefromthat portion lying within McKenzieRiver Highway (OR126)and McVay
Highway (OR225).

Parcel 1 contains 233 square feet, or 0.01 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City ofSpringfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 39717, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE 1 OF2

Exhibit B, Page 41 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 45 of 61



EXfflBlT A

McKENZm RIVER HWY FUe No. 21A

October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033444 00900

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion of that tract of real property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to
Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation, recorded in Document No. 99001515 in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property includedin a strip ofland
variable in width, lying on the Southerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway/ McVay
Hi^way, which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range3 West ofthe Willamette Meridian; thenceS 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 = "M" 70+42.90; thencecontinuingS
77°28'39" E, 371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along the arc ofa 286.48 foot radius curve to the
ri^t with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 46°37'39 E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15°46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineers center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portionofsaid propertylying northerlyof the following described line:

Beginningat a point 66.27 feet right ofEngineer's center line Station"M" 73+10.00; thenceN
84°15'12" E, 37.93 feet to an angle point; thence N 76°20'17" E, 21.27 feet to an angle point;
thence S 77°28'40" E, 49.42 feet to the terminus ofsaid line at a point being 45.00 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station "M" 74+14.52.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126), McVay
Highway (OR225), and the above described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 1,147 square feet, or 0.03 acres, more or less.

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS ^

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED:

PAGE 2 OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 42 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 46 of 61



EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34. AND D.L.C. NO. 82

T.17S.. R.3W., W.M.
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

'M'Sta 72+71£6

45.94'Rt

PARCEL

'M'Sta 75+10.00+-

66.27'Rt

FB-020

17055444 TLIOOO
Doc No. 75-018289

^irst National Bank o

Oregon, trustee

\ PARCEL

FB-021A

17055444
TL900

Doc No.

99-001515
Six Sac

Self-Storage
Corporation

PARCEL 1
FEE
AREA: 255 S.F.±

(0.01 ac.)

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 1.147 S.F.±

(0.05 ac.)

'M'Sfa 75+70.00

25.26'Rf

"^'M'Sfa 74+14.52
45.00'Rf

FB-021C
17055444 TLllOO

Doc No. 99-015716
Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation

FB-021B
17055444 TL800

Doc No. 99-015716

Six Sac Se/f-Storage Corporation

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER, 2015

CH2MHILL

Exhibit B, Page 43 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 47 of 61



EXfflBIT A

McK£NZI£ RIVER HWY FUe No. 21B

October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033444 00800

PARCEL 1 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel ofland being a portion of that tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to
Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation, recorded in Document No. 99015716 in the Lane Coimty
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion of said property included in a strip of land 45.00
feet in width, lying on the Southerly side of the centerline ofMcKenzie Hi^way/ McVay
Highway between Station "M" 73+65.10 and "M" 74+31.69, which centerline is described as
follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West ofthe Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 = "M" 70+42.90; thence continuing S
77°28'39" E, 371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along the arc ofa 286.48 foot radius curve to the
right with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 46°37'39 E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15°46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineers center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Hi^way (OR126) and McVay
Highway (OR225).

Parcel 1 contains 356 square feet, or 0.01 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City of Springfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 39717, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE 1 OF 2

lip
Exhibit B, Page 44 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 48 of 61



EXHTBTT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FUe No. 21B

October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033444 00800

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to
Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation, recorded in Document No. 99015716 in the Lane Coimty
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip of land
variable in width, lying on the Southwesterlyside ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway/
McVay Highway, which centerline is described as follows;

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86®54'54"W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 = "M" 70+42.90; thence continuing S
77°28'39" E, 371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along the arc ofa 286.48 foot radius curve to the
right with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 46°37'39 E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15®46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineers center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

The widths of the strip of land above referred to are as follows:

MCVAY fflGHWAY

STATION WIDTH ON SOUTHWESTERLY SIDE OF CENTERLINE

From *M' 75+67.74 45.00 feet in a straight line to 85.96 feet.
To *M' 77+08.37

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying withinin McVay Highway (OR225).

Parcel 2 contains 2,108 square feet, or 0.05 acres, more or less.

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

^•9LJr:
OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS ^

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: Jo/ilZiiT

PAGE 2 OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 45 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 49 of 61



FB-020

17033444 Til000

Doc No. 73-018289
^irst National Bank o

Oregon, trustee

EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34, AND D.L.C. NO. 82

T.17S., R.3W., W.M.
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

PARCEL 1

'M'Sta 73+65.10 +

45.0aRf

FB-021A

17033444

TL900

Doc No.

99-001515
Six Sac

Self-Storage
Corporation

'M'Sta 74+31.69

45.00'Rt

'M'Sta 75+67.74

45.00'Rt

FB-021B

17033444 TL800

Doc No.99-015716
Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation

PARCEL 2

\\\\\

FB-021C

17033444 TLllOO
Doc No.99-015716

Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation
PARCEL 1
TEMPORARf CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 356 S.F.±

(0.01 ac.)

'M'Sta 77+08.37--^
85.96'Rt

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 2,108 S.F.±

(0.05 ac.)

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER. 2015

CH2MHILL

Exhibit B, Page 46 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 50 of 61



McKENZBE RIVER HWY

October 19,2015

EXHIBIT A

FaeNo.21C

Tax Map No. 17033444 01100

PARCEL 1 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularlydescribed in a deed to
Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation, recordedin DocumentNo. 99015716in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portionofsaidproperty includedin a strip of land
variable in width, lying on the Southwesterly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway/
McVay Highway, which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 = "M" 70+42.90; thence continuing S
77°28'39" E, 371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along the arc ofa 286.48 foot radius curve to the
right with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 46®37'39 E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15°46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineers center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

The widths ofthe strip of land above referred to are as follows:

MCVAY HIGHWAY

STATION

From *M'75+67.74

To *M' 77+08.37

From 'M' 77+08.37

To *M' 77+12.36

From 'M' 77+12.36

To *M' 77+24.10

WIDTH ON SOUTHWESTERLY SIDE OF CENTERLINE

45.00 feet in a straight line to 85.96 feet.

85.96 feet in a straight line to 63.24 feet.

63.24 feet in a straight line to 64.19 feet.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McVay Highway (OR225).

Parcel 1 contains 3,108 square feet, or 0.07 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City of Springfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 39717, Lane County Survey Records. A BFaTRTFnFn

PROFESSIONAL
LAND SURVEYOR

PAGE 1 OF I

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURIIMAN
V 58960LS y

RENEWAL: 1/01/17

SIGNED: jdllllL

nExhibit B, Page 47 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 51 of 61



FB-020
17033444 TLIOOO
Doc No. 73-018289
irst National Bank o

Oregon, trustee

EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34, AND D.L.C. NO. 82

T.17S.. R.3W.. W.M.
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

FB-021A

17033444
TL900

Doc No.

99-001515
Six Sac

Self-Storage
Corporation

FB-021C
17033444 Til100

Doc No. 99-015716
Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation

WSta 75+67.7

45.00'Rt

FB-02W
17033444 TL800

Doc No. 99-015716
Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation',

'M'Sta 77+08.37

85.96'Rt

'M'Sta 77+12.36

63.24'Rt

PARCEL

'M'Sta. T7+Z4:i0~^
64.19'Rt

PARCEL 1
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 3.108 S.F.±

(0.07 ac.)

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER. 2015

CH2MHILL

Exhibit B, Page 48 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 52 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZlE RIVER HWY File No. 22
March16,2016 TaxMap No. 17033444 00700

PARCEL 1-FEE

Aparcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying inthe Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17South, Range 3 Westof the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described ina deed to S.
Stephen Moe and Karen J. Moe recorded in Document No. 2006-090894 in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included inastrip ofland
variable inwidth, lying onthe Easterly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway/ McVay
Highway, which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from theNW comer of theDaniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3West ofthe Willamette Meridian; thence S77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 ="M" 70+42.90; thence continuing S
77°28'39" E, 371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along the arc ofa286.48 foot radius curve to the
right with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S46°37 39 E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15°46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineer's center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying westerly ofthe following described line:

Beginning at apoint 37.96 feet left ofEngineer's center line Station "M" 77+35.00; thence S
7°37'09" E, 28.84 feet to apoint ofcurvature; thence 54.39 feet along the arc ofa 382.00 foot
radius curve to theleftwitha central angle of 8°09'30" (the long chord of which bears S
11°41 '54" E, 54.35 feet) tothe terminus ofsaid line ata point being 30.00 feet left ofEngineer's
centerline Station "M" 78+17.76.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126) and McVay
Higjiway (OR225).

Parcel 1 contains 117 square feet, or 0.003 acres, more or less. •

The basis ofbearing isCity ofSpringfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 39717, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE! OF2

IfExhibit B, Page 49 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 53 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FOe No. 22
March 16,2016 Tax Map No. 17033444 00700

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion of thattract of real property lying in theDaniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon andbeing more particularly described in a deed to S.
Stephen Moe and Karen J. Moe recorded in Document No. 2006-090894 in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, said parcel being thatportion of said property included in a strip of land 55.00
feet in width, lying onthe Easterly sideof thecenterline of McKenzie Highway/ McVay
Hi^way from Engineer's centerline Station "M" 77+87.10 to Engineer's centerline Station "M"
78+53.41, which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay DonationLand ClaimNo. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of theWillamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 = "M" 70+42.90; thence continuing S
77°28'39" E,371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along thearcof a 286.48 foot radius curve to the
right with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S46°37'39 E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15°46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineer's center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McVay Highway (OR225) and theabove described
Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 1,645 square feet, or 0.04 acres,more or less.

PAGE 2 OF 2

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL
LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
V 58960LS ^

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED:

Exhibit B, Page 50 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 54 of 61



'M'Sta 78+17.76

30.00'Lf

PARCEL 1
FEE
AREA: 117 S.F.±

(0.003 00.)

EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34, AND D.L.C. NO. 82

T.17S., R.3W., W.M.
LANE COUNTY, OREGON

'M'Sta 77+55W y
3736'Lt

PARCEL i

'M'Sta 77+87.10

55.00'Lt

'M'Sta 78+53.41

55.00'Lt

FB-022
37033444 TL700

Doc No. 2006-090894
S.Stephen Moe and

Karen J.Moe

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 1.645 S.F.±

(0.04 ac.)

1":60'

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
MARCH. 2016

CH2IVIHILL

Exhibit B, Page 51 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 55 of 61



EXfflBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY File No. 20

October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033444 01000

PARCEL 1~ FEE

A parcel ofland being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to
First National Bank ofOregon, Trustee,recorded in DocumentNo. 73-18289 in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, saidparcel being that portion of said property includedin a strip ofland
variable in width, lyingon the Southerlyside ofthe centerlineof McKenzieHighway/McVay
Highway, which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer ofthe Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 = "M" 70+42.90; thence continuing S
77°28'39" E, 371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along the arc ofa 286.48 foot radius curve to the
right with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 46°37'39 E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15°46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineers center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying northerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 36.81 feet right of Engineer's center line Station "M" 71+83.69; thence S
77°40'05" E, 35.37 feet to a point ofcurvature; thence 53.27 feet along the arc of a 190.00 radius
curve to the right with a central angle of 16°03'53" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 69°38'08"
E, 53.10 feet) to a point ofreverse curvature; thence 82.91 feet along the arc of a 107.00 foot
radius curve to the left with a central angle of44°23'42" (the long chord ofwhich bears S
83''48*02" E, 80.85 feet) to the terminus ofsaid line at a point being 35.03 feet ri^t of
Engineer's centerline Station "M" 73+52.02.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126) and McVay
Highway (OR225).

Parcel 1 contains 1,411 square feet, or 0.03 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City of Springfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 39717, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE I OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 52 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 56 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZlE RIVER HWY File No. 20

October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033444 01000

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of land being a portion ofthat tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West of the
WillametteMeridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly describedin a deed to
First National Bank ofOregon, Trustee, recorded in Document No. 73-18289 in the Lane County
Book ofRecords, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip ofland
variable in width, lying on the Southerly side of the centerline ofMcKenzie Highway/ McVay
Hi^way, which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W 732.19
feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West ofthe Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E 1036.24 feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 = "M" 70+42.90; thence continuing S
77°28'39" E371.62 feet; thence on a286.48 foot radius curve to the rig^t (the long chord of
which bears S 46°37'39 E 293.81 feet) 308.50 feet; thence S 15°46'39" E 276.98 feet to
Engineers center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion ofsaid property lying northerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 88.54 feet right ofEngineer's center line Station "M" 72+20.00; thence S
79°46'08" E, 130.10 feet to the terminus of said line at a point being 83.33 feet right of
Engineer's centerline Station "M" 73+50.00.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126), McVay
Highway (OR225), and the above described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 4,256 square feet, or 0.10 acres, more or less.

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JAN. t4.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS ^

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: /t//l//r

PAGE 2 OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 53 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 57 of 61



EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34. AND D.L.C. NO. 82

T.17S.. R.3W.. W.M.
LANE COUNTY,OREGON

'M'Sta 7i+85£

ZBSVRt

'M'Sta 72+20,00
FB-019 8854'Rt ^

17033444 TL3100 +
Doc No, 2015-034082 2

FcaokJIa .6t(cLLLC

PARCEL 2 WSta 73+52,02

35,03'Rf

PARCEL 1
FEE
AREA: 1,411 S,F,±

(0,03 ac,}

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 4,256 S,F,±

(0,10 ac.)

FB-020
17033444 TLIOOO
Doc No, 73-018289

^irst National Bank o
Oregon, trustee

N

1":60'

WSta 73+50,00

83,33'Rf

FB-021A
17033444

TL900

Doc No,

99-001515
Six Sac

Self-Storage
Corporation

FB-021B
17033444 TL800

Doc No, 99-015716

Six Sac Self-Storage Corporation

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD. OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER. 2015

CH2MHILL

Exhibit B, Page 54 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 58 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY FUe No. 19

October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 17033444 03100

PARCEL 1-FEE

A parcel of land being a portion of that tract ofreal property lying in the Daniel McVay
Donation Land Claim No. 82 and in Section 34, Township 17 South, Range 3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, Lane County, Oregon and being more particularly described in a deed to
Franklin Blvd., LLC, recorded in Document No. 2015-034082 in the Lane County Book of
Records, said parcel being that portion ofsaid property included in a strip ofland variable in
width, lying on the Southerly side ofthe centerline ofMcKenzie Highway/ McVay Highway,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginning at Engineer's center line Station 229+81.03, said station being S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from the NW comer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82, Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the WillametteMeridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24feet to
Engineer's center line Station Equation PC 240+17.27 = "M" 70+42.90; thence continuing S
77°28'39" E, 371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along the arc ofa 286.48 foot radius curve to the
right with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 46®37'39E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15°46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineers center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

Said strip of land more particiilarly described as follows:

All that portion of said property lying northerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 67.21 feet right ofEngineer's center line Station 239+70.00; thence S
89°0r04" E, 111.09 feet to an angle point; thence S 83°46'32" E, 69.00 feet to a point of
curvature; thence 10.66 feet along the arc ofa 100.00 foot radius curve to the right with a central
angle of6°06'27" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 80°43'18" E, 10.65feet) to a point of
tangency; thence S 77®40'05" E, 35.37 feet to a point ofcurvature; thence 53.27 feet along the
arc ofa 190.00 foot radius curve to the right with a central angle of 16°03'53" (the long chord of
which bears S 69°38'08" E, 53.10 feet) to the terminus ofsaid line at a point being 43.94 feet
right ofEngineer's centerline Station "M" 72+71.66.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Hi^way (OR126) and McVay
Highway (OR225).

Parcel 1 contains 3,375 square feet, or 0.08 acres, more or less.

The basis ofbearing is City ofSpringfield Geodetic Control. Center line geometry is based on
County Survey C.S. 39717, Lane County Survey Records.

PAGE I OF 2

90
Exhibit B, Page 55 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 59 of 61



EXHIBIT A

McKENZIE RIVER HWY File No. 19
October 19,2015 Tax Map No. 1703344403100

PARCEL 2 - TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT

A parcel of landbeing a portion of thattract of realproperty lying in theDaniel McVay
Donation Land ClaimNo. 82 and in Section34, Township 17 South, Range3 West ofthe
Willamette Meridian, LaneCounty, Oregon andbeingmoreparticularly described in a deed to
Franklin Blvd., LLC,recorded in Document No. 2015-034082 in the Lane CountyBookof
Records, saidparcelbeingthatportionof saidproperty included in a stripof landvariable in
width, lying on the Southerly sideofthecenterline of McKenzie Highway/ McVay Highway,
which centerline is described as follows:

Beginningat Engineer's center line Station229+81.03, said stationbeing S 86°54'54" W, 732.19
feet from theNWcomer of the Daniel McVay Donation Land Claim No. 82,Township 17
South, Range 3 West of the Willamette Meridian; thence S 77°28'39" E, 1036.24 feet to
Engineer'scenterline Station Equation PC 240+17.27 = "M" 70+42.90; thencecontinuing S
77°28'39" E, 371.62 feet; thence 308.50 feet along the arc ofa 286.48 foot radius curve to the
ri^t with a central angle of61°42'00" (the long chord ofwhich bears S 46°37'39 E, 293.81
feet); thence S 15°46'39" E, 276.98 feet to Engineers center line Station "M" 80+00.00.

Said strip of land more particularly described as follows:

All that portion of said property lying northerly of the following described line:

Beginning at a point 82.52 feet right ofEngineer's center line Station 239+70.00; thence S
89°01'04" E, 106.04 feet to an angle point; thence S 77°18*40" E, 150.48 feet to the terminus of
said line at a point being 61.74 feet right ofEngineer's centerline Station "M" 72+50.00.

EXCEPT therefrom that portion lying within McKenzie River Highway (OR126), McVay
Hi^way (OR225), and the above described Parcel 1.

Parcel 2 contains 4,126 square feet, or 0.09 acres, more or less.

REGISTERED

PROFESSIONAL

LAND SURVEYOR

OREGON
JAN. 14.2003

JOSEPH W. HURLIMAN
58960LS >

RENEWAL: 7/01/17
SIGNED: JMlllir

PAGE 2 OF 2

Exhibit B, Page 56 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 60 of 61



EXHIBIT B
IN SECTION 34, AND D.L.C. NO. 82

T.17S.. R.3W.. W.M.
LANE COUNTY. OREGON

river
Righw

FB-018

17033443 TLIOO
Doc No. ZOl 1-037378

Sfa 239-^70.0

67.ZVm-\

T1-4197 Franklin Blvd. LLC 239+70.00
8232'Rt

17033443 TL300

1 :

/PARCEL

PARCEL 1
FEE
AREA: 3.375 S.F.±

(0.08 ac.)

PARCEL 2
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT
AREA: 4.126 S.F.±

(0.09 ac.) 1":60'

FB-019

17033444 TL3100
Doc No. 2015-034082

— mcmkiio_Blvd^LIX _

PARCEL 2

"^Sta 'M'72+50.00

Sta^1sFT2±I1.66

4334'Rt

61.74'Rt

FB-020

17033444 TLIOOO

Doc No. 73-018289

'^irst National Bank o

Oregon, trustee

FB-021A
17033444

TL900

Doc No.

99-001515
Six Sac

Self-Storage
Corporation

ACQUISITION MAP
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD, OREGON

OR 126B - MCVAY HIGHWAY
ODOT KEY NO. 18865

PAGE 1 OF 1
OCTOBER, 2015

CH2MHILL

Exhibit B, Page 57 of 57

Attachment 1, Page 61 of 61



Attachment 2, Page 1 of 1



Attachment 3, Page 1 of 6



Attachment 3, Page 2 of 6



Attachment 3, Page 3 of 6



Attachment 3, Page 4 of 6



Attachment 3, Page 5 of 6



Attachment 3, Page 6 of 6



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Matt Stouder/DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-736-1006 
 Estimated Time: 10 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Provide Financially 
Responsible and 
Innovative Government 
Services 

 
ITEM TITLE: RATIFICATION OF THE METROPOLITAN WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT 

COMMISSION (MWMC) FY 2016-17 REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
BUDGET AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP). 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Adopt a motion ratifying the FY 2016-17 Regional Wastewater Program Budget 
and Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

As provided for in the MWMC Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), the City of 
Springfield, the City of Eugene, and Lane County, as governing bodies, must ratify 
the annual MWMC’s Budget and CIP. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1. The Regional Wastewater Program Budget and Capital Improvements Program 
(CIP) for FY 2016-17, as approved by MWMC 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The FY 2016-17 (FY 16-17) Regional Wastewater (RWP) Budget and CIP document 
was approved by the MWMC on April 8, 2016. In preparing and reviewing the Budget 
and CIP, the MWMC convened three work sessions and a public hearing prior to taking 
action to adopt the FY 16-17 MWMC Budget. The FY 16-17 Budget funds all 
operations, administrative services, and capital projects planned for the Regional 
Wastewater Facilities. The approved operating budget is $17.7 million, which includes 
a total increase of 2.0% ($351,158) in FY 16-17, when compared to the prior year. 
 
The CIP outlines and describes the capital projects planned for the next five years. The 
FY 16-17 RWP Budget and CIP document reflects a continued focus on the completion 
of facilities upgrades, plant performance improvements, and operations and 
maintenance activities to provide wastewater treatment for a growing community 
through 2025 in a manner that protects the public’s health and safety, and the 
environment. The Commission took a corresponding action to adopt a 2.0% increase in 
regional wastewater user charges in order to fully fund the Budget and CIP. On May 2, 
2016 the City Council will hold a public hearing on the FY 16-17 regional rates within 
the City. Following the public hearing, Council is scheduled to adopt a resolution to set 
the FY 16-17 regional user fee rates within the City of Springfield. 
 
In accordance with the IGA, the MWMC contracts with the City of Eugene for 
operations and maintenance services, and with the City of Springfield for administrative 
services. The attached budget document provides regional program and budget 
summaries as well as detailed budgets for services provided by Eugene and Springfield. 
The budget document also provides information about how the RWP activities are 
driven by the MWMC established goals and performance measures. 
 
The FY 16-17 RWP Budget and CIP must be approved by the MWMC and ratified by 
Lane County, the cities of Eugene and Springfield, and then finally adopted by the 
MWMC, prior to the beginning of the next fiscal year (July 1, 2016). The Eugene City 
Council is scheduled to ratify the MWMC Budget and CIP on May 9, 2016, and the 
Board of Commissioners is scheduled to ratify the MWMC Budget and CIP on May 17, 
2016, with MWMC final budget adoption on June 10, 2016. 

 



Preliminary
REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM BUDGET

AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM

Fiscal Year 2016-17

kraa3075
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1

kraa3075
Typewritten Text

kraa3075
Typewritten Text



 
Preliminary 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
 

BUDGET 
and 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM 
Fiscal Year 2016-17 

 
 
 
The Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission adopted the Operating Budget and Capital 
Improvements Program (CIP) for FY 16-17 on April 8, 2016. The Budget and CIP are currently 
scheduled for consideration and ratification by the Springfield City Council on May 2, 2016, the 
Eugene City Council on May 9, 2016, and the Lane County Board of Commissioners on May 17, 
2016. The Commission is scheduled for final consideration and ratification of the Budget and CIP 
on June 10, 2016. 

 
COMMISSION MEMBERS: 

 
Joe Pishioneri, President (Springfield) 

Bill Inge, Vice President (Lane County) 
George Brown (Eugene) 

Doug Keeler  (Springfield) 
Hilary Loud, (Eugene) 
Walt Meyer (Eugene) 

Faye Stewart (Lane County) 
 
 

STAFF: 
 

Anette Spickard, MWMC Executive Officer/Springfield Development and Public Works Director 
 Matthew Stouder, MWMC General Manager/Springfield Environmental Services Manager 
 Michelle Cahill, Eugene Wastewater Division Director 
 Robert Duey, MWMC Finance Officer/Springfield Finance Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 

www.mwmcpartners.org 
  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

   
 

METROPOLITAN WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT COMMISSION 
 

Preliminary FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM 
for the 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Budget Message .....................................................................................................................   1 
Acronyms and Explanations .................................................................................................... 3 
Regional Wastewater Program Overview .................................................................... ..........  5 

Exhibit 1:  Interagency Coordination Structure ........................................................... ..  11 
 
BUDGET SUMMARY 
Regional Wastewater Program Budget and Program Summary ..........................................   12 

Exhibit 2:  Regional Operating Budget Summary ........................................................... 12 
Exhibit 3:  Line Item Summary by Program Area ........................................................... 14 
Exhibit 4:  Budget Summary and Comparison ................................................................ 15 

 
RESERVE FUNDS 
Regional Wastewater Program Reserve Funds ...................................................................... 19 

Exhibit 5:  Operating Reserves Line Item Budget ........................................................... 20 
 
OPERATING PROGRAMS 
Regional Wastewater Program Staffing ................................................................................. 23 

Exhibit 6:  Regional Wastewater Program Organizational Chart .................................... 23 
Exhibit 7:  Regional Wastewater Program Position Summary ........................................ 24 

Springfield Program and Budget Detail ................................................................................. 26 
Exhibit 8:  Springfield Administration Program Budget Summary................................. 29 
Exhibit 9:  Springfield Administration Line Item Summary ........................................... 30 

Eugene Program and Budget Detail ....................................................................................... 31 
Exhibit 10: Eugene Operations & Maintenance Program Budget Summary .................. 35 
Exhibit 11: Eugene Operations & Maintenance Line Item Summary ............................. 36 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAM 
Regional Wastewater Capital Improvements Program .......................................................... 37 

Exhibit 12: Capital Program Budget Summary ............................................................... 41 
Exhibit 13: Capital Program 5-Year Plan ........................................................................ 45 

 
CAPITAL PROJECT DETAIL 
Capital Program Project Detail Sheets ................................................................................... 46 
 



PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget Message 
 

 

 Page 1 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

BUDGET MESSAGE 
 
Members of the Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) 
MWMCs’ Customers and Partnering Agencies 
 
We are pleased to present the Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission’s (MWMC) 
budget for fiscal year 2016-17 (FY 16-17). This budget funds operations, administration, and 
capital projects planned for the Regional Wastewater Program (RWP). The MWMC 
administration and Capital Improvements Program (CIP) components of the budget are reflected 
in the City of Springfield’s RWP budget. The operations, maintenance, equipment replacement, 
and major rehabilitation components are reflected in the City of Eugene’s RWP budget. The 
Cities’ Industrial Pretreatment Programs, managed locally in compliance with the MWMC 
Model Ordinance, also are included in the RWP budget.  
 
The MWMC has been quietly providing high-quality wastewater services to the metropolitan 
area for more than 30 years. The combined Eugene-Springfield population is 220,840, with the 
MWMC providing wastewater services for approximately 77,200 residential and commercial 
service connections to the Regional Wastewater Facilities. The MWMC is committed to clean 
water, the community’s health, and the local environment. 
 

 
 
This budget reflects a continued focus on design and construction of capital improvements 
planned to ensure that operation of the Regional Wastewater Facilities meets environmental 
regulations, and that adequate capacity will be provided to meet the needs of a growing service 
area. The Capital budget for FY 16-17 is $36,941,600. Approximately $20 million of the total 
capital budget will not be spent in FY 16-17, but is included to enable MWMC to commit to 
contracts that will occur in FY 16-17 for projects that span multiple years.  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission Budget Message

The FY 16- 17 RWP Operating Budget for personnel services, materials and services and capital
outlay expense is $ 17, 700,630, reflecting a 2% increase when compared to the prior year adopted
budget. The FY 16- 17 budget includes Debt Service payments that total $5, 504,462 as scheduled
for repayment of$20. 8 million in Clean Water SRF loans, plus$ 33.25 million in revenue bonds
issued in 2016 to fund the Facilities Plan capital improvements. In FY 15- 16, the 2006 revenue
bonds were retired early, along with an advance refunding on the 2008 revenue bonds for interest
cost saving, resulting in the 2016 revenue bonds. As such, the table below reflects a lower
amount in beginning cash, reserves and debt service expenses in FY 16- 17.

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM

RESOURCE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

ADOPTED AMENDED ADOPTED

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET

2015- 16 2015- 16 2016- 17
RESOURCES

Beginning Cash 107, 167, 940      $ 110, 160, 579       $ 76, 342, 200
User Fees 30, 987,500 30,987,500 31, 327,500
Internal Transfers 16, 878,904 21, 428,904 13, 570, 191

Miscellaneous 1, 273, 800 1, 273, 800 1, 061, 110
System Development Charges 1, 100,000 1, 100, 000 1, 200, 000
Interest 434,300 434,300 403, 200

157,842, 444      $ 165, 385,083      $ 123, 904,201
EXPENDITURES

Reserves 92, 512, 921       $ 36, 935, 342 50, 187,318
Capital Projects 21, 938, 604 44, 322, 560 36, 941, 600
Internal Transfers 16, 878,904 21, 428,904 13, 570, 191
Operations 13, 516, 071 13, 636, 525 13, 899, 707

Debt Service 9, 163, 743 44, 808, 743 5, 504,462
Administration 3, 832, 201 3, 787,009 3, 800,923

157, 842, 444      $ 165, 385, 083      $ 123, 904, 201

For FY 16- 17 user fee revenues( including septage service and SDC compliance charges) are
projected at$ 31, 327,500. This level of revenue is based on a recommended 2% increase in
regional wastewater user fees in order to continue to meet the net revenue objectives.

In summary, the FY 16- 17 budget implements the Commission' s adopted Financial Plan
policies, funding operations and administration sufficiently to maintain existing levels of service
and to meet the environmental performance necessary for compliance with the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System( NPDES) permit issued to the MWMC and the two Cities.

Respectfully submitted,

g7tdaf

r•  v   ,/   
Ckth       -  .A---

Anette Spickard

MWMC Executive Officer

Page 2 FY 16- 17 BUDGET AND CIP



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Acronyms and Explanations 
 

 

 Page 3 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

ACRONYMS AND EXPLANATIONS 
 
AMCP – Asset Management Capital Program. The AMCP implements the projects and activities 
necessary to maintain functionality, lifespan, and effectiveness of the MWMC facility assets on an 
ongoing basis. The AMCP is administered by the City of Eugene for the MWMC.  
 
ARRA – American Reinvestment and Recovery Act. This funding was part of the federal 
government’s economic stimulus program and issued loans under favorable conditions to 
stimulate infrastructure and capital project investment.  
 
BMF – Biosolids Management Facility. The Biosolids Management Facility is an important part 
of processing wastewater where biosolids generated from the treatment of wastewater are turned 
into nutrient rich, beneficial organic materials.  
 
CIP – Capital Improvements Program. This program implements projects outlined in the 2004 
Facilities Plan and includes projects that improve performance, or expand treatment or hydraulic 
capacity of existing facilities.  
 
CMOM – Capacity Management and Maintenance Program. The CMOM program addresses wet 
weather issues such as inflow and infiltration with the goal to eliminate sanitary sewer overflows 
to the extent possible and safeguard the hydraulic capacity of the regional wastewater treatment 
facility.  
 
CWSRF  – Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan 
program is a federal program administered by the Oregon DEQ that provides low-cost loans for 
the planning, design and construction of various water pollution control activities. (DEQ)  
 
EMS – Environmental Management System. An EMS is a framework to determine the 
environmental impacts of an organization’s business practices and develop strategies to address 
those impacts.  
 
ESD – Environmental Services Division. The ESD is a division of the City of Springfield’s 
Development and Public Works Department that promotes and protects the community’s health, 
safety, and welfare by providing professional leadership in the protection of the local 
environment, responsive customer service, and effective administration for the Regional 
Wastewater Program.  
 
IGA – Intergovernmental Agreement. Pursuant to ORS 190.010, ORS 190.080, and ORS 
190.085, the IGA is an agreement between the cities of Eugene and Springfield and Lane County 
that created the MWMC as an entity with the authority to provide resources and support as 
defined in the IGA for the Regional Wastewater Program. 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Acronyms and Explanations 
 

 

 Page 4 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

MWMC – Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission. The MWMC is the Commission 
responsible for the oversight of the Regional Wastewater Program. In this role, the MWMC 
protects the health and safety of our local environment by providing high-quality management of 
wastewater conveyance and treatment to the Eugene-Springfield community. The Commission is 
responsible for the oversight of the Regional Wastewater Program. 
 
NPDES – National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit. The NPDES permit program 
is administered by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) in fulfillment of 
federal Clean Water Act requirements. The NPDES permit includes planning and technology 
requirements as well as numeric limits on effluent water quality. 
 
RWP – Regional Wastewater Program. Under the oversight of the MWMC, the purpose of the 
RWP is to protect public health and safety and the environment by providing high quality 
wastewater management services to the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. The MWMC and 
the regional partners are committed to providing these services in a manner that will achieve, 
sustain, and promote balance between community, environmental, and economic needs while 
meeting customer service expectations. 
 
SDC – System Development Charge. SDCs are charges imposed on development so that 
government may recover the capital needed to provide sufficient capacity in infrastructure 
systems to accommodate the development. 
 
SRF –Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan program 
is a federal program administered by the Oregon DEQ that provides low-cost loans for the 
planning, design and construction of various water pollution control activities. (DEQ)  
 
SSO –Sanitary Sewer Overflows. Discharges of raw sewage. 
 
TMDL – Total Maximum Daily Load. The federal Clean Water Act defines Total Maximum 
Daily Load as the maximum amount of any pollutant that can be safely assimilated by a waterway 
in one day without significant degradation of water quality.  
 
TSS – Total Suspended Solids. Organic and inorganic materials that are suspended in water.  
 
WPCF – Regional Water Pollution Control Facility. The WPCF is a state-of-the-art facility 
providing treatment of the wastewater coming from the Eugene/Springfield metropolitan area. 
The WPCF is located on River Avenue in Eugene. The treatment plant and 49 pump stations 
distributed across Eugene and Springfield operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year 
to collect and treat wastewater from homes, businesses and industries before returning the cleaned 
water, or effluent, to the Willamette River. Through advanced technology and processes, the 
facility cleans, on average, up to 30 million gallons of wastewater every day. 
 
WWFMP – Wet Weather Flow Management Plan. This plan evaluated and determined the most 
cost-effective combination of collection system and treatment facility upgrades needed to manage 
excessive wet weather wastewater flows in the Eugene/Springfield metropolitan area. 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 5 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
OVERVIEW 

The Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission 
The Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) was formed by Eugene, 
Springfield, and Lane County through an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) in 1977 to provide 
wastewater collection and treatment services for the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. The 
seven-member Commission is composed of members appointed by the City Councils of Eugene 
(3 representatives), Springfield (2 representatives) and the Lane County Board of Commissioners 
(2 representatives). Since its inception, the Commission, in accordance with the IGA, has been 
responsible for oversight of the Regional Wastewater Program (RWP) including: construction, 
maintenance, and operation of the regional sewerage facilities; adoption of financing plans; 
adoption of budgets, user fees and connection fees; adoption of minimum standards for industrial 
pretreatment and local sewage collection systems; and recommendations for the expansion of 
regional facilities to meet future community growth. Staffing and services have been provided in 
various ways over the 39 years of MWMC’s existence. Since 1983, the Commission has 
contracted with the Cities of Springfield and Eugene for all staffing and services necessary to 
maintain and support the RWP. Lane County’s partnership has involved participation on the 
Commission and support to the Lane County Metropolitan Wastewater Service District (CSD), 
which managed the proceeds and repayment of general obligation bonds issued to construct 
RWP facilities.  
 
Regional Wastewater Program Purpose and Key Outcomes 
The purpose of the RWP is to protect public health and safety and the environment by providing 
high quality wastewater management services to the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. The 
MWMC and the regional partners are committed to providing these services in a manner that 
will achieve, sustain, and promote balance between community, environmental, and economic 
needs while meeting customer service expectations. Since the mid-1990s, the Commission and 
RWP staff have worked together to identify key outcome areas within which to focus annual 
work plan and budget priorities. The FY 16-17 RWP work plans and budget reflect a focus on 
the following key outcomes or goals. In carrying out the daily activities of managing the regional 
wastewater system, we will strive to achieve and maintain: 
 

1. High environmental standards; 
2. Fiscal management that is effective and efficient; 
3. A successful intergovernmental partnership; 
4. Maximum reliability and useful life of regional assets and infrastructure;  
5. Public awareness and understanding of MWMC, the regional wastewater system, and 

MWMC’s objectives of maintaining water quality and a sustainable environment. 
 
The Commission believes that these outcomes, if achieved in the long term, will demonstrate 
success of the RWP in carrying out its purpose. In order to determine whether we are successful, 
indicators of performance and targets have been identified for each key outcome. Tracking 
performance relative to identified targets over time assists in managing the RWP to achieve 
desired results. The following indicators and performance targets provide an important 
framework for the development of the FY 16-17 RWP Operating Budget, Capital Improvements 
Program and associated work plans. 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 6 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Outcome 1:  Achieve and maintain high environmental standards. 

Indicators:  Performance:  
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 

 Amount of wastewater treated to 
water quality standards  

100%; 11.6   
billion gallons 

100%; 12   
billion gallons 

100%; 14.3    
billion gallons 

 Compliance with environmental 
performance requirements of all 
permits 

In compliance In compliance In compliance 

 MWMC target for high quality 
biosolids 

<50% EPA 
40CFR Part 

503.13 -Table 3 
Pollutant 

Concentrations: 
Policy Met 

<50% EPA 
40CFR Part 

503.13 -Table 3 
Pollutant 

Concentrations: 
Policy Met 

<50% EPA 
40CFR Part 

503.13  -Table 3 
Pollutant 

Concentrations: 
Policy Met 

 Volume of reclaimed water 
beneficially reused   

88 million 
gallons 

85 million 
gallons 

80 million  
gallons 

 Performance targets under the 
Environmental Management System 
are achieved 

100% of EMS 
targets met or on 

schedule 

100% of EMS 
targets met or on 

schedule 

100% of  EMS 
targets met or on 

schedule 
 
 
Outcome 2:  Achieve and maintain fiscal management that is effective and efficient. 

Indicators: Performance: 
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 

 Annual budget and rates meet 
MWMC Financial Plan policies 

Policies Met Policies Met Policies Met 

 Annual audited financial statements Clean Audit Clean Audit Clean Audit 

 Uninsured bond rating AA AA A 

 Reserves funded at target levels Yes Yes Yes 

 Net revenue to debt service coverage 
ratio 

2.33 >1.25 >1.25 

  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 7 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Outcome 3: Achieve and maintain a successful intergovernmental partnership. 

Indicators: Performance: 
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 
 

 Industrial Pretreatment Program 
implementation in compliance 
with state/federal requirements; 
audit findings addressed 
 

 
In compliance 

 
In compliance 

I 
n compliance 

 Capacity Management 
Operations and Maintenance 
(CMOM) Program development 

Adopted   
Regional CMOM 

Program Plan 

Implemented 
Regional CMOM 

Program Plan 

Implementation 
of Regional 

CMOM Program 
annual reporting 

 MWMC Facilities Plan projects 
consistent with CIP budget and 
schedule 

100% of initiated 
projects within 

budget and 50%  
(3 of 6 projects)  

on schedule 

100% of initiated 
projects within 

budget and 86%  
(6 of 7 projects)  

on schedule 

100% of initiated 
projects within 

budget and 50%  
on schedule 

 
 
 
Outcome 4:  Maximize reliability and useful life of regional assets and infrastructure. 

Indicators: Performance: 
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 

 Preventive maintenance completed 
on time (best practices benchmark    
is 90%) 

97% 95% 90% 

 Preventative maintenance to 
corrective maintenance ratio 
(benchmark 4:1-6:1) 

5.2:1 5:1 5:1 

 Emergency maintenance required 
(best practices benchmark is <2%    
of labor hours) 

0.2% 0.3% <2% 

 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 8 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Outcome 5:  Achieve and maintain public awareness and understanding of MWMC, the 
regional wastewater system, and MWMC’s objectives of maintaining water quality and a 
sustainable environment. 

Indicators: Performance: 
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 

 Create and distribute 
e-newsletters 

2 Newsletters 4 Newsletters Increase distribution 
by 15% and readership 

by 10% 

 Pollution prevention 
campaigns 

2 Campaigns 4 Campaigns 2 campaigns; reaching  
20% of residents in 

service area 

 Provide tours of the 
Water Pollution 
Control Facility 

20 Tours/about    
700 people 

 

27 Tours/more than 
700 people 

 

Provide tours for more 
than 750 people 

 

 MWMC website 
traffic 

Maintained visitor 
levels 

Maintain visitor  
levels 

Increase unique 
visitors by 15% 

 Community survey Completed survey 
and presented results 

Results used to 
develop 

Communications Plan 

Annual Review 

 Communications Plan -- Update completed Annual Review 

 Develop video series Designed and began 
production 

Final production 
completed and public 

release 

--- 

 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 9 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Roles and Responsibilities 
In order to effectively oversee and manage the RWP, the partner agencies provide all staffing 
and services to the MWMC. The following sections describe the roles and responsibilities of 
each of the partner agencies, and how intergovernmental coordination occurs on behalf of the 
Commission.  

City of Eugene 
The City of Eugene supports the RWP through representation on the MWMC, provision of 
operation and maintenance services, and active participation on interagency project teams and 
committees. Three of the seven MWMC members represent Eugene – two citizens and one City 
Councilor. Pursuant to the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), the Eugene Wastewater 
Division operates and maintains the Regional Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF), the 
Biosolids Management Facility (BMF) and associated residuals and reclaimed water activities, 
along with regional wastewater pumping stations and transmission sewers. In support of the 
RWP, the Division also provides technical services for wastewater treatment; management of 
equipment replacement and infrastructure rehabilitation; biosolids treatment and recycling; 
industrial source control (in conjunction with Springfield staff); and regional laboratory services 
for wastewater and water quality analyses. These services are provided under contract with the 
MWMC through the regional funding of 77.40 full-time equivalent (FTE) employees. 

City of Springfield 
The City of Springfield supports the RWP through representation on the MWMC, provision of 
MWMC administration services, and active coordination of and participation on interagency 
project teams and committees. Two MWMC members represent Springfield – one citizen and 
one City Councilor. Pursuant to the IGA, the Springfield Development and Public Works 
Director, and the Environmental Services Manager serve as the MWMC Executive Officer and 
General Manager, respectively. The Environmental Services Division and Finance Department 
staff provide ongoing staff support to the Commission and administration of the RWP in the 
following areas: legal and risk management services; financial management and accounting; 
coordination and management of public policy; regulatory and permit compliance issues; 
coordination between the Commission and the governing bodies; long-range capital project 
planning, design, and construction management; coordination of public information, education, 
and citizen involvement programs; and coordination and development of regional budgets, rate 
proposals, and revenue projections. Springfield staff also provides local implementation of the 
Industrial Pretreatment Program, as well as billing coordination and customer service. These 
services are provided under contract with the MWMC through the regional funding of 14.58 FTE 
of Development and Public Works Department staff and 0.88 FTE of Finance Department staff, 
for a total 15.46 FTE as reflected in the FY 16-17 Budget. 

Lane County 
The Board of County Commissioners support the RWP through representation on the MWMC, 
including two MWMC members that represent Lane County – one citizen and one County 
Commissioner. Lane County’s partnership initailly included providing support to manage the 
proceeds and repayment of the RWP general obligation bonds to finance the local share of the 
RWP facilities construction. These bonds were paid in full in 2002. The County, while not 
presently providing sewerage, has the authority under its charter to do so. The Urban Growth 
Boundary includes the two Cities (urban lands) and certain unincorporated areas surrounding the 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 10 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Cities which lies entirely within the County. Federal funding policy requires sewage treatment 
and disposal within the Urban Growth Boundary to be provided on a unified, metropolitan basis.  

Interagency Coordination 
The effectiveness of the MWMC and the RWP depends on extensive coordination, especially 
between Springfield and Eugene staff, who provide ongoing program support. This coordination 
occurs in several ways. The Springfield ESD/MWMC General Manager and the Eugene 
Wastewater Division Director coordinate regularly to ensure adequate communication and 
consistent implementation of policies and practices as appropriate. The Eugene and Springfield 
Industrial Pretreatment Program supervisors and staff meet regularly to ensure consistent 
implementation of the Model Industrial Pretreatment Ordinance. Additionally, interagency 
project teams provide input on and coordination of ongoing MWMC administration issues and 
ad hoc project needs.  
 
Exhibit 1 on the following page reflects the interagency coordination structure supporting the 
RWP. Special project teams are typically formed to manage large projects such as design and 
construction of new facilities. These interagency staff teams are formulated to provide 
appropriate expertise, operational knowledge, project management, and intergovernmental 
representation. 

Relationship to Eugene and Springfield Local Sewer Programs 
The RWP addresses only part of the overall wastewater collection and treatment facilities that 
serve the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. The Cities of Eugene and Springfield both 
maintain sewer programs that provide for construction and maintenance of local collection 
systems and pump stations, which discharge to the regional system. Sewer user fees collected by 
the two Cities include both local and RWP rate components.  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 11 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

  EXHIBIT 1  

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL LANE COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL

METROPOLITAN WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT COMMISSION

EUGENE
WASTEWATER DIVISION

- Regional Facility Operation and Maintenance
- Major Rehab and Equipment Replacement
- Technical Services
- Eugene Pretreatment Program
- Pump Station and Interceptor Operations and                          

              Maintenance

                  PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION
- Billing and Customer Service

MAINTENANCE DIVISION
- Regional Sewer Line Support

SPRINGFIELD
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION

- Planning
- Capital Construction
- Rates, Revenues
- Permit Coordination
- Interagency Coordination
- Public Information/Education
- Springfield Pretreatment Program
- Legal and Risk Services
- Billing and Customer Service

                          FINANCE DEPARTMENT
- Accounting and Financial Reporting     

INTERAGENCY COORDINATION AND PROJECT TEAMS

- Administrative Policy Decisions and Coordination
- Operational Policy Decisions and Coordination
- Capital Project Planning and Coordination
- Design Standards Development
- Capital Construction Guidance

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM
INTERAGENCY COORDINATION STRUCTURE

Operation & Maintenance Contract Administration Contract

   KEY OUTCOMES ACHIEVED

  
 
 
 

 

 



BUDGET SUMMARY 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 12 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
FY 16-17 BUDGET 

 
The MWMC’s RWP Operating Budget provides the Commission and governing bodies with an 
integrated view of the RWP elements. Exhibit 2 provides a summary of the overall Operating 
Budget. Separate Springfield and Eugene agency budgets and staffing also are presented within 
this budget document. Major program areas supported by Springfield and Eugene are described 
in the pages that follow and are summarized in Exhibit 3 on page 14. Finally, Exhibit 4 on page 
15 combines revenues, expenditures, and reserves to illustrate how funding for all aspects of the 
RWP is provided. It should also be noted that the “Amended Budget FY 15-16” column in all 
budget tables represents the updated FY 15-16 RWP budget as of February 23, 2016, which 
reconciled actual beginning balances at July 1, 2015, and approved budget transfers and 
supplemental requests. 
 

 
 
 
Notes:  
 

1. The Change column and Percent Change column compare the adopted FY 16-17 Budget with the 
originally Adopted FY 15-16 Budget column. 

2. Personnel Services, Materials and Services, and Capital Outlay budget amounts represent 
combined Springfield and Eugene Operating Budgets that support the RWP. 

3. Capital Outlay does not include CIP, Equipment Replacement, Major Capital Outlay, or Major 
Rehabilitation, which are capital programs. 

ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE (1)

FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)
Full-Time Equivalent Staffing Level 93.29 93.29 92.86 (0.43) -0.5%
Personnel Services  (2) $10,102,922 $10,072,730 $10,303,071 $200,149 2.0%
Materials & Services  (2) 7,201,550 7,306,803 7,234,459 32,909 0.5%
Capital Outlay  (2, 3) 45,000 45,000 163,100 118,100 262.4%
Equip Replacement Contribution  (4) 650,000 650,000 250,000 (400,000) -61.5%
Capital Contribution  (5) 8,500,000 11,885,000 11,300,000 2,800,000 32.9%
Debt Service Contribution (6) 7,163,743 7,878,743 5,504,462 (1,659,281) -23.2%
Bond Sale Costs 0 466,000 0 0
Working Capital Reserve (7) 900,000 900,000 900,000 0 0.0%
Rate Stability Reserve (8) 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 0 0.0%
Insurance Reserve  (9) 500,000 515,000 515,000 15,000 3.0%
Operating Reserve  (10) 4,823,396 4,585,929 3,798,506 (1,024,890) -21.2%
Rate Stabilization Reserve (11) 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 0 0.0%
SRF Loan Reserve (12) 670,908 670,908 670,908 0 0.0%
Revenue Bond Reserve (13) 4,100,000 0 0 (4,100,000) 0.0%
Budget Summary $48,657,519 $48,976,113 $44,639,506 ($4,018,013) -8.3%

EXHIBIT 2

REGIONAL OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY:
INCLUDING RESERVE CONTRIBUTIONS



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 13 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

4. The Equipment Replacement Contribution is a budgeted transfer of operating revenues to 
“sinking funds” (reserves) for scheduled future replacement of major equipment, vehicles, and 
computers. See table on page 21 for year-end balance. 

5. The Capital Reserve Contribution is a budgeted transfer of operating revenues to “sinking funds” 
(reserves). Capital is passed through the Springfield Administration Budget. See table on page 22 
for year-end balance. 

6. The Debt Service line item is the sum of annual interest and principal payments on the Revenue 
Bonds and Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF)  loans made from the Operating Budget 
(derived from user rates). The total amount of Debt Service budgeted in FY 16-17 is $5,504,462 
the balance of which is budgeted from SDCs. 

7. The Working Capital Reserve acts as a revolving account which is drawn down and replenished 
on a monthly basis to fund Eugene’s and Springfield’s cash flow needs. 

8. The Rate Stability Reserve is used to set aside revenues available at year-end after the budgeted 
Operating Reserve target is met. Internal policy has established a level of $2 million for the Rate 
Stability Reserve. See Exhibit 5 on page 20 for year-end balance. 

9. The Insurance Reserve was established to set aside funds equivalent to the insurance deductible 
amount for property and liability insurance coverage, for losses per occurrence. 

10. The Operating Reserve is used to account for the accumulated operating revenues net of 
operations expenditures. The Commission’s adopted a policy provides minimum guidelines to 
establish the Operating Reserve balance at approximately 10% of the adopted Operating Budget. 
The Operating Reserve provides for contingency funds in the event that unanticipated expenses or 
revenue shortfalls occur during the budget year. 

11. The Rate Stabilization Reserve was established at $2 million as a result of the 2006 MWMC 
Revenue Bond Declaration and Covenants. It holds funds that are available if needed, to ensure 
Debt Service payments can be made. 

12. The Clean Water SRF loan reserve is budgeted as required per loan agreements. 

13. The Revenue Bond Reserve was created to provide assurances to the bond holders that adequate 
revenue coverage would be provided for future debt service obligations. Prior to FY 16-17, and to 
meet reserve requirements of the 2006 bond issuance the Bond Reserve was budgetd at $4.1 
million in the operating fund (as it was funded with user fees) and the Bond Reserve from the 
2008 issuance was held in the capital funds budget at $4.0 million. Beginning in FY 16-17, the 
revenue bond reserve is no longer a requirement due to the restructuring of the revenue bonds and 
improved financial position. 

  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 14 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

ACTUAL
ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE

SPRINGFIELD FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)
MWMC ADMINISTRATION
Personnel Services $1,073,318 $1,319,068 $1,299,784 $1,292,903 ($26,165) -2.0%
Materials & Services 1,703,218 1,926,147 1,910,947 1,917,781 (8,366) -0.4%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $2,776,536 $3,245,215 $3,210,731 $3,210,684 ($34,531) -1.1%
INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT
Personnel Services $300,986 $340,867 $335,289 $331,231 ($9,636) -2.8%
Materials & Services 130,694 117,252 117,252 123,128 5,876 5.0%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $431,680 $458,119 $452,541 $454,359 ($3,760) -0.8%
ACCOUNTING
Personnel Services $92,263 $95,196 $89,866 $100,698 $5,502 5.8%
Materials & Services 22,937 34,871 34,871 35,182 311 0.9%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $115,200 $130,067 $124,737 $135,880 $5,813 4.5%
TOTAL SPRINGFIELD
Personnel Services $1,466,567 $1,755,131 $1,724,939 $1,724,832 ($30,299) -1.7%
Materials & Services 1,856,849 2,078,270 2,063,070 2,076,091 (2,179) -0.1%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $3,323,416 $3,833,401 $3,788,009 $3,800,923 ($32,478) -0.8%
EUGENE
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
Personnel Services $1,506,912 $1,799,936 $1,799,936 $1,827,105 $27,169 1.5%
Materials & Services 561,943 640,252 662,717 625,521 (14,732) -2.3%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $2,068,855 $2,440,188 $2,462,653 $2,452,626 $12,437 0.5%
BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT
Personnel Services $1,125,091 $1,265,210 $1,265,210 $1,276,526 $11,316 0.9%
Materials & Services 782,347 990,888 1,016,060 1,018,329 27,442 2.8%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 118,000 118,000        NA

TOTAL $1,907,438 $2,256,098 $2,281,270 $2,412,855 $156,758 6.9%
INDUSTRIAL SOURCE CONTROL
Personnel Services $531,116 $554,628 $554,628 $572,935 $18,307 3.3%
Materials & Services 114,118 132,957 132,440 114,146 (18,811) -14.1%
Capital Outlay 20,137 45,000 45,000 0 (45,000)        NA

TOTAL $665,371 $732,585 $732,068 $687,081 ($45,504) -6.2%
TREATMENT PLANT
Personnel Services $4,118,910 $4,360,274 $4,360,274 $4,527,886 $167,612 3.8%
Materials & Services 2,378,481 2,993,678 3,035,914 3,039,851 46,173 1.5%
Capital Outlay 6,728 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $6,504,120 $7,353,952 $7,396,188 $7,567,737 $213,785 2.9%
REGIONAL PUMP STATIONS
Personnel Services $114,018 $191,450 $191,450 $195,102 $3,652 1.9%
Materials & Services 287,361 307,501 338,765 303,748 (3,753) -1.2%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 45,100 45,100        NA

TOTAL $401,379 $498,951 $530,215 $543,950 $44,999 9.0%
BENEFICIAL REUSE SITE
Personnel Services $126,361 $176,293 $176,293 $178,685 $2,392 1.4%
Materials & Services 48,972 58,004 57,838 56,774 (1,230) -2.1%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $175,333 $234,297 $234,131 $235,459 $1,162 0.5%
TOTAL EUGENE
Personnel Services $7,522,408 $8,347,791 $8,347,791 $8,578,239 $230,448 2.8%
Materials & Services 4,173,222 5,123,280 5,243,734 5,158,368 35,088 0.7%
Capital Outlay 26,865 45,000 45,000 163,100 118,100 262.4%

TOTAL $11,722,495 $13,516,071 $13,636,525 $13,899,707 $383,636 2.8%
TOTAL REGIONAL BUDGET $17,349,472 $17,700,630 $351,158 2.0%

EXHIBIT 3

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM OPERATING BUDGET
LINE ITEM SUMMARY BY PROGRAM AREA



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 15 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 
 
Note:  * The Change (Increase/Decrease) column compares the adopted FY 16-17 budget to the originally adopted      

FY 15-16 budget column. 

ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE *

OPERATING BUDGET FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INC(DECR)
Administration $3,833,401 $3,788,009 $3,800,923 ($32,478)
Operations 13,516,071 13,636,525 13,899,707 383,636
Capital Contribution & transfers 8,500,000 11,885,000 11,300,000 2,800,000
Equip Repl - Contribution 650,000 650,000 250,000 (400,000)
Operating & Revenue Bond Reserves 14,994,304 10,671,837 10,424,414 (4,569,890)
Debt Service 7,163,743 7,878,743 5,504,462 (1,659,281)
Total Operating Budget $48,657,519 $48,510,114 $45,179,506 ($3,478,013)
Funding:
Beginning Balance $16,289,243 $16,158,038 $10,684,205 ($5,605,038)
User Fees 30,985,000 30,985,000 31,325,000 340,000
Other 1,383,276 1,383,076 3,170,301 1,787,025
Total Operating Budget Funding $48,657,519 $48,526,114 $45,179,506 ($3,478,013)

CAPITAL PROGRAM BUDGET
Poplar Harvest Mgmt Services $1,265,000 $1,334,535 $772,000 ($493,000)
Facility Plan Engineering Services 70,000 97,547 99,600 29,600
Capacity Mgmt., Operations, and Maint. 16,833 94,454 30,000 13,167
Influent PS/Willakenzie PS/Headworks 145,140 285,186 0    NA
Digestion Capacity Increase 8,645,000 16,157,068 14,720,000 6,075,000
WPCF Lagoon Remove/Decommission 4,938,231 4,869,681 390,000 (4,548,231)
Sodium Hypochlorite Conversion 1,039,800 1,039,800 0    NA
Operations Building Improvements 950,000 14,719,167 13,970,000 13,020,000
Thermal Load Pre-Implementation 210,000 246,092 244,000 34,000
Thermal Load Implementation 1 794,000 730,884 131,000 (663,000)
Biosolids Force Main Rehab 0 322,704 0            NA
Tertiary Filtration 1 0 0 0            NA
Primary Sludge Thickening 0 0 0            NA
Asset Management:
Equipment Replacement Purchases 593,300 755,300 381,000 (212,300)
Major Rehab 371,300 570,142 534,000 162,700
Major Capital Outlay 2,900,000 3,100,000 5,670,000 2,770,000
Total Capital Projects $21,938,604 $44,322,560 $36,941,600 $15,002,996
Funding:
Equipment Replacement $593,300 $755,300 $381,000 ($212,300)
Capital Bond Fund 10,937,849 13,292,107 10,576,394 (361,455)
Capital Reserve 10,407,455 30,275,153 25,984,206 15,576,751
Total Capital Projects Funding $21,938,604 $44,322,560 $36,941,600 $15,002,996

EXHIBIT 4

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM
BUDGET SUMMARY AND COMPARISON



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 16 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

OPERATING BUDGET AND RATE HISTORY 
 

The graphs on pages 17 and 18 show the regional residential wastewater service costs over a 5-
year period, and a 5-year Regional Operating Budget Comparison. Because the Equipment 
Replacement, Major Infrastructure Rehabilitation and Major Capital Outlay programs are 
managed in the Eugene Operating Budget, based on the size, type and budget amount of the 
project these programs are incorporated into either the 5-year Regional Operating Budget 
Comparison graph or the 5-Year Capital Programs graph on page 18. The Regional Wastewater 
Capital Improvement Programs graph on page 18 shows the expenditures over the recent five 
years in the MWMC’s Capital Program and including Asset Management projects. A list of 
capital projects is located in Exhibit 13 on page 45.  
 
As shown on the Regional Residential Sanitary Sewer Rate graph on page 17, regional sewer 
user charges have incrementally increased to meet the revenue requirements necessary to fund 
facility improvements as indentified in the 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan. This Plan demonstrated 
the need for a significant capital investment in new and expanded facilities to meet 
environmental performance requirements and capacity to serve the community through 2025. 
Although a portion of these capital improvements can be funded through system development 
charges (SDCs), much of the funding for approximately $196 million (in 2006 dollars) in capital 
improvements over the 20-year period will come from user charges. Since 2004, this has become 
the major driver of the MWMC’s need to increase sewer user rates on an annual basis. 
 
In FY 08-09, there was an 11% user rate increase over FY 07-08 rates applied uniformly across 
all user classes. This rate increase provided adequate revenue to meet current bond covenants 
and meet requirements to issue $50.7 million in bonds in FY 08-09. Additionally, in October of 
2008, the Commission adopted an interim user rate increase of 7% due to the closure of Hynix 
Semiconductor. This increase was necessary to issue new revenue bonds and maintain bond 
covenants for existing bonds. The typical residential monthly wastewater bill increased an 
additional $1.10 per month and went into effect on December 1, 2008. 
 
In FY 09-10, there was an 18% user rate increase over FY 08-09 rates applied uniformly across 
all user classes. This rate provided for Operations, Administration, Capital programs, reserves 
and debt service to be funded at sufficient levels to meet FY 09-10 requirements.  
 
In FY10-11 user rates increased 5% over the prior year rates, and in FY 11-12 and FY 12-13 user 
rates increased 4% each year, over the prior year rates to provide for Operations, Administration, 
Capital programs, reserves, debt service, and debt coverage requirements. 
  
In FY 13-14 user rates increased 3% over the prior year rates, in FY14-15 user rates increased by 
3.5% and in FY 15-16 user rates increased by 2% over the prior year rates to provide for 
Operations, Administration, Capital programs, reserves, debt service, and debt coverage 
requirements. 
 
The FY 16-17 Budget is based on a 2% user rate increase over the FY 15-16 rates. This increase 
will provide for Operations, Administration, Capital programs, reserves and debt service, 
continuing to meet capital and operating requirements and supporting the Commission’s 
Financial Plan policies, as well as financially positioning for future investments in capital assets. 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 17 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

The chart below displays the regional component of a residential monthly bill when applying the 
base and flow rates to 5,000 gallons of wastewater treated, which includes a $0.49 increase 
effective July 1, 2016.  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 18 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

The graph below displays the Regional Operating Budget amounts for the recent 5-year period.  
 

 
 
 

The graph below displays the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Program Budget 
amounts for the recent 5-year period.  

 

 
 



RESERVE FUNDS 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Reserves 
 

 

 Page 19 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
RESERVES 

 
The RWP maintains reserve funds for the dedicated purpose to sustain stable rates while fully 
funding operating and capital needs. Commission policies and guidance, which direct the amount 
of reserves appropriated on an annual basis, are found in the 2005 MWMC Financial Plan. 
Further details on the FY 16-17 reserves are provided below. 

 
OPERATING RESERVES 

The MWMC Operating Budget includes seven separate reserves: the Working Capital Reserve, 
Rate Stability Reserve, Rate Stabilization Reserve, Revenue Bond Reserve, State Revolving 
Fund (SRF) Reserve, Insurance Reserve and the Operating Reserve. Revenues are appropriated 
across the reserves in accordance with Commission policy and expenditure needs. Each reserve 
is explained in detail below.  

 
WORKING CAPITAL RESERVE 

The Working Capital Reserve acts as a revolving account that is drawn down and replenished on 
a monthly basis to provide funds for payment of Springfield Administration and Eugene 
Operations costs prior to the receipt of user fees from the Springfield Utility Board and Eugene 
Water and Electric Board. The Working Capital Reserve is set at $900,000 for FY 16-17, 
$200,000 of which is dedicated to Administration and $700,000 is dedicated to Operations. 

 
RATE STABILITY RESERVE 

The Rate Stability Reserve was established to implement the Commission’s objective of 
maintaining stable rates. It is intended to hold revenues in excess of the current year’s operating 
and capital requirements for use in future years, in order to avoid “rate spikes.” The amount 
budgeted on an annual basis has been set at $2 million, with any additional net revenues being 
transferred to the capital reserve for future projects.  

 
RATE STABILIZATION RESERVE 

The Rate Stabilization Reserve contains funds to be used at any point in the future when net 
revenues are insufficient to meet the bond covenant coverage requirement. The Commission 
shall maintain the Rate Stabilization account as long as bonds are outstanding. In FY 16-17 no 
additional contribution to this reserve is budgeted and the balance at June 30, 2017, will remain 
at $2 million. 

 
REVENUE BOND RESERVE 

The Bond Reserve was created to provide assurances to the bond holders that adequate revenue 
coverage would be provided for future debt service payments associated with the 2006 and 2008 
bond issuances. Prior to FY 16-17, and to meet reserve requirements of the 2006 bond issuance 
the Bond Reserve was budgeted at $4.1 million in the operating fund (as it was funded with user 
fees) and the Bond Reserve from the 2008 issuance was held in the capital funds budgeted at 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Reserves 
 

 

 Page 20 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

$4.0 million. Beginning in FY 16-17, the revenue bond reserve is no longer a requirement due to 
the restructuring of the revenue bonds and improved financial position.   

 
CLEAN WATER STATE REVOVLING FUND (SRF) RESERVE 
 

The Clean Water SRF Reserve was established to meet revenue coverage requirements for SRF 
loans. The SRF Reserve is set at $670,908 for FY 16-17. 

 
INSURANCE RESERVE 
 

The Insurance Reserve was established to set aside funds equivalent to the insurance deductible 
amount for property and liability insurance coverage, for losses per occurrence. The Insurance 
Reserve is set at $515,000 for FY 16-17. 

 
OPERATING RESERVE 
 

The Operating Reserve is used to account for accumulated operating revenues net of operating 
expenditures (including other reserves). The Commission’s adopted policy provides minimum 
guidelines to establish the Operating Reserve at approximately 10% of the adopted operating 
budget. For FY 16-17, the Operating Reserve is budgeted at $4,338,506, which includes the 10% 
of total Personnel Services, Materials and Services, and Capital Outlay in accordance with 
Commission policy.  
 

EXHIBIT 5 

 

OPERATING RESERVES

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $16,289,243 $16,158,038 $10,684,205
 User Fee Revenue 30,800,000 30,800,000 31,140,000
 Septage Revenue 185,000 185,000 185,000
 Other Revenue 1,273,800 1,273,800 1,061,110
 Interest 85,000 85,000 85,000
 Transfer from Improvement SDCs 0 0 2,000,000
 Transfer from Reimbursement SDCs 19,276 19,276 20,191
Transfer from Bond Capital Fund 0 450,000 0
 Personnel Services (10,102,922) (10,072,730) (10,303,071)
 Materials & Services (7,196,350) (7,301,804) (7,230,459)
 Capital Outlay (45,000) (45,000) (163,100)
 Interfund Transfers (9,150,000) (12,535,000) (11,550,000)
 Transfer to Bond Debt Service Fund (5,709,628)        (6,424,628) 0
 Debt Service - SRF Loan (1,454,115) (1,454,115) (1,486,462)
Bond Sale Costs 0 (466,000) 0
 Debt Service - 2016 Revenue Bond 0 0 (4,018,000)
 Working Capital (900,000) (900,000) (900,000)
 Insurance Reserve (500,000) (515,000) (515,000)
 SRF Loan Reserve (670,908) (670,908) (670,908)
 Rate Stability Reserve (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (2,000,000)
 Rate Stabilization Reserve (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (2,000,000)
 Bond Reserve - Revenue 2006 (4,100,000) 0 0
Operating Reserve $4,823,396 $4,585,929 $4,338,506



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Reserves 
 

 

 Page 21 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

CAPITAL RESERVES 
 
The MWMC Capital Budget includes five reserves: the Equipment Replacement Reserve, SDC 
Reimbursement Reserves, SDC Improvement Reserves, the Capital Reserve and the Bond 
Reserve. These reserves accumulate revenue to help fund capital projects including equipment 
replacement and major rehabilitation. They are funded by annual contributions from user rates, 
SDCs, bond proceeds, and SRF loans. Each reserve is explained in detail below. 

 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE 

The Equipment Replacement Reserve accumulates replacement funding for three types of 
equipment:  1) major/stationary equipment items costing less than $200,000 with useful lives of 
20 years or less; 2) fleet vehicles maintained by the Eugene Wastewater Division; and 3) 
computers that serve the Eugene Wastewater Division. Contributions to the Equipment 
Replacement Reserve in the FY 16-17 budget total $250,000, additional budget details are 
provided below. 
 
The Equipment Replacement Reserve is intended to accumulate funds necessary to provide for 
the timely replacement or rehabilitation of equipment, and may also be borrowed against to 
provide short-term financing of capital improvements. An annual analysis is performed on the 
Equipment Replacement Reserve. The annual contribution is set so that all projected 
replacements will be funded over a 20-year period and at the end of the 20-year period, the 
reserve will contain replacement funds for all equipment projected to be in use at that time. 
Estimates used in the analysis include interest earnings, inflation rates and useful lives for the 
equipment. 

 

 
 
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE (SDC) RESERVES 

SDCs are required as part of the MWMC IGA. They are connection fees charged to new users to 
recover the costs related to system capacity, and are limited to funding Capital Programs. The 
purpose of the SDC Reserves is to collect and account for SDC revenues separately from other 
revenue sources, in accordance with Oregon statutes. The Commission’s SDC structure includes 
a combination of “Reimbursement” and “Improvement” fee components. Estimated SDC 
revenues for FY 16-17 are approximately $1.1 million. Budgeted expenditures include  
$2 million from Improvement Fees to fund portions of the annual debt service payments on the 
2006 and 2008 revenue bonds. The projected beginning SDC Reserve balance on July 1, 2016 is 
$3,504,354. 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $11,420,690 $11,705,390 $11,837,948
 Annual Equipment Contribution 650,000 650,000 250,000
 Interest 40,000 40,000 40,000
 Equipment Purchases (593,300) (755,300) (381,000)
Equipment Replacement Reserve $11,517,390 $11,640,090 $11,746,948



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Reserves 
 

 

 Page 22 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 
 

 
 

CAPITAL RESERVE 

The Capital Reserve accumulates funds transferred from the Operating Reserve for the purpose 
of funding the CIP, Major Capital Outlay and Major Rehabilitation Program costs. The intent is 
to collect sufficient funds over time to construct a portion of planned capital projects with cash in 
an appropriate balance with projects that are funded with debt financing. The FY 16-17 Budget 
includes a contribution from the Operating Reserve of $11.3 million. The beginning balance on 
July 1, 2016, is projected to be $50,315,693. Additional budget detail on the CIP, Major Capital 
Outlay and Major Rehabilitation Program reserves is provided below. 

 

 
 

REIMBURSEMENT SDC RESERVE

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $490,946 $555,989 $639,013
 Reimbursement SDCs Collected 100,000 100,000 100,000
 Interest 1,300 1,300 1,200
 SDC Compliance Charge 2,500 2,500 2,500
 Xfr to Debt Service (Fund 612) (19,276) (19,276) (20,191)
 Materials & Services (2,000) (2,000) (2,000)
Reimbursement SDC Reserve $573,470 $638,513 $720,522

IMPROVEMENT SDC RESERVE

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $2,953,028 $3,763,341 $2,865,341
 Improvement SDCs Collected 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,100,000
 Interest 8,000 8,000 7,000
 Materials & Services (2,000) (2,000) (2,000)
 Xfr to Debt Service (Fund 612 ) (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (2,000,000)
Improvement SDC Reserve $1,959,028 $2,769,341 $1,970,341

CAPITAL RESERVES 

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $76,014,033 $77,977,819 $50,315,693
 Transfer from Operating Reserve 8,500,000          11,885,000 11,300,000          
 Interest 60,000 60,000 60,000
 Interest Income (Revenue Bond Proceeds) 240,000 240,000 210,000
 Transfer to Operating 0 (450,000) 0
 Revenue Bond Principal 08 0 (3,550,000) 0
 Revenue Bond Principal 06 0 (31,380,000) 0
 Funding For Capital Improvement Projects (18,074,004)       (39,897,118)      (30,356,600)         
 Funding For Major Rehabilitation (371,300) (570,142) (534,000)
 Funding For Major Capital Outlay (2,900,000) (3,100,000) (5,670,000)
 Revenue Bond Reserve 2008 (4,000,000) 0 0
Capital Reserve $59,468,729 $11,215,559 $25,325,093



OPERATING PROGRAMS 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Staffing 
 

 

 Page 23 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

EXHIBIT 6 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAMS* 

ORGANIZATION CHART FY 16-17 

Metropolitan Wastewater Management 
Commission 

CITY OF EUGENE **
Wastewater Division

77.40 FTE

Division Director
.85 FTE

Operations Manager
.93 FTE

Wastewater 
Treatment Plant

39.30 FTE

Regional Pump
Stations
1.26 FTE

Computer
Services
2.73 FTE

Biosolids 
Management 

12.62 FTE

Operations
16.0 FTE

Beneficial Reuse 
Site

1.77 FTE

Equipment 
Maintenance

10.3 FTE

Facility 
Maintenance

8.51  FTE

Laboratory
2.65  FTE

Industrial 
Pretreatment 

5.35 FTE

Stores
2.67 FTE

Env Data
Analyst
.65 FTE

User Fee
Support
1.0 FTE

Operations
6.97 FTE

Operations
.53 FTE

Equipment 
Maintenance

.85 FTE

Equipment 
Maintenance

.59 FTE

Equipment 
Maintenance

2.57 FTE

Facility 
Maintenance

1.98 FTE

Facility 
Maintenance

.34 FTE

Laboratory
1.27 FTE

Laboratory
.66 FTE

Laboratory
.15  FTE

Regulations &
Enforcement

3.38 FTE

Admin Support
5.36 FTE

Support Services
15.32 FTE

Sampling
.74  FTE

Sampling
.44 FTE

Sampling
.16 FTE

PW Maint
1.10 FTE

Sampling
.70 FTE

Safety, Env & 
Health  

Supervisor
.89 FTE

Management 
Analyst
.89 FTE

Project Mgr.
.93 FTE

PW Financial 
Services
.20 FTE

MWMC Executive 
Officer

.08 FTE

MWMC General 
Manager
.80 FTE

Administration
Support
.3 FTE

Accounting
.88 FTE

MWMC
Administration

10.45 FTE

Industrial 
Pretreatment

2.65 FTE

Administration
Support
.70 FTE

Regulations 
& 

Enforcement
2.95 FTE

Budget & 
Financial 

Management
1.15 FTE

Property/ 
Risk Mgmt

.20 FTE

Customer 
Service
.55 FTE

Public 
Education
1.0 FTE

Construction 
Management

5.10 FTE

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD **
Environmental Services Division

 & Finance Department
15.46  FTE 

Facility 
Maintenance

.41 FTE

Special 
Projects/ 
Planning
1.75 FTE

 

 

 

Notes: 
 

* Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) figures represent portions of Eugene and Springfield staff funded by 
regional wastewater funds. 

** The chart represents groups of staff dedicated to program areas rather than specific positions. 
 

 

 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Staffing 
 

 

 Page 24 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM
POSITION SUMMARY

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET FTE
CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 CHANGE

SPRINGFIELD ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES & FINANCE
 Accountant 0.80 0.80 0.80 -        
 Accounting Supervisor 0.08 0.08 0.08 -        
 Administrative Specialist 1.05 1.85 1.85 -        
 Assistant Project Coordinator 0.90 0.90 0.90 -        
 Civil Engineer/Design & Construction Coordinator 3.00 3.00 3.00 -        
 Construction Inspector 1.00 0.00 0.00 -        
 Development and Public Works Deputy Director 0.08 0.08 0.00 (0.08)     
 Development and Public Works Director 0.08 0.08 0.08 -        
 Engineering Assistant 1.60 0.80 0.80 -        
 Environmental Management Analyst 0.00 0.65 0.65 -        
 Environmental Services Program Manager 0.55 1.35 0.80 (0.55)     
 Environmental Services Program Coordinator 1.00 1.00 0.00 (1.00)     
 Environmental Services Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.95 0.95       
 Environmental Services Technician 1.50 1.50 2.00 0.50       
 ESD Manager/MWMC General Manager 0.75 0.80 0.80 -        
 Managing Civil Engineer 2.00 2.00 1.75 (0.25)     
 Public Information & Education Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 -        
 Senior Finance Analyst 0.50 0.00 0.00 -        
TOTAL SPRINGFIELD 15.89 15.89 15.46 (0.43)

EXHIBIT 7



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Staffing 
 

 

 Page 25 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 

 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM
POSITION SUMMARY

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET FTE
CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 CHANGE

EUGENE WASTEWATER DIVISION & OTHER PW
 Administrative Specialist 1.78 1.78 1.78 -        
 Administrative Specialist, Sr 0.95 0.95 0.95 -        
 Application Support Technician 0.95 0.95 0.95 -        
 Application Systems Analyst 1.78 1.78 1.78 -        
 Custodian                1.00 1.00 1.00 -        
 Finance & Admin Manager 0.89 0.89 0.89 -        
 Electrician 1            3.28 3.28 3.28 -        
 Engineering Associate    0.35 0.35 0.35 -        
 Maintenance Worker      12.29 12.29 12.29 -        
 Management Analyst  4.25 4.25 5.14 0.89       
 Office Supervisor, Sr    0.89 0.89 0.00 (0.89)     
 Parts and Supply Specialist 1.78 1.78 1.78 -        
 PW Financial Services Manager 0.20 0.20 0.20 -        
 Utility Billing Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 -        
 Wastewater Lab Assistant             0.82 0.82 0.82 -        
 Wastewater Division Director     0.85 0.85 0.85 -        
 Wastewater Instrument Electrician 1.00 1.00 1.00 -        
 Wastewater Plant Operations Manager       0.93 0.93 0.93 -        
 Wastewater Operations Supervisor 2.00 2.00 2.00 -        
 Wastewater Plant Maintenance Supervisor 2.88 2.88 2.88 -        
 Wastewater Pretreatment & Lab Supervisor 0.82 0.82 0.82 -        
 Wastewater Technician                36.71 36.71 36.71 -        
TOTAL 77.40 77.40 77.40 -        

GRAND TOTAL 93.23 93.29 92.86 (0.43)     

EXHIBIT 7  (Continued)



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 26 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Program Responsibilities 
 Administration & Management  
 Financial Planning & Management 
 Long-Range Capital Project Planning 
 Project and Construction Management 
 Coordination between the Commission and 

governing bodies 
 Coordination and Management of: 

· Risk Management & Legal Services 
· Public Policy Issues 
· Regulatory and Permit Compliance Issues 

 Public Information, Education and Outreach 
 Industrial Pretreatment Source Control 
 Customer Service 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
The City of Springfield manages administration 
services for the RWP under the Intergovernmental 
Agreement for the Metropolitan Wastewater 
Management Commission (MWMC). The programs 
maintained by Springfield to support the RWP are 
summarized below and are followed by Springfield’s 
regional wastewater budget summaries. Activities, and 
therefore program budgets, for the MWMC 
administration vary from year to year depending upon 
the major construction projects and special initiatives 
underway. A list of the capital projects Springfield 
staff will support in FY 16-17 is provided in Exhibit 12 
on page 41. 

 
MWMC ADMINISTRATION 
The Springfield Environmental Services Division (ESD) and Finance Department provide 
ongoing support and management services for the MWMC. The Development and Public Works 
(DPW) Director serves as the MWMC Executive Officer. The Environmental Services Manager 
serves as the General Manager. Springfield provides the following administration functions:  
financial planning management, accounting and financial reporting; risk management and legal 
services; coordination and management of public policy; coordination and management of 
regulatory and permit compliance issues; coordination between the Commission and the 
governing bodies; long-range capital project planning and construction management; 
coordination of public information, education, and citizen involvement programs; sewer user 
customer service; and coordination and development of regional budgets, rate proposals, and 
revenue projections.  

 
INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT (SOURCE CONTROL) PROGRAM 
The Industrial Pretreatment Program is a regional activity implemented jointly by the Cities of 
Eugene and Springfield. The Industrial Pretreatment section of the ESD is charged with 
administering the program for the regulation and oversight of wastewater discharged to the 
sanitary collection system by industries in Springfield. This section is responsible for ensuring 
that these wastes do not damage the collection system, interfere with wastewater treatment 
processes, result in the pass-through of harmful pollutants to treated effluent or biosolids, or 
threaten worker health or safety. 
 
This responsibility is fulfilled, in part, by the use of a permit system for industrial dischargers. 
This permit system, common to both Eugene and Springfield, implements necessary limitations 
on waste characteristics and establishes inspection, monitoring, and reporting requirements for 
documenting waste quality and quantity controls. The Industrial Pretreatment section is also 
responsible for locating new industrial discharges in Springfield and evaluating the impact of 
those discharges on the regional WPCF. As of February 2016, there were 19 significant 
industrial users under permit in Springfield. The Industrial Pretreatment Program also addresses  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 27 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

the wastewater discharges of some commercial/industrial businesses through the development 
and implementation of Pollution Management Practices. Pretreatment program staff also 
coordinates pollution prevention activities in cooperation with the Pollution Prevention Coalition 
of Lane County. 

 
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING   
Accounting and financial reporting services for the RWP are provided by the Accounting section 
in the Springfield Finance Department, in coordination with ESD. Springfield Accounting staff 
maintains grant and contract accounting systems, as well as compliance with all local, state and 
federal accounting and reporting requirements for MWMC finances. This section also assists 
ESD with preparation of the MWMC budget, capital financing documents, sewer user rates, and 
financial policies and procedures.  

 
PROGRAMS AND SIGNIFICANT SERVICE/EXPENDITURE CHANGES 

 
In FY 16-17, the City of Springfield will support the following major regional initiatives in 
addition to ongoing Commission administration and industrial pretreatment activities: 
 
 Continue public information, education and outreach activities focused on the MWMC’s 

Key Outcomes and Communication Plan objectives to increase awareness of the 
MWMC’s ongoing efforts in maintaining water quality and a sustainable environment. 

 Implement Capital Financing strategies necessary to meet current debt obligations, 
prepare for additional debt financing, and ensure sufficient revenues in accordance with 
the 2005 MWMC Financial Plan. 

 Continue implementation of the 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan and 2014 Partial Facilities 
Plan Update to meet all regulatory requirements and capacity needs. Considering 
emerging environmental regulations that may impact the operation of the WPCF. 

 Implement annual reporting for the local Capacity Management Operations and 
Maintenance (CMOM) programs, focusing on continued inflow and infiltration 
reductions, including flow monitoring, data tracking, regional coordination, and 
exploring methods of addressing private laterals.  

 Protect the Regional Wastewater Program (RWP) interests through participation in 
Association of Clean Water Agencies activities. 

 Coordinate temperature Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) compliance through 
continued development and implementation of the thermal load mitigation strategy, 
including but not limited to a recycled water program. 

 Continue participation with the Association of Clean Water Agencies and the Department 
of Environmental Quality on regulatory permitting strategies and the development of 
water quality trading rules.  

  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 28 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

SIGNIFICANT BUDGET CHANGES FOR FY 16-17 
 
The budget for Springfield Personnel Services, Materials and Services, and Capital Outlay for  
FY 16-17 totals $3,800,923 representing an overall decrease of $32,478 or 0.8% below the adopted 
FY 15-16 budget, as displayed in Exhibit 8 on page 29. 
 
Personnel Services  
Personnel Services totaling $1,724,832 represents a FY 16-17 decrease of $30,299 or 1.7% over 
the originally adopted FY 15-16 budget. The major changes are summarized below: 
 

Staffing Level - 15.46 full-time equivalent (FTE) staff, a decrease of 0.43 FTE 
Staffing decreased in the FY 16-17 budget when compared to FY 15-16 based on a 
reorganization of staff allocated to the regional programs. 
 
Regular Wages and Overtime - $1,153,170, decrease of $17,895 or 1.5% 
Salaries are based upon the negotiated management/labor contracts as approved by the 
Springfield City Council, and staffing levels. 
 
Health Insurance - $308,832, a decrease of $6,792 or 2.2% 
Health Insurance includes employee related medical and dental insurance. 
 
PERS/OPSRP Contributions - $155,768, an increase of $2,416 or 1.5% 
Projected employee retirement contribution for FY 16-17.  
 

Materials and Services 
The Materials and Services budget total is $2,076,091 in FY 16-17, representing a slight 
decrease of $2,179 or 0.1% below the adopted FY 15-16 budget. The major changes are 
summarized below: 

 
Property and Liability Insurance - $370,000, a decrease of $70,000 or 15.9% 
The $70,000 decrease is in comparison to the orignially adopted FY 15-16 budget. The 
budget decrease reflects cost savings in Agent of Record services which are fee-based, a 
change in liability insurance providers, and an increase in the property insurance deductible 
amount resulting in a reduced insurance premium cost.  
 
Contractual Services –$133,500, a net decrease of $7,500 or 5.3% 
The $7,500 decrease was due to completion of the educational video series in FY 15-16, 
which was a one-time expense. 
 
Internal Charges - $165,004, a increase of $18,702 or 12.8% 
The $18,702 increase is primarily related to the regional portion of the City of Springfield 
facility rents for use of the City Hall building, and a portion of the City of Springfield 
liability, auto and risk insurance.  

  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 29 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Computer Software & License - $32,650, a net decrease of $11,500 or 26.0% 
The $11,500 decrease is due to entering into a three year contract in FY 15-16 for ongoing 
service and maintenance for the capital project management system, Constructware.  
 
 

 
 
Note:   * Change column compares the adopted FY 16-17 Budget to the adopted FY 15-16 Budget. 

ACTUAL
ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE *

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)
Personnel Services $1,466,567 $1,755,131 $1,724,939 $1,724,832 ($30,299) -1.7%

Materials & Services 1,856,849 2,078,270 2,063,070 2,076,091 (2,179) -0.1%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0            0%

Budget Summary $3,323,416 $3,833,401 $3,788,009 $3,800,923 ($32,478) -0.8%

EXHIBIT 8

SPRINGFIELD ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM
ADOPTED FY 16-17

BUDGET SUMMARY

$3,670,958 $3,636,762 $3,911,289 $3,833,401 $3,800,923 

$0
$500,000

$1,000,000
$1,500,000
$2,000,000
$2,500,000
$3,000,000
$3,500,000
$4,000,000
$4,500,000
$5,000,000

FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17

5-YEAR MWMC BUDGET COMPARISON
SPRINGFIELD ADMINISTRATION



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 30 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 

ADOPTED AMENDED ADOPTED
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)

PERSONNEL SERVICES
Regular Wages $997,633 $1,163,349 $1,163,349 $1,149,666 ($13,683) -1.2%
Overtime 42 7,716 7,716 3,504 (4,212) -54.6%
Employee Benefits 92,487 110,258 110,258 107,062 (3,196) -2.9%
PERS/OPSRP 134,022 158,184 158,184 155,768 (2,416) -1.5%
Medical/Dental Insurance 242,383 315,624 285,432 308,832 (6,792) -2.2%
Total Personnel Services $1,466,567 $1,755,131 $1,724,939 $1,724,832 ($30,299) -1.7%
FTE 16.68 15.89 15.89 15.46 (0.43)        -2.7%
MATERIALS & SERVICES
Billing & Collection Expense $594,701 $577,000 $577,000 $630,000 $53,000 9.2%
Property & Liability Insurance 373,780 440,000 425,000 370,000 (70,000) -15.9%
Contractual Services 47,029 141,000 141,000 133,500 (7,500) -5.3%
Attorney Fees and Legal Expense 72,192 185,505 185,505 188,505 3,000 1.6%
WPCF/NPDES Permits 118,466 126,800 126,600 136,000 9,200 7.3%
Materials & Program Expense 42,272 87,795 87,795 87,321 (474) -0.5%
Computer Software & Licenses 78,311 44,150 44,150 32,650 (11,500) -26.0%
Employee Development 5,320 19,000 19,000 19,275 275 1.4%
Travel & Meeting Expense 12,283 21,100 21,100 22,200 1,100 5.2%
Internal Charges 181,670 146,302 146,302 165,004 18,702 12.8%
Indirect Costs 330,824 289,618 289,618 291,636 2,018 0.7%
Total Materials & Services $1,856,849 $2,078,270 $2,063,070 $2,076,091 ($2,179) -0.1%
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Total Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
TOTAL $3,323,416 $3,833,401 $3,788,009 $3,800,923 ($32,478) -0.8%

EXHIBIT 9

SPRINGFIELD ADMINISTRATION
LINE ITEM BUDGET SUMMARY

CHANGE



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 31 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Program Responsibilities 
 Administration & Management 
 Biosolids Management 
 Facility Operations 
 Facility Maintenance 
 Industrial Source Control 
 Laboratory Services 
 Management Information Services 
 Project Management 

CITY OF EUGENE 
 REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 
The Wastewater Division for the City of Eugene manages all 
regional wastewater pollution control facilities serving the 
areas inside the Eugene and Springfield Urban Growth 
Boundaries under the Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission 
(MWMC). These regional facilities include the 
Eugene/Springfield Regional Water Pollution Control 
Facility (WPCF), the Biosolids Management Facility, the 
Beneficial Reuse Site, the Biocycle Farm site, and regional 
wastewater pumping stations and transmission sewers.   
 
In support of the water pollution control program, the Division provides technical services for 
wastewater treatment, management of equipment replacement and infrastructure rehabilitation, 
biosolids treatment and recycling, regional laboratory services, and an industrial source control 
and pretreatment program in conjunction with City of Springfield staff.  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
Administrative Services provides management, administrative, and office support to the 
Wastewater Division. This support includes the general planning, directing, and managing of 
the activities of the Division; development and coordination of the budget; administration of 
personnel records; and processing of payroll, accounts payable, and accounts receivable. This 
section also provides tracking and monitoring of all assets for the regional wastewater 
treatment facilities and clerical support for reception, telephone services, and other 
miscellaneous needs. The Administrative services include oversight and coordination of the 
Division’s Environmental Management System, safety, and training programs, and a stores 
unit that purchases and stocks parts and supplies and assists with professional services 
contracting. Another area this program administers is the coordination of local and regional 
billing and rate activities. 
 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY OPERATIONS 
The Wastewater Division operates the WPCF to treat domestic and industrial liquid wastes to 
achieve an effluent quality that protects and sustains the beneficial uses of the Willamette 
River. The Operations section optimizes wastewater treatment processes to ensure effluent 
quality requirements are met in an efficient and cost effective manner. In addition, the 
Operations section provides continuous monitoring of the alarm functions for all plant 
processes, regional and local pump stations, Biosolids Management Facility, and the Beneficial 
Reuse Site. 
 
MAINTENANCE 
The mechanical, electrical, and facilities maintenance sections of the Wastewater Division are 
responsible for preservation of the multi-million dollar investment in the equipment and 
infrastructure of the WPCF, local and regional pump stations, pressure sewers, as well as the 
Biosolids Management Facility. These sections provide a preventative maintenance program to  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 32 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

maximize equipment life and reliability; a corrective maintenance program for repairing 
unanticipated equipment failures; and a facility maintenance program to maintain the 
buildings, treatment structures, and grounds. 
 
BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT  
The Residuals Management section of the Wastewater Division manages the handling and 
beneficial reuse of the biological solids (biosolids) produced as a result of the activated sludge 
treatment of wastewater. This section operates the Biosolids Management Facility (BMF) and 
the Biocycle Farm located at Awbrey Lane in Eugene. The biosolids are treated using 
anaerobic digestion, stored in facultative lagoons (which provide some additional treatment 
benefits), and then processed through a belt filter press and air-dried to reduce the water 
content and facilitate transport. The dried material is ultimately applied to agricultural land. 
Biosolids are also irrigated on poplar trees at the Biocycle Farm as a beneficial nutrient and 
soil conditioner. This section also operates the Beneficial Reuse Site which formerly served to 
treat wastewater from food processing operation.   
 
INDUSTRIAL SOURCE CONTROL (Pretreatment) and ANALYTICAL SERVICES, 
SAMPLING TEAM 
The pretreatment program is a regional activity implemented jointly by the cities of Eugene 
and Springfield. The Industrial Source Control group of the Wastewater Division is charged 
with administering the pretreatment program for the regulation and oversight of commercial 
and industrial wastewaters discharged to the wastewater collection system by fixed-site 
industries in Eugene and by mobile waste haulers in the Eugene and Springfield areas. This 
group is also responsible for ensuring that these wastes do not damage the collection system, 
interfere with wastewater treatment processes, result in the pass-through of harmful pollutants 
to treated effluent or biosolids, or threaten worker health or safety.   
 
This responsibility is fulfilled through the use of a permit system for industrial dischargers.  
This permit system, common to both Eugene and Springfield, implements necessary limitations 
on waste characteristics and establishes inspection, monitoring, and reporting requirements for 
documenting waste quality and quantity controls. The staff is also responsible for locating new 
industrial discharges in Eugene and evaluating the impact of new non-residential discharges on 
the WPCF. During the calendar year 2015 there were 21 significant industrial users under 
permit in Eugene. The section also has responsibilities related to environmental spill response 
activities.   
 
The Analytical Services group provides necessary analytical work in support of wastewater 
treatment, residuals management, industrial source control, stormwater monitoring, and special 
project activities of the Wastewater Division. The laboratory's services include sample 
handling and analyses of influent sewage, treated wastewater, biosolids, industrial wastes, 
stormwater, and groundwater. Information from the laboratory is used to make treatment 
process control decisions, document compliance with regulatory requirements, demonstrate 
environmental protection, and ensure worker health and safety. 
 
The Sampling Team is responsible for the sampling activities related to regional wastewater 
program functions. These include the Eugene pretreatment program, wastewater treatment  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 33 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

process control, effluent and ambient water quality, groundwater quality, facultative sludge 
lagoons, and stormwater samples. The Division’s Environmental Data Analyst evaluates and 
reports on the sampling data for various programs. 
 
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SERVICES (MIS) 
The MIS section provides services for electronic data gathering, analysis, and reporting as 
necessary in compliance with regulatory requirements and management functions. This section 
also maintains the electronic communication linkages with the City of Eugene and supplies 
technical expertise and assistance in the selection, operation, and modification of computer 
systems (hardware and software) within the Division.   
 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Management of wastewater system improvements and ongoing developments is carried out by 
the Project Management staff. Activities include coordination of CIP activities with the City of 
Springfield staff, problem-solving and action recommendations, project management, technical 
research, coordination of activities related to renewal of the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) wastewater discharge permit, computer-aided design and 
electronic storage of design drawings, and planning of projects to anticipate and prepare for new 
regulatory and operational requirements. The Project Management staff develops Request for 
Proposals and Request for Quotes, coordinates special project activities between work sections, 
and coordinates the procurement of building permits as necessary in support of project activities.  

 
 

PROGRAMS AND SIGNIFICANT SERVICE/EXPENDITURE CHANGES 
 
In FY 16-17, Eugene staff will support the following major regional initiatives in addition to 
ongoing operational activities. 
 
 Manage the O&M responsibilities of the NPDES permits for the wastewater discharge 

and treatment plant stormwater programs and the Lane Regional Air Protection Agency 
(LRAPA) air emissions permit for the regional wastewater treatment plant. 

 Continue to evaluate impacts of regulatory actions (such as the federal sanitary sewer 
overflows (SSO) and blending policy development, Willamette River TMDLs 
implementation, and any newly adopted state water quality standards) upon operational 
responsibilities.   

 Provide technical input and O&M assessments related to proposed initiatives for 
addressing TMDL compliance, greenhouse gas emission controls, and renewable energy 
objectives. 

 Complete scheduled major rehabilitation, equipment replacement, and other capital 
projects in an efficient and timely manner. 

 Work cooperatively on the CIP elements and effectively integrate capital project work 
with ongoing O&M activities, with emphasis on maintaining an effective CIP 
management and coordination program with Springfield.   



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 34 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 Manage the Operations & Maintenance (O&M) aspects of the Biocycle Farm, continuing 
biosolids irrigation practices and poplar tree management. 

 
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE O & M BUDGET FOR FY 16-17 
 
The budget for Operations and Maintenance of the regional wastewater treatment facilities 
(personnel, materials and services, and capital outlay) for FY 16-17 totals $13,899,707. The amount 
represents an increase of $383,636 or 2.8% from the FY 15-16 budget. The largest cost centers for 
the budget are personnel costs, contractual services, utilities, materials, maintenance, fleet, and 
chemicals. Details of significant items and changes for the FY 16-17 Operations and Maintenance 
budget as compared to the FY 15-16 budget include: 
 
Personnel Services 
Personnel Services totaling $8,578,239 represents a FY 16-17 increase of $230,448 or 2.8%. The 
major changes are in the following budget categories: 
 
 Staffing  

The FY 16-17 budget requests no change in staffing level from the FY 15-16 budget. Staffing 
requests remains at 77.40 Full Time Equivalent (FTE). 

 
Regular Wages - $5,165,677, an increase of $142,573 or 2.8%  
Salaries are based upon the negotiated management/labor contracts between the City of Eugene 
and the local union (AFSCME).   

 

Employee Benefits - $1,811,828, an increase of $35,815 or 2.0%  
The employee benefits consist mainly of PERS/OPSRP retirement system costs and Medicare 
contributions.  
 

Health Insurance - $1,454,825, an increase of $68,972 or 5.0% 
The increase is based on group claims experience and cost projections. Costs are calculated   
based on the number of employees.  

 
Materials and Services 
The Materials and Services budget totaling $5,158,368 represents an FY 16-17 increase of 
$35,088 or 0.7%. The major changes are in the following budget categories: 
 
  Indirect Charges - $1,020,000, an increase of $18,850 or 1.9% 

This expenditure category includes costs for payroll processing, human resources services, 
information technology services, and budget and financial services provided by the City of 
Eugene to the Wastewater Division.  
 
Contractual Services - $895,941, a net increase of $100,706 or 12.7% 
This account includes services for outside lab testing, USGS water monitoring, seasonal 
temporary help, distributive control system (DCS) upgrade, and grit waste disposal. Temporary 
help budget is $395,250, professional services are $158,796, and trade and other contractual 
services total $341,895.  
 
 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 35 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Materials & Program Expense - $555,442, a net decrease of $102,662 or 15.6% 
The Materials & Program Expense account includes a wide variety of operational items such as 
telephone charges, training costs, tools, small equipment, safety supplies, and inventory. The FY 
16-17 budget reduction is due in part to one-time expenditures for flow monitoring being made 
in the FY 15-16 budget and not budgeted in FY 16-17. A reduction for tools and minor 
equipment has also been made to align with recent trends of lower expenditures in those areas.  
 
Fleet - $426,986, a decrease of $12,705 or 2.9% 
Fleet services are managed centrally by Eugene Fleet Services. Reduction in fuel costs are 
reflected in lower fleet charges. 
 
Eugene Capital Outlay Expense - $163,100, a net increase of $118,100  
Eugene Capital Outlay budget this year will be used to purchase a water truck for the Biosolids 
Management Facility which will be used for efficient dust control, fire protection and clean up 
capabilities at the BMF and at biosolids application sites. A one-ton pickup outfitted with a 
service body is budgeted for maintenance staff use. 
 

  

ACTUAL
ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE *

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)
Personnel Services $7,522,408 $8,347,791 $8,347,791 $8,578,239 $230,448 2.8%
Materials & Services 4,173,222 5,123,280 5,243,734 5,158,368 35,088 0.7%
Capital Outlay 26,865 45,000 45,000 163,100 118,100 262.4%
Budget Summary $11,722,495 $13,516,071 $13,636,525 $13,899,707 $383,636 2.8%

  NOTE:  Does not include Major or Equipment Replacement

EXHIBIT 10

EUGENE - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM
ADOPTED FY 16-17

BUDGET SUMMARY

$12,509,757 $12,716,031 $12,771,358 
$13,516,071 $13,899,707 

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$16,000,000

FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17

5-YEAR MWMC BUDGET COMPARISON
EUGENE - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 36 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 

ADOPTED AMENDED ADOPTED
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE
FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)

PERSONNEL SERVICES
Regular Wages $4,601,145 $5,023,104 $5,023,104 $5,165,677 $142,573 2.8%
Overtime 45,686 70,975 70,975 40,000 (30,975) -43.6%
Employee Benefits 1,538,942 1,776,013 1,776,013 1,811,828 35,815 2.0%
Workers' Comp/Unemploy Ins 93,005 91,846 91,846 105,909 14,063 15.3%
Health Insurance 1,243,630 1,385,853 1,385,853 1,454,825 68,972 5.0%
Total Personnel Services $7,522,408 $8,347,791 $8,347,791 $8,578,239 $230,448 2.8%

FTE 77.40 77.40 77.40 77.40 0.00 0.0%

MATERIALS & SERVICES
Utilities $752,583 $754,682 $754,682 $775,615 $20,933 2.8%
Fleet Operating Charges 422,336 439,691 439,691 426,986 (12,705) -2.9%
Maintenance-Equip & Facilities 211,579 354,538 354,538 386,497 31,959 9.0%
Contractual Services 365,540 795,235 795,235 895,941 100,706 12.7%
Materials & Program Expense 568,926 658,104 778,558 555,442 (102,662) -15.6%
Chemicals 254,920 330,152 330,152 326,940 (3,212) -1.0%
Parts & Components 352,615 357,656 357,656 353,096 (4,560) -1.3%
Risk Insurance - Employee Liability 49,174 51,527 51,527 51,572 45 0.1%
Laboratory Equipment & Supplies 67,669 93,000 93,000 89,600 (3,400) -3.7%
Computer Equip, Supplies, Maint 254,951 287,545 287,545 276,679 (10,866) -3.8%
Indirects 872,928 1,001,150 1,001,150 1,020,000 18,850 1.9%
Total Materials & Services $4,173,222 $5,123,280 $5,243,734 $5,158,368 $35,088 0.7%

CAPITAL OUTLAY
Motorized Vehicles $26,865 $45,000 $45,000 $163,100 $118,100 262.4%
Capital Outlay-Other 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Capital Outlay $26,865 $45,000 $45,000 $163,100 $118,100 262.4%

TOTAL $11,722,494 $13,516,071 $13,636,525 $13,899,707 $383,636 2.8%

EXHIBIT 11

EUGENE - OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
LINE ITEM BUDGET SUMMARY



CAPITAL PROGRAM 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 37 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
CAPITAL PROGRAMS 

 
Overview 

 
The Regional Wastewater Program (RWP) includes two components: the Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) and the Asset Management Capital Program (AMCP). The FY 16-17 CIP Budget, 
the FY 16-17 AMCP Budget, and the associated 5-Year Capital Plan are based on the 2004 
MWMC Facilities Plan (2004 FP) and the Partial Facilities Plan Update dated June 2014. The 
2004 FP was approved by the MWMC, the governing bodies of the City of Eugene, the City of 
Springfield, Lane County, and the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) in 2004. 
The 2004 FP and its 20-year capital project list was the result of a comprehensive evaluation of 
the regional wastewater treatment facilities serving the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. 
 
The 2004 FP built on previous targeted studies, including the 1997 Master Plan, 1997 Biosolids 
Management Plan, 2001 Wet Weather Flow Management Plan (WWFMP), and the 2003 
Management Plan for a dedicated biosolids land application site. The 2004 FP was intended to 
meet changing regulatory and wet weather flow requirements and to serve the community’s 
wastewater capacity and treatment needs through 2025. Accordingly, the 2004 FP established the 
CIP project list to provide necessary facility enhancements and expansions over the planning 
period. The CIP is administered by the City of Springfield for the MWMC. The AMCP 
implements the projects and activities necessary to maintain functionality, lifespan, and 
effectiveness of the MWMC facility assets on an ongoing basis. The AMCP is administered by 
the City of Eugene for the MWMC and consists of three sub-categories:  
 
 Equipment Replacement Program 
 Major Rehabilitation Program 
 Major Capital Outlay 

 
The MWMC has established these capital programs to achieve the following RWP objectives: 
 
 Compliance with applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations 
 Protection of the health and safety of people and property from exposure to hazardous 

conditions such as untreated or inadequately treated wastewater 
 Provision of adequate capacity to facilitate community growth in the Eugene-Springfield 

metropolitan area consistent with adopted land use plans 
 Construction, operation, and management of the MWMC facilities in a manner that is as 

cost-effective, efficient, and affordable to the community as possible in the short and long 
term 

 Implementation of the Citizens Advisory Committee recommendations, which represent 
diverse community interests, values and involvement, and that have been adopted by the 
Commission as the MWMC’s plans and policies 

 Mitigation of potential negative impacts of the MWMC facilities on adjacent uses and 
surrounding neighborhoods (ensuring that the MWMC facilities are “good neighbors” as 
judged by the community)   



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 38 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Capital Program Funding and Financial Planning Methods and Policies 
 
This annual budget document presents the FY 16-17 CIP Budget, the FY 16-17 AMCP Budget, 
and 5-Year Capital Plan which includes the CIP and AMCP Capital Plan. The MWMC CIP 
financial planning and funding methods are in accordance with the financial management 
policies put forth in the MWMC 2005 Financial Management Plan.  
 
Each of the two RWP capital programs relies on funding mechanisms to achieve RWP objectives 
described above. The CIP is funded primarily through proceeds from revenue bond sales, system 
development charges, and transfers from the Operating Fund to Capital Reserves. The AMCP is 
funded through wastewater user fees.  
 
In addition to revenue bond sales, financing for qualified CIP projects was also secured through 
the State of Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)’s Clean Water State Revolving 
Fund (CWSRF) loan program. From 2008-2010, The MWMC secured several CWSRF loan 
agreements totalling $20.8 million. These 20-year loans provide the MWMC below-market 
interest rates,  along with additional financial benefits, including: 
 
 $450,000 in “Sponsorship” funding allocated for riparian shade tree planting projects to 

help address the MWMC’s pending thermal load obligations. The financing of these 
watershed-based projects is made available through the CWSRF program Sponsorship 
Option, which provides funding to the borrower to address nonpoint source water quality 
solutions through a reduced interest rate. The interest rate reduction allows the MWMC to 
invest in watershed improvements using money that would have otherwise been paid as 
interest on the loan. 
 

 $4 million funded through the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act (ARRA, or 
“Stimulus”). The ARRA funding provided 50% of the loan in principal forgiveness (not 
requiring repayment), and the remaining 50% of principal payment bearing 0% interest. 
This resulted in $2 million of net revenue to the CIP in addition to interest savings.  

 
The RWP’s operating fund is maintained to pay for operations, administration, debt service, 
equipment replacement contributions and capital contributions associated with the RWP. The 
operating fund derives the majority of its revenue from regional wastewater user fees that are 
collected by the City of Eugene and City of Springfield from their respective customers. In 
accordance with the MWMC 2005 Financial Plan, funds remaining in excess of budgeted 
operational expenditures can be transferred from the Operating Fund to the Capital Reserve fund. 
The Capital Reserve accumulates revenue to help fund capital projects, including major 
rehabilitation, to reduce the amount of borrowing necessary to finance capital projects. 
 
The AMCP consists of three programs managed by the City of Eugene and funded through 
regional wastewater user fees: The Equipment Replacement Program, which funds replacement 
of equipment valued at or over $10,000 but less than $200,000; The Major Rehabilitation 
Program, which funds rehabilitation of the MWMC infrastructure such as roof replacements, 
structure coatings, etc.; and the Major Capital Outlay Program for capital items (new or 
replacement) with costs greater than $200,000. The MWMC assets are tracked throughout their 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 39 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

lifecycle using asset management tracking software. Based on this information, the three AMCP 
program annual budgets are established and projected for the 5-Year Capital Plan.  
 
For planning purposes, the MWMC must consider market changes that drive capital project 
expenditures. Specifically, the MWMC capital plan reflects projected price changes over time 
that affect the cost of materials and services. Until about 2003, the 20-city average Engineering 
News Record Construction Cost Index (ENRCCI) served as a good predictor for future inflation 
and was used for projecting the MWMC’s construction costs. Accordingly, construction cost 
projections considered in the 2004 FP were based on January 2004, 20-city average ENRCCI. 
However, in the period 2004 through 2008, construction inflation accelerated nationally with 
local construction cost inflation accelerating even faster than the national average. City of 
Springfield staff identified this trend in 2005 and subsequently modified their inflationary 
projection methodology accordingly.  
 
In early 2006, the MWMC hired the consulting firm CH2M to perform a comprehensive update 
of project cost estimates. Following the 2006 update, the RWP’s CIP assumed a general price 
increase of 5% per-year over the planning period. However, the MWMC continues to monitor 
inflationary trends to inform our forecasting of capital improvement costs. Accordingly, based on 
historical inflationary rates from 2006 through 2015, capital project budgets now reflect a 4% 
annual inflationary factor in the FY 16-17 Budget and 5-year Capital Plan.  
 
 

Regional Wastewater Capital Program Status and Budget 
 
CIP Project Status and Budget 
 
The FY 16-17 CIP Budget is comprised of the individual budgets for each of the active 
(carryover) or starting (new) projects in the first year of the 5-Year Capital Plan. The total of 
these FY 16-17 project budgets is $30,356,600. Each capital project represented in the FY 16-17 
Budget is described in detail in a CIP project sheet that can be found at the end of this document. 
Each project sheet provides a description of the project, the project’s purpose and driver (the 
reason for the project), the funding schedule for the project, and the project’s expected final cost 
and cash flow. For those projects that are in progress, a short status report is included on the 
project sheet. 
 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 40 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Completed Capital Projects 

In FY 15-16, the following capital projects are projected to be completed and closed out. No CIP 
project sheets are included for these projects because there is no expected carryover of project 
funds to FY 16-17. 
 
 Repair/Replacement of Biosolids Force Main 
 Sodium Hypochlorite Conversion 
 Influent Pumping and Headworks Expansion 

 
Carryover Capital Projects 
 
All or a portion of remaining funding for active capital projects in FY 15-16 is carried forward to 
the FY 16-17 Budget. The on-going carryover projects are: 

 
 Increase Digestion Capacity   
 Operations & Maintenance Building Improvements  
 Poplar Harvest Management Services 
 WPCF Lagoon Removal/Decommissioning 
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Pre-Implementation  
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 

 Facilities Plan Engineering Services  
 Capacity Management Operations and Maintenance (CMOM) 
 Biogas Cogeneration (a Major Capital Outlay project) 

 
Overall, the budgeting for these projects follows, and is consistent with, the 2006 CH2M 
estimated cost of the listed capital projects and new information gathered during design 
development. 
 
 
New Projects  
 
No new projects are anticipated for the MWMC FY 16-17 Capital Budget. 
 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 41 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

FY 16-17  Capital Budget Summary (Exhibit 12) 
 
Exhibit 12 below displays the adjusted budget and end-of-year expenditure estimates for FY 15-
16, the amount of funding projected to be carried over to FY 16-17 and additional funding for 
existing and/or new projects in FY 16-17.  
 

  
 
 
FY 16-17  Asset Management Capital Project Status and Budget 

The AMCP consists of the following three programs: 
 
 Equipment Replacement 
 Major Rehabilitation 
 Major Capital Outlay 

  

Summary of FY 16-17 MWMC Construction Program Capital Budget

FY 15-16      
ADJUSTED    

BUDGET

FY 15-16      
ESTIMATED   

ACTUALS

FY 15-16 
CARRYOVER 
TO FY 16-17

NEW  
FUNDING     

FOR FY 16-17

TOTAL       
FY 16-17  
BUDGET

Projects to be Completed in FY 15-16
 Repair/ Replacement of Biosolids Force Main 322,704 40,000 0 0 0
 Sodium Hypochlorite Conversion 1,039,800 200,000 0 0 0
 Influent Pumping and Headworks Expansion 285,186 285,000 0 0 0
Projects to be Carried Over to FY 16-17
 Increase Digestion Capacity 16,157,068 1,437,068 14,720,000 0 14,720,000
 Operations & Maint Building Improvements 14,719,167 749,167 13,970,000 0 13,970,000
 Poplar Harvest Management Services 1,334,535 163,526 772,000 0 772,000
 WPCF Lagoon Removal / Decommissioning 4,869,681 179,681 390,000 0 390,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Pre-Implementation 246,092 81,692 164,400 79,600 244,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 (1) 730,884 171,429 131,000 0 131,000
 Facilities Plan Engineering Services 97,547 67,947 29,600 70,000 99,600
 Capacity Mgmt Operations Maint (CMOM) 94,454 33,058 30,000 0 30,000
TOTAL Capital Projects $39,897,118 $3,408,568 $30,207,000 $149,600 $30,356,600
Major Capital Outlay Carried Over to FY 16-17
 Biogas Cogeneration (2) 2,900,000 800,000 2,100,000 3,200,000 5,300,000
TOTAL Major Capital Outlay (multi-year project) $2,900,000 $800,000 $2,100,000 $3,200,000 $5,300,000
Notes:

  (1) Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 budget includes Mill Race Sponsorship ($200,000) and Cedar Creek Sponsorship ($250,000). 

  (2) Biogas Cogeneration is multi-year Major Capital Outlay project, a detail sheet is located at the end of this document. 

EXHIBIT 12



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 42 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

The FY 16-17 budget and status of each program is described below: 
 
Equipment Replacement Program - Budget 
 
The FY 16-17  Capital Programs budget includes $381,000 in Equipment Replacement 
purchases that are identified on the table below.   
 

   
 
Aerial Lift.  Provides access for regular and ongoing maintenance of overhead facilities and 
equipment such as indoor/outdoor lighting, electrical systems, and heating/ventilation equipment.  
Replaces 45-foot boom lift purchased in 2006.    
 
Fleet Replacement.  An assessment of age, mileage, hours of operation, and maintenance costs 
support the replacement of three electric carts and replacement of a 10-yard dump truck bed. 
 
Diesel Generator, 80 KW.  Provides portable emergency power for wastewater treatment 
facilities and Glenwood Pump Station. Replacement of 23 year old generator. 
 
Inductively Coupled Plasma Spectrometer.  Replacement of 12 year old spectrometer in the 
main laboratory. 
 
Security Camera System.  Supports video monitoring of Biosolids Management Facility and 
Biocycle Farm operations and site activities. Replaces and updates 12 year old equipment.   
 
Computer File Server.  Scheduled replacement of one network file server. 
  

Project Description
FY 16-17 

Budget
 Aerial Lift 100,000
 Fleet Replacement 90,000
 Diesel Generator, 80 KW 80,000
 Inductively Coupled Plasma Spectrometer - Lab 77,000
 Security Camera System 25,000
 Computer File Server 9,000
Total $381,000

Equipment Replacement 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 43 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Major Rehabilitation Program - Budget 
 
The FY 16-17 Capital Programs budget includes $534,000 for Major Rehabilitation projects that 
are identified on the table below. 
 

 
 
Air Drying Bed Resurfacing.  The biosolids drying process takes place on 13 asphalt drying 
beds over a 25 acre area. The beds have been on a rotational schedule for resurfacing to extend 
their useful life. In FY 16-17 two beds will be resurfaced.   
 
Solids Pretreatment Building Roof Replacement.  Replacement of 20 year old built-up 
roofing.  Inspection findings of blistering and seams separation indicate need for replacement. 
 
Plant Fuel Tank Replacement.  Decommissions 32 year old underground fuel tanks and 
replaces with above ground tank system. 
 
Air Drying Beds Crack/Fog Sealing (11 beds).  Provides protective seal to surface of asphalt 
drying beds to help maximize useful life. 
 
Maintenance Building High Bay Air Handlers.  Replaces original 33 year old air handlers for 
heating and ventilation that have reached the end of their useful life. 
 
Operations/Maintenance Building Improvements.  This expenditure will go towards 
miscellaneous improvements, repairs, and renovations to improve the functionality and 
usefulness of existing buildings. 

Project Description
FY 16-17 

Budget
 Air Drying Bed Resurfacing (2 beds) 180,000
 Solids Pretreatment Building Roof 95,000
 Plant Fuel Tank Replacement 85,000
 Air Drying Beds Crack/fog Sealing (11 beds) 64,000
 Maintenance Building High Bay Air Handlers 60,000
 Operations/Maintenance Building 50,000
Total $534,000

Major Rehabilitation



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 44 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Major Capital Outlay - Budget   
 
The FY 16-17 Capital Programs budget includes $5,670,000 for the Major Capital Outlay items 
identified on the table below.  
 

  
 
Engine Genrator.  The existing 800 KW engine generator provides about 55% of plant electric 
power needs and heating water for sludge digestion, building heat, and hot water. This project 
will replace the existing equipment with greater generation capacity of up to 1.2 megawatts, and 
replace related electrical and control systems that have reached the end of their useful life. As of 
January 2016, the project is currently in the design phase. The FY 15-16 budget included $2.9 
million for the project. The FY 16-17 budget includes an additional $3.2 million for a project 
total of $6.1 million. 
 
Residuals Aerator Tractor Replacement.  Replaces the original 16 year old paddle mixer 
which is used for daily mixing/turning of biosolids windrows in air drying beds. 
 
 
Asset Management Capital Budget Summary 

The following table summarizes the FY 16-17 Asset Management Capital Program Budget by 
project type. 
 

 
 

 
5-Year Capital Plan (Exhibit 13) 

 
For each fiscal planning cycle, only the first year of budget authority is appropriated. The 
remaining four years of the CIP and AMCP Capital Plans are important and useful for fiscal and 
work planning purposes. However, it is important to note that the funds in the outer years of the 
Capital Plan are only planned and not appropriated. Also, the full amount of obligated multi-year 
project costs is often appropriated in the first year of the project, unless a smaller subset of the  

Project Description
FY 16-17 

Budget
 Engine Generator Replacement 5,300,000    
 Residuals Aerator Tractor Replacement 370,000       
Total $5,670,000

Major Capital Outlay

Capital Project Type
FY 16-17 

Budget
 Equipment Replacement 381,000
 Major Rehabilitation 534,000
 Major Capital Outlay 5,670,000
Total $6,585,000

Asset Management Capital Project Budget Summary



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 45 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

project, such as project design, can be identified and funded without budgeting the full estimated 
project cost. For these multi-year contracts, unspent funds from the first fiscal year will typically 
be carried over to the next fiscal year until the project is completed. Accordingly, the RWP 
Capital Plan presented herein is a subsequent extension of the plan presented in the adopted FY 
15-16 Budget that has been carried forward by one year. However, changes to the plan typically 
occur from year to year as more information becomes available. In addition to these yearly 
adjustments, RWP staff were further informed by a Partial Facilites Plan Update that was 
completed in June of 2014. Those changes were reflected in the MWMC FY 15-16 budget and 
continue forward in the FY 16-17 for the 5-Year Capital Plan.  
 
Exhibit 13 displays the MWMC 5-Year Capital Plan programs budget, which includes 
$79,742,600 in planned capital projects and $12,540,600 planned asset management capital 
projects for an overall 5-Year Capital Plan Budget of $92,283,200. 
 

  

 
 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 TOTAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS
Biosolids Management
 Poplar Harvest Management Services 772,000 868,000 304,000 4,000 4,000 1,952,000
Non-Process Facilities and Facilities Planning
 Facility Plan Engineering Services 99,600 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 379,600
 Capacity Mgmt Operations Maint (CMOM) 30,000 30,000
 Comprehensive Facility Plan 713,000 742,000 1,455,000
Conveyance Systems
 Glenwood Pump Station 926,000 926,000
Plant Performance Improvements
 Increase Digestion Capacity 14,720,000 14,720,000
 Operations & Maintenance Building Improvements 13,970,000 13,970,000
 WPCF Lagoon Removal/Decommissioning 390,000 4,300,000 4,690,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Pre-Implementation 244,000 148,000 392,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 (1) 131,000 324,000 4,838,000 4,796,000 2,739,000 12,828,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 2 1,500,000 3,500,000 4,000,000 9,000,000
 Aeration Basin Improvements - Phase 2 4,050,000 11,850,000 15,900,000
 Tertiary Filtration - Phase 2 3,500,000 3,500,000
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $30,356,600 $6,423,000 $8,380,000 $12,420,000 $22,163,000 $79,742,600

ASSET MANAGEMENT
 Equipment Replacement 381,000 972,000 588,000 617,000 648,000 3,206,000
 Major Rehab 534,000 813,300 763,500 607,000 566,800 3,284,600
 Major Capital Outlay(2) 5,670,000 380,000 6,050,000
TOTAL ASSET MANAGEMENT $6,585,000 $1,785,300 $1,731,500 $1,224,000 $1,214,800 $12,540,600

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS $36,941,600 $8,208,300 $10,111,500 $13,644,000 $23,377,800 $92,283,200

  (1) Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 budget includes Mill Race Sponsorship ($200,000) and Cedar Creek Sponsorship ($250,000). 
  (2) FY16-17 includes $5.3 million for Biogas Cogeneration which is a multi-year project, a detail sheet is located at the end of this document. 

EXHIBIT 13

Regional Wastewater  5-Year Capital Programs

Note: 



CAPITAL PROJECT DETAIL 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 46 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

POPLAR MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
 
Description:        The Biocycle Farm comprises nearly 400 acres of hybrid poplar trees, which were 

planted as three management units (MUs). The MUs were initially planted in 2004, 2007, 
and 2009 and are managed on regulated 12-year rotations. This project develops a harvest 
management plan for the Biocycle Farm through market collaboration and refinement of 
poplar harvest and planting practices. The project ensures the timely harvest of the initial 
plantings in each MU within the regulatory 12-year rotation limit and subsequent 
replanting.  

 
Status:    18% completed. MU-1, comprising 156 acres, was fully harvested in 2013-2015. MU-1 

will be replanted in FY 15-16 with replanting activities extending into FY 16-17. MU-2 
was partially harvested in FY 15-16 for test marketing of veneer. Complete harvest of 
MU-2 will resume in FY 16-17. 

 
Justification:      Land use regulatory requirement for operation of the Biocycle Farm. 
 
Project Driver:   Land Use Compatibility Statement (LUCS) issued by Lane County.  
 
Project Trigger:   Oregon ORS/OAR and NRCS rules dictating that exclusive farm use lands and farmed 

wetland status agricultural lands requiring agriculturally managed hybrid poplar 
plantations must be limited to 12-year rotation duration.  

 
Project Type:    100% Performance  
       
Improvement  
  SDC Eligibility:      0% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $2,346,000 for harvest and administration of the initial plantings across all three MUs. 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 13-14 = $116,009; FY 14-15 = $114,465; FY 15-16 = $163,526; FY 16-17 = 

$772,000; FY 17-18 = $868,000; FY 18-19 = $304,000; FY 19-20 = $4,000; FY 20-21 = 
4,000 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19    2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $230,474 $163,526 $772,000 $868,000 $304,000   $4,000 $4,000 $2,346,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $230,474 $163,526 $772,000 $868,000 $304,000 $4,000 $4,000 $2,346,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 47 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

FACILITY PLAN ENGINEERING SERVICES 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Description:        Engineering services for analysis, project definition, cost estimating, and general 

consultation regarding the 20-Year Facilities Plan. 
 
Status:    This year, work continued on assessment of biogas utilization alternatives, which used a 

Triple Bottom Line (TBL) approach to inform staff recommendations. Based on TBL 
results, regional program staff recommended implementation of a project to expand the 
WPCF’s combined heat and power (CHP) production capacity from 0.8 to 1.2 
megawatts.  This would allow the plant to more fully utilize the biogas for power and 
heat production and minimize biogas flaring. However, due to recent changes in Eugene 
Water and Electric Board’s (EWEB’s) proposed power pricing structure, the project was 
halted while regional program staff revises the economic assessment of the CHP 
expansion project.  Moving forward, staff anticipates additional need for Facilities Plan 
Engineering Services to support ongoing upgrades and infrastructure needs at MWMC 
facilities.  

 
Justification:      Projects were developed to varying levels of specificity in the 20-Year Facilities Plan and 

there is an on-going need for ongoing technical and engineering resources to help in 
further refining projects and generally assisting with implementation of the plan. Another 
need addressed by this resource is assurance that the new improvements maintain the 
overall integrity of the plant in terms of treatment processes and hydraulics. This task 
also provides ongoing planning work related to items not addressed by the 2004 MWMC 
Facilities Plan. 

 
Project Driver:  Ongoing goal to efficiently follow and accommodate the upgrades resulting from the 20-

Year Facilities Plan. 
 
Project Trigger:   On-going need.   
 
Estimated Project Cost:  $933,639  
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 06-07 = $50,000; FY 07-08 = $50,044; FY 08-09 = $25,467; FY 09-10 = $31,829;  
   FY 10-11 = $69,419; FY 11-12 = $8,699; FY 12-13 = $36,690; FY 13-14 = $146,491;  
   FY 14-15 = $67,453; FY 15-16 = $67,947; FY 16-17 = $99,600; FY 17-18 = $70,000;  
   FY 18-19 = $70,000; FY 19-20 = $70,000; FY 20-21 = $70,000      

 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19    2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 
Other  $486,092  $67,947  $99,600 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $933,639 
Total Cost $486,092 $67,947 $99,600 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $933,639 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 48 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

CAPACITY MANAGEMENT, OPERATIONS, AND MAINTENANCE (CMOM) 
 

 
 
 
Description:        This project (formerly identified as the WWFMP Update project) supports and guides ongoing 

collection system capacity management, operations and maintenance (CMOM) programs to address 
Rainfall Derived Inflow and Infiltration (RDII) and sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs). The 
MWMC’s NPDES permit requires wet weather planning and prohibits SSOs. DEQ’s SSO 
Enforcement Internal Management Directive identifies CMOM as an acceptable programmatic 
approach to help ensure compliance. The MWMC’s CMOM program provides staff resources and 
engineering consultant services to support the implementation of CMOM programs owned and 
operated by the two partner cities within the MWMC’s service area (i.e., Eugene and Springfield). 
The effort funded through this project provides or supports workshop organization and facilitation, 
guidance development and documentation, technical analysis, standards establishment, and CMOM 
gap analysis assistance.  

 
Status:     Last year, both partner cities completed CMOM program implementation plans building on the gap 

analyses they performed in the prior year. Summaries of these plans were presented to the MWMC 
on August 14, 2015. In addition, regional program staff hired a consultant to perform a study of 
private lateral program approaches. A goal of this study was to recommend steps that partner 
agencies could follow to develop private lateral programs to reduce the amount of RDII entering 
the collection system. A summary of study findings was presented to the MWMC on March 13, 
2015. Finally, regional program staff organized a workshop attended by staff from the two partner 
cities and representatives from three Oregon wastewater agencies who have implemented 
successful private lateral programs. The goal of the workshop was to share information on private 
lateral programs between the agencies. A debriefing meeting was held shortly after the workshop to 
discuss and identify potential next steps for each partner city. Going forward, regional wastewater 
program staff will continue to facilitate further discussion and potential implementation of private 
lateral programs.  

 
Project Driver:   Meet new NPDES requirements concerning SSOs, wet weather planning, and RDII reduction 

through a CMOM program approach.  
 
Project Trigger:   Address NPDES Permit requirements related to SSOs and RDII.   
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility:   11% 
 
Estimated Project Cost:   $500,604 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 05-06 = $6,028; FY 06-07 = $86,895; FY 07-08 = $42,589; FY 08-09 = $9,562  
   FY 09-10 = $14,724; FY 10-11 = $7,538; FY 11-12 = $26,909; FY 12-13 = $123,251;  

FY 13-14 = $91,671; FY 14-15 = $28,379; FY 15-16 = $33,058; FY 16-17 = 30,000  
 

 
 
 

Expenditure/Category Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19  2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 
Other  $437,546  $33,058  $30,000  $0  $0 $0 $0 $500,604 
Total Cost $437,546 $33,058 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500,604 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 49 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

COMPREHENSIVE FACILITIES PLAN UPDATE NO.1 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Description:        This will be the first MWMC Comprehensive Facilities Plan Update since the 2004 

MWMC Facilities Plan. This Comprehensive Facilities Plan Update effort will consider a 
20-year planning horizon and will draw on the most recent plant data, current regulatory 
landscape, and available technology in order to ensure the MWMC continues to meet 
future regulations, environmental standards, and customer needs.      

 
Status:    Planned for future implementation.  
 
Justification:      Plan future conveyance and treatment upgrades and/or expansions to meet regulatory 

requirements, preserve public health and regional water quality standards. 
 
Project Driver:   Provides comprehensive facilities planning to develop the capital program for the 

upcoming 20-year period once the MWMC receives new regulatory requirements under 
the next NPDES permit renewal.    

 
Project Trigger:   Planning cycle initiated under the 2004 Facilities Plan and later modified to match 

evolving NPDES permit renewal schedule, now estimated for 2017 at the earliest.  
 
Project Type:    Facilities Plan   
       
Improvement  
  SDC Eligibility:      21% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $1,457,280 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 14-15 = $2,280; FY 17-18 = $713,000; FY 18-19 = $742,000 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19    2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 
Other  $2,280  $0  $0 $713,000 $742,000 $0 $0 $1,457,280 
Total Cost $2,280 $0 $0 $713,000 $742,000 $0 $0 $1,457,280 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 50 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

GLENWOOD PUMP STATION UPGRADE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: Expand Glenwood pump station capacity. The existing pump station is built to be 

expandable in capacity when the need arises. Two pumps are installed with the 
expandability to add up to two additional pumps when needed. 

 
Status: The project is anticipated to start design development in 2018 with consultant services. 

The scope of work is planned to add one wastewater pumping system. 
 

Justification: Additional pumping capacity will be required at this MWMC pump station to handle 
increasing flows in the Glenwood area (Springfield) and the Laurel Hill area (Eugene). 

 
Project Driver: Keep up with capacity needs, maintain required pumping redundancy, and prevent 

overflows upstream of the Glenwood pump station. 
 
Project Trigger: Planning work in 2014 anticipates that a third pump to increase capacity should be 

operational by about year 2019. The timing will be impacted by the rate and type of 
development in the area and efforts to minimize infiltration and inflow that impact the 
Glenwood pump station. The MWMC Partial Facilities Plan Update document dated June 
2014 recommended moving the initial budget year to FY 18-19 as shown below. 

 
Project Type: 100% Capacity 
 
Improvement 
SDC Eligibility: 38% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $926,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow: FY 18-19 = $864,000; FY 19-20 = $62,000 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19   2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $926,000   $0 $0 $926,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $926,000 $0 $0 $926,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 51 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

INCREASE DIGESTION CAPACITY 
 

 
 
 
Description:        Installation of a fourth digester for expanded production of Class B biosolids. This 

project also included supporting the plant-wide landscaping construction work that was 
completed in December of 2012. 

 
Status:    As of January 29, 2016, the project to Increase Digestion Capacity is in the design phase 

for a fourth digester and construction should start in fall of 2016. The MWMC has three 
existing digesters. 

 
Justification:      Continue to meet the requirements for Class B digestion with the ability to take one 

digester out of service for cleaning and/or repairs.    
 
Project Driver:  Addresses the need for anaerobic digestion capacity. The 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan 

considers an option to upgrade the existing digestion process to meet Class A biosolids 
standards as a strategy to secure a wider range of beneficial end-use options and increase 
program flexibility. Since that time, the MWMC has effectively expanded beneficial 
application of Class B biosolids with expansion of the Biocycle Poplar Farm, and through 
working with private sector end-users.           

 
Project Trigger: Estimates indicate that expanded digestion facilities will be needed by 2017 or 2018. The 

design phase started in 2015.     
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 54.3% 
 
Estimated Project Cost:  $16,653,170 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 11-12 = $139,028; FY 12-13 = $44,142; FY 13-14 = $0; FY 14-15 = $312,932 
 FY 15-16 = $1,437,068; FY 16-17 = $7,050,000; FY 17-18 = $7,600,000;  
 FY 18-19 = $70,000 

 
 

Expenditure/Category: 
Prior 

Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19  2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $496,102 $1,437,068 $14,720,000 $0 $0   $0 $0 $16,653,170 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $496,102 $1,437,068 $14,720,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,653,170 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 52 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS  
 

     
 

     Operations Building       Maintenance Building 
                   Aerial 

     Maintenance Building ISC Modular Building 

  
Description: This project will update and expand the Operations and Maintenance (O&M) support 

facilities at the Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF). The support facilities to be 
updated and expanded on include the Maintenance Building, Administrative/Operations 
Building, and the temporary Industrial Source Control (ISC) building. The improvements 
will include a new laboratory building located where the temporary ISC building is 
currently.   

         
Status: As of December 29, 2015: The project team with direction from the Architectural 

Consultant created three alternatives with cost estimates to consider based on information 
gathered during the pre-design (architectural programming) phase. Staff received 
Commission approval to move forward with the design of Alternative #2 which include 
modifications and additions to the Maintenance and Administration/Operations Buildings 
and design a new building for laboratory functions. The project is in the design phase, 
and construction bidding is anticipated in summer or fall of 2016.     

 
Justification:   The original design for the O&M Buildings at the WPCF was completed in the late 

1970s. Since that time, use of the O&M Buildings have changed substantially due to 
modifications in the workforce, advancing technology, regulatory changes, and an 
increase in staff to support additional facilities Building codes, have also changed during 
this time, necessitating upgrades. Lastly, the ISC modular building was installed as a 
temporary structure in 1996 and has since reached the end of its useful life. 

     
Project Driver: The need to update and/or replace the existing O&M support facilities is driven by the 

need to provide a safe and efficient work environment for WPCF staff. Many of these 
changes stem from a changing wastewater/environmental business since the MWMC 
original construction that occurred in the early 1980’s.   

 
Project Trigger: As needed, due to expansion and changes related to the MWMC facilities and safety.   
 
Estimated Project Cost: $14,900,000             
 
Improvement 
SDC Eligibility: To be determined   
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 14-15 = $180,833; FY 15-16 = $749,167; FY 16-17 = $4,400,000;  
   FY 17-18 = $6,500,000; FY 18-19 = $3,070,000 (estimated cash flow related to 

administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 

 

Expenditure/Category: 
Prior 

Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19   2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $180,833 $749,167 $13,970,000 $0 $0   $0 $0 $14,900,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $180,833 $749,167 $13,970,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,900,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 53 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

WPCF ONSITE LAGOON  
 

 
 
 
Description: This project decommissions the existing biosolids lagoon at the Water Pollution Control 

Facility (WPCF).  
         
Status: As of January 13, 2016:  The project is in pre-design phase and cost estimations are 

preliminary. The MWMC hired a consultant in December of 2014 to create a bid package 
to decommission the lagoon. Lagoon decommissioning site work is anticipated in 2018 
but the schedule might change based on progress of the construction of the forth digester 
improvements.    

 
Justification:   The lagoon was constructed in 1979 as a temporary biosolids storage facility while the 

Biosolids Management Facility was under construction. Since that time it has also served 
as a temporary storage lagoon to support digester cleaning operations. However, the 
lagoon no longer serves the purpose for which it was originally constructed and does not 
meet current design standards for wastewater lagoons. 

     
Project Driver: The lagoon can no longer provide the biosolids capacity for which it was intended nor 

cost effectively continue to support digester cleaning operations. The lagoon is almost 
full of accumulated rainwater and residual solids. Therefore, the decision was made to 
decommission the lagoon and change the process of cleaning the digesters.  

 
Project Trigger: The WPCF lagoon no longer functions as originally designed. 
  
Estimated Project Cost: $5,000,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: Not applicable   
 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 13-14 = $1,769; FY 14-15 = $128,550; FY 15-16 = $179,681; FY 16-17 = $33,000;  
   FY 17-18 = $542,000; FY 18-19 = $4,115,000  

 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: 
Prior 

Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $130,319 $179,691 $390,000 $4,300,000 $0   $0 $0 $5,000,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $130,319 $179,681 $390,000 $4,300,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 54 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

THERMAL LOAD MITIGATION PRE-IMPLEMENTATION  
 

    
  

 
Description:        This project includes the study and planning of thermal load mitigation measures 

including recycled water feasibility studies, riparian shading projects, and water quality 
trading credit development, as well as associated permit negotiation and legal strategy 
related to the temperature total maximum daily loads (TMDL) and NPDES permit 
renewal.   

 
Status:    Two of three planned phases of thermal load strategy planning have been completed with 

recommendations to develop opportunities for recycled water demonstration projects and 
partnerships in watershed restoration for temperature credits. The third phase of study 
commenced in FY 15-16 and will continue in FY 16-17.  

 
Justification:      Provides planning of infrastructure, projects, and collaborative agreements needed so that 

thermal loads are reduced on the Willamette River while providing additional 
environmental and community benefits. 

 
Project Driver:   Address NPDES permit thermal load compliance related to Willamette River TMDL 

temperature requirements.   
 
Project Trigger:   Planning necessary for ongoing compliance with Oregon’s temperature standard.  
 
Project Type:         100% Performance 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 26% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $818,595  
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 13-14 = $ 295,995; FY 14-15 = $48,908; FY 15-16 = $81,692; FY 16-17 = $244,000; 

FY-17-18 = $148,000 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 
Other  $344,903  $81,692 $244,000 $148,000 $0 $0 $0 $818,595 
Total Cost $344,903 $81,692 $244,000 $148,000 $0 $0 $0 $818,595 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 55 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

THERMAL LOAD MITIGATION – IMPLEMENTATION 1  
 

           
 
 
Description:        This project implements thermal load mitigation projects strategized for regulatory 

compliance and additional environmental and community benefits. The projects may 
include recycled water use expansion at MWMC facilities and/or extension of recycled 
water services to community partners, water quality trading credit strategies through 
shade credit investments, and collaborative partnerships for permit compliance. The 
recycled water projects may include additional treatment, disinfection, pumping, pipeline, 
and distribution/irrigation systems. 

 
Status:    Pilot-scale riparian shade projects are currently being implemented under a 25-year 

contract agreement with The Freshwater Trust. Additional project opportunities are being 
evaluated for future implementation under the Thermal Load Mitigation: Pre-
Implementation Project. 

 
Justification:      Meet future thermal load permit limits and improve water quality. Implementation of the 

thermal load compliance strategy developed under pre-implementation planning phase. 
 
Project Driver:   Address NPDES permit thermal load compliance related to Willamette River total 

maximum daily loads (TMDL) temperature requirements.   
 
Project Trigger:   Project implementation necessary for ongoing compliance with Oregon’s temperature 

standard.  
 
Project Type:         100% Performance 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 26% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $13,165,470  
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 13-14 = $78,925; FY 14-15 = $87,116; FY 15-16 = $171,429; FY 16-17 = $131,000; 

FY 17-18 = $324,000; FY 18-19 = $4,838,000; FY 19-20 = $4,796,000;  
   FY 20-21 = $2,739,000 
                                                   
 

 
 

Expenditure/Category: 
Prior 

Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $166,041 $171,429 $131,000 $324,000 $4,838,000   $4,796,000 $2,739,000 $13,165,470 
Other  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $166,041 $171,429 $131,000 $324,000 $4,838,000 $4,796,000 $2,739,000 $13,165,470 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 56 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

THERMAL LOAD MITIGATION – IMPLEMENTATION 2  
  

        
 
 
Description:        This project anticipates future expansion of recycled water uses, riparian restoration, 

and/or other thermal load and watershed management strategies for regulatory 
compliance and environmental and community benefits. These projects are subject to the 
outcomes of the regulatory scenarios and goals associated with changing conditions of 
total maximum daily loads (TMDL) implementation, community and climatic factors, 
and emerging water quality/quantity needs. 

 
Status:    To be planned. 
 
Justification:      Ongoing fulfillment of thermal load mitigation strategic plans. 
 
Project Driver:   Address NPDES permit thermal load compliance related to Willamette River TMDL 

temperature requirements, other emerging water quality regulatory drivers, and 
community needs. 

 
Project Trigger:   Compliance with NPDES discharge permit. 
 
Project Type:    100% Performance 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 26% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $9,000,000 (plus up to $8,000,000 anticipated project need in the out-years FY 21-22 and 

beyond for a total project cost of $17,000,000).  
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 18-19 = $1,500,000; FY 19-20 = $3,500,000; FY 20-21 = $4,000,000 
 
                                                       
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,500,000   $3,500,000 $4,000,000 $9,000,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,500,000 $3,500,000 $4,000,000 $9,000,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 57 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

AERATION BASIN IMPROVEMENTS – PHASE 2                     
 

 
 
Description:        Aeration Basin (Phase 2):  Add step feed, anoxic selectors, and fine bubble diffusers to 4 

of the 8 cells of the aeration basins and make hydraulic improvements. This project was 
originally the North Aeration Basin Improvements project; however the Phase 1 
study/design phase showed that improvements to the four eastern most basins as a first 
phase would allow for better hydraulics and more operational flexibility.   

     
    In January 2016, the project scope and cost (estimate $750K) increased to include 

replacement of existing aeration basin gates, valves and spray system.      
 
Status:    The Aeration Basin (Phase 2) project is anticipated to start design development in fiscal 

year 19-20 with consultant services.    
 
Justification:      Increase the dry weather aeration basin treatment capacity with respect to ammonia (with 

nitrification) and increase the wet weather treatment capacity.  
 
Project Driver:   National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit includes ammonia 

limit requiring nitrification in dry weather and expansion of wet weather capacity to treat 
wet weather flows to meet NPDES permit monthly and weekly suspended solids limits. 

 
Project Trigger:  Address water quality requirements (need to evaluate the requirements based on the 

MWMC next NPDES permit renewal that is not anticipated to be issued in 2016).   
       
 
Project Type:       50% Capacity; 50% Performance 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 58.7% 
 
Estimated Project Cost:  $15,900,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 19-20 = $1,450,000; FY 20-21 = $6,800,000; FY 21-22 = $6,950,000;  
   FY 22-23 = $700,000 

 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19    2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0          $0 $4,050,000 $11,850,000 $15,900,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,050,000 $11,850,000 $15,900,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 58 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

TERTIARY FILTRATION - PHASE 2     
 

 
 
 
Description:        The phased work program will install infrastructure/support facilities for 30 mgd of filters 

for tertiary filtration of secondary treated effluent. Phase 2 is planned to install filter 
system technology sufficient for another 10 mgd of treatment that will increase the total 
filtration capacity to 20 mgd. The Phase 3 project will install the remaining filtration 
technology to meet the capacity needs identified in the 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan.   

 
    In January 2016, the project scope and cost (estimate $530K) increased to include 

updating electrical switchgear, and install tertiary filter flushing headers/pipe vents. 
 
Status:    Tertiary Filtration (Phase 2) project is anticipated to start design development in fiscal 

year 20-21. The MWMC has an existing equipment agreement (ending October 2017) to 
allow for additional filtration equipment at a defined price.   

 
Justification:      The 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan proposes phasing filters on a phased work program.  

Filtration provides high quality secondary effluent to help meet permit requirements and 
potential Class A recycled water.    

 
Project Driver: Performance reliability to meet the dry weather NPDES total suspended solids limits of 

less than 10 mg/L, reuse development, and compliance with effluent limits during peak 
flow conditions. 

 
Project Trigger:  NPDES permit compliance for total suspended solids (TSS): Dry weather maximum 

month flow in excess of 49 mgd. Also, provide higher quality effluent so that reuse 
options can be developed.  

 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 41.6% 
 
Estimated Project Cost:   $14,030,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 20-21 = $1,600,000; FY 21-22 = $5,800,000; FY 22-23 = $6,630,000  
 

 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19  2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 59 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

BIOGAS COGENERATION SYSTEM REPLACEMENT 
 

 
 
Description: Increase capacity of the combined heat and power generation system (also known as a 

cogeneration system), located at the Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF), to 
maximize biogas utilization.  

 
Status: As of January 20, 2016, design of a larger capacity cogeneration system is 50% complete.  

Further design efforts are paused until definitive long-term financial determinations can 
be made. 

 
Justification: This project will beneficially utilize nearly 100% of generated biogas, opposed to 

currently flaring approximately 30%. 
 
Project Driver: Maximize the beneficial use of biogas, following the recommendation of the Biogas 

Utilization Study. 
 
Project Trigger: Existing cogen unit is scheduled to need a major rebuild by March 2017. 
 
Project Type: 100% Performance 
 
Improvement 
SDC Eligibility: Not applicable 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $6,100,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow: FY 15-16 = $800,000; FY 16-17 = $3,200,000; FY 17-18 = $2,100,000 

 
  
 
 

 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $800,0000 $5,300,000 $0          $0 $0 $0 $6,100,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $800,000 $5,300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,100,000 



Preliminary
REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM BUDGET

AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM

Fiscal Year 2016-17

kraa3075
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



 
Preliminary 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
 

BUDGET 
and 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM 
Fiscal Year 2016-17 

 
 
 
The Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission adopted the Operating Budget and Capital 
Improvements Program (CIP) for FY 16-17 on April 8, 2016. The Budget and CIP are currently 
scheduled for consideration and ratification by the Springfield City Council on May 2, 2016, the 
Eugene City Council on May 9, 2016, and the Lane County Board of Commissioners on May 17, 
2016. The Commission is scheduled for final consideration and ratification of the Budget and CIP 
on June 10, 2016. 

 
COMMISSION MEMBERS: 

 
Joe Pishioneri, President (Springfield) 

Bill Inge, Vice President (Lane County) 
George Brown (Eugene) 

Doug Keeler  (Springfield) 
Hilary Loud, (Eugene) 
Walt Meyer (Eugene) 

Faye Stewart (Lane County) 
 
 

STAFF: 
 

Anette Spickard, MWMC Executive Officer/Springfield Development and Public Works Director 
 Matthew Stouder, MWMC General Manager/Springfield Environmental Services Manager 
 Michelle Cahill, Eugene Wastewater Division Director 
 Robert Duey, MWMC Finance Officer/Springfield Finance Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 

www.mwmcpartners.org 
  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

   
 

METROPOLITAN WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT COMMISSION 
 

Preliminary FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PROGRAM 
for the 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
Budget Message .....................................................................................................................   1 
Acronyms and Explanations .................................................................................................... 3 
Regional Wastewater Program Overview .................................................................... ..........  5 

Exhibit 1:  Interagency Coordination Structure ........................................................... ..  11 
 
BUDGET SUMMARY 
Regional Wastewater Program Budget and Program Summary ..........................................   12 

Exhibit 2:  Regional Operating Budget Summary ........................................................... 12 
Exhibit 3:  Line Item Summary by Program Area ........................................................... 14 
Exhibit 4:  Budget Summary and Comparison ................................................................ 15 

 
RESERVE FUNDS 
Regional Wastewater Program Reserve Funds ...................................................................... 19 

Exhibit 5:  Operating Reserves Line Item Budget ........................................................... 20 
 
OPERATING PROGRAMS 
Regional Wastewater Program Staffing ................................................................................. 23 

Exhibit 6:  Regional Wastewater Program Organizational Chart .................................... 23 
Exhibit 7:  Regional Wastewater Program Position Summary ........................................ 24 

Springfield Program and Budget Detail ................................................................................. 26 
Exhibit 8:  Springfield Administration Program Budget Summary................................. 29 
Exhibit 9:  Springfield Administration Line Item Summary ........................................... 30 

Eugene Program and Budget Detail ....................................................................................... 31 
Exhibit 10: Eugene Operations & Maintenance Program Budget Summary .................. 35 
Exhibit 11: Eugene Operations & Maintenance Line Item Summary ............................. 36 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAM 
Regional Wastewater Capital Improvements Program .......................................................... 37 

Exhibit 12: Capital Program Budget Summary ............................................................... 41 
Exhibit 13: Capital Program 5-Year Plan ........................................................................ 45 

 
CAPITAL PROJECT DETAIL 
Capital Program Project Detail Sheets ................................................................................... 46 
 



PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget Message 
 

 

 Page 1 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

BUDGET MESSAGE 
 
Members of the Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) 
MWMCs’ Customers and Partnering Agencies 
 
We are pleased to present the Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission’s (MWMC) 
budget for fiscal year 2016-17 (FY 16-17). This budget funds operations, administration, and 
capital projects planned for the Regional Wastewater Program (RWP). The MWMC 
administration and Capital Improvements Program (CIP) components of the budget are reflected 
in the City of Springfield’s RWP budget. The operations, maintenance, equipment replacement, 
and major rehabilitation components are reflected in the City of Eugene’s RWP budget. The 
Cities’ Industrial Pretreatment Programs, managed locally in compliance with the MWMC 
Model Ordinance, also are included in the RWP budget.  
 
The MWMC has been quietly providing high-quality wastewater services to the metropolitan 
area for more than 30 years. The combined Eugene-Springfield population is 220,840, with the 
MWMC providing wastewater services for approximately 77,200 residential and commercial 
service connections to the Regional Wastewater Facilities. The MWMC is committed to clean 
water, the community’s health, and the local environment. 
 

 
 
This budget reflects a continued focus on design and construction of capital improvements 
planned to ensure that operation of the Regional Wastewater Facilities meets environmental 
regulations, and that adequate capacity will be provided to meet the needs of a growing service 
area. The Capital budget for FY 16-17 is $36,941,600. Approximately $20 million of the total 
capital budget will not be spent in FY 16-17, but is included to enable MWMC to commit to 
contracts that will occur in FY 16-17 for projects that span multiple years.  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission Budget Message

The FY 16- 17 RWP Operating Budget for personnel services, materials and services and capital
outlay expense is $ 17, 700,630, reflecting a 2% increase when compared to the prior year adopted
budget. The FY 16- 17 budget includes Debt Service payments that total $5, 504,462 as scheduled
for repayment of$20. 8 million in Clean Water SRF loans, plus$ 33.25 million in revenue bonds
issued in 2016 to fund the Facilities Plan capital improvements. In FY 15- 16, the 2006 revenue
bonds were retired early, along with an advance refunding on the 2008 revenue bonds for interest
cost saving, resulting in the 2016 revenue bonds. As such, the table below reflects a lower
amount in beginning cash, reserves and debt service expenses in FY 16- 17.

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM

RESOURCE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

ADOPTED AMENDED ADOPTED

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET

2015- 16 2015- 16 2016- 17
RESOURCES

Beginning Cash 107, 167, 940      $ 110, 160, 579       $ 76, 342, 200
User Fees 30, 987,500 30,987,500 31, 327,500
Internal Transfers 16, 878,904 21, 428,904 13, 570, 191

Miscellaneous 1, 273, 800 1, 273, 800 1, 061, 110
System Development Charges 1, 100,000 1, 100, 000 1, 200, 000
Interest 434,300 434,300 403, 200

157,842, 444      $ 165, 385,083      $ 123, 904,201
EXPENDITURES

Reserves 92, 512, 921       $ 36, 935, 342 50, 187,318
Capital Projects 21, 938, 604 44, 322, 560 36, 941, 600
Internal Transfers 16, 878,904 21, 428,904 13, 570, 191
Operations 13, 516, 071 13, 636, 525 13, 899, 707

Debt Service 9, 163, 743 44, 808, 743 5, 504,462
Administration 3, 832, 201 3, 787,009 3, 800,923

157, 842, 444      $ 165, 385, 083      $ 123, 904, 201

For FY 16- 17 user fee revenues( including septage service and SDC compliance charges) are
projected at$ 31, 327,500. This level of revenue is based on a recommended 2% increase in
regional wastewater user fees in order to continue to meet the net revenue objectives.

In summary, the FY 16- 17 budget implements the Commission' s adopted Financial Plan
policies, funding operations and administration sufficiently to maintain existing levels of service
and to meet the environmental performance necessary for compliance with the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System( NPDES) permit issued to the MWMC and the two Cities.

Respectfully submitted,

g7tdaf

r•  v   ,/   
Ckth       -  .A---

Anette Spickard

MWMC Executive Officer

Page 2 FY 16- 17 BUDGET AND CIP



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Acronyms and Explanations 
 

 

 Page 3 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

ACRONYMS AND EXPLANATIONS 
 
AMCP – Asset Management Capital Program. The AMCP implements the projects and activities 
necessary to maintain functionality, lifespan, and effectiveness of the MWMC facility assets on an 
ongoing basis. The AMCP is administered by the City of Eugene for the MWMC.  
 
ARRA – American Reinvestment and Recovery Act. This funding was part of the federal 
government’s economic stimulus program and issued loans under favorable conditions to 
stimulate infrastructure and capital project investment.  
 
BMF – Biosolids Management Facility. The Biosolids Management Facility is an important part 
of processing wastewater where biosolids generated from the treatment of wastewater are turned 
into nutrient rich, beneficial organic materials.  
 
CIP – Capital Improvements Program. This program implements projects outlined in the 2004 
Facilities Plan and includes projects that improve performance, or expand treatment or hydraulic 
capacity of existing facilities.  
 
CMOM – Capacity Management and Maintenance Program. The CMOM program addresses wet 
weather issues such as inflow and infiltration with the goal to eliminate sanitary sewer overflows 
to the extent possible and safeguard the hydraulic capacity of the regional wastewater treatment 
facility.  
 
CWSRF  – Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan 
program is a federal program administered by the Oregon DEQ that provides low-cost loans for 
the planning, design and construction of various water pollution control activities. (DEQ)  
 
EMS – Environmental Management System. An EMS is a framework to determine the 
environmental impacts of an organization’s business practices and develop strategies to address 
those impacts.  
 
ESD – Environmental Services Division. The ESD is a division of the City of Springfield’s 
Development and Public Works Department that promotes and protects the community’s health, 
safety, and welfare by providing professional leadership in the protection of the local 
environment, responsive customer service, and effective administration for the Regional 
Wastewater Program.  
 
IGA – Intergovernmental Agreement. Pursuant to ORS 190.010, ORS 190.080, and ORS 
190.085, the IGA is an agreement between the cities of Eugene and Springfield and Lane County 
that created the MWMC as an entity with the authority to provide resources and support as 
defined in the IGA for the Regional Wastewater Program. 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Acronyms and Explanations 
 

 

 Page 4 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

MWMC – Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission. The MWMC is the Commission 
responsible for the oversight of the Regional Wastewater Program. In this role, the MWMC 
protects the health and safety of our local environment by providing high-quality management of 
wastewater conveyance and treatment to the Eugene-Springfield community. The Commission is 
responsible for the oversight of the Regional Wastewater Program. 
 
NPDES – National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit. The NPDES permit program 
is administered by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) in fulfillment of 
federal Clean Water Act requirements. The NPDES permit includes planning and technology 
requirements as well as numeric limits on effluent water quality. 
 
RWP – Regional Wastewater Program. Under the oversight of the MWMC, the purpose of the 
RWP is to protect public health and safety and the environment by providing high quality 
wastewater management services to the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. The MWMC and 
the regional partners are committed to providing these services in a manner that will achieve, 
sustain, and promote balance between community, environmental, and economic needs while 
meeting customer service expectations. 
 
SDC – System Development Charge. SDCs are charges imposed on development so that 
government may recover the capital needed to provide sufficient capacity in infrastructure 
systems to accommodate the development. 
 
SRF –Clean Water State Revolving Fund. The Clean Water State Revolving Fund loan program 
is a federal program administered by the Oregon DEQ that provides low-cost loans for the 
planning, design and construction of various water pollution control activities. (DEQ)  
 
SSO –Sanitary Sewer Overflows. Discharges of raw sewage. 
 
TMDL – Total Maximum Daily Load. The federal Clean Water Act defines Total Maximum 
Daily Load as the maximum amount of any pollutant that can be safely assimilated by a waterway 
in one day without significant degradation of water quality.  
 
TSS – Total Suspended Solids. Organic and inorganic materials that are suspended in water.  
 
WPCF – Regional Water Pollution Control Facility. The WPCF is a state-of-the-art facility 
providing treatment of the wastewater coming from the Eugene/Springfield metropolitan area. 
The WPCF is located on River Avenue in Eugene. The treatment plant and 49 pump stations 
distributed across Eugene and Springfield operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year 
to collect and treat wastewater from homes, businesses and industries before returning the cleaned 
water, or effluent, to the Willamette River. Through advanced technology and processes, the 
facility cleans, on average, up to 30 million gallons of wastewater every day. 
 
WWFMP – Wet Weather Flow Management Plan. This plan evaluated and determined the most 
cost-effective combination of collection system and treatment facility upgrades needed to manage 
excessive wet weather wastewater flows in the Eugene/Springfield metropolitan area. 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 5 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
OVERVIEW 

The Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission 
The Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) was formed by Eugene, 
Springfield, and Lane County through an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) in 1977 to provide 
wastewater collection and treatment services for the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. The 
seven-member Commission is composed of members appointed by the City Councils of Eugene 
(3 representatives), Springfield (2 representatives) and the Lane County Board of Commissioners 
(2 representatives). Since its inception, the Commission, in accordance with the IGA, has been 
responsible for oversight of the Regional Wastewater Program (RWP) including: construction, 
maintenance, and operation of the regional sewerage facilities; adoption of financing plans; 
adoption of budgets, user fees and connection fees; adoption of minimum standards for industrial 
pretreatment and local sewage collection systems; and recommendations for the expansion of 
regional facilities to meet future community growth. Staffing and services have been provided in 
various ways over the 39 years of MWMC’s existence. Since 1983, the Commission has 
contracted with the Cities of Springfield and Eugene for all staffing and services necessary to 
maintain and support the RWP. Lane County’s partnership has involved participation on the 
Commission and support to the Lane County Metropolitan Wastewater Service District (CSD), 
which managed the proceeds and repayment of general obligation bonds issued to construct 
RWP facilities.  
 
Regional Wastewater Program Purpose and Key Outcomes 
The purpose of the RWP is to protect public health and safety and the environment by providing 
high quality wastewater management services to the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. The 
MWMC and the regional partners are committed to providing these services in a manner that 
will achieve, sustain, and promote balance between community, environmental, and economic 
needs while meeting customer service expectations. Since the mid-1990s, the Commission and 
RWP staff have worked together to identify key outcome areas within which to focus annual 
work plan and budget priorities. The FY 16-17 RWP work plans and budget reflect a focus on 
the following key outcomes or goals. In carrying out the daily activities of managing the regional 
wastewater system, we will strive to achieve and maintain: 
 

1. High environmental standards; 
2. Fiscal management that is effective and efficient; 
3. A successful intergovernmental partnership; 
4. Maximum reliability and useful life of regional assets and infrastructure;  
5. Public awareness and understanding of MWMC, the regional wastewater system, and 

MWMC’s objectives of maintaining water quality and a sustainable environment. 
 
The Commission believes that these outcomes, if achieved in the long term, will demonstrate 
success of the RWP in carrying out its purpose. In order to determine whether we are successful, 
indicators of performance and targets have been identified for each key outcome. Tracking 
performance relative to identified targets over time assists in managing the RWP to achieve 
desired results. The following indicators and performance targets provide an important 
framework for the development of the FY 16-17 RWP Operating Budget, Capital Improvements 
Program and associated work plans. 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 6 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Outcome 1:  Achieve and maintain high environmental standards. 

Indicators:  Performance:  
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 

 Amount of wastewater treated to 
water quality standards  

100%; 11.6   
billion gallons 

100%; 12   
billion gallons 

100%; 14.3    
billion gallons 

 Compliance with environmental 
performance requirements of all 
permits 

In compliance In compliance In compliance 

 MWMC target for high quality 
biosolids 

<50% EPA 
40CFR Part 

503.13 -Table 3 
Pollutant 

Concentrations: 
Policy Met 

<50% EPA 
40CFR Part 

503.13 -Table 3 
Pollutant 

Concentrations: 
Policy Met 

<50% EPA 
40CFR Part 

503.13  -Table 3 
Pollutant 

Concentrations: 
Policy Met 

 Volume of reclaimed water 
beneficially reused   

88 million 
gallons 

85 million 
gallons 

80 million  
gallons 

 Performance targets under the 
Environmental Management System 
are achieved 

100% of EMS 
targets met or on 

schedule 

100% of EMS 
targets met or on 

schedule 

100% of  EMS 
targets met or on 

schedule 
 
 
Outcome 2:  Achieve and maintain fiscal management that is effective and efficient. 

Indicators: Performance: 
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 

 Annual budget and rates meet 
MWMC Financial Plan policies 

Policies Met Policies Met Policies Met 

 Annual audited financial statements Clean Audit Clean Audit Clean Audit 

 Uninsured bond rating AA AA A 

 Reserves funded at target levels Yes Yes Yes 

 Net revenue to debt service coverage 
ratio 

2.33 >1.25 >1.25 

  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 7 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Outcome 3: Achieve and maintain a successful intergovernmental partnership. 

Indicators: Performance: 
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 
 

 Industrial Pretreatment Program 
implementation in compliance 
with state/federal requirements; 
audit findings addressed 
 

 
In compliance 

 
In compliance 

I 
n compliance 

 Capacity Management 
Operations and Maintenance 
(CMOM) Program development 

Adopted   
Regional CMOM 

Program Plan 

Implemented 
Regional CMOM 

Program Plan 

Implementation 
of Regional 

CMOM Program 
annual reporting 

 MWMC Facilities Plan projects 
consistent with CIP budget and 
schedule 

100% of initiated 
projects within 

budget and 50%  
(3 of 6 projects)  

on schedule 

100% of initiated 
projects within 

budget and 86%  
(6 of 7 projects)  

on schedule 

100% of initiated 
projects within 

budget and 50%  
on schedule 

 
 
 
Outcome 4:  Maximize reliability and useful life of regional assets and infrastructure. 

Indicators: Performance: 
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 

 Preventive maintenance completed 
on time (best practices benchmark    
is 90%) 

97% 95% 90% 

 Preventative maintenance to 
corrective maintenance ratio 
(benchmark 4:1-6:1) 

5.2:1 5:1 5:1 

 Emergency maintenance required 
(best practices benchmark is <2%    
of labor hours) 

0.2% 0.3% <2% 

 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 8 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Outcome 5:  Achieve and maintain public awareness and understanding of MWMC, the 
regional wastewater system, and MWMC’s objectives of maintaining water quality and a 
sustainable environment. 

Indicators: Performance: 
 FY 14-15 

Actual 
FY 15-16 

Estimated Actual 
FY 16-17 

Target 

 Create and distribute 
e-newsletters 

2 Newsletters 4 Newsletters Increase distribution 
by 15% and readership 

by 10% 

 Pollution prevention 
campaigns 

2 Campaigns 4 Campaigns 2 campaigns; reaching  
20% of residents in 

service area 

 Provide tours of the 
Water Pollution 
Control Facility 

20 Tours/about    
700 people 

 

27 Tours/more than 
700 people 

 

Provide tours for more 
than 750 people 

 

 MWMC website 
traffic 

Maintained visitor 
levels 

Maintain visitor  
levels 

Increase unique 
visitors by 15% 

 Community survey Completed survey 
and presented results 

Results used to 
develop 

Communications Plan 

Annual Review 

 Communications Plan -- Update completed Annual Review 

 Develop video series Designed and began 
production 

Final production 
completed and public 

release 

--- 

 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 9 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Roles and Responsibilities 
In order to effectively oversee and manage the RWP, the partner agencies provide all staffing 
and services to the MWMC. The following sections describe the roles and responsibilities of 
each of the partner agencies, and how intergovernmental coordination occurs on behalf of the 
Commission.  

City of Eugene 
The City of Eugene supports the RWP through representation on the MWMC, provision of 
operation and maintenance services, and active participation on interagency project teams and 
committees. Three of the seven MWMC members represent Eugene – two citizens and one City 
Councilor. Pursuant to the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), the Eugene Wastewater 
Division operates and maintains the Regional Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF), the 
Biosolids Management Facility (BMF) and associated residuals and reclaimed water activities, 
along with regional wastewater pumping stations and transmission sewers. In support of the 
RWP, the Division also provides technical services for wastewater treatment; management of 
equipment replacement and infrastructure rehabilitation; biosolids treatment and recycling; 
industrial source control (in conjunction with Springfield staff); and regional laboratory services 
for wastewater and water quality analyses. These services are provided under contract with the 
MWMC through the regional funding of 77.40 full-time equivalent (FTE) employees. 

City of Springfield 
The City of Springfield supports the RWP through representation on the MWMC, provision of 
MWMC administration services, and active coordination of and participation on interagency 
project teams and committees. Two MWMC members represent Springfield – one citizen and 
one City Councilor. Pursuant to the IGA, the Springfield Development and Public Works 
Director, and the Environmental Services Manager serve as the MWMC Executive Officer and 
General Manager, respectively. The Environmental Services Division and Finance Department 
staff provide ongoing staff support to the Commission and administration of the RWP in the 
following areas: legal and risk management services; financial management and accounting; 
coordination and management of public policy; regulatory and permit compliance issues; 
coordination between the Commission and the governing bodies; long-range capital project 
planning, design, and construction management; coordination of public information, education, 
and citizen involvement programs; and coordination and development of regional budgets, rate 
proposals, and revenue projections. Springfield staff also provides local implementation of the 
Industrial Pretreatment Program, as well as billing coordination and customer service. These 
services are provided under contract with the MWMC through the regional funding of 14.58 FTE 
of Development and Public Works Department staff and 0.88 FTE of Finance Department staff, 
for a total 15.46 FTE as reflected in the FY 16-17 Budget. 

Lane County 
The Board of County Commissioners support the RWP through representation on the MWMC, 
including two MWMC members that represent Lane County – one citizen and one County 
Commissioner. Lane County’s partnership initailly included providing support to manage the 
proceeds and repayment of the RWP general obligation bonds to finance the local share of the 
RWP facilities construction. These bonds were paid in full in 2002. The County, while not 
presently providing sewerage, has the authority under its charter to do so. The Urban Growth 
Boundary includes the two Cities (urban lands) and certain unincorporated areas surrounding the 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 10 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Cities which lies entirely within the County. Federal funding policy requires sewage treatment 
and disposal within the Urban Growth Boundary to be provided on a unified, metropolitan basis.  

Interagency Coordination 
The effectiveness of the MWMC and the RWP depends on extensive coordination, especially 
between Springfield and Eugene staff, who provide ongoing program support. This coordination 
occurs in several ways. The Springfield ESD/MWMC General Manager and the Eugene 
Wastewater Division Director coordinate regularly to ensure adequate communication and 
consistent implementation of policies and practices as appropriate. The Eugene and Springfield 
Industrial Pretreatment Program supervisors and staff meet regularly to ensure consistent 
implementation of the Model Industrial Pretreatment Ordinance. Additionally, interagency 
project teams provide input on and coordination of ongoing MWMC administration issues and 
ad hoc project needs.  
 
Exhibit 1 on the following page reflects the interagency coordination structure supporting the 
RWP. Special project teams are typically formed to manage large projects such as design and 
construction of new facilities. These interagency staff teams are formulated to provide 
appropriate expertise, operational knowledge, project management, and intergovernmental 
representation. 

Relationship to Eugene and Springfield Local Sewer Programs 
The RWP addresses only part of the overall wastewater collection and treatment facilities that 
serve the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. The Cities of Eugene and Springfield both 
maintain sewer programs that provide for construction and maintenance of local collection 
systems and pump stations, which discharge to the regional system. Sewer user fees collected by 
the two Cities include both local and RWP rate components.  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Overview 
 

 

 Page 11 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

  EXHIBIT 1  

EUGENE CITY COUNCIL LANE COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL

METROPOLITAN WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT COMMISSION

EUGENE
WASTEWATER DIVISION

- Regional Facility Operation and Maintenance
- Major Rehab and Equipment Replacement
- Technical Services
- Eugene Pretreatment Program
- Pump Station and Interceptor Operations and                          

              Maintenance

                  PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION
- Billing and Customer Service

MAINTENANCE DIVISION
- Regional Sewer Line Support

SPRINGFIELD
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES DIVISION

- Planning
- Capital Construction
- Rates, Revenues
- Permit Coordination
- Interagency Coordination
- Public Information/Education
- Springfield Pretreatment Program
- Legal and Risk Services
- Billing and Customer Service

                          FINANCE DEPARTMENT
- Accounting and Financial Reporting     

INTERAGENCY COORDINATION AND PROJECT TEAMS

- Administrative Policy Decisions and Coordination
- Operational Policy Decisions and Coordination
- Capital Project Planning and Coordination
- Design Standards Development
- Capital Construction Guidance

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM
INTERAGENCY COORDINATION STRUCTURE

Operation & Maintenance Contract Administration Contract

   KEY OUTCOMES ACHIEVED

  
 
 
 

 

 



BUDGET SUMMARY 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 12 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
FY 16-17 BUDGET 

 
The MWMC’s RWP Operating Budget provides the Commission and governing bodies with an 
integrated view of the RWP elements. Exhibit 2 provides a summary of the overall Operating 
Budget. Separate Springfield and Eugene agency budgets and staffing also are presented within 
this budget document. Major program areas supported by Springfield and Eugene are described 
in the pages that follow and are summarized in Exhibit 3 on page 14. Finally, Exhibit 4 on page 
15 combines revenues, expenditures, and reserves to illustrate how funding for all aspects of the 
RWP is provided. It should also be noted that the “Amended Budget FY 15-16” column in all 
budget tables represents the updated FY 15-16 RWP budget as of February 23, 2016, which 
reconciled actual beginning balances at July 1, 2015, and approved budget transfers and 
supplemental requests. 
 

 
 
 
Notes:  
 

1. The Change column and Percent Change column compare the adopted FY 16-17 Budget with the 
originally Adopted FY 15-16 Budget column. 

2. Personnel Services, Materials and Services, and Capital Outlay budget amounts represent 
combined Springfield and Eugene Operating Budgets that support the RWP. 

3. Capital Outlay does not include CIP, Equipment Replacement, Major Capital Outlay, or Major 
Rehabilitation, which are capital programs. 

ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE (1)

FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)
Full-Time Equivalent Staffing Level 93.29 93.29 92.86 (0.43) -0.5%
Personnel Services  (2) $10,102,922 $10,072,730 $10,303,071 $200,149 2.0%
Materials & Services  (2) 7,201,550 7,306,803 7,234,459 32,909 0.5%
Capital Outlay  (2, 3) 45,000 45,000 163,100 118,100 262.4%
Equip Replacement Contribution  (4) 650,000 650,000 250,000 (400,000) -61.5%
Capital Contribution  (5) 8,500,000 11,885,000 11,300,000 2,800,000 32.9%
Debt Service Contribution (6) 7,163,743 7,878,743 5,504,462 (1,659,281) -23.2%
Bond Sale Costs 0 466,000 0 0
Working Capital Reserve (7) 900,000 900,000 900,000 0 0.0%
Rate Stability Reserve (8) 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 0 0.0%
Insurance Reserve  (9) 500,000 515,000 515,000 15,000 3.0%
Operating Reserve  (10) 4,823,396 4,585,929 3,798,506 (1,024,890) -21.2%
Rate Stabilization Reserve (11) 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 0 0.0%
SRF Loan Reserve (12) 670,908 670,908 670,908 0 0.0%
Revenue Bond Reserve (13) 4,100,000 0 0 (4,100,000) 0.0%
Budget Summary $48,657,519 $48,976,113 $44,639,506 ($4,018,013) -8.3%

EXHIBIT 2

REGIONAL OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY:
INCLUDING RESERVE CONTRIBUTIONS



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 13 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

4. The Equipment Replacement Contribution is a budgeted transfer of operating revenues to 
“sinking funds” (reserves) for scheduled future replacement of major equipment, vehicles, and 
computers. See table on page 21 for year-end balance. 

5. The Capital Reserve Contribution is a budgeted transfer of operating revenues to “sinking funds” 
(reserves). Capital is passed through the Springfield Administration Budget. See table on page 22 
for year-end balance. 

6. The Debt Service line item is the sum of annual interest and principal payments on the Revenue 
Bonds and Clean Water State Revolving Fund (SRF)  loans made from the Operating Budget 
(derived from user rates). The total amount of Debt Service budgeted in FY 16-17 is $5,504,462 
the balance of which is budgeted from SDCs. 

7. The Working Capital Reserve acts as a revolving account which is drawn down and replenished 
on a monthly basis to fund Eugene’s and Springfield’s cash flow needs. 

8. The Rate Stability Reserve is used to set aside revenues available at year-end after the budgeted 
Operating Reserve target is met. Internal policy has established a level of $2 million for the Rate 
Stability Reserve. See Exhibit 5 on page 20 for year-end balance. 

9. The Insurance Reserve was established to set aside funds equivalent to the insurance deductible 
amount for property and liability insurance coverage, for losses per occurrence. 

10. The Operating Reserve is used to account for the accumulated operating revenues net of 
operations expenditures. The Commission’s adopted a policy provides minimum guidelines to 
establish the Operating Reserve balance at approximately 10% of the adopted Operating Budget. 
The Operating Reserve provides for contingency funds in the event that unanticipated expenses or 
revenue shortfalls occur during the budget year. 

11. The Rate Stabilization Reserve was established at $2 million as a result of the 2006 MWMC 
Revenue Bond Declaration and Covenants. It holds funds that are available if needed, to ensure 
Debt Service payments can be made. 

12. The Clean Water SRF loan reserve is budgeted as required per loan agreements. 

13. The Revenue Bond Reserve was created to provide assurances to the bond holders that adequate 
revenue coverage would be provided for future debt service obligations. Prior to FY 16-17, and to 
meet reserve requirements of the 2006 bond issuance the Bond Reserve was budgetd at $4.1 
million in the operating fund (as it was funded with user fees) and the Bond Reserve from the 
2008 issuance was held in the capital funds budget at $4.0 million. Beginning in FY 16-17, the 
revenue bond reserve is no longer a requirement due to the restructuring of the revenue bonds and 
improved financial position. 

  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 14 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

ACTUAL
ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE

SPRINGFIELD FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)
MWMC ADMINISTRATION
Personnel Services $1,073,318 $1,319,068 $1,299,784 $1,292,903 ($26,165) -2.0%
Materials & Services 1,703,218 1,926,147 1,910,947 1,917,781 (8,366) -0.4%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $2,776,536 $3,245,215 $3,210,731 $3,210,684 ($34,531) -1.1%
INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT
Personnel Services $300,986 $340,867 $335,289 $331,231 ($9,636) -2.8%
Materials & Services 130,694 117,252 117,252 123,128 5,876 5.0%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $431,680 $458,119 $452,541 $454,359 ($3,760) -0.8%
ACCOUNTING
Personnel Services $92,263 $95,196 $89,866 $100,698 $5,502 5.8%
Materials & Services 22,937 34,871 34,871 35,182 311 0.9%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $115,200 $130,067 $124,737 $135,880 $5,813 4.5%
TOTAL SPRINGFIELD
Personnel Services $1,466,567 $1,755,131 $1,724,939 $1,724,832 ($30,299) -1.7%
Materials & Services 1,856,849 2,078,270 2,063,070 2,076,091 (2,179) -0.1%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $3,323,416 $3,833,401 $3,788,009 $3,800,923 ($32,478) -0.8%
EUGENE
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
Personnel Services $1,506,912 $1,799,936 $1,799,936 $1,827,105 $27,169 1.5%
Materials & Services 561,943 640,252 662,717 625,521 (14,732) -2.3%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $2,068,855 $2,440,188 $2,462,653 $2,452,626 $12,437 0.5%
BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT
Personnel Services $1,125,091 $1,265,210 $1,265,210 $1,276,526 $11,316 0.9%
Materials & Services 782,347 990,888 1,016,060 1,018,329 27,442 2.8%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 118,000 118,000        NA

TOTAL $1,907,438 $2,256,098 $2,281,270 $2,412,855 $156,758 6.9%
INDUSTRIAL SOURCE CONTROL
Personnel Services $531,116 $554,628 $554,628 $572,935 $18,307 3.3%
Materials & Services 114,118 132,957 132,440 114,146 (18,811) -14.1%
Capital Outlay 20,137 45,000 45,000 0 (45,000)        NA

TOTAL $665,371 $732,585 $732,068 $687,081 ($45,504) -6.2%
TREATMENT PLANT
Personnel Services $4,118,910 $4,360,274 $4,360,274 $4,527,886 $167,612 3.8%
Materials & Services 2,378,481 2,993,678 3,035,914 3,039,851 46,173 1.5%
Capital Outlay 6,728 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $6,504,120 $7,353,952 $7,396,188 $7,567,737 $213,785 2.9%
REGIONAL PUMP STATIONS
Personnel Services $114,018 $191,450 $191,450 $195,102 $3,652 1.9%
Materials & Services 287,361 307,501 338,765 303,748 (3,753) -1.2%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 45,100 45,100        NA

TOTAL $401,379 $498,951 $530,215 $543,950 $44,999 9.0%
BENEFICIAL REUSE SITE
Personnel Services $126,361 $176,293 $176,293 $178,685 $2,392 1.4%
Materials & Services 48,972 58,004 57,838 56,774 (1,230) -2.1%
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0        NA

TOTAL $175,333 $234,297 $234,131 $235,459 $1,162 0.5%
TOTAL EUGENE
Personnel Services $7,522,408 $8,347,791 $8,347,791 $8,578,239 $230,448 2.8%
Materials & Services 4,173,222 5,123,280 5,243,734 5,158,368 35,088 0.7%
Capital Outlay 26,865 45,000 45,000 163,100 118,100 262.4%

TOTAL $11,722,495 $13,516,071 $13,636,525 $13,899,707 $383,636 2.8%
TOTAL REGIONAL BUDGET $17,349,472 $17,700,630 $351,158 2.0%

EXHIBIT 3

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM OPERATING BUDGET
LINE ITEM SUMMARY BY PROGRAM AREA



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 15 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 
 
Note:  * The Change (Increase/Decrease) column compares the adopted FY 16-17 budget to the originally adopted      

FY 15-16 budget column. 

ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE *

OPERATING BUDGET FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INC(DECR)
Administration $3,833,401 $3,788,009 $3,800,923 ($32,478)
Operations 13,516,071 13,636,525 13,899,707 383,636
Capital Contribution & transfers 8,500,000 11,885,000 11,300,000 2,800,000
Equip Repl - Contribution 650,000 650,000 250,000 (400,000)
Operating & Revenue Bond Reserves 14,994,304 10,671,837 10,424,414 (4,569,890)
Debt Service 7,163,743 7,878,743 5,504,462 (1,659,281)
Total Operating Budget $48,657,519 $48,510,114 $45,179,506 ($3,478,013)
Funding:
Beginning Balance $16,289,243 $16,158,038 $10,684,205 ($5,605,038)
User Fees 30,985,000 30,985,000 31,325,000 340,000
Other 1,383,276 1,383,076 3,170,301 1,787,025
Total Operating Budget Funding $48,657,519 $48,526,114 $45,179,506 ($3,478,013)

CAPITAL PROGRAM BUDGET
Poplar Harvest Mgmt Services $1,265,000 $1,334,535 $772,000 ($493,000)
Facility Plan Engineering Services 70,000 97,547 99,600 29,600
Capacity Mgmt., Operations, and Maint. 16,833 94,454 30,000 13,167
Influent PS/Willakenzie PS/Headworks 145,140 285,186 0    NA
Digestion Capacity Increase 8,645,000 16,157,068 14,720,000 6,075,000
WPCF Lagoon Remove/Decommission 4,938,231 4,869,681 390,000 (4,548,231)
Sodium Hypochlorite Conversion 1,039,800 1,039,800 0    NA
Operations Building Improvements 950,000 14,719,167 13,970,000 13,020,000
Thermal Load Pre-Implementation 210,000 246,092 244,000 34,000
Thermal Load Implementation 1 794,000 730,884 131,000 (663,000)
Biosolids Force Main Rehab 0 322,704 0            NA
Tertiary Filtration 1 0 0 0            NA
Primary Sludge Thickening 0 0 0            NA
Asset Management:
Equipment Replacement Purchases 593,300 755,300 381,000 (212,300)
Major Rehab 371,300 570,142 534,000 162,700
Major Capital Outlay 2,900,000 3,100,000 5,670,000 2,770,000
Total Capital Projects $21,938,604 $44,322,560 $36,941,600 $15,002,996
Funding:
Equipment Replacement $593,300 $755,300 $381,000 ($212,300)
Capital Bond Fund 10,937,849 13,292,107 10,576,394 (361,455)
Capital Reserve 10,407,455 30,275,153 25,984,206 15,576,751
Total Capital Projects Funding $21,938,604 $44,322,560 $36,941,600 $15,002,996

EXHIBIT 4

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM
BUDGET SUMMARY AND COMPARISON



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 16 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

OPERATING BUDGET AND RATE HISTORY 
 

The graphs on pages 17 and 18 show the regional residential wastewater service costs over a 5-
year period, and a 5-year Regional Operating Budget Comparison. Because the Equipment 
Replacement, Major Infrastructure Rehabilitation and Major Capital Outlay programs are 
managed in the Eugene Operating Budget, based on the size, type and budget amount of the 
project these programs are incorporated into either the 5-year Regional Operating Budget 
Comparison graph or the 5-Year Capital Programs graph on page 18. The Regional Wastewater 
Capital Improvement Programs graph on page 18 shows the expenditures over the recent five 
years in the MWMC’s Capital Program and including Asset Management projects. A list of 
capital projects is located in Exhibit 13 on page 45.  
 
As shown on the Regional Residential Sanitary Sewer Rate graph on page 17, regional sewer 
user charges have incrementally increased to meet the revenue requirements necessary to fund 
facility improvements as indentified in the 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan. This Plan demonstrated 
the need for a significant capital investment in new and expanded facilities to meet 
environmental performance requirements and capacity to serve the community through 2025. 
Although a portion of these capital improvements can be funded through system development 
charges (SDCs), much of the funding for approximately $196 million (in 2006 dollars) in capital 
improvements over the 20-year period will come from user charges. Since 2004, this has become 
the major driver of the MWMC’s need to increase sewer user rates on an annual basis. 
 
In FY 08-09, there was an 11% user rate increase over FY 07-08 rates applied uniformly across 
all user classes. This rate increase provided adequate revenue to meet current bond covenants 
and meet requirements to issue $50.7 million in bonds in FY 08-09. Additionally, in October of 
2008, the Commission adopted an interim user rate increase of 7% due to the closure of Hynix 
Semiconductor. This increase was necessary to issue new revenue bonds and maintain bond 
covenants for existing bonds. The typical residential monthly wastewater bill increased an 
additional $1.10 per month and went into effect on December 1, 2008. 
 
In FY 09-10, there was an 18% user rate increase over FY 08-09 rates applied uniformly across 
all user classes. This rate provided for Operations, Administration, Capital programs, reserves 
and debt service to be funded at sufficient levels to meet FY 09-10 requirements.  
 
In FY10-11 user rates increased 5% over the prior year rates, and in FY 11-12 and FY 12-13 user 
rates increased 4% each year, over the prior year rates to provide for Operations, Administration, 
Capital programs, reserves, debt service, and debt coverage requirements. 
  
In FY 13-14 user rates increased 3% over the prior year rates, in FY14-15 user rates increased by 
3.5% and in FY 15-16 user rates increased by 2% over the prior year rates to provide for 
Operations, Administration, Capital programs, reserves, debt service, and debt coverage 
requirements. 
 
The FY 16-17 Budget is based on a 2% user rate increase over the FY 15-16 rates. This increase 
will provide for Operations, Administration, Capital programs, reserves and debt service, 
continuing to meet capital and operating requirements and supporting the Commission’s 
Financial Plan policies, as well as financially positioning for future investments in capital assets. 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 17 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

The chart below displays the regional component of a residential monthly bill when applying the 
base and flow rates to 5,000 gallons of wastewater treated, which includes a $0.49 increase 
effective July 1, 2016.  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Budget and Program Summary 
 

 

 Page 18 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

The graph below displays the Regional Operating Budget amounts for the recent 5-year period.  
 

 
 
 

The graph below displays the Regional Wastewater Capital Improvement Program Budget 
amounts for the recent 5-year period.  

 

 
 



RESERVE FUNDS 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Reserves 
 

 

 Page 19 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
RESERVES 

 
The RWP maintains reserve funds for the dedicated purpose to sustain stable rates while fully 
funding operating and capital needs. Commission policies and guidance, which direct the amount 
of reserves appropriated on an annual basis, are found in the 2005 MWMC Financial Plan. 
Further details on the FY 16-17 reserves are provided below. 

 
OPERATING RESERVES 

The MWMC Operating Budget includes seven separate reserves: the Working Capital Reserve, 
Rate Stability Reserve, Rate Stabilization Reserve, Revenue Bond Reserve, State Revolving 
Fund (SRF) Reserve, Insurance Reserve and the Operating Reserve. Revenues are appropriated 
across the reserves in accordance with Commission policy and expenditure needs. Each reserve 
is explained in detail below.  

 
WORKING CAPITAL RESERVE 

The Working Capital Reserve acts as a revolving account that is drawn down and replenished on 
a monthly basis to provide funds for payment of Springfield Administration and Eugene 
Operations costs prior to the receipt of user fees from the Springfield Utility Board and Eugene 
Water and Electric Board. The Working Capital Reserve is set at $900,000 for FY 16-17, 
$200,000 of which is dedicated to Administration and $700,000 is dedicated to Operations. 

 
RATE STABILITY RESERVE 

The Rate Stability Reserve was established to implement the Commission’s objective of 
maintaining stable rates. It is intended to hold revenues in excess of the current year’s operating 
and capital requirements for use in future years, in order to avoid “rate spikes.” The amount 
budgeted on an annual basis has been set at $2 million, with any additional net revenues being 
transferred to the capital reserve for future projects.  

 
RATE STABILIZATION RESERVE 

The Rate Stabilization Reserve contains funds to be used at any point in the future when net 
revenues are insufficient to meet the bond covenant coverage requirement. The Commission 
shall maintain the Rate Stabilization account as long as bonds are outstanding. In FY 16-17 no 
additional contribution to this reserve is budgeted and the balance at June 30, 2017, will remain 
at $2 million. 

 
REVENUE BOND RESERVE 

The Bond Reserve was created to provide assurances to the bond holders that adequate revenue 
coverage would be provided for future debt service payments associated with the 2006 and 2008 
bond issuances. Prior to FY 16-17, and to meet reserve requirements of the 2006 bond issuance 
the Bond Reserve was budgeted at $4.1 million in the operating fund (as it was funded with user 
fees) and the Bond Reserve from the 2008 issuance was held in the capital funds budgeted at 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Reserves 
 

 

 Page 20 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

$4.0 million. Beginning in FY 16-17, the revenue bond reserve is no longer a requirement due to 
the restructuring of the revenue bonds and improved financial position.   

 
CLEAN WATER STATE REVOVLING FUND (SRF) RESERVE 
 

The Clean Water SRF Reserve was established to meet revenue coverage requirements for SRF 
loans. The SRF Reserve is set at $670,908 for FY 16-17. 

 
INSURANCE RESERVE 
 

The Insurance Reserve was established to set aside funds equivalent to the insurance deductible 
amount for property and liability insurance coverage, for losses per occurrence. The Insurance 
Reserve is set at $515,000 for FY 16-17. 

 
OPERATING RESERVE 
 

The Operating Reserve is used to account for accumulated operating revenues net of operating 
expenditures (including other reserves). The Commission’s adopted policy provides minimum 
guidelines to establish the Operating Reserve at approximately 10% of the adopted operating 
budget. For FY 16-17, the Operating Reserve is budgeted at $4,338,506, which includes the 10% 
of total Personnel Services, Materials and Services, and Capital Outlay in accordance with 
Commission policy.  
 

EXHIBIT 5 

 

OPERATING RESERVES

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $16,289,243 $16,158,038 $10,684,205
 User Fee Revenue 30,800,000 30,800,000 31,140,000
 Septage Revenue 185,000 185,000 185,000
 Other Revenue 1,273,800 1,273,800 1,061,110
 Interest 85,000 85,000 85,000
 Transfer from Improvement SDCs 0 0 2,000,000
 Transfer from Reimbursement SDCs 19,276 19,276 20,191
Transfer from Bond Capital Fund 0 450,000 0
 Personnel Services (10,102,922) (10,072,730) (10,303,071)
 Materials & Services (7,196,350) (7,301,804) (7,230,459)
 Capital Outlay (45,000) (45,000) (163,100)
 Interfund Transfers (9,150,000) (12,535,000) (11,550,000)
 Transfer to Bond Debt Service Fund (5,709,628)        (6,424,628) 0
 Debt Service - SRF Loan (1,454,115) (1,454,115) (1,486,462)
Bond Sale Costs 0 (466,000) 0
 Debt Service - 2016 Revenue Bond 0 0 (4,018,000)
 Working Capital (900,000) (900,000) (900,000)
 Insurance Reserve (500,000) (515,000) (515,000)
 SRF Loan Reserve (670,908) (670,908) (670,908)
 Rate Stability Reserve (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (2,000,000)
 Rate Stabilization Reserve (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (2,000,000)
 Bond Reserve - Revenue 2006 (4,100,000) 0 0
Operating Reserve $4,823,396 $4,585,929 $4,338,506



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Reserves 
 

 

 Page 21 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

CAPITAL RESERVES 
 
The MWMC Capital Budget includes five reserves: the Equipment Replacement Reserve, SDC 
Reimbursement Reserves, SDC Improvement Reserves, the Capital Reserve and the Bond 
Reserve. These reserves accumulate revenue to help fund capital projects including equipment 
replacement and major rehabilitation. They are funded by annual contributions from user rates, 
SDCs, bond proceeds, and SRF loans. Each reserve is explained in detail below. 

 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE 

The Equipment Replacement Reserve accumulates replacement funding for three types of 
equipment:  1) major/stationary equipment items costing less than $200,000 with useful lives of 
20 years or less; 2) fleet vehicles maintained by the Eugene Wastewater Division; and 3) 
computers that serve the Eugene Wastewater Division. Contributions to the Equipment 
Replacement Reserve in the FY 16-17 budget total $250,000, additional budget details are 
provided below. 
 
The Equipment Replacement Reserve is intended to accumulate funds necessary to provide for 
the timely replacement or rehabilitation of equipment, and may also be borrowed against to 
provide short-term financing of capital improvements. An annual analysis is performed on the 
Equipment Replacement Reserve. The annual contribution is set so that all projected 
replacements will be funded over a 20-year period and at the end of the 20-year period, the 
reserve will contain replacement funds for all equipment projected to be in use at that time. 
Estimates used in the analysis include interest earnings, inflation rates and useful lives for the 
equipment. 

 

 
 
SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT CHARGE (SDC) RESERVES 

SDCs are required as part of the MWMC IGA. They are connection fees charged to new users to 
recover the costs related to system capacity, and are limited to funding Capital Programs. The 
purpose of the SDC Reserves is to collect and account for SDC revenues separately from other 
revenue sources, in accordance with Oregon statutes. The Commission’s SDC structure includes 
a combination of “Reimbursement” and “Improvement” fee components. Estimated SDC 
revenues for FY 16-17 are approximately $1.1 million. Budgeted expenditures include  
$2 million from Improvement Fees to fund portions of the annual debt service payments on the 
2006 and 2008 revenue bonds. The projected beginning SDC Reserve balance on July 1, 2016 is 
$3,504,354. 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $11,420,690 $11,705,390 $11,837,948
 Annual Equipment Contribution 650,000 650,000 250,000
 Interest 40,000 40,000 40,000
 Equipment Purchases (593,300) (755,300) (381,000)
Equipment Replacement Reserve $11,517,390 $11,640,090 $11,746,948



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Reserves 
 

 

 Page 22 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 
 

 
 

CAPITAL RESERVE 

The Capital Reserve accumulates funds transferred from the Operating Reserve for the purpose 
of funding the CIP, Major Capital Outlay and Major Rehabilitation Program costs. The intent is 
to collect sufficient funds over time to construct a portion of planned capital projects with cash in 
an appropriate balance with projects that are funded with debt financing. The FY 16-17 Budget 
includes a contribution from the Operating Reserve of $11.3 million. The beginning balance on 
July 1, 2016, is projected to be $50,315,693. Additional budget detail on the CIP, Major Capital 
Outlay and Major Rehabilitation Program reserves is provided below. 

 

 
 

REIMBURSEMENT SDC RESERVE

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $490,946 $555,989 $639,013
 Reimbursement SDCs Collected 100,000 100,000 100,000
 Interest 1,300 1,300 1,200
 SDC Compliance Charge 2,500 2,500 2,500
 Xfr to Debt Service (Fund 612) (19,276) (19,276) (20,191)
 Materials & Services (2,000) (2,000) (2,000)
Reimbursement SDC Reserve $573,470 $638,513 $720,522

IMPROVEMENT SDC RESERVE

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $2,953,028 $3,763,341 $2,865,341
 Improvement SDCs Collected 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,100,000
 Interest 8,000 8,000 7,000
 Materials & Services (2,000) (2,000) (2,000)
 Xfr to Debt Service (Fund 612 ) (2,000,000) (2,000,000) (2,000,000)
Improvement SDC Reserve $1,959,028 $2,769,341 $1,970,341

CAPITAL RESERVES 

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

AMENDED 
BUDGET    
FY 15-16

ADOPTED 
BUDGET    
FY 16-17

 Beginning Balance $76,014,033 $77,977,819 $50,315,693
 Transfer from Operating Reserve 8,500,000          11,885,000 11,300,000          
 Interest 60,000 60,000 60,000
 Interest Income (Revenue Bond Proceeds) 240,000 240,000 210,000
 Transfer to Operating 0 (450,000) 0
 Revenue Bond Principal 08 0 (3,550,000) 0
 Revenue Bond Principal 06 0 (31,380,000) 0
 Funding For Capital Improvement Projects (18,074,004)       (39,897,118)      (30,356,600)         
 Funding For Major Rehabilitation (371,300) (570,142) (534,000)
 Funding For Major Capital Outlay (2,900,000) (3,100,000) (5,670,000)
 Revenue Bond Reserve 2008 (4,000,000) 0 0
Capital Reserve $59,468,729 $11,215,559 $25,325,093



OPERATING PROGRAMS 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Staffing 
 

 

 Page 23 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

EXHIBIT 6 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAMS* 

ORGANIZATION CHART FY 16-17 

Metropolitan Wastewater Management 
Commission 

CITY OF EUGENE **
Wastewater Division

77.40 FTE

Division Director
.85 FTE

Operations Manager
.93 FTE

Wastewater 
Treatment Plant

39.30 FTE

Regional Pump
Stations
1.26 FTE

Computer
Services
2.73 FTE

Biosolids 
Management 

12.62 FTE

Operations
16.0 FTE

Beneficial Reuse 
Site

1.77 FTE

Equipment 
Maintenance

10.3 FTE

Facility 
Maintenance

8.51  FTE

Laboratory
2.65  FTE

Industrial 
Pretreatment 

5.35 FTE

Stores
2.67 FTE

Env Data
Analyst
.65 FTE

User Fee
Support
1.0 FTE

Operations
6.97 FTE

Operations
.53 FTE

Equipment 
Maintenance

.85 FTE

Equipment 
Maintenance

.59 FTE

Equipment 
Maintenance

2.57 FTE

Facility 
Maintenance

1.98 FTE

Facility 
Maintenance

.34 FTE

Laboratory
1.27 FTE

Laboratory
.66 FTE

Laboratory
.15  FTE

Regulations &
Enforcement

3.38 FTE

Admin Support
5.36 FTE

Support Services
15.32 FTE

Sampling
.74  FTE

Sampling
.44 FTE

Sampling
.16 FTE

PW Maint
1.10 FTE

Sampling
.70 FTE

Safety, Env & 
Health  

Supervisor
.89 FTE

Management 
Analyst
.89 FTE

Project Mgr.
.93 FTE

PW Financial 
Services
.20 FTE

MWMC Executive 
Officer

.08 FTE

MWMC General 
Manager
.80 FTE

Administration
Support
.3 FTE

Accounting
.88 FTE

MWMC
Administration

10.45 FTE

Industrial 
Pretreatment

2.65 FTE

Administration
Support
.70 FTE

Regulations 
& 

Enforcement
2.95 FTE

Budget & 
Financial 

Management
1.15 FTE

Property/ 
Risk Mgmt

.20 FTE

Customer 
Service
.55 FTE

Public 
Education
1.0 FTE

Construction 
Management

5.10 FTE

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD **
Environmental Services Division

 & Finance Department
15.46  FTE 

Facility 
Maintenance

.41 FTE

Special 
Projects/ 
Planning
1.75 FTE

 

 

 

Notes: 
 

* Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) figures represent portions of Eugene and Springfield staff funded by 
regional wastewater funds. 

** The chart represents groups of staff dedicated to program areas rather than specific positions. 
 

 

 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Staffing 
 

 

 Page 24 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM
POSITION SUMMARY

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET FTE
CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 CHANGE

SPRINGFIELD ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES & FINANCE
 Accountant 0.80 0.80 0.80 -        
 Accounting Supervisor 0.08 0.08 0.08 -        
 Administrative Specialist 1.05 1.85 1.85 -        
 Assistant Project Coordinator 0.90 0.90 0.90 -        
 Civil Engineer/Design & Construction Coordinator 3.00 3.00 3.00 -        
 Construction Inspector 1.00 0.00 0.00 -        
 Development and Public Works Deputy Director 0.08 0.08 0.00 (0.08)     
 Development and Public Works Director 0.08 0.08 0.08 -        
 Engineering Assistant 1.60 0.80 0.80 -        
 Environmental Management Analyst 0.00 0.65 0.65 -        
 Environmental Services Program Manager 0.55 1.35 0.80 (0.55)     
 Environmental Services Program Coordinator 1.00 1.00 0.00 (1.00)     
 Environmental Services Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.95 0.95       
 Environmental Services Technician 1.50 1.50 2.00 0.50       
 ESD Manager/MWMC General Manager 0.75 0.80 0.80 -        
 Managing Civil Engineer 2.00 2.00 1.75 (0.25)     
 Public Information & Education Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 -        
 Senior Finance Analyst 0.50 0.00 0.00 -        
TOTAL SPRINGFIELD 15.89 15.89 15.46 (0.43)

EXHIBIT 7



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Staffing 
 

 

 Page 25 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 

 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM
POSITION SUMMARY

BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET FTE
CLASSIFICATION FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 CHANGE

EUGENE WASTEWATER DIVISION & OTHER PW
 Administrative Specialist 1.78 1.78 1.78 -        
 Administrative Specialist, Sr 0.95 0.95 0.95 -        
 Application Support Technician 0.95 0.95 0.95 -        
 Application Systems Analyst 1.78 1.78 1.78 -        
 Custodian                1.00 1.00 1.00 -        
 Finance & Admin Manager 0.89 0.89 0.89 -        
 Electrician 1            3.28 3.28 3.28 -        
 Engineering Associate    0.35 0.35 0.35 -        
 Maintenance Worker      12.29 12.29 12.29 -        
 Management Analyst  4.25 4.25 5.14 0.89       
 Office Supervisor, Sr    0.89 0.89 0.00 (0.89)     
 Parts and Supply Specialist 1.78 1.78 1.78 -        
 PW Financial Services Manager 0.20 0.20 0.20 -        
 Utility Billing Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 -        
 Wastewater Lab Assistant             0.82 0.82 0.82 -        
 Wastewater Division Director     0.85 0.85 0.85 -        
 Wastewater Instrument Electrician 1.00 1.00 1.00 -        
 Wastewater Plant Operations Manager       0.93 0.93 0.93 -        
 Wastewater Operations Supervisor 2.00 2.00 2.00 -        
 Wastewater Plant Maintenance Supervisor 2.88 2.88 2.88 -        
 Wastewater Pretreatment & Lab Supervisor 0.82 0.82 0.82 -        
 Wastewater Technician                36.71 36.71 36.71 -        
TOTAL 77.40 77.40 77.40 -        

GRAND TOTAL 93.23 93.29 92.86 (0.43)     

EXHIBIT 7  (Continued)



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 26 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Program Responsibilities 
 Administration & Management  
 Financial Planning & Management 
 Long-Range Capital Project Planning 
 Project and Construction Management 
 Coordination between the Commission and 

governing bodies 
 Coordination and Management of: 

· Risk Management & Legal Services 
· Public Policy Issues 
· Regulatory and Permit Compliance Issues 

 Public Information, Education and Outreach 
 Industrial Pretreatment Source Control 
 Customer Service 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
The City of Springfield manages administration 
services for the RWP under the Intergovernmental 
Agreement for the Metropolitan Wastewater 
Management Commission (MWMC). The programs 
maintained by Springfield to support the RWP are 
summarized below and are followed by Springfield’s 
regional wastewater budget summaries. Activities, and 
therefore program budgets, for the MWMC 
administration vary from year to year depending upon 
the major construction projects and special initiatives 
underway. A list of the capital projects Springfield 
staff will support in FY 16-17 is provided in Exhibit 12 
on page 41. 

 
MWMC ADMINISTRATION 
The Springfield Environmental Services Division (ESD) and Finance Department provide 
ongoing support and management services for the MWMC. The Development and Public Works 
(DPW) Director serves as the MWMC Executive Officer. The Environmental Services Manager 
serves as the General Manager. Springfield provides the following administration functions:  
financial planning management, accounting and financial reporting; risk management and legal 
services; coordination and management of public policy; coordination and management of 
regulatory and permit compliance issues; coordination between the Commission and the 
governing bodies; long-range capital project planning and construction management; 
coordination of public information, education, and citizen involvement programs; sewer user 
customer service; and coordination and development of regional budgets, rate proposals, and 
revenue projections.  

 
INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT (SOURCE CONTROL) PROGRAM 
The Industrial Pretreatment Program is a regional activity implemented jointly by the Cities of 
Eugene and Springfield. The Industrial Pretreatment section of the ESD is charged with 
administering the program for the regulation and oversight of wastewater discharged to the 
sanitary collection system by industries in Springfield. This section is responsible for ensuring 
that these wastes do not damage the collection system, interfere with wastewater treatment 
processes, result in the pass-through of harmful pollutants to treated effluent or biosolids, or 
threaten worker health or safety. 
 
This responsibility is fulfilled, in part, by the use of a permit system for industrial dischargers. 
This permit system, common to both Eugene and Springfield, implements necessary limitations 
on waste characteristics and establishes inspection, monitoring, and reporting requirements for 
documenting waste quality and quantity controls. The Industrial Pretreatment section is also 
responsible for locating new industrial discharges in Springfield and evaluating the impact of 
those discharges on the regional WPCF. As of February 2016, there were 19 significant 
industrial users under permit in Springfield. The Industrial Pretreatment Program also addresses  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 27 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

the wastewater discharges of some commercial/industrial businesses through the development 
and implementation of Pollution Management Practices. Pretreatment program staff also 
coordinates pollution prevention activities in cooperation with the Pollution Prevention Coalition 
of Lane County. 

 
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING   
Accounting and financial reporting services for the RWP are provided by the Accounting section 
in the Springfield Finance Department, in coordination with ESD. Springfield Accounting staff 
maintains grant and contract accounting systems, as well as compliance with all local, state and 
federal accounting and reporting requirements for MWMC finances. This section also assists 
ESD with preparation of the MWMC budget, capital financing documents, sewer user rates, and 
financial policies and procedures.  

 
PROGRAMS AND SIGNIFICANT SERVICE/EXPENDITURE CHANGES 

 
In FY 16-17, the City of Springfield will support the following major regional initiatives in 
addition to ongoing Commission administration and industrial pretreatment activities: 
 
 Continue public information, education and outreach activities focused on the MWMC’s 

Key Outcomes and Communication Plan objectives to increase awareness of the 
MWMC’s ongoing efforts in maintaining water quality and a sustainable environment. 

 Implement Capital Financing strategies necessary to meet current debt obligations, 
prepare for additional debt financing, and ensure sufficient revenues in accordance with 
the 2005 MWMC Financial Plan. 

 Continue implementation of the 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan and 2014 Partial Facilities 
Plan Update to meet all regulatory requirements and capacity needs. Considering 
emerging environmental regulations that may impact the operation of the WPCF. 

 Implement annual reporting for the local Capacity Management Operations and 
Maintenance (CMOM) programs, focusing on continued inflow and infiltration 
reductions, including flow monitoring, data tracking, regional coordination, and 
exploring methods of addressing private laterals.  

 Protect the Regional Wastewater Program (RWP) interests through participation in 
Association of Clean Water Agencies activities. 

 Coordinate temperature Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) compliance through 
continued development and implementation of the thermal load mitigation strategy, 
including but not limited to a recycled water program. 

 Continue participation with the Association of Clean Water Agencies and the Department 
of Environmental Quality on regulatory permitting strategies and the development of 
water quality trading rules.  

  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 28 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

SIGNIFICANT BUDGET CHANGES FOR FY 16-17 
 
The budget for Springfield Personnel Services, Materials and Services, and Capital Outlay for  
FY 16-17 totals $3,800,923 representing an overall decrease of $32,478 or 0.8% below the adopted 
FY 15-16 budget, as displayed in Exhibit 8 on page 29. 
 
Personnel Services  
Personnel Services totaling $1,724,832 represents a FY 16-17 decrease of $30,299 or 1.7% over 
the originally adopted FY 15-16 budget. The major changes are summarized below: 
 

Staffing Level - 15.46 full-time equivalent (FTE) staff, a decrease of 0.43 FTE 
Staffing decreased in the FY 16-17 budget when compared to FY 15-16 based on a 
reorganization of staff allocated to the regional programs. 
 
Regular Wages and Overtime - $1,153,170, decrease of $17,895 or 1.5% 
Salaries are based upon the negotiated management/labor contracts as approved by the 
Springfield City Council, and staffing levels. 
 
Health Insurance - $308,832, a decrease of $6,792 or 2.2% 
Health Insurance includes employee related medical and dental insurance. 
 
PERS/OPSRP Contributions - $155,768, an increase of $2,416 or 1.5% 
Projected employee retirement contribution for FY 16-17.  
 

Materials and Services 
The Materials and Services budget total is $2,076,091 in FY 16-17, representing a slight 
decrease of $2,179 or 0.1% below the adopted FY 15-16 budget. The major changes are 
summarized below: 

 
Property and Liability Insurance - $370,000, a decrease of $70,000 or 15.9% 
The $70,000 decrease is in comparison to the orignially adopted FY 15-16 budget. The 
budget decrease reflects cost savings in Agent of Record services which are fee-based, a 
change in liability insurance providers, and an increase in the property insurance deductible 
amount resulting in a reduced insurance premium cost.  
 
Contractual Services –$133,500, a net decrease of $7,500 or 5.3% 
The $7,500 decrease was due to completion of the educational video series in FY 15-16, 
which was a one-time expense. 
 
Internal Charges - $165,004, a increase of $18,702 or 12.8% 
The $18,702 increase is primarily related to the regional portion of the City of Springfield 
facility rents for use of the City Hall building, and a portion of the City of Springfield 
liability, auto and risk insurance.  

  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 29 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Computer Software & License - $32,650, a net decrease of $11,500 or 26.0% 
The $11,500 decrease is due to entering into a three year contract in FY 15-16 for ongoing 
service and maintenance for the capital project management system, Constructware.  
 
 

 
 
Note:   * Change column compares the adopted FY 16-17 Budget to the adopted FY 15-16 Budget. 

ACTUAL
ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE *

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)
Personnel Services $1,466,567 $1,755,131 $1,724,939 $1,724,832 ($30,299) -1.7%

Materials & Services 1,856,849 2,078,270 2,063,070 2,076,091 (2,179) -0.1%

Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0            0%

Budget Summary $3,323,416 $3,833,401 $3,788,009 $3,800,923 ($32,478) -0.8%

EXHIBIT 8

SPRINGFIELD ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM
ADOPTED FY 16-17

BUDGET SUMMARY

$3,670,958 $3,636,762 $3,911,289 $3,833,401 $3,800,923 

$0
$500,000

$1,000,000
$1,500,000
$2,000,000
$2,500,000
$3,000,000
$3,500,000
$4,000,000
$4,500,000
$5,000,000

FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17

5-YEAR MWMC BUDGET COMPARISON
SPRINGFIELD ADMINISTRATION



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Springfield Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 30 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 

ADOPTED AMENDED ADOPTED
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)

PERSONNEL SERVICES
Regular Wages $997,633 $1,163,349 $1,163,349 $1,149,666 ($13,683) -1.2%
Overtime 42 7,716 7,716 3,504 (4,212) -54.6%
Employee Benefits 92,487 110,258 110,258 107,062 (3,196) -2.9%
PERS/OPSRP 134,022 158,184 158,184 155,768 (2,416) -1.5%
Medical/Dental Insurance 242,383 315,624 285,432 308,832 (6,792) -2.2%
Total Personnel Services $1,466,567 $1,755,131 $1,724,939 $1,724,832 ($30,299) -1.7%
FTE 16.68 15.89 15.89 15.46 (0.43)        -2.7%
MATERIALS & SERVICES
Billing & Collection Expense $594,701 $577,000 $577,000 $630,000 $53,000 9.2%
Property & Liability Insurance 373,780 440,000 425,000 370,000 (70,000) -15.9%
Contractual Services 47,029 141,000 141,000 133,500 (7,500) -5.3%
Attorney Fees and Legal Expense 72,192 185,505 185,505 188,505 3,000 1.6%
WPCF/NPDES Permits 118,466 126,800 126,600 136,000 9,200 7.3%
Materials & Program Expense 42,272 87,795 87,795 87,321 (474) -0.5%
Computer Software & Licenses 78,311 44,150 44,150 32,650 (11,500) -26.0%
Employee Development 5,320 19,000 19,000 19,275 275 1.4%
Travel & Meeting Expense 12,283 21,100 21,100 22,200 1,100 5.2%
Internal Charges 181,670 146,302 146,302 165,004 18,702 12.8%
Indirect Costs 330,824 289,618 289,618 291,636 2,018 0.7%
Total Materials & Services $1,856,849 $2,078,270 $2,063,070 $2,076,091 ($2,179) -0.1%
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Total Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
TOTAL $3,323,416 $3,833,401 $3,788,009 $3,800,923 ($32,478) -0.8%

EXHIBIT 9

SPRINGFIELD ADMINISTRATION
LINE ITEM BUDGET SUMMARY

CHANGE



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 31 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Program Responsibilities 
 Administration & Management 
 Biosolids Management 
 Facility Operations 
 Facility Maintenance 
 Industrial Source Control 
 Laboratory Services 
 Management Information Services 
 Project Management 

CITY OF EUGENE 
 REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 
The Wastewater Division for the City of Eugene manages all 
regional wastewater pollution control facilities serving the 
areas inside the Eugene and Springfield Urban Growth 
Boundaries under the Intergovernmental Agreement for the 
Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission 
(MWMC). These regional facilities include the 
Eugene/Springfield Regional Water Pollution Control 
Facility (WPCF), the Biosolids Management Facility, the 
Beneficial Reuse Site, the Biocycle Farm site, and regional 
wastewater pumping stations and transmission sewers.   
 
In support of the water pollution control program, the Division provides technical services for 
wastewater treatment, management of equipment replacement and infrastructure rehabilitation, 
biosolids treatment and recycling, regional laboratory services, and an industrial source control 
and pretreatment program in conjunction with City of Springfield staff.  
 
ADMINISTRATIVE AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
Administrative Services provides management, administrative, and office support to the 
Wastewater Division. This support includes the general planning, directing, and managing of 
the activities of the Division; development and coordination of the budget; administration of 
personnel records; and processing of payroll, accounts payable, and accounts receivable. This 
section also provides tracking and monitoring of all assets for the regional wastewater 
treatment facilities and clerical support for reception, telephone services, and other 
miscellaneous needs. The Administrative services include oversight and coordination of the 
Division’s Environmental Management System, safety, and training programs, and a stores 
unit that purchases and stocks parts and supplies and assists with professional services 
contracting. Another area this program administers is the coordination of local and regional 
billing and rate activities. 
 
REGIONAL WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY OPERATIONS 
The Wastewater Division operates the WPCF to treat domestic and industrial liquid wastes to 
achieve an effluent quality that protects and sustains the beneficial uses of the Willamette 
River. The Operations section optimizes wastewater treatment processes to ensure effluent 
quality requirements are met in an efficient and cost effective manner. In addition, the 
Operations section provides continuous monitoring of the alarm functions for all plant 
processes, regional and local pump stations, Biosolids Management Facility, and the Beneficial 
Reuse Site. 
 
MAINTENANCE 
The mechanical, electrical, and facilities maintenance sections of the Wastewater Division are 
responsible for preservation of the multi-million dollar investment in the equipment and 
infrastructure of the WPCF, local and regional pump stations, pressure sewers, as well as the 
Biosolids Management Facility. These sections provide a preventative maintenance program to  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 32 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

maximize equipment life and reliability; a corrective maintenance program for repairing 
unanticipated equipment failures; and a facility maintenance program to maintain the 
buildings, treatment structures, and grounds. 
 
BIOSOLIDS MANAGEMENT  
The Residuals Management section of the Wastewater Division manages the handling and 
beneficial reuse of the biological solids (biosolids) produced as a result of the activated sludge 
treatment of wastewater. This section operates the Biosolids Management Facility (BMF) and 
the Biocycle Farm located at Awbrey Lane in Eugene. The biosolids are treated using 
anaerobic digestion, stored in facultative lagoons (which provide some additional treatment 
benefits), and then processed through a belt filter press and air-dried to reduce the water 
content and facilitate transport. The dried material is ultimately applied to agricultural land. 
Biosolids are also irrigated on poplar trees at the Biocycle Farm as a beneficial nutrient and 
soil conditioner. This section also operates the Beneficial Reuse Site which formerly served to 
treat wastewater from food processing operation.   
 
INDUSTRIAL SOURCE CONTROL (Pretreatment) and ANALYTICAL SERVICES, 
SAMPLING TEAM 
The pretreatment program is a regional activity implemented jointly by the cities of Eugene 
and Springfield. The Industrial Source Control group of the Wastewater Division is charged 
with administering the pretreatment program for the regulation and oversight of commercial 
and industrial wastewaters discharged to the wastewater collection system by fixed-site 
industries in Eugene and by mobile waste haulers in the Eugene and Springfield areas. This 
group is also responsible for ensuring that these wastes do not damage the collection system, 
interfere with wastewater treatment processes, result in the pass-through of harmful pollutants 
to treated effluent or biosolids, or threaten worker health or safety.   
 
This responsibility is fulfilled through the use of a permit system for industrial dischargers.  
This permit system, common to both Eugene and Springfield, implements necessary limitations 
on waste characteristics and establishes inspection, monitoring, and reporting requirements for 
documenting waste quality and quantity controls. The staff is also responsible for locating new 
industrial discharges in Eugene and evaluating the impact of new non-residential discharges on 
the WPCF. During the calendar year 2015 there were 21 significant industrial users under 
permit in Eugene. The section also has responsibilities related to environmental spill response 
activities.   
 
The Analytical Services group provides necessary analytical work in support of wastewater 
treatment, residuals management, industrial source control, stormwater monitoring, and special 
project activities of the Wastewater Division. The laboratory's services include sample 
handling and analyses of influent sewage, treated wastewater, biosolids, industrial wastes, 
stormwater, and groundwater. Information from the laboratory is used to make treatment 
process control decisions, document compliance with regulatory requirements, demonstrate 
environmental protection, and ensure worker health and safety. 
 
The Sampling Team is responsible for the sampling activities related to regional wastewater 
program functions. These include the Eugene pretreatment program, wastewater treatment  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 33 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

process control, effluent and ambient water quality, groundwater quality, facultative sludge 
lagoons, and stormwater samples. The Division’s Environmental Data Analyst evaluates and 
reports on the sampling data for various programs. 
 
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SERVICES (MIS) 
The MIS section provides services for electronic data gathering, analysis, and reporting as 
necessary in compliance with regulatory requirements and management functions. This section 
also maintains the electronic communication linkages with the City of Eugene and supplies 
technical expertise and assistance in the selection, operation, and modification of computer 
systems (hardware and software) within the Division.   
 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
Management of wastewater system improvements and ongoing developments is carried out by 
the Project Management staff. Activities include coordination of CIP activities with the City of 
Springfield staff, problem-solving and action recommendations, project management, technical 
research, coordination of activities related to renewal of the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) wastewater discharge permit, computer-aided design and 
electronic storage of design drawings, and planning of projects to anticipate and prepare for new 
regulatory and operational requirements. The Project Management staff develops Request for 
Proposals and Request for Quotes, coordinates special project activities between work sections, 
and coordinates the procurement of building permits as necessary in support of project activities.  

 
 

PROGRAMS AND SIGNIFICANT SERVICE/EXPENDITURE CHANGES 
 
In FY 16-17, Eugene staff will support the following major regional initiatives in addition to 
ongoing operational activities. 
 
 Manage the O&M responsibilities of the NPDES permits for the wastewater discharge 

and treatment plant stormwater programs and the Lane Regional Air Protection Agency 
(LRAPA) air emissions permit for the regional wastewater treatment plant. 

 Continue to evaluate impacts of regulatory actions (such as the federal sanitary sewer 
overflows (SSO) and blending policy development, Willamette River TMDLs 
implementation, and any newly adopted state water quality standards) upon operational 
responsibilities.   

 Provide technical input and O&M assessments related to proposed initiatives for 
addressing TMDL compliance, greenhouse gas emission controls, and renewable energy 
objectives. 

 Complete scheduled major rehabilitation, equipment replacement, and other capital 
projects in an efficient and timely manner. 

 Work cooperatively on the CIP elements and effectively integrate capital project work 
with ongoing O&M activities, with emphasis on maintaining an effective CIP 
management and coordination program with Springfield.   



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 34 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 Manage the Operations & Maintenance (O&M) aspects of the Biocycle Farm, continuing 
biosolids irrigation practices and poplar tree management. 

 
SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE O & M BUDGET FOR FY 16-17 
 
The budget for Operations and Maintenance of the regional wastewater treatment facilities 
(personnel, materials and services, and capital outlay) for FY 16-17 totals $13,899,707. The amount 
represents an increase of $383,636 or 2.8% from the FY 15-16 budget. The largest cost centers for 
the budget are personnel costs, contractual services, utilities, materials, maintenance, fleet, and 
chemicals. Details of significant items and changes for the FY 16-17 Operations and Maintenance 
budget as compared to the FY 15-16 budget include: 
 
Personnel Services 
Personnel Services totaling $8,578,239 represents a FY 16-17 increase of $230,448 or 2.8%. The 
major changes are in the following budget categories: 
 
 Staffing  

The FY 16-17 budget requests no change in staffing level from the FY 15-16 budget. Staffing 
requests remains at 77.40 Full Time Equivalent (FTE). 

 
Regular Wages - $5,165,677, an increase of $142,573 or 2.8%  
Salaries are based upon the negotiated management/labor contracts between the City of Eugene 
and the local union (AFSCME).   

 

Employee Benefits - $1,811,828, an increase of $35,815 or 2.0%  
The employee benefits consist mainly of PERS/OPSRP retirement system costs and Medicare 
contributions.  
 

Health Insurance - $1,454,825, an increase of $68,972 or 5.0% 
The increase is based on group claims experience and cost projections. Costs are calculated   
based on the number of employees.  

 
Materials and Services 
The Materials and Services budget totaling $5,158,368 represents an FY 16-17 increase of 
$35,088 or 0.7%. The major changes are in the following budget categories: 
 
  Indirect Charges - $1,020,000, an increase of $18,850 or 1.9% 

This expenditure category includes costs for payroll processing, human resources services, 
information technology services, and budget and financial services provided by the City of 
Eugene to the Wastewater Division.  
 
Contractual Services - $895,941, a net increase of $100,706 or 12.7% 
This account includes services for outside lab testing, USGS water monitoring, seasonal 
temporary help, distributive control system (DCS) upgrade, and grit waste disposal. Temporary 
help budget is $395,250, professional services are $158,796, and trade and other contractual 
services total $341,895.  
 
 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 35 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Materials & Program Expense - $555,442, a net decrease of $102,662 or 15.6% 
The Materials & Program Expense account includes a wide variety of operational items such as 
telephone charges, training costs, tools, small equipment, safety supplies, and inventory. The FY 
16-17 budget reduction is due in part to one-time expenditures for flow monitoring being made 
in the FY 15-16 budget and not budgeted in FY 16-17. A reduction for tools and minor 
equipment has also been made to align with recent trends of lower expenditures in those areas.  
 
Fleet - $426,986, a decrease of $12,705 or 2.9% 
Fleet services are managed centrally by Eugene Fleet Services. Reduction in fuel costs are 
reflected in lower fleet charges. 
 
Eugene Capital Outlay Expense - $163,100, a net increase of $118,100  
Eugene Capital Outlay budget this year will be used to purchase a water truck for the Biosolids 
Management Facility which will be used for efficient dust control, fire protection and clean up 
capabilities at the BMF and at biosolids application sites. A one-ton pickup outfitted with a 
service body is budgeted for maintenance staff use. 
 

  

ACTUAL
ADOPTED 
BUDGET

AMENDED 
BUDGET

ADOPTED 
BUDGET CHANGE *

FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)
Personnel Services $7,522,408 $8,347,791 $8,347,791 $8,578,239 $230,448 2.8%
Materials & Services 4,173,222 5,123,280 5,243,734 5,158,368 35,088 0.7%
Capital Outlay 26,865 45,000 45,000 163,100 118,100 262.4%
Budget Summary $11,722,495 $13,516,071 $13,636,525 $13,899,707 $383,636 2.8%

  NOTE:  Does not include Major or Equipment Replacement

EXHIBIT 10

EUGENE - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PROGRAM
ADOPTED FY 16-17

BUDGET SUMMARY

$12,509,757 $12,716,031 $12,771,358 
$13,516,071 $13,899,707 

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$16,000,000

FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17

5-YEAR MWMC BUDGET COMPARISON
EUGENE - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Eugene Budget Detail 
 

 

 Page 36 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 

ADOPTED AMENDED ADOPTED
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET CHANGE
FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 INCR/(DECR)

PERSONNEL SERVICES
Regular Wages $4,601,145 $5,023,104 $5,023,104 $5,165,677 $142,573 2.8%
Overtime 45,686 70,975 70,975 40,000 (30,975) -43.6%
Employee Benefits 1,538,942 1,776,013 1,776,013 1,811,828 35,815 2.0%
Workers' Comp/Unemploy Ins 93,005 91,846 91,846 105,909 14,063 15.3%
Health Insurance 1,243,630 1,385,853 1,385,853 1,454,825 68,972 5.0%
Total Personnel Services $7,522,408 $8,347,791 $8,347,791 $8,578,239 $230,448 2.8%

FTE 77.40 77.40 77.40 77.40 0.00 0.0%

MATERIALS & SERVICES
Utilities $752,583 $754,682 $754,682 $775,615 $20,933 2.8%
Fleet Operating Charges 422,336 439,691 439,691 426,986 (12,705) -2.9%
Maintenance-Equip & Facilities 211,579 354,538 354,538 386,497 31,959 9.0%
Contractual Services 365,540 795,235 795,235 895,941 100,706 12.7%
Materials & Program Expense 568,926 658,104 778,558 555,442 (102,662) -15.6%
Chemicals 254,920 330,152 330,152 326,940 (3,212) -1.0%
Parts & Components 352,615 357,656 357,656 353,096 (4,560) -1.3%
Risk Insurance - Employee Liability 49,174 51,527 51,527 51,572 45 0.1%
Laboratory Equipment & Supplies 67,669 93,000 93,000 89,600 (3,400) -3.7%
Computer Equip, Supplies, Maint 254,951 287,545 287,545 276,679 (10,866) -3.8%
Indirects 872,928 1,001,150 1,001,150 1,020,000 18,850 1.9%
Total Materials & Services $4,173,222 $5,123,280 $5,243,734 $5,158,368 $35,088 0.7%

CAPITAL OUTLAY
Motorized Vehicles $26,865 $45,000 $45,000 $163,100 $118,100 262.4%
Capital Outlay-Other 0 0 0 0 0 0.0%
Total Capital Outlay $26,865 $45,000 $45,000 $163,100 $118,100 262.4%

TOTAL $11,722,494 $13,516,071 $13,636,525 $13,899,707 $383,636 2.8%

EXHIBIT 11

EUGENE - OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE
LINE ITEM BUDGET SUMMARY



CAPITAL PROGRAM 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 37 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

REGIONAL WASTEWATER PROGRAM 
CAPITAL PROGRAMS 

 
Overview 

 
The Regional Wastewater Program (RWP) includes two components: the Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) and the Asset Management Capital Program (AMCP). The FY 16-17 CIP Budget, 
the FY 16-17 AMCP Budget, and the associated 5-Year Capital Plan are based on the 2004 
MWMC Facilities Plan (2004 FP) and the Partial Facilities Plan Update dated June 2014. The 
2004 FP was approved by the MWMC, the governing bodies of the City of Eugene, the City of 
Springfield, Lane County, and the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) in 2004. 
The 2004 FP and its 20-year capital project list was the result of a comprehensive evaluation of 
the regional wastewater treatment facilities serving the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area. 
 
The 2004 FP built on previous targeted studies, including the 1997 Master Plan, 1997 Biosolids 
Management Plan, 2001 Wet Weather Flow Management Plan (WWFMP), and the 2003 
Management Plan for a dedicated biosolids land application site. The 2004 FP was intended to 
meet changing regulatory and wet weather flow requirements and to serve the community’s 
wastewater capacity and treatment needs through 2025. Accordingly, the 2004 FP established the 
CIP project list to provide necessary facility enhancements and expansions over the planning 
period. The CIP is administered by the City of Springfield for the MWMC. The AMCP 
implements the projects and activities necessary to maintain functionality, lifespan, and 
effectiveness of the MWMC facility assets on an ongoing basis. The AMCP is administered by 
the City of Eugene for the MWMC and consists of three sub-categories:  
 
 Equipment Replacement Program 
 Major Rehabilitation Program 
 Major Capital Outlay 

 
The MWMC has established these capital programs to achieve the following RWP objectives: 
 
 Compliance with applicable local, state, and federal laws and regulations 
 Protection of the health and safety of people and property from exposure to hazardous 

conditions such as untreated or inadequately treated wastewater 
 Provision of adequate capacity to facilitate community growth in the Eugene-Springfield 

metropolitan area consistent with adopted land use plans 
 Construction, operation, and management of the MWMC facilities in a manner that is as 

cost-effective, efficient, and affordable to the community as possible in the short and long 
term 

 Implementation of the Citizens Advisory Committee recommendations, which represent 
diverse community interests, values and involvement, and that have been adopted by the 
Commission as the MWMC’s plans and policies 

 Mitigation of potential negative impacts of the MWMC facilities on adjacent uses and 
surrounding neighborhoods (ensuring that the MWMC facilities are “good neighbors” as 
judged by the community)   



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 38 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Capital Program Funding and Financial Planning Methods and Policies 
 
This annual budget document presents the FY 16-17 CIP Budget, the FY 16-17 AMCP Budget, 
and 5-Year Capital Plan which includes the CIP and AMCP Capital Plan. The MWMC CIP 
financial planning and funding methods are in accordance with the financial management 
policies put forth in the MWMC 2005 Financial Management Plan.  
 
Each of the two RWP capital programs relies on funding mechanisms to achieve RWP objectives 
described above. The CIP is funded primarily through proceeds from revenue bond sales, system 
development charges, and transfers from the Operating Fund to Capital Reserves. The AMCP is 
funded through wastewater user fees.  
 
In addition to revenue bond sales, financing for qualified CIP projects was also secured through 
the State of Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ)’s Clean Water State Revolving 
Fund (CWSRF) loan program. From 2008-2010, The MWMC secured several CWSRF loan 
agreements totalling $20.8 million. These 20-year loans provide the MWMC below-market 
interest rates,  along with additional financial benefits, including: 
 
 $450,000 in “Sponsorship” funding allocated for riparian shade tree planting projects to 

help address the MWMC’s pending thermal load obligations. The financing of these 
watershed-based projects is made available through the CWSRF program Sponsorship 
Option, which provides funding to the borrower to address nonpoint source water quality 
solutions through a reduced interest rate. The interest rate reduction allows the MWMC to 
invest in watershed improvements using money that would have otherwise been paid as 
interest on the loan. 
 

 $4 million funded through the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act (ARRA, or 
“Stimulus”). The ARRA funding provided 50% of the loan in principal forgiveness (not 
requiring repayment), and the remaining 50% of principal payment bearing 0% interest. 
This resulted in $2 million of net revenue to the CIP in addition to interest savings.  

 
The RWP’s operating fund is maintained to pay for operations, administration, debt service, 
equipment replacement contributions and capital contributions associated with the RWP. The 
operating fund derives the majority of its revenue from regional wastewater user fees that are 
collected by the City of Eugene and City of Springfield from their respective customers. In 
accordance with the MWMC 2005 Financial Plan, funds remaining in excess of budgeted 
operational expenditures can be transferred from the Operating Fund to the Capital Reserve fund. 
The Capital Reserve accumulates revenue to help fund capital projects, including major 
rehabilitation, to reduce the amount of borrowing necessary to finance capital projects. 
 
The AMCP consists of three programs managed by the City of Eugene and funded through 
regional wastewater user fees: The Equipment Replacement Program, which funds replacement 
of equipment valued at or over $10,000 but less than $200,000; The Major Rehabilitation 
Program, which funds rehabilitation of the MWMC infrastructure such as roof replacements, 
structure coatings, etc.; and the Major Capital Outlay Program for capital items (new or 
replacement) with costs greater than $200,000. The MWMC assets are tracked throughout their 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 39 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

lifecycle using asset management tracking software. Based on this information, the three AMCP 
program annual budgets are established and projected for the 5-Year Capital Plan.  
 
For planning purposes, the MWMC must consider market changes that drive capital project 
expenditures. Specifically, the MWMC capital plan reflects projected price changes over time 
that affect the cost of materials and services. Until about 2003, the 20-city average Engineering 
News Record Construction Cost Index (ENRCCI) served as a good predictor for future inflation 
and was used for projecting the MWMC’s construction costs. Accordingly, construction cost 
projections considered in the 2004 FP were based on January 2004, 20-city average ENRCCI. 
However, in the period 2004 through 2008, construction inflation accelerated nationally with 
local construction cost inflation accelerating even faster than the national average. City of 
Springfield staff identified this trend in 2005 and subsequently modified their inflationary 
projection methodology accordingly.  
 
In early 2006, the MWMC hired the consulting firm CH2M to perform a comprehensive update 
of project cost estimates. Following the 2006 update, the RWP’s CIP assumed a general price 
increase of 5% per-year over the planning period. However, the MWMC continues to monitor 
inflationary trends to inform our forecasting of capital improvement costs. Accordingly, based on 
historical inflationary rates from 2006 through 2015, capital project budgets now reflect a 4% 
annual inflationary factor in the FY 16-17 Budget and 5-year Capital Plan.  
 
 

Regional Wastewater Capital Program Status and Budget 
 
CIP Project Status and Budget 
 
The FY 16-17 CIP Budget is comprised of the individual budgets for each of the active 
(carryover) or starting (new) projects in the first year of the 5-Year Capital Plan. The total of 
these FY 16-17 project budgets is $30,356,600. Each capital project represented in the FY 16-17 
Budget is described in detail in a CIP project sheet that can be found at the end of this document. 
Each project sheet provides a description of the project, the project’s purpose and driver (the 
reason for the project), the funding schedule for the project, and the project’s expected final cost 
and cash flow. For those projects that are in progress, a short status report is included on the 
project sheet. 
 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 40 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Completed Capital Projects 

In FY 15-16, the following capital projects are projected to be completed and closed out. No CIP 
project sheets are included for these projects because there is no expected carryover of project 
funds to FY 16-17. 
 
 Repair/Replacement of Biosolids Force Main 
 Sodium Hypochlorite Conversion 
 Influent Pumping and Headworks Expansion 

 
Carryover Capital Projects 
 
All or a portion of remaining funding for active capital projects in FY 15-16 is carried forward to 
the FY 16-17 Budget. The on-going carryover projects are: 

 
 Increase Digestion Capacity   
 Operations & Maintenance Building Improvements  
 Poplar Harvest Management Services 
 WPCF Lagoon Removal/Decommissioning 
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Pre-Implementation  
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 

 Facilities Plan Engineering Services  
 Capacity Management Operations and Maintenance (CMOM) 
 Biogas Cogeneration (a Major Capital Outlay project) 

 
Overall, the budgeting for these projects follows, and is consistent with, the 2006 CH2M 
estimated cost of the listed capital projects and new information gathered during design 
development. 
 
 
New Projects  
 
No new projects are anticipated for the MWMC FY 16-17 Capital Budget. 
 
  



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 41 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

FY 16-17  Capital Budget Summary (Exhibit 12) 
 
Exhibit 12 below displays the adjusted budget and end-of-year expenditure estimates for FY 15-
16, the amount of funding projected to be carried over to FY 16-17 and additional funding for 
existing and/or new projects in FY 16-17.  
 

  
 
 
FY 16-17  Asset Management Capital Project Status and Budget 

The AMCP consists of the following three programs: 
 
 Equipment Replacement 
 Major Rehabilitation 
 Major Capital Outlay 

  

Summary of FY 16-17 MWMC Construction Program Capital Budget

FY 15-16      
ADJUSTED    

BUDGET

FY 15-16      
ESTIMATED   

ACTUALS

FY 15-16 
CARRYOVER 
TO FY 16-17

NEW  
FUNDING     

FOR FY 16-17

TOTAL       
FY 16-17  
BUDGET

Projects to be Completed in FY 15-16
 Repair/ Replacement of Biosolids Force Main 322,704 40,000 0 0 0
 Sodium Hypochlorite Conversion 1,039,800 200,000 0 0 0
 Influent Pumping and Headworks Expansion 285,186 285,000 0 0 0
Projects to be Carried Over to FY 16-17
 Increase Digestion Capacity 16,157,068 1,437,068 14,720,000 0 14,720,000
 Operations & Maint Building Improvements 14,719,167 749,167 13,970,000 0 13,970,000
 Poplar Harvest Management Services 1,334,535 163,526 772,000 0 772,000
 WPCF Lagoon Removal / Decommissioning 4,869,681 179,681 390,000 0 390,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Pre-Implementation 246,092 81,692 164,400 79,600 244,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 (1) 730,884 171,429 131,000 0 131,000
 Facilities Plan Engineering Services 97,547 67,947 29,600 70,000 99,600
 Capacity Mgmt Operations Maint (CMOM) 94,454 33,058 30,000 0 30,000
TOTAL Capital Projects $39,897,118 $3,408,568 $30,207,000 $149,600 $30,356,600
Major Capital Outlay Carried Over to FY 16-17
 Biogas Cogeneration (2) 2,900,000 800,000 2,100,000 3,200,000 5,300,000
TOTAL Major Capital Outlay (multi-year project) $2,900,000 $800,000 $2,100,000 $3,200,000 $5,300,000
Notes:

  (1) Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 budget includes Mill Race Sponsorship ($200,000) and Cedar Creek Sponsorship ($250,000). 

  (2) Biogas Cogeneration is multi-year Major Capital Outlay project, a detail sheet is located at the end of this document. 

EXHIBIT 12



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 42 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

The FY 16-17 budget and status of each program is described below: 
 
Equipment Replacement Program - Budget 
 
The FY 16-17  Capital Programs budget includes $381,000 in Equipment Replacement 
purchases that are identified on the table below.   
 

   
 
Aerial Lift.  Provides access for regular and ongoing maintenance of overhead facilities and 
equipment such as indoor/outdoor lighting, electrical systems, and heating/ventilation equipment.  
Replaces 45-foot boom lift purchased in 2006.    
 
Fleet Replacement.  An assessment of age, mileage, hours of operation, and maintenance costs 
support the replacement of three electric carts and replacement of a 10-yard dump truck bed. 
 
Diesel Generator, 80 KW.  Provides portable emergency power for wastewater treatment 
facilities and Glenwood Pump Station. Replacement of 23 year old generator. 
 
Inductively Coupled Plasma Spectrometer.  Replacement of 12 year old spectrometer in the 
main laboratory. 
 
Security Camera System.  Supports video monitoring of Biosolids Management Facility and 
Biocycle Farm operations and site activities. Replaces and updates 12 year old equipment.   
 
Computer File Server.  Scheduled replacement of one network file server. 
  

Project Description
FY 16-17 

Budget
 Aerial Lift 100,000
 Fleet Replacement 90,000
 Diesel Generator, 80 KW 80,000
 Inductively Coupled Plasma Spectrometer - Lab 77,000
 Security Camera System 25,000
 Computer File Server 9,000
Total $381,000

Equipment Replacement 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 43 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Major Rehabilitation Program - Budget 
 
The FY 16-17 Capital Programs budget includes $534,000 for Major Rehabilitation projects that 
are identified on the table below. 
 

 
 
Air Drying Bed Resurfacing.  The biosolids drying process takes place on 13 asphalt drying 
beds over a 25 acre area. The beds have been on a rotational schedule for resurfacing to extend 
their useful life. In FY 16-17 two beds will be resurfaced.   
 
Solids Pretreatment Building Roof Replacement.  Replacement of 20 year old built-up 
roofing.  Inspection findings of blistering and seams separation indicate need for replacement. 
 
Plant Fuel Tank Replacement.  Decommissions 32 year old underground fuel tanks and 
replaces with above ground tank system. 
 
Air Drying Beds Crack/Fog Sealing (11 beds).  Provides protective seal to surface of asphalt 
drying beds to help maximize useful life. 
 
Maintenance Building High Bay Air Handlers.  Replaces original 33 year old air handlers for 
heating and ventilation that have reached the end of their useful life. 
 
Operations/Maintenance Building Improvements.  This expenditure will go towards 
miscellaneous improvements, repairs, and renovations to improve the functionality and 
usefulness of existing buildings. 

Project Description
FY 16-17 

Budget
 Air Drying Bed Resurfacing (2 beds) 180,000
 Solids Pretreatment Building Roof 95,000
 Plant Fuel Tank Replacement 85,000
 Air Drying Beds Crack/fog Sealing (11 beds) 64,000
 Maintenance Building High Bay Air Handlers 60,000
 Operations/Maintenance Building 50,000
Total $534,000

Major Rehabilitation



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 44 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

Major Capital Outlay - Budget   
 
The FY 16-17 Capital Programs budget includes $5,670,000 for the Major Capital Outlay items 
identified on the table below.  
 

  
 
Engine Genrator.  The existing 800 KW engine generator provides about 55% of plant electric 
power needs and heating water for sludge digestion, building heat, and hot water. This project 
will replace the existing equipment with greater generation capacity of up to 1.2 megawatts, and 
replace related electrical and control systems that have reached the end of their useful life. As of 
January 2016, the project is currently in the design phase. The FY 15-16 budget included $2.9 
million for the project. The FY 16-17 budget includes an additional $3.2 million for a project 
total of $6.1 million. 
 
Residuals Aerator Tractor Replacement.  Replaces the original 16 year old paddle mixer 
which is used for daily mixing/turning of biosolids windrows in air drying beds. 
 
 
Asset Management Capital Budget Summary 

The following table summarizes the FY 16-17 Asset Management Capital Program Budget by 
project type. 
 

 
 

 
5-Year Capital Plan (Exhibit 13) 

 
For each fiscal planning cycle, only the first year of budget authority is appropriated. The 
remaining four years of the CIP and AMCP Capital Plans are important and useful for fiscal and 
work planning purposes. However, it is important to note that the funds in the outer years of the 
Capital Plan are only planned and not appropriated. Also, the full amount of obligated multi-year 
project costs is often appropriated in the first year of the project, unless a smaller subset of the  

Project Description
FY 16-17 

Budget
 Engine Generator Replacement 5,300,000    
 Residuals Aerator Tractor Replacement 370,000       
Total $5,670,000

Major Capital Outlay

Capital Project Type
FY 16-17 

Budget
 Equipment Replacement 381,000
 Major Rehabilitation 534,000
 Major Capital Outlay 5,670,000
Total $6,585,000

Asset Management Capital Project Budget Summary



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 45 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

project, such as project design, can be identified and funded without budgeting the full estimated 
project cost. For these multi-year contracts, unspent funds from the first fiscal year will typically 
be carried over to the next fiscal year until the project is completed. Accordingly, the RWP 
Capital Plan presented herein is a subsequent extension of the plan presented in the adopted FY 
15-16 Budget that has been carried forward by one year. However, changes to the plan typically 
occur from year to year as more information becomes available. In addition to these yearly 
adjustments, RWP staff were further informed by a Partial Facilites Plan Update that was 
completed in June of 2014. Those changes were reflected in the MWMC FY 15-16 budget and 
continue forward in the FY 16-17 for the 5-Year Capital Plan.  
 
Exhibit 13 displays the MWMC 5-Year Capital Plan programs budget, which includes 
$79,742,600 in planned capital projects and $12,540,600 planned asset management capital 
projects for an overall 5-Year Capital Plan Budget of $92,283,200. 
 

  

 
 

FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 TOTAL
CAPITAL PROJECTS
Biosolids Management
 Poplar Harvest Management Services 772,000 868,000 304,000 4,000 4,000 1,952,000
Non-Process Facilities and Facilities Planning
 Facility Plan Engineering Services 99,600 70,000 70,000 70,000 70,000 379,600
 Capacity Mgmt Operations Maint (CMOM) 30,000 30,000
 Comprehensive Facility Plan 713,000 742,000 1,455,000
Conveyance Systems
 Glenwood Pump Station 926,000 926,000
Plant Performance Improvements
 Increase Digestion Capacity 14,720,000 14,720,000
 Operations & Maintenance Building Improvements 13,970,000 13,970,000
 WPCF Lagoon Removal/Decommissioning 390,000 4,300,000 4,690,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Pre-Implementation 244,000 148,000 392,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 (1) 131,000 324,000 4,838,000 4,796,000 2,739,000 12,828,000
 Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 2 1,500,000 3,500,000 4,000,000 9,000,000
 Aeration Basin Improvements - Phase 2 4,050,000 11,850,000 15,900,000
 Tertiary Filtration - Phase 2 3,500,000 3,500,000
TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $30,356,600 $6,423,000 $8,380,000 $12,420,000 $22,163,000 $79,742,600

ASSET MANAGEMENT
 Equipment Replacement 381,000 972,000 588,000 617,000 648,000 3,206,000
 Major Rehab 534,000 813,300 763,500 607,000 566,800 3,284,600
 Major Capital Outlay(2) 5,670,000 380,000 6,050,000
TOTAL ASSET MANAGEMENT $6,585,000 $1,785,300 $1,731,500 $1,224,000 $1,214,800 $12,540,600

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS $36,941,600 $8,208,300 $10,111,500 $13,644,000 $23,377,800 $92,283,200

  (1) Thermal Load Mitigation: Implementation 1 budget includes Mill Race Sponsorship ($200,000) and Cedar Creek Sponsorship ($250,000). 
  (2) FY16-17 includes $5.3 million for Biogas Cogeneration which is a multi-year project, a detail sheet is located at the end of this document. 

EXHIBIT 13

Regional Wastewater  5-Year Capital Programs

Note: 



CAPITAL PROJECT DETAIL 
 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 46 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

POPLAR MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

 
 
Description:        The Biocycle Farm comprises nearly 400 acres of hybrid poplar trees, which were 

planted as three management units (MUs). The MUs were initially planted in 2004, 2007, 
and 2009 and are managed on regulated 12-year rotations. This project develops a harvest 
management plan for the Biocycle Farm through market collaboration and refinement of 
poplar harvest and planting practices. The project ensures the timely harvest of the initial 
plantings in each MU within the regulatory 12-year rotation limit and subsequent 
replanting.  

 
Status:    18% completed. MU-1, comprising 156 acres, was fully harvested in 2013-2015. MU-1 

will be replanted in FY 15-16 with replanting activities extending into FY 16-17. MU-2 
was partially harvested in FY 15-16 for test marketing of veneer. Complete harvest of 
MU-2 will resume in FY 16-17. 

 
Justification:      Land use regulatory requirement for operation of the Biocycle Farm. 
 
Project Driver:   Land Use Compatibility Statement (LUCS) issued by Lane County.  
 
Project Trigger:   Oregon ORS/OAR and NRCS rules dictating that exclusive farm use lands and farmed 

wetland status agricultural lands requiring agriculturally managed hybrid poplar 
plantations must be limited to 12-year rotation duration.  

 
Project Type:    100% Performance  
       
Improvement  
  SDC Eligibility:      0% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $2,346,000 for harvest and administration of the initial plantings across all three MUs. 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 13-14 = $116,009; FY 14-15 = $114,465; FY 15-16 = $163,526; FY 16-17 = 

$772,000; FY 17-18 = $868,000; FY 18-19 = $304,000; FY 19-20 = $4,000; FY 20-21 = 
4,000 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19    2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $230,474 $163,526 $772,000 $868,000 $304,000   $4,000 $4,000 $2,346,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $230,474 $163,526 $772,000 $868,000 $304,000 $4,000 $4,000 $2,346,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 47 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

FACILITY PLAN ENGINEERING SERVICES 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Description:        Engineering services for analysis, project definition, cost estimating, and general 

consultation regarding the 20-Year Facilities Plan. 
 
Status:    This year, work continued on assessment of biogas utilization alternatives, which used a 

Triple Bottom Line (TBL) approach to inform staff recommendations. Based on TBL 
results, regional program staff recommended implementation of a project to expand the 
WPCF’s combined heat and power (CHP) production capacity from 0.8 to 1.2 
megawatts.  This would allow the plant to more fully utilize the biogas for power and 
heat production and minimize biogas flaring. However, due to recent changes in Eugene 
Water and Electric Board’s (EWEB’s) proposed power pricing structure, the project was 
halted while regional program staff revises the economic assessment of the CHP 
expansion project.  Moving forward, staff anticipates additional need for Facilities Plan 
Engineering Services to support ongoing upgrades and infrastructure needs at MWMC 
facilities.  

 
Justification:      Projects were developed to varying levels of specificity in the 20-Year Facilities Plan and 

there is an on-going need for ongoing technical and engineering resources to help in 
further refining projects and generally assisting with implementation of the plan. Another 
need addressed by this resource is assurance that the new improvements maintain the 
overall integrity of the plant in terms of treatment processes and hydraulics. This task 
also provides ongoing planning work related to items not addressed by the 2004 MWMC 
Facilities Plan. 

 
Project Driver:  Ongoing goal to efficiently follow and accommodate the upgrades resulting from the 20-

Year Facilities Plan. 
 
Project Trigger:   On-going need.   
 
Estimated Project Cost:  $933,639  
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 06-07 = $50,000; FY 07-08 = $50,044; FY 08-09 = $25,467; FY 09-10 = $31,829;  
   FY 10-11 = $69,419; FY 11-12 = $8,699; FY 12-13 = $36,690; FY 13-14 = $146,491;  
   FY 14-15 = $67,453; FY 15-16 = $67,947; FY 16-17 = $99,600; FY 17-18 = $70,000;  
   FY 18-19 = $70,000; FY 19-20 = $70,000; FY 20-21 = $70,000      

 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19    2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 
Other  $486,092  $67,947  $99,600 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $933,639 
Total Cost $486,092 $67,947 $99,600 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $70,000 $933,639 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 48 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

CAPACITY MANAGEMENT, OPERATIONS, AND MAINTENANCE (CMOM) 
 

 
 
 
Description:        This project (formerly identified as the WWFMP Update project) supports and guides ongoing 

collection system capacity management, operations and maintenance (CMOM) programs to address 
Rainfall Derived Inflow and Infiltration (RDII) and sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs). The 
MWMC’s NPDES permit requires wet weather planning and prohibits SSOs. DEQ’s SSO 
Enforcement Internal Management Directive identifies CMOM as an acceptable programmatic 
approach to help ensure compliance. The MWMC’s CMOM program provides staff resources and 
engineering consultant services to support the implementation of CMOM programs owned and 
operated by the two partner cities within the MWMC’s service area (i.e., Eugene and Springfield). 
The effort funded through this project provides or supports workshop organization and facilitation, 
guidance development and documentation, technical analysis, standards establishment, and CMOM 
gap analysis assistance.  

 
Status:     Last year, both partner cities completed CMOM program implementation plans building on the gap 

analyses they performed in the prior year. Summaries of these plans were presented to the MWMC 
on August 14, 2015. In addition, regional program staff hired a consultant to perform a study of 
private lateral program approaches. A goal of this study was to recommend steps that partner 
agencies could follow to develop private lateral programs to reduce the amount of RDII entering 
the collection system. A summary of study findings was presented to the MWMC on March 13, 
2015. Finally, regional program staff organized a workshop attended by staff from the two partner 
cities and representatives from three Oregon wastewater agencies who have implemented 
successful private lateral programs. The goal of the workshop was to share information on private 
lateral programs between the agencies. A debriefing meeting was held shortly after the workshop to 
discuss and identify potential next steps for each partner city. Going forward, regional wastewater 
program staff will continue to facilitate further discussion and potential implementation of private 
lateral programs.  

 
Project Driver:   Meet new NPDES requirements concerning SSOs, wet weather planning, and RDII reduction 

through a CMOM program approach.  
 
Project Trigger:   Address NPDES Permit requirements related to SSOs and RDII.   
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility:   11% 
 
Estimated Project Cost:   $500,604 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 05-06 = $6,028; FY 06-07 = $86,895; FY 07-08 = $42,589; FY 08-09 = $9,562  
   FY 09-10 = $14,724; FY 10-11 = $7,538; FY 11-12 = $26,909; FY 12-13 = $123,251;  

FY 13-14 = $91,671; FY 14-15 = $28,379; FY 15-16 = $33,058; FY 16-17 = 30,000  
 

 
 
 

Expenditure/Category Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19  2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 
Other  $437,546  $33,058  $30,000  $0  $0 $0 $0 $500,604 
Total Cost $437,546 $33,058 $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500,604 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 49 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

COMPREHENSIVE FACILITIES PLAN UPDATE NO.1 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Description:        This will be the first MWMC Comprehensive Facilities Plan Update since the 2004 

MWMC Facilities Plan. This Comprehensive Facilities Plan Update effort will consider a 
20-year planning horizon and will draw on the most recent plant data, current regulatory 
landscape, and available technology in order to ensure the MWMC continues to meet 
future regulations, environmental standards, and customer needs.      

 
Status:    Planned for future implementation.  
 
Justification:      Plan future conveyance and treatment upgrades and/or expansions to meet regulatory 

requirements, preserve public health and regional water quality standards. 
 
Project Driver:   Provides comprehensive facilities planning to develop the capital program for the 

upcoming 20-year period once the MWMC receives new regulatory requirements under 
the next NPDES permit renewal.    

 
Project Trigger:   Planning cycle initiated under the 2004 Facilities Plan and later modified to match 

evolving NPDES permit renewal schedule, now estimated for 2017 at the earliest.  
 
Project Type:    Facilities Plan   
       
Improvement  
  SDC Eligibility:      21% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $1,457,280 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 14-15 = $2,280; FY 17-18 = $713,000; FY 18-19 = $742,000 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19    2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 
Other  $2,280  $0  $0 $713,000 $742,000 $0 $0 $1,457,280 
Total Cost $2,280 $0 $0 $713,000 $742,000 $0 $0 $1,457,280 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 50 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

GLENWOOD PUMP STATION UPGRADE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Description: Expand Glenwood pump station capacity. The existing pump station is built to be 

expandable in capacity when the need arises. Two pumps are installed with the 
expandability to add up to two additional pumps when needed. 

 
Status: The project is anticipated to start design development in 2018 with consultant services. 

The scope of work is planned to add one wastewater pumping system. 
 

Justification: Additional pumping capacity will be required at this MWMC pump station to handle 
increasing flows in the Glenwood area (Springfield) and the Laurel Hill area (Eugene). 

 
Project Driver: Keep up with capacity needs, maintain required pumping redundancy, and prevent 

overflows upstream of the Glenwood pump station. 
 
Project Trigger: Planning work in 2014 anticipates that a third pump to increase capacity should be 

operational by about year 2019. The timing will be impacted by the rate and type of 
development in the area and efforts to minimize infiltration and inflow that impact the 
Glenwood pump station. The MWMC Partial Facilities Plan Update document dated June 
2014 recommended moving the initial budget year to FY 18-19 as shown below. 

 
Project Type: 100% Capacity 
 
Improvement 
SDC Eligibility: 38% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $926,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow: FY 18-19 = $864,000; FY 19-20 = $62,000 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19   2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $926,000   $0 $0 $926,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $926,000 $0 $0 $926,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 51 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

INCREASE DIGESTION CAPACITY 
 

 
 
 
Description:        Installation of a fourth digester for expanded production of Class B biosolids. This 

project also included supporting the plant-wide landscaping construction work that was 
completed in December of 2012. 

 
Status:    As of January 29, 2016, the project to Increase Digestion Capacity is in the design phase 

for a fourth digester and construction should start in fall of 2016. The MWMC has three 
existing digesters. 

 
Justification:      Continue to meet the requirements for Class B digestion with the ability to take one 

digester out of service for cleaning and/or repairs.    
 
Project Driver:  Addresses the need for anaerobic digestion capacity. The 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan 

considers an option to upgrade the existing digestion process to meet Class A biosolids 
standards as a strategy to secure a wider range of beneficial end-use options and increase 
program flexibility. Since that time, the MWMC has effectively expanded beneficial 
application of Class B biosolids with expansion of the Biocycle Poplar Farm, and through 
working with private sector end-users.           

 
Project Trigger: Estimates indicate that expanded digestion facilities will be needed by 2017 or 2018. The 

design phase started in 2015.     
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 54.3% 
 
Estimated Project Cost:  $16,653,170 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 11-12 = $139,028; FY 12-13 = $44,142; FY 13-14 = $0; FY 14-15 = $312,932 
 FY 15-16 = $1,437,068; FY 16-17 = $7,050,000; FY 17-18 = $7,600,000;  
 FY 18-19 = $70,000 

 
 

Expenditure/Category: 
Prior 

Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19  2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $496,102 $1,437,068 $14,720,000 $0 $0   $0 $0 $16,653,170 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $496,102 $1,437,068 $14,720,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,653,170 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 52 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS  
 

     
 

     Operations Building       Maintenance Building 
                   Aerial 

     Maintenance Building ISC Modular Building 

  
Description: This project will update and expand the Operations and Maintenance (O&M) support 

facilities at the Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF). The support facilities to be 
updated and expanded on include the Maintenance Building, Administrative/Operations 
Building, and the temporary Industrial Source Control (ISC) building. The improvements 
will include a new laboratory building located where the temporary ISC building is 
currently.   

         
Status: As of December 29, 2015: The project team with direction from the Architectural 

Consultant created three alternatives with cost estimates to consider based on information 
gathered during the pre-design (architectural programming) phase. Staff received 
Commission approval to move forward with the design of Alternative #2 which include 
modifications and additions to the Maintenance and Administration/Operations Buildings 
and design a new building for laboratory functions. The project is in the design phase, 
and construction bidding is anticipated in summer or fall of 2016.     

 
Justification:   The original design for the O&M Buildings at the WPCF was completed in the late 

1970s. Since that time, use of the O&M Buildings have changed substantially due to 
modifications in the workforce, advancing technology, regulatory changes, and an 
increase in staff to support additional facilities Building codes, have also changed during 
this time, necessitating upgrades. Lastly, the ISC modular building was installed as a 
temporary structure in 1996 and has since reached the end of its useful life. 

     
Project Driver: The need to update and/or replace the existing O&M support facilities is driven by the 

need to provide a safe and efficient work environment for WPCF staff. Many of these 
changes stem from a changing wastewater/environmental business since the MWMC 
original construction that occurred in the early 1980’s.   

 
Project Trigger: As needed, due to expansion and changes related to the MWMC facilities and safety.   
 
Estimated Project Cost: $14,900,000             
 
Improvement 
SDC Eligibility: To be determined   
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 14-15 = $180,833; FY 15-16 = $749,167; FY 16-17 = $4,400,000;  
   FY 17-18 = $6,500,000; FY 18-19 = $3,070,000 (estimated cash flow related to 

administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 

 

Expenditure/Category: 
Prior 

Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19   2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $180,833 $749,167 $13,970,000 $0 $0   $0 $0 $14,900,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $180,833 $749,167 $13,970,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,900,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 53 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

WPCF ONSITE LAGOON  
 

 
 
 
Description: This project decommissions the existing biosolids lagoon at the Water Pollution Control 

Facility (WPCF).  
         
Status: As of January 13, 2016:  The project is in pre-design phase and cost estimations are 

preliminary. The MWMC hired a consultant in December of 2014 to create a bid package 
to decommission the lagoon. Lagoon decommissioning site work is anticipated in 2018 
but the schedule might change based on progress of the construction of the forth digester 
improvements.    

 
Justification:   The lagoon was constructed in 1979 as a temporary biosolids storage facility while the 

Biosolids Management Facility was under construction. Since that time it has also served 
as a temporary storage lagoon to support digester cleaning operations. However, the 
lagoon no longer serves the purpose for which it was originally constructed and does not 
meet current design standards for wastewater lagoons. 

     
Project Driver: The lagoon can no longer provide the biosolids capacity for which it was intended nor 

cost effectively continue to support digester cleaning operations. The lagoon is almost 
full of accumulated rainwater and residual solids. Therefore, the decision was made to 
decommission the lagoon and change the process of cleaning the digesters.  

 
Project Trigger: The WPCF lagoon no longer functions as originally designed. 
  
Estimated Project Cost: $5,000,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: Not applicable   
 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 13-14 = $1,769; FY 14-15 = $128,550; FY 15-16 = $179,681; FY 16-17 = $33,000;  
   FY 17-18 = $542,000; FY 18-19 = $4,115,000  

 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: 
Prior 

Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $130,319 $179,691 $390,000 $4,300,000 $0   $0 $0 $5,000,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $130,319 $179,681 $390,000 $4,300,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 54 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

THERMAL LOAD MITIGATION PRE-IMPLEMENTATION  
 

    
  

 
Description:        This project includes the study and planning of thermal load mitigation measures 

including recycled water feasibility studies, riparian shading projects, and water quality 
trading credit development, as well as associated permit negotiation and legal strategy 
related to the temperature total maximum daily loads (TMDL) and NPDES permit 
renewal.   

 
Status:    Two of three planned phases of thermal load strategy planning have been completed with 

recommendations to develop opportunities for recycled water demonstration projects and 
partnerships in watershed restoration for temperature credits. The third phase of study 
commenced in FY 15-16 and will continue in FY 16-17.  

 
Justification:      Provides planning of infrastructure, projects, and collaborative agreements needed so that 

thermal loads are reduced on the Willamette River while providing additional 
environmental and community benefits. 

 
Project Driver:   Address NPDES permit thermal load compliance related to Willamette River TMDL 

temperature requirements.   
 
Project Trigger:   Planning necessary for ongoing compliance with Oregon’s temperature standard.  
 
Project Type:         100% Performance 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 26% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $818,595  
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 13-14 = $ 295,995; FY 14-15 = $48,908; FY 15-16 = $81,692; FY 16-17 = $244,000; 

FY-17-18 = $148,000 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $0 $0 
Other  $344,903  $81,692 $244,000 $148,000 $0 $0 $0 $818,595 
Total Cost $344,903 $81,692 $244,000 $148,000 $0 $0 $0 $818,595 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 55 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

THERMAL LOAD MITIGATION – IMPLEMENTATION 1  
 

           
 
 
Description:        This project implements thermal load mitigation projects strategized for regulatory 

compliance and additional environmental and community benefits. The projects may 
include recycled water use expansion at MWMC facilities and/or extension of recycled 
water services to community partners, water quality trading credit strategies through 
shade credit investments, and collaborative partnerships for permit compliance. The 
recycled water projects may include additional treatment, disinfection, pumping, pipeline, 
and distribution/irrigation systems. 

 
Status:    Pilot-scale riparian shade projects are currently being implemented under a 25-year 

contract agreement with The Freshwater Trust. Additional project opportunities are being 
evaluated for future implementation under the Thermal Load Mitigation: Pre-
Implementation Project. 

 
Justification:      Meet future thermal load permit limits and improve water quality. Implementation of the 

thermal load compliance strategy developed under pre-implementation planning phase. 
 
Project Driver:   Address NPDES permit thermal load compliance related to Willamette River total 

maximum daily loads (TMDL) temperature requirements.   
 
Project Trigger:   Project implementation necessary for ongoing compliance with Oregon’s temperature 

standard.  
 
Project Type:         100% Performance 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 26% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $13,165,470  
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 13-14 = $78,925; FY 14-15 = $87,116; FY 15-16 = $171,429; FY 16-17 = $131,000; 

FY 17-18 = $324,000; FY 18-19 = $4,838,000; FY 19-20 = $4,796,000;  
   FY 20-21 = $2,739,000 
                                                   
 

 
 

Expenditure/Category: 
Prior 

Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $166,041 $171,429 $131,000 $324,000 $4,838,000   $4,796,000 $2,739,000 $13,165,470 
Other  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $166,041 $171,429 $131,000 $324,000 $4,838,000 $4,796,000 $2,739,000 $13,165,470 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 56 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

THERMAL LOAD MITIGATION – IMPLEMENTATION 2  
  

        
 
 
Description:        This project anticipates future expansion of recycled water uses, riparian restoration, 

and/or other thermal load and watershed management strategies for regulatory 
compliance and environmental and community benefits. These projects are subject to the 
outcomes of the regulatory scenarios and goals associated with changing conditions of 
total maximum daily loads (TMDL) implementation, community and climatic factors, 
and emerging water quality/quantity needs. 

 
Status:    To be planned. 
 
Justification:      Ongoing fulfillment of thermal load mitigation strategic plans. 
 
Project Driver:   Address NPDES permit thermal load compliance related to Willamette River TMDL 

temperature requirements, other emerging water quality regulatory drivers, and 
community needs. 

 
Project Trigger:   Compliance with NPDES discharge permit. 
 
Project Type:    100% Performance 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 26% 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $9,000,000 (plus up to $8,000,000 anticipated project need in the out-years FY 21-22 and 

beyond for a total project cost of $17,000,000).  
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 18-19 = $1,500,000; FY 19-20 = $3,500,000; FY 20-21 = $4,000,000 
 
                                                       
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,500,000   $3,500,000 $4,000,000 $9,000,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,500,000 $3,500,000 $4,000,000 $9,000,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 57 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

AERATION BASIN IMPROVEMENTS – PHASE 2                     
 

 
 
Description:        Aeration Basin (Phase 2):  Add step feed, anoxic selectors, and fine bubble diffusers to 4 

of the 8 cells of the aeration basins and make hydraulic improvements. This project was 
originally the North Aeration Basin Improvements project; however the Phase 1 
study/design phase showed that improvements to the four eastern most basins as a first 
phase would allow for better hydraulics and more operational flexibility.   

     
    In January 2016, the project scope and cost (estimate $750K) increased to include 

replacement of existing aeration basin gates, valves and spray system.      
 
Status:    The Aeration Basin (Phase 2) project is anticipated to start design development in fiscal 

year 19-20 with consultant services.    
 
Justification:      Increase the dry weather aeration basin treatment capacity with respect to ammonia (with 

nitrification) and increase the wet weather treatment capacity.  
 
Project Driver:   National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit includes ammonia 

limit requiring nitrification in dry weather and expansion of wet weather capacity to treat 
wet weather flows to meet NPDES permit monthly and weekly suspended solids limits. 

 
Project Trigger:  Address water quality requirements (need to evaluate the requirements based on the 

MWMC next NPDES permit renewal that is not anticipated to be issued in 2016).   
       
 
Project Type:       50% Capacity; 50% Performance 
 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 58.7% 
 
Estimated Project Cost:  $15,900,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 19-20 = $1,450,000; FY 20-21 = $6,800,000; FY 21-22 = $6,950,000;  
   FY 22-23 = $700,000 

 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19    2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0          $0 $4,050,000 $11,850,000 $15,900,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,050,000 $11,850,000 $15,900,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 58 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

TERTIARY FILTRATION - PHASE 2     
 

 
 
 
Description:        The phased work program will install infrastructure/support facilities for 30 mgd of filters 

for tertiary filtration of secondary treated effluent. Phase 2 is planned to install filter 
system technology sufficient for another 10 mgd of treatment that will increase the total 
filtration capacity to 20 mgd. The Phase 3 project will install the remaining filtration 
technology to meet the capacity needs identified in the 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan.   

 
    In January 2016, the project scope and cost (estimate $530K) increased to include 

updating electrical switchgear, and install tertiary filter flushing headers/pipe vents. 
 
Status:    Tertiary Filtration (Phase 2) project is anticipated to start design development in fiscal 

year 20-21. The MWMC has an existing equipment agreement (ending October 2017) to 
allow for additional filtration equipment at a defined price.   

 
Justification:      The 2004 MWMC Facilities Plan proposes phasing filters on a phased work program.  

Filtration provides high quality secondary effluent to help meet permit requirements and 
potential Class A recycled water.    

 
Project Driver: Performance reliability to meet the dry weather NPDES total suspended solids limits of 

less than 10 mg/L, reuse development, and compliance with effluent limits during peak 
flow conditions. 

 
Project Trigger:  NPDES permit compliance for total suspended solids (TSS): Dry weather maximum 

month flow in excess of 49 mgd. Also, provide higher quality effluent so that reuse 
options can be developed.  

 
Improvement 
  SDC Eligibility: 41.6% 
 
Estimated Project Cost:   $14,030,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow:   FY 20-21 = $1,600,000; FY 21-22 = $5,800,000; FY 22-23 = $6,630,000  
 

 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19  2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $0 $0 $0 $0   $0 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 



Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission  Capital Improvement Program 
 

 

 Page 59 FY 16-17 BUDGET AND CIP 
 

BIOGAS COGENERATION SYSTEM REPLACEMENT 
 

 
 
Description: Increase capacity of the combined heat and power generation system (also known as a 

cogeneration system), located at the Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF), to 
maximize biogas utilization.  

 
Status: As of January 20, 2016, design of a larger capacity cogeneration system is 50% complete.  

Further design efforts are paused until definitive long-term financial determinations can 
be made. 

 
Justification: This project will beneficially utilize nearly 100% of generated biogas, opposed to 

currently flaring approximately 30%. 
 
Project Driver: Maximize the beneficial use of biogas, following the recommendation of the Biogas 

Utilization Study. 
 
Project Trigger: Existing cogen unit is scheduled to need a major rebuild by March 2017. 
 
Project Type: 100% Performance 
 
Improvement 
SDC Eligibility: Not applicable 
 
Estimated Project Cost: $6,100,000 (funding for administration, design, permits, construction, etc.) 
 
Estimated Cash Flow: FY 15-16 = $800,000; FY 16-17 = $3,200,000; FY 17-18 = $2,100,000 

 
  
 
 

 
 

Expenditure/Category: Prior Years 
2015-16 
Est. Act. 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19     2019-20 2020-21 Total 

Design/Construction $0 $800,0000 $5,300,000 $0          $0 $0 $0 $6,100,000 
Other  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0 $0 $0 $0 
Total Cost $0 $800,000 $5,300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,100,000 



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Erin Fifield/DPW 
 Staff Phone No: 541-726-2302 
 Estimated Time: 10 min 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Mandate 

 
ITEM TITLE: CDBG FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 ONE-YEAR ACTION PLAN AND 

SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR ACTION PLANS 
 

ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

By motion adopt/not adopt the Springfield Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) section of the FY2016-2017 Eugene-Springfield One-Year Action Plan. 
 
By motion adopt/not adopt the Substantial Amendments to Prior Year CDBG One-
Year Action Plans. 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

One-Year Action Plans must be submitted to HUD prior to the beginning of each 
fiscal year as amendments to the five-year Eugene-Springfield Consolidated Plan.  
The Springfield CDBG section of the FY2016-2017 One-Year Action Plan 
indicates how Springfield intends to use CDBG funds to fulfill the goals established 
in the Consolidated Plan.   
 
Significant changes to prior year One-Year Action Plans require a substantial 
amendment to the One Year Action Plan in which funds were first awarded, as part 
of the Consolidated Plan’s Citizen Participation Plan.  
 
These actions are in line with Council direction provided during work session on 
April 18, 2016. 

ATTACHMENTS: ATT1:  Springfield CDBG FY2016-2017 One-Year Action Plan 
ATT2:  CDBG Substantial Amendments to Prior Year Action Plans 
 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

FY2016-17 CDBG One Year Action Plan 
Each spring, the City Council approves funding allocations for use of CDBG funds 
for the next fiscal year. These amendments were published for comment from 
March 25, 2016 to April 25, 2016. A public hearing was held on April 7, 2016. 
Four individuals spoke at the public hearing in support of the HSC, G Street OASIS 
project, and public infrastructure improvements in low income neighborhoods. The 
CDAC’s recommended Action Plan was discussed during the April 18, 2016 
Council work session. In response to the Council’s request, the only change to this 
Action Plan from the previous draft discussed is an amount of $4,500 that has been 
moved from the HSC contribution to the G Street OASIS project. HSC staff 
indicated it would not be cost-effective to put $4,500 toward winter strategies given 
federal requirements. The FY16/17 allocation is now $73,204 to the HSC, and 
$36,500 to the G Street OASIS project. 
 
Substantial Amendments to Prior Year Action Plans 
These amendments were published for comment from March 25, 2016 to April 25, 
2016. A public hearing was held on April 7, 2016. No comments were received, 
and the CDAC recommended approval, provided the City require NEDCO to 
provide a match contribution for the remaining balance of the Sprout! Code 
Improvements project. These amendments were discussed during the April 18, 
2016 Council work session. 

 



 

Eugene-Springfield  FY 2016/17 One Year Action Plan City of Springfield 
CDBG program 

1 

 

City of Springfield – CDBG Program 
FY 2016/17 One Year Action Plan 
 

This summary describes specific housing and community development actions and activities 
the City of Springfield proposes to undertake with Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds during the program year beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017 
(Fiscal Year 2016/17). It is one part of the Eugene-Springfield 2016/17 One-Year Action Plan.  
 
Communities that are entitled to receive funds from U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) must complete a Consolidated Plan every five years as well as annual 
Action Plans. The Consolidated Plan provides an assessment of needs of low- and moderate-
income persons and a strategic five-year plan for taking actions to address those needs using 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and HOME Investment Partnerships Program 
(HOME) funds received by the Cities of Eugene and Springfield. The One-Year Action Plan 
describes specific actions to be undertaken in a particular year with federal funds. The 
content of the One-Year Action Plan is guided by HUD.  
 
The Cities of Eugene and Springfield each receive an annual entitlement allocation of CDBG 
funds directly from HUD. The two Cities also receive HOME funds from HUD through the 
Eugene-Springfield HOME Consortium. The City of Eugene is the lead agency in the HOME 
Consortium.  
 
A summary of planned uses by the Eugene-Springfield HOME Consortium for the use of HOME 
funds is available from the City of Eugene, as well as a summary of planned uses of Eugene 
CDBG funds. The following describes only the planned uses of CDBG funds received by the 
City of Springfield. 
 

Coordination and Collaboration 
The Cities of Eugene and Springfield collaborate in multiple ways to plan for and implement 
affordable housing and community development activities. The Cities of Eugene and 
Springfield jointly prepare the five-year Consolidated Plan and coordinate preparation of the 
One-Year Action Plans, and Comprehensive Annual Performance and Evaluation Report. 
There are multiple forms for communication and collaboration between the jurisdictions and 
other public agencies, affordable housing developers, social service providers, and other 
interested parties. The Lane County Human Services Commission (HSC) and Poverty & 
Homelessness Board (PHB) offer ongoing opportunities for collaboration and communication. 

 

Attachment 1, Page 1 of 6



  

Eugene-Springfield  FY 2016/17 One Year Action Plan City of Springfield 
CDBG program 

2 

 

Citizen Participation 
The City of Springfield encourages public participation in identifying specific needs and uses 
of CDBG funds in fiscal year (FY) 2016/17. The City of Springfield Community Development 
Advisory Committee (CDAC) is composed of community residents and was established by the 
City of Springfield to make recommendations concerning program policy and project 
selection to the City Council.  

On March 25, 2016, Springfield released its DRAFT CDBG One-Year Action Plan on its website 
and at City Hall. A 30-day public comment period commenced on March 25 and closed on 
April 25. A public hearing was by the CDAC on April 7, 2016. A summary of Springfield CDBG 
funded sources and uses is provided as Attachment A. Four people spoke during the hearing 
to the following issues:  G Street OASIS project; Lane County Human Service Commission (HSC) 
funding; infrastructure needs; and Safe Routes to Schools. Since March 25, no other public 
comments have been received. Springfield’s City Council considered the recommendations 
of the CDAC during a work session on April 18, and approved the One-Year Action Plan at a 
regular session Council meeting on May 2, 2016. 

Retooling the allocation process 
In previous years, Springfield has allocated some CDBG funds annually through a competitive 
Request for Proposals (RFP) process. This year, Springfield identified needed changes to its 
program and is retooling its RFP allocation process. For FY2017, City Council approved funds 
toward making strategic improvements in low income neighborhoods through public facilities 
and improvements, in order to timely allocate and draw funds. In the meantime, Springfield 
will continue to work with the CDAC, Springfield City Council, and HUD on retooling the 
allocation process. Springfield also plans to continue to reach out to community partners to 
understand their priority needs and identify an allocation process that works for them.  

Activities Benefiting Low- and Moderate-Income Persons 
Generally, Springfield's CDBG-funded programs and projects are provided to benefit low-
income residents living within the city limits of Springfield. Individuals participating in a CDBG-
funded program are required to meet HUD Income Guidelines. In order to meet the CDBG 
National Objective of Benefit to Low and Moderate-Income Persons, CDBG-funded projects 
must either serve a specific low-income area, or provide tangible benefit to low- and 
moderate-income clientele (services, economic opportunities, housing). Funded programs 
and projects undergo periodic staff monitoring to ensure compliance with CDBG regulations.  

Attachment 1, Page 2 of 6



 

Eugene-Springfield  FY 2016/17 One Year Action Plan City of Springfield 
CDBG program 

3 

 

 
 
Activities for the Prevention or Elimination of Slum and 
Blighted Conditions 
Another national objective of the CDBG program is the prevention or elimination of slums and 
blighted conditions in neighborhoods and communities, either by designating a specific area 
or by addressing conditions on a spot basis. In 2004, Springfield designated its Springfield 
Downtown Redevelopment Area, in compliance with CDBG regulations. Springfield is 
currently in the process of expanding the boundary and updating this designation with HUD.  

 

 

 

 

Attachment 1, Page 3 of 6



  

Eugene-Springfield  FY 2016/17 One Year Action Plan City of Springfield 
CDBG program 

4 

 

Strategies to Address Priority Needs 
The City of Springfield receives an annual allocation of Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The City 
of Springfield's FY 2016/17 CDBG allocation will be $488,028. This is a 4.5% increase from FY 
2015/16. 

The adopted Eugene-Springfield 2015 Consolidated Plan emphasizes goals and strategies to 
meet priorities needs of low-income renters, low-income homeowners, people experiencing 
homelessness, and non-homeless special needs populations. Additional needs include 
increased employment opportunities for low income persons as well as low-income 
neighborhoods and areas that meet HUD’s definition of slums and blight. The priority strategies 
described below are intended to address one or more priority needs. Attachment B includes 
the adopted table of strategies to address the priority needs along with specific metrics to 
track progress over the five year period.  

The following narrative describes proposed allocations of Springfield CDBG funds for FY 
2016/2017 as it relates to each strategy identified in the Eugene-Springfield 2015 Consolidated 
Plan. Certain strategies in Springfield are met through the Eugene-Springfield HOME 
allocations, and are indicated below. More details can be found regarding the allocation of 
HOME funds in the Eugene 2016/17 DRAFT One-Year Action Plan. 

Affordable Housing 
Affordable housing goals are intended to address HUD program objectives to provide 
decent, safe, and affordable housing and address critical housing needs of low-income 
people in our community. A total of four affordable housing goals are included in the 
adopted Eugene-Springfield 2015 Consolidated Plan.  

Increase the Supply of Affordable Housing 

• Housing Development – (addressed through HOME Allocation) 

• CHDO Operating Support – (addressed through HOME Allocation) 

Rehabilitate Existing Housing Stock 

• Springfield Emergency Home Repair - The City of Springfield will continue to provide 
assistance to qualified low-income homeowners through its Emergency Minor Home 
Repair Program and the Springfield Home Improvement Program (SHIP). These 
programs are funded from allocation from the new CDBG entitlement grant. 
Springfield proposes to allocate $110,000 in CDBG funds for this purpose.  

 

 

Attachment 1, Page 4 of 6



 

Eugene-Springfield  FY 2016/17 One Year Action Plan City of Springfield 
CDBG program 

5 

 

Provide Down Payment Assistance for Home Ownership 

• Springfield Home Ownership Program - The City of Springfield continues to administer 
the very successful Springfield Homeownership Program (SHOP). The SHOP provides 
down-payment assistance for low-and very low-income households. Springfield 
proposes to allocate $100,000 in CDBG funds for this purpose. 

Remove Barriers to Affordable and Supportive Housing 

• There are currently no funds allocated to this strategy. Springfield continues to seek 
opportunities to affirmatively further fair housing and inform others about the Fair 
Housing Council of Oregon’s Fair Housing Hotline. 

Community Development 
Community development goals are intended to satisfy HUD program objectives by providing 
human services; creating jobs; improving access to public facilities; and furthering 
neighborhood revitalization, planning, and community-building activities. A total of three 
community development goals were included in the adopted Eugene-Springfield 2015 
Consolidated Plan.  

Support a Human Services Delivery System 

• Non-profit services through the Human Services Commission (HSC) – The City of 
Springfield collaborates with Lane County to fund human service providers. The Human 
Services Commission (HSC) is the intergovernmental board that guides the use of funds 
and oversees the activities of agencies receiving funds. Springfield proposes to 
allocate $73,204 to the HSC to guide the use of these funds. 

• Non-profit services through G Street OASIS project – This is a new collaborative project 
for homeless families with children, Participating organizations will provide access to a 
coordinated set of services offered at multiple locations within the immediate G Street 
neighborhood in Springfield. Springfield proposes allocating $36,500 to the G Street 
OASIS project, and plans to collaborate with the HSC to oversee the funds. 

Promote Economic Development 

• There are currently no FY 2016/17 funds allocated to this strategy.   

Make Strategic Investments to Improve Neighborhoods 

• Public Facilities and Improvements – In low and moderate income neighborhoods, the 
City would make improvements possibly including but not limited to sidewalk infill, 
crosswalks, ADA ramps, and improved street lighting. Springfield proposes allocating 
$253,462 to these improvements.

Attachment 1, Page 5 of 6



Attachment A 

Eugene-Springfield  FY 2016/17 One Year Action Plan City of Springfield 
CDBG program 

6 

 

City of Springfield 

FY 2016/17 CDBG Funding Allocation Summary 
 

Sources of Funding 

 FY 2016/17 CDBG Entitlement Grant $ 488,028 
 
 Program Income  
  FY 2014/15 Springfield Home Improvement Program 
   (SHIP) loan repayments $ 78,743 
  FY 2015/16 SHIP loan repayments (estimated) $ 52,000 
  FY 2016/17 SHIP loan repayments (estimated) $ 65,000 
 
 Total sources $ 683,771 
 
 
Uses of Funding 
 Rehabilitate Existing Housing Stock  
  Home Repair Program for Low-income Homeowners $ 110,000 
 
 Provide Down Payment Assistance for Home Ownership  
  Down payment assistance for Low-Income Homebuyers $ 100,000 
 
 Support a Human Services Delivery System  
  Non-profit services through the Human Services $ 73,204 
   Commission (HSC)  
  Non-profit services through G Street OASIS project $ 36,500 
   
 Administration and Planning $ 110,605 
 
 Make Strategic Improvements to Improve Neighborhoods $ 253,462 
  Public Facilities and Improvements 
 
 Total uses $ 683,771 
   

 

Attachment 1, Page 6 of 6



City of Springfield 
Substantial Amendments to Prior Year One Year Action Plans for 

Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funds 
 
The City of Springfield is making substantial amendments to prior year allocations of Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) funds as follows: 
 
# Prior Year 

Action Plan 
Amount 
Funded 

Prior Year Allocated Activity Proposed  Amendment 

1. FY 2011/12 $153,577 NEDCO – Site acquisition for 
Sprout! Regional Food Hub to 
create Jobs for Low-Moderate 
Income Persons 

Amend national objective to address Slum 
and Blighted conditions 
 

2. FY 2012/13 $23,033 NEDCO – Microenterprise 
assistance/Food Cart Program to 
create Jobs for Low-Moderate 
Income Persons 

Amend national objective to benefit Low-
Moderate Income Persons 

3. FY 2012/13 $58,000 NEDCO Sprout! – Purchase of 
Kitchen equipment for a Public 
Facility to create Jobs for Low-
Moderate Income Persons 

Amend activity as a Special Economic 
Development Activity 

4. FY 2012/13 $25,000  NEDCO – Downtown Façade 
Improvement Program to address 
Slum/Blight 

Reallocate $12,500 to NEDCO Sprout! for 
the rehabilitation of a non-profit facility to 
address Slum and Blighted conditions 

5. FY 2012/13 $30,000 Centennial Fountain Plaza – 
Rehabilitation of a public facility to 
address Slum/Blight 

Reallocate $30,000 to NEDCO Sprout! for 
the rehabilitation of a non-profit facility to 
address Slum and Blighted conditions 

6. FY 2013/14 $30,000 NEDCO – Microenterprise 
assistance to benefit Low-
Moderate Income Persons 

Reallocate $30,000 to NEDCO Sprout! for 
the rehabilitation of a non-profit facility to 
address Slum and Blighted conditions 

7. FY 2013/14 $50,000 SEDA – Acquisition of Downtown 
property for a Public Facility to 
address Slum/Blight 

Reallocate $50,000 to NEDCO Sprout! for 
the rehabilitation of a non-profit facility to 
address Slum and Blighted conditions 

8. FY 2015/16 $93,339 CDBG Program Administration and 
Planning 

Increase allocation by $34,849 for a total 
allocation of $128,188 

9. FY 2015/16 $24,737 Unallocated Allocate to Public Facilities and 
Improvements to benefit Low and 
Moderate Income Areas 

 

Attachment 2, Page 1 of 1



 AGENDA  ITEM  SUMMARY Meeting Date: 5/2/2016 
 Meeting Type: Regular Meeting 
 Staff Contact/Dept.: Courtney Griesel/CMO 
 Staff Phone No: 541-736-7132 
 Estimated Time: 5 Minutes 
S P R I N G F I E L D 
C I T Y   C O U N C I L 

Council Goals: Encourage Economic 
Development and Revitalization 
through Community Partnerships 

 
ITEM TITLE: GLENWOOD CROSS LAMINATED TIMBER PARKING GARAGE DESIGN SERVICES 

CONTRACT WITH SRG PARTNERSHIP 
ACTION 
REQUESTED: 

Authorize City Manager to complete minor negotiations and sign a contract with SRG 
Partnership for schematic design and design development services specific to the design of a 
cross laminated timber (CLT) parking garage in Glenwood; and  

Approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with the Springfield Economic Development 
Agency (SEDA) to allow SEDA to make financial payments to the City for reimbursement of 
SRG design services. 

ISSUE 
STATEMENT: 

SEDA seeks to build a CLT parking garage in the Glenwood Area to serve riverfront 
redevelopment. The City is proposing to enter into an agreement with SRG Partnership, Inc. 
for architect services. The costs of these services are proposed to be funded by SEDA, as 
approved in the FY16 and FY17 budgets. Due to the unique design and initial conceptual 
work developed as part of partnerships with SRG and the University of Oregon for submittal 
to the Oregon BEST CLT Design Competition, staff proposes this work be authorized through 
a sole source contract with SRG Partnership, Inc.  

ATTACHMENTS: Attachment 1 – SRG Partnership Sole Source Justification 
Attachment 2 – Draft SRG Partnership Contract for Professional Services  
Attachment 3 – Draft Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for SEDA Repayment to the City 
of Springfield for SRG Professional Services  
Attachment 4 – Glenwood CLT Parking Garage Overview 

DISCUSSION/ 
FINANCIAL 
IMPACT: 

The Glenwood Riverfront CLT parking structure is located in the north riverfront area of 
Phase I of the Glenwood Refinement Plan. The Refinement Plan promotes density and a mix 
of uses while intentionally limiting the development of surface parking lots.  This intentional 
plan generates the demand for structured parking, a necessary piece of infrastructure 
identified by the development community when evaluating the redevelopment area potential.  
The City and SEDA propose to leverage SEDA investments for design and development of a 
parking structure sized to adequately serve the immediately surrounding north riverfront area.  
As the garage is envisioned to utilize CLT, an innovative and non-traditional construction 
material, incentive and support will be required to assist in project realization.  This contract 
will begin the process of shaping and funding the structure design which will serve as the 
basis for public and private partnerships.   The proposed contract with SRG Partnership 
includes Glenwood area CLT parking garage design services specific to: 

• Development of Schematic Design in an amount not to exceed $289,435 
• Detailed Design Development in an amount not to exceed $389,115 
• A total contract not to exceed amount of $678,550 
• A final product/deliverable date of December 31, 2017 

Staff is requesting Council provide authorization to the City Manager to complete remaining 
minor contract negotiations with SRG Partnership, Inc. for architect services specific to 
design of the Glenwood CLT Parking structure and to execute the agreement so long as the 
additions/deletions do not impact the proposed not to exceed amounts or final deliverable 
date. 

 



AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 1 of 2



AIS ATTACHMENT 1, Page 2 of 2



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 1 of XX 

 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

(Type 3: For Personal Services Contracts Requiring Professional Liability Insurance) 
Contract # 1661 

 
Dated:  May 2, 2016 
 
Parties: The City of Springfield                                   (“CITY”) 
  A municipal corporation in the State of Oregon 

225 Fifth Street 
  Springfield, Oregon 97477 
 
     and 
   

SRG Partnership, INC 
 

   (“Independent Contractor”) 

 
Additional Independent Contractor Information: 

 
A. Type of Entity:   Sole Proprietorship    Partners    Limited Liability Company    Corporation 
B. Address:     621 SW Morrison St, Suite 200, Portland OR 97205     
C. Telephone:    503-222-1917 
D. Fax No:           
E. SSN or Fed. I.D. No:   93-0622812 
F. Professional License(s) No:  0016AF 
G. Oregon Agency Issuing License:  Oregon Board of Architect Examiners 
H. Foreign Contractor            Yes   No  
   (Foreign means not domiciled in or registered to do business in Oregon) See Exhibit B (11). 
 
CITY Account Number(s) To Be Charged (Include Percentages): 
 

Account Number Percentage 
                   229-01130-611008            100 

 
In consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties agree to the following terms, 
provisions and conditions: 
  
1. Payment by CITY.  CITY shall pay Independent Contractor according to the sum and schedule 

described in Attachment 1, Attachment 2 and Attachment 3 attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference and in an amount not to exceed $678,550 for Phase 1.   
 

2. Invoice.   
 

2.1. Invoice to be sent to: Accounts Payable - City of Springfield, 225 5th Street, Springfield, OR 
97477 or email to ap@springfield-or.gov.  Invoice will be paid on net 30 day terms upon City 
acceptance of goods delivered, work or services performed. The invoice must reference this 
contract #1661 and approval code #    . 

2.2. The fee paid will be upon written acceptance of each task by City project lead.  The invoice 
will include the task # from Attachment 2 and a summary of the work completed. 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 1 of 26

mailto:ap@springfield-or.gov


 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 2 of XX 

 

 
 

 
3. Services to be Performed by Independent Contractor.  Independent Contractor shall perform the 

services described on Attachment 1.  
 

4. Term.  This Agreement is effective as of the date first set forth above and shall continue until 
December 31, 2017 unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement or 
by mutual consent of the parties. 

 
5. Sourcing.  Sole Source Procurement in accordance with Springfield Municipal Code 2.702(4).  

 
6. First Point of Contact. 

 Independent Contractor: Kent Duffy, PH: 503.548.9408, kduffy@srgpartnership.com 
CITY: Courtney Griesel, PH: 541.736.7132, cgriesel@springfield-or.gov 

 
7. Independent Contractor Status.  By its execution of this Agreement, Independent Contractor 

certifies its status as an “Independent Contractor” as that term is used under the laws of the State of 
Oregon, and that all performance of any labor or services required to be performed by Independent 
Contractor under the terms of this Agreement shall be performed in accordance with the standards 
set forth in ORS 670.600, and as more specifically set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
8. Conformance with Oregon Public Contracts Law (ORS Chapter 279).  Independent Contractor 

shall comply with all applicable provisions of Oregon law for public contracts, including, but not limited 
to ORS 279B.220, ORS 279B.225, ORS 279B.230, and ORS 279B.235, and as more fully set forth 
on Exhibits “A” , “B” and “C” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
9. Work Performed.  The work to be performed by Independent Contractor includes services generally 

performed by Independent Contractor in his/her/its usual line of business. 
 
10. Tax duties and Liabilities.  Independent Contractor shall be responsible for all federal, state and 

local taxes, if any, applicable to any payments received pursuant to this Agreement, including but not 
limited to income tax, payroll tax, social security and self-employment tax.  CITY shall not withhold, 
pay, or in any other manner be responsible for payment of any taxes on behalf of Independent 
Contractor.  

 
11. Reimbursement Of Expenses.  Independent Contractor shall not be entitled to reimbursement by 

CITY for any expenses incurred by Independent Contractor unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 
12. Materials and Supplies.  Independent Contractor shall supply all materials and supplies needed to 

perform the services required unless otherwise agreed in writing. 
 
13. No Authority To Bind CITY.  Independent Contractor shall have no authority to enter into contracts 

on behalf of CITY, it’s officers, agents and employees.  This Agreement shall not create a partnership 
or joint venture of any sort between the parties. 

 
14. Federal Employment Status.  In the event payment made pursuant to this Agreement is to be 

charged against federal funds, Independent Contractor hereby certifies that it is not currently 
employed by the Federal Government and the amount charged does not exceed Independent 
Contractor’s normal charge for the type of services provided 
 

15. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  The Independent Contractor shall indemnify and hold the 
CITY and the CITY’s officers and employees harmless from and against damages, losses and 
judgments arising from claims by third parties, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 2 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 3 of XX 

 

recoverable under applicable law, but only to the extent they are caused by the negligent acts or 
omissions of the Independent Contractor, its employees and its consultants in the performance of 
professional services under this Agreement.   

 
 
16. Insurance.  

16.1. General Insurance.  The Independent Contractor shall maintain in force for the duration of 
this agreement a Commercial General Liability insurance policy specific to this project written 
on an occurrence basis with project limits not less than $5,000,000 per occurrence and 
$10,000,000 in the aggregate for bodily injury or property damage. The policy will contain a 
“per project” Aggregate endorsement. Automobile Liability (owned, non-owned and hired) 
insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence shall be maintained. The City, 
its employees, officials and agents will be named as an Additional Insured where operations 
are being conducted related to this contract, on the General Liability policy as respects to 
work or services performed under this Agreement to the extent that the death or bodily injury 
to persons or damage to property arises out of the fault of the Independent Contractor or the 
fault of the Independent Contractor’s agents, representatives or subcontractors. This 
insurance will be primary over any insurance the City may carry on its own. Independent 
contractor understands that CITY is a public entity subject to the requirements of the Oregon 
Governmental Tort Claims Act, ORS 30.260 et seq.  In the event that CITY’S financial 
obligations or liabilities are modified by any amendment to the liability limits imposed by the 
Oregon Governmental Tort Claims Act, Independent contractor agrees that the limits 
regarding liability insurance set forth in this Section16.1 will be modified to conform to such 
limits.  Independent contractor and CITY shall sign an amendment to this Agreement 
incorporating such modification. 

16.2. Professional Liability.  Independent Contractor shall maintain in force during the duration of 
this Agreement (and, if it is a claims made policy, for five  years following completion of the 
project) a $5,000,000 professional liability policy. The City, its employees, officials and agents 
will be named as an Additional Insured  on the Professional Liability policy as respects to 
work or services performed under this Agreement. 

16.3. Asbestos Abatement.  (Only applicable to contracts where asbestos maybe present)  The 
Commercial General Liability policy shall be written on a form that meets the following criteria 
and must be ASBESTOS SPECIFIC  as follows: 

  a.  A full occurrence form, or 
  b.  A limited occurrence form with at least a three-year (3) tail, or 
  c.  A claim made form with a three-year (3) tail.  
16.4. Workers’ Compensation.  Independent Contractor shall provide and maintain workers’ 

compensation coverage for its employees, officers, agents, or partners, as required by 
applicable workers’ compensation laws.  If Independent Contractor is exempt from coverage, 
a written statement signed by Contractor so stating the reason for the exemption shall be 
provided to the City. 

16.5. Evidence of Insurance Coverage.  Evidence of the required insurance coverages issued by 
an insurance company satisfactory to the City shall be provided to the City by way of a City 
approved certificate of insurance before any work or services commence.  

16.6. Notice of Cancellation or Material Change in Coverage.  The certificate of insurance shall 
contain a requirement that the Insurance company notify the City 30 days prior to any 
cancellation or material change in coverage.  If the approved insurance company will not 
provide this 30 day notice, the Contractor shall provide written notice to the City contract 
manager within 2 calendar days after the Contractor becomes aware that their coverage has 
been canceled or has been materially changed.  The Contractor shall either fax 541-726-
3782 said notice or email it directly to Bob Duey (rduey@springfield-or.gov), Finance Director 
at the City.  Regardless of what circumstances caused Contractors insurance coverage to 
cease or be modified, it is the contractor’s responsibility to notify the City.   Failure to maintain 
proper insurance or provide notice of cancellation or modification shall be grounds for 
immediate termination of this contract.________(Contractor initials) 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 3 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 4 of XX 

 

16.7.  Equipment and Material. The Independent Contractor shall be responsible for any loss, 
damage, or destruction of its own property, equipment, and materials used in conjunction with 
the work. 

16.8. Subcontractors.  The Independent Contractor shall require all subcontractors to provide and 
maintain general liability, auto liability, professional liability (as applicable), and workers’ 
compensation insurance with coverage’s equivalent to those required of the general 
contractor in this contract. The Independent Contractor shall require certificates of insurance 
from all subcontractors as evidence of coverage.  

16.9. Exception or Waivers.   Any exception or waiver of these requirements shall be subject to 
review   and approval from the City’s Risk Manager. 

16.10. Railroad Protective Liability Coverage.  If work being performed under this agreement is 
near   railroad  tracks or a railroad right of way and the Railroad requires special insurance 
(for example: Railroad Protective Liability Coverage) Independent Contractor will be 
responsible for meeting the Railroad insurance requirements before any work commences.  
Any insurance required to be purchased by the Railroad is in addition to the insurance 
required by the City. 

 
17. Termination.  

17.1. The performance of work under this Agreement may be terminated by CITY, in whole or in 
part, whenever for any reason CITY shall determine that such termination is in the best 
interest of CITY.  Any such termination shall be effected by delivery to the Independent 
Contractor of a Notice of Termination specifying the extent to which performance of the work 
under the Agreement is terminated and the date on which such termination is effective.  Upon 
delivery to the Independent Contractor of a Notice of Termination under this paragraph, the 
Independent Contractor and CITY shall, by agreement, make an appropriate written 
modification to this Agreement governing completion of portions of the independent 
Contractor’s work and payment therefore by CITY. 

17.2. The performance of work under this Agreement may be terminated by the Independent 
Contractor at any time. 

17.3. Independent Contractor shall be paid for work accepted by the City prior to termination.  The 
amount of such payment will be that portion of the Agreement price attributable to work 
performed and accepted by City through the effective date of the termination. 

 
18. Rights In Data.  All original written material, including programs, card decks, tapes, listings, drawing 

specifications and other documentation originated and prepared for CITY pursuant to this Agreement, 
shall become exclusively the property of CITY.  The ideas, concepts, know-how, or techniques 
developed during the course of this Agreement by Independent Contractor personnel can be used by 
either party in any way it may deem appropriate.  Material already in Independent Contractor’s 
possession, independently developed by Independent Contractor outside the scope of this 
Agreement, or rightfully obtained by Independent Contractor from third parties, shall belong to 
Independent Contractor.  This agreement shall not preclude Independent Contractor from developing 
materials which are competitive, irrespective of their similarity to materials which might be delivered to 
CITY pursuant to this Agreement.  Independent Contractor shall not, however, use any written 
materials developed under this Agreement in developing materials for others, except as provided in 
this section. 

 
19. Confidentiality.  During the course of performance hereunder, Independent Contractor or its agent, 

employees, or contractors, may receive confidential information.  Independent Contractor agrees to 
use its best efforts to maintain the confidentiality of such information and to inform each agent and 
employee performing services of the confidentiality obligation that pertains to such information. 

 
20. Assignment/Subcontract.  Independent Contractor shall not assign, sell, transfer, subcontract or 

sublet rights, or delegate responsibilities under this agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior 
written approval of CITY.  No such written approval shall relieve Independent Contractor of any 
obligations of this Agreement, and any transferee or subcontractor shall be considered the agent of 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 4 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 5 of XX 

 

Independent Contractor.  Independent Contractor shall remain liable as between the original parties 
to this Agreement as if no such assignment had occurred. 

 
21. Successors In Interest.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to 

the benefit of the parties to this Agreement and their respective successors and assigns.   
 
22. Compliance With All Government Regulations.  Independent Contractor shall comply with all 

Federal, State and local laws, codes, regulations and ordinances applicable to the work performed 
under this Agreement.  Failure to comply with such requirements shall constitute a  breach of contract 
and shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement.  Damages or costs resulting from 
noncompliance shall be the sole responsibility of Independent Contractor. 

 
23. Attorney Fees.  In the event a lawsuit of any kind is instituted on behalf of CITY to enforce any 

provision of this Agreement, Independent Contractor shall pay such additional sums as the Court may 
adjudge reasonable for attorney fees plus all costs and disbursements at trial and on any appeal. 

 
24. Force Majeure.  Neither party to this Agreement shall be held responsible for delay or default caused 

by fire, riot, acts of God and/or war which is beyond that party’s reasonable control.  CITY may 
terminate this Agreement upon written notice after determining such delay or default will 
unreasonably prevent successful performance of the Agreement.   

 
25. Assistance Regarding Patent And Copyright Infringement.  In the event of any claim or suit 

against CITY on account of any alleged patent or copyright infringement arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement or out of the use of any material furnished or work or services  
performed hereunder, Independent Contractor shall defend CITY against any such suit or claim and 
hold CITY harmless from any and all expenses, court costs, and attorney’s fees in connection with 
such claim or suit. 

 
26. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is declared by a court to be illegal or in conflict with 

any law, the validity of the remaining terms and provisions shall not be affected;  and the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced as if the Agreement did not contain the 
particular provision held to be invalid.  

 
27. Access To Records.  CITY and its duly authorized representatives shall have access to books, 

documents, papers and records of Independent Contractor which are directly pertinent to this 
Agreement for the purpose of making audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts. 

 
28. Waiver.  Failure of CITY to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or 

relinquishment by CITY of the right to such performance in the future nor of the right to enforce any 
other provision of this Agreement. 

 
29. Amendments.  The terms of this Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or 

amended in any manner whatsoever, without prior written approval of CITY,  No modification of this 
Agreement shall bind either party unless reduced to writing and subscribed by both parties, or 
ordered by a Court. 

 
30. Nondiscrimination.  Independent Contractor shall comply with all applicable requirements of Federal 

and State civil rights and rehabilitation statutes, rules and regulations. 
 

31. Dual Payment.  Independent Contractor shall not be compensated for work performed under this 
contract from any CITY agency other than the agency which is a party to this contract. 

 
32. No Liability. No liability shall attach to the CITY by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as 

expressly provided herein. 
 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 5 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 6 of XX 

 

33. Green Energy Technology. Independent Contractor and CITY shall work together to implement the 
applicable requirements of ORS 279C.527 through 279C.528 and OAR 330-135-0010 et seq. 
regarding 1.5% for green energy technology in public buildings. 

 
34. No Liens. Independent Contractor shall not permit any lien or claim to be file or prosecuted against 

the CITY on account of labor furnished. 
 

35. Disagreements, Mediation and Litigation. 
35.1. Disputes.  The Agreement shall not be construed against either party regardless of which 

party drafted it. Other than as modified by the Agreement, the applicable rules of contract 
construction and evidence shall apply.    This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon without regard to principles of conflict of 
laws. 

35.2. The parties shall endeavor to resolve all disputes through collaboration.  Both parties to the 
Agreement agree to provide other resources and personnel as may be necessary to meet, 
negotiate and find resolution to disputes that cannot be resolved at the level of project 
managers.  If resolution cannot be found, subsection 35.3 or 35.4 are applicable. 

35.3. As a next step, claims, disputes, or other matters in question between the parties to this 
Agreement arising out of or relation to the Agreement or breach thereof shall be determined 
by meditation.  Disputes shall be initially submitted to mediation by a mediator chosen by the 
parties.  The rules, time and place for mediation will be established by mutual agreement.  
The cost of mediation shall be borne equally by Independent Contractor and the CITY.  If the 
parties are unable to agree upon a mediator within five days or if mediation fails to resolve 
the dispute within a reasonable time, either party may undertake litigation to resolve the 
dispute.  During mediation the parties may also agree to suspend the time requirements 
pending the outcome of the mediation process. 

35.4. Any dispute between the Independent Contractor and the CITY that arises from or relates to 
the Agreement and that is not resolved under 35.2 or 35.3 shall be brought and conducted 
solely and exclusively within the Circuit Court for the State of Oregon in Lane County; 
provided, however, if a dispute must brought in a federal forum, then it shall be brought and 
conducted solely and exclusively with the United States District Court for the District of 
Oregon.  In no event shall this Subsection be construed as a waiver by the CITY of any form 
or defense or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity 
based on the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from 
any claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.  The Independent Contractor by execution of 
the Agreement hereby consents to the personam jurisdiction of the Courts referenced in this 
section. 

35.5. Should any suit, action, or litigation proceeding be commenced in connection with any 
dispute arising out of this Agreement to obtain a judicial construction of any provision of this 
Agreement of to enforce or collect any award obtained during litigation, or judgement, or 
decree by any court, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the losing party its 
costs and disbursements, together with such investigation costs, expert witness fees, 
mediation and mediator fees, legal and court fees and attorney fees incurred in connection 
with such dispute, as the court may adjudge reasonable at trial hearing any on any appeal or 
judicial review of such suit, or action. 

35.6. The parties understand that the CITY is a public body and maintains its status as a public 
body as specified in ORS 30.260.  The CITY retains all limitations, immunities and privileges 
granted it, its officers, agents, and employees under Oregon Law, including but not limited to 
the Oregon Tort Claims Act (ORS 30.2660 – 30.295) and any and all other statutory rights 
granted the CITY as a result of its status as a public body. 

 
 

36. Choice of Law, Forum, Construction of Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Oregon, apart from choice of law 
provisions.  The parties agree that the Circuit Court for the County of Lane, State of Oregon, or the 
Federal District Court of the State of Oregon (Eugene) is the sole and proper forum for resolving any 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 6 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 7 of XX 

 

disputes involving this Agreement, any breach of this Agreement, or relating to its subject 
matter.  The Parties agree to submit themselves to the jurisdiction of such courts without challenge to 
the jurisdiction of these courts. This Agreement shall not be construed more favorably to CITY due to 
the preparation of this Agreement by CITY.  The headings and subheadings in this Agreement are for 
convenience, do not form a part of this Agreement, and shall not be used in construing this 
Agreement. 

 
37. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement signed by both parties is the parties’ final and entire Agreement 

and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous oral or written communications between the parties, 
their agents and representatives.  There are no representations, promises, terms, conditions or 
obligations other than those contained herein. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have executed this Agreement to be effective the date first 
set forth above. 
 
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD:  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
   
By:   By:  
Name:   Name:  
Title:   Title:  
Date:   Date:  
 
 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 7 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 8 of XX 

 

EXHIBIT  “A” 
 

CITY OF SPRINGFIELD  
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

 
Independent Contractor Status 

 
All performance of any labor or services required to be performed by Independent Contractor 
shall be performed in accordance with the standards set forth in ORS 670.600 (2005), and as 
follows: 
 
A person is customarily engaged in an independently established business if any three of the 
following six requirements are met: 
 
1. The person maintains a business location: 
  

a. That is separate from the business or work location of the person for whom the 
services are provided; or, 

b. That is in a portion of the person’s residence and that portion is used primarily 
for the business. 

 
2. The person bears the risk of loss related to the business or the provision of services as 

shown by factors such as: 
 

a. The person enters into fixed-price contracts; 
b. The person is required to correct defective work; 
c. The person warrants the services provided; or, 
d. The person negotiates indemnification agreements or purchases liability 

insurance, performance bonds or errors and omissions insurance. 
 
4. The person provides contracted services for two or more different persons within a 12-

month period, or the person routinely engages in business advertising, solicitation or 
other marketing efforts reasonably calculated to obtain new contracts to provide similar 
services. 

 
5. The person makes a significant investment in the business, through means such as: 
 

a. Purchasing tools or equipment necessary to provide the services; 
b. Paying for the premises or facilities where the services are provided; or 
c. Paying for licenses, certificates or specialized training required to provide the 

services. 
 
6. The person has the authority to hire other persons to provide or to assist in providing 

the services and has the authority to fire those persons. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 8 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 9 of XX 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

City of Springfield 
Public Contracts 

Conformance with Oregon Public Contractors Laws 
 

Pursuant to Oregon law, every public contract shall contain the following conditions: 
 
1) Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the contractor labor or material for the performance of the work provided 

for in the contract.  ORS 279B.220(1) 
 
2) Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from the contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of 

the contract.  ORS 279B.220(2). 
 
3)  Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state or a county, school district, municipality, municipal corporation 

or subdivision thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished.  ORS 279B.220(3). 
 
4) Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees under ORS 316.167.  ORS 279B.220(4). 
 
5) If the agreement is for lawn and landscape maintenance, it shall contain a condition requiring the contractor to salvage, recycle, 

compost or mulch yard waste material at an approved site, if feasible and cost-effective.  ORS 279B.225. 
 
6) Promptly, as due, make payment to any person, copartnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and hospital 

care services or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the employees of the contractor, of all sums that the 
contractor agrees to pay for the services and all moneys and sums that the contractor collected or deducted from the wages of 
employees under any law, contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for the services.  All employers shall comply 
with ORS 656.017.  ORS 279B.230. 

 
7) A person may not be employed for more than 10 hours in any one day, or 40 hours in any one week, except in cases of necessity, 

emergency or when the public policy absolutely requires it, and in such cases, except in cases of contracts for personal services 
designated under ORS 279A.055, the employee shall be paid at least time and a half pay: 

  
a)   For all overtime in excess of eight hours a day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is five consecutive 

days; or 
b)   For all overtime in excess of 10 hours in any one day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is four 

consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and 
c) For all work performed on Saturday and on any legal holiday specified in ORS 279B.020.   

 
An employer must give notice in writing to employees who work on a public contract, either at the time of hire or before 
commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per day 
and days per week that the employees may be required to work.  ORS 279B.235(1)-(2). 

 
8) If the agreement is for personal services, the contract shall contain a provision that the employee shall be paid at least time and a half 

for all overtime worked in excess of 40 hours in any one week, except for individuals under personal services contracts who are 
excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 U.S.C. 201-209 from receiving overtime.  ORS 279B.235(3). 

 
9) Contracts for services must contain a provision that requires that persons employed under contracts shall receive at least time and half 

pay for work performed on the legal holidays specified in a collective bargaining agreement or in ORS 279B.020(1)(b)(B)-(G) and for 
all time worked in excess of 10 hours in any one day or in excess of 40 hours in any one week, whichever is greater.  Employer shall 
give notice in writing to employees who work on a contract for services, either at the time of hire or before commencement of work on 
the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number hours per day and days per week that the 
employees may be required to work.  ORS 279B.235(5).  

 
If this agreement is for a public improvement, the contract shall contain the following conditions: 
 
10) Make payment promptly, as due, to all persons supplying to the contractor labor or material for the performance of the work provided 

for in the contract.  ORS 279C.505(1)(a). 
 
11) Pay all contributions or amounts due the Industrial Accident Fund from the contractor or subcontractor incurred in the performance of 

the contract.  ORS 279C.505(1)(b). 
 
12)  Not permit any lien or claim to be filed or prosecuted against the state or a county, school district, municipality, municipal corporation 

or subdivision thereof, on account of any labor or material furnished.  ORS 279C.505(1)(c). 
 
13) Pay to the Department of Revenue all sums withheld from employees under ORS 316.167.  ORS 279C.505(1)(d). 
 
14) The contractor shall demonstrate that an employee drug testing program is in place.  ORS 279C.505(2). 
 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 9 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 10 of XX 

 

15) If the contractor fails, neglects or refuses to make prompt payment of any claim for labor or services furnished to the contractor or 
subcontractor by any person in connection with the public improvement contract as the claim becomes due, the proper officer or 
officers representing the state or a county, school district, municipality, municipal corporation or subdivision thereof, as the case may 
be, may pay such claim to the person furnishing labor or services and charge the amount of the payment against the funds due or to 
become due the contract by reason of the contract.  If the contractor or first-tier subcontractor fails, neglects or refuses to make 
payment to a person furnishing labor or materials in connection with the public improvement contract within 30 days after receipt of 
payment from the contracting agency or a contractor, the contractor or first-tier subcontractor shall owe the person the amount due 
plus interest charges commencing at the end of the 10-day period that payment is due under ORS 279C.580(4) and is subject to a good 
faith dispute as defined in ORS 279C.580.  If the contractor or a subcontractor fails, neglects or refuses to make payment to a person 
furnishing labor or materials in connection with the public improvement contract, the person may file a complaint with the 
Construction Contractors Board, unless payment is subject to a good faith dispute as defined in ORS 279C.580.  ORS 279C.515. 

 
16) The payment of a claim does not relieve the contactor or the contractor’s surety from obligation with respect to any unpaid claims.  

ORS 279C.515(4). 
 
17) A person may not be employed for more than 10 hours in any one day, or 40 hours in any one week, except in cases of necessity, 

emergency or when the public policy absolutely requires it, and in such cases, except in cases of contracts for personal services 
designated under ORS 279C.100, the employee shall be paid at least time and a half pay: 

  
a)   For all overtime in excess of eight hours a day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is five consecutive 

days; or, 
b)   For all overtime in excess of 10 hours in anyone day or 40 hours in any one week when the work week is four 

consecutive days, Monday through Friday; and, 
c) For all work performed on Saturday and on any legal holiday specified in ORS 279B.020.  ORS 279C.520(1). 
 

An employer shall give notice in writing to employees who work on a public contract either at the time of hire or before 
commencement of work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per day 
and days per week that the employees may be required to work.  ORS 279B.520(2). 
 

18) If the agreement is for personal services, the contract shall contain a provision that the employee shall be paid at least time and a half 
for all overtime worked in excess of 40 hours in any one week, except for individuals under personal services contracts who are 
excluded under ORS 653.010 to 653.261 or under 29 U.S.C. 201-209 from receiving overtime.  ORS 279C.520(3). 

 
19) Contracts for services must contain a provision that requires that persons employed under contracts shall receive at least time and half 

pay for work performed on the legal holidays specified in a collective bargaining agreement or in ORS 279C.540(1)(b)(B)-(G) and for 
all time worked in excess of 10 hours in any one day or in excess of 40 hours in any one week, whichever is greater.  An employer 
shall give notice in writing to employees who work on a contract for services, either at the time of hire or before commencement of 
work on the contract, or by posting a notice in a location frequented by employees, of the number of hours per day and days per week 
that the employees may be required to work.  ORS 279C.520(5) 

 
20) Solicitation documents for a public improvement contract shall make specific reference to federal, state and local agencies that have 

enacted ordinances, rules or regulations dealing with the prevention of environmental pollution and the preservation of natural 
resources that affect the performance of the contract.  A solicitation document must also make special reference to known conditions 
at the construction site that may require the successful bidder to comply with the ordinances, rules or regulations identified under ORS 
279C.525(1).  If the successful bidder encounters a condition not referred to in the solicitation documents, not caused by the 
successful bidder and not discoverable by a reasonable prebid visual site inspection, and the condition requires compliance with the 
ordinances, rules or regulations referred to under ORS 279C.525(1), the successful bidder shall immediately give notice of the 
condition to the contracting agency.  The successful bidder may not commence work nor incur any additional job site costs in regard 
to the condition encountered and described in ORS 279.525(3) without written direction from the contracting agency.  ORS 279C.525. 

 
21) Promptly, as due, make payment to any person, copartnership, association or corporation furnishing medical, surgical and hospital 

care services or other needed care and attention, incident to sickness or injury, to the employees of the contractor, of all sums that the 
contractor agrees to pay for the services and all moneys and sums that the contractor collected or deducted from the wages of 
employees under any law, contract or agreement for the purpose of providing or paying for the services.  All employers shall comply 
with ORS 656.017.  ORS 279C.530. 

 
22) A contract for public works shall contain a provision stating the existing state prevailing rate and wage and, if applicable, the federal 

prevailing rate of wage required.  Every contract and subcontract shall contain a provision that workers shall be paid not less than the 
specified minimum hourly rate of wage in accordance with ORS 279C.838.  ORS 279C.830(1).   

 
If this agreement is for demolition, the contract shall also contain the following conditions: 

23) Contractor must salvage or recycle construction and demolition debris, if feasible and cost-effective. ORS 279C.510(1) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 10 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 11 of XX 

 

EXHIBIT C 
OREGON TAX LAWS COMPLIANCE AND CERTIFICATION 

 
A. Contractor's Compliance with Tax Laws. 
 
 1. Contractor must, throughout the duration of this Contract and any extensions, comply with all tax 
laws of this state and all applicable tax laws of any political subdivision of this state. For the purposes of this 
Section, 'tax laws" includes all the provisions described in Subsection B. 3. (i) through (iv) of this Contract. 
 
 2. Any violation of Subsection 1 of this Section A shall constitute a material breach of this Contract. 
Further, any violation of Contractor's warranty, in Subsection B.3. of this Contract, that Contractor has complied 
with the tax laws of this state and the applicable tax laws of any political subdivision of this state also shall 
constitute a material breach of this Contract. Any violation shall entitle City to terminate this Contract, to pursue and 
recover any and all damages that arise from the breach and the termination of this Contract, and to pursue any or all 
of the remedies available under this Contract, at law, or in equity, including but not limited to: 
 

a. Termination of this Contract, in whole or in part; 
 

b. Exercise of the right of setoff, and withholding of amounts otherwise due and owing to 
Contractor, in an amount equal to State's setoff right, without penalty; and 

 
c. Initiation of an action or proceeding for damages, specific performance, declaratory or 

injunctive relief. City shall be entitled to recover any and all damages suffered as the result of Contractor's breach of 
this Contract, including but not limited to direct, indirect, incidental and consequential damages, costs of cure, and 
costs incurred in securing [replacement Services/replacement Goods/ a replacement contractor]. 
 
These remedies are cumulative to the extent the remedies are not inconsistent, and City may pursue any remedy or 
remedies singly, collectively, successively, or in any order whatsoever. 
 
B. Contractor's Representations and Warranties. 
 
Contractor represents and warrants to City that: 
 

1. Contractor (to the best of Contractor's knowledge, after due inquiry), for a period of no fewer than 
six calendar years preceding the [date of Closing of {bids/proposals}for/effective date of] this Contract, faithfully 
has complied with: 
 

(i) All tax laws of this state, including but not limited to ORS 305.620 and ORS chapters 
316, 317, and 318; 
 

(ii) Any tax provisions imposed by a political subdivision of this state that applied to 
Contractor, to Contractor's property, operations, receipts, or income, or to Contractor's performance of or 
compensation for any work performed by Contractor; 
 

(iii) Any tax provisions imposed by a political subdivision of this state that applied to 
Contractor, or to goods, services, or property, whether tangible or intangible, provided by Contractor; and 
 

(iv) Any rules, regulations, charter provisions, or ordinances that implemented or enforced 
any of the foregoing tax laws or provisions. 
 
Any [Goods/Items/Equipment/Components/Hardware/Software/Intellectual Property Rights, etc.] [delivered 
to/granted to] City under this Contract, and Contractor's Services rendered in the performance of Contractor's 
obligations under this Contract, shall be provided to City free and clear of any and all restrictions on or conditions of 
use, transfer, modification, or assignment, and shall be free and clear of any and all liens, claims, mortgages, 
security interests, liabilities, charges, and encumbrances of any kind. 
 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 11 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 12 of XX 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

Scope of Work 

A. Project Description and Overview of Services 
The Glenwood Riverfront Cross Laminated Timber parking Structure is located in the Springfield priority 
redevelopment urban renewal area of Glenwood, specifically in the north riverfront area of Phase I of 
the Glenwood Refinement Plan (Attachment 2). The Glenwood Refinement Plan promotes density and a 
mix of uses while intentionally limiting the development of surface parking lots to interior, screened 
areas.  This intentional decision generates the demand for structured parking, a necessary piece of 
infrastructure identified by the development community when evaluating the redevelopment area 
potential.   

In 2015, staff worked with parking consultant Rick Williams to calculate the appropriate size of a parking 
structure to serve the initial build out of property in early phases of the riverfront area redevelopment, 
including a hotel and conference center and surrounding mixed-use commercial, office and residential.  
Based on this preliminary work, a parking structure with approximately 360 spaces has been sized for an 
internal future block situated south of the location envisioned as future hotel and conference space and 
north of privately owned mixed-use commercial development.   

To further distinguish Glenwood as a place exceeding traditional expectations, the parking structure has 
been envisioned as a demonstration of the innovations of advanced timber manufacturing, specifically 
Cross Laminated Timber (CLT) manufacturing, design and construction.  CLT manufacturing is an industry 
showing early promise of growth in Oregon as the first CLT manufacturer in the United States is located 
in Riddle Oregon. 

During the 2015 academic year, the City of Springfield partnered with the University of Oregon to 
complete multiple designs of a parking structure to be built in Cross Laminated Timber (CLT), as 
structure which has not yet been built elsewhere in the United States. SRG Partnership, Inc. was the 
reviewing architecture firm for the student work.   

In March of 2016 the City of Springfield and SRG Partnership, Inc.  generated and advanced a single 
hybrid combination design of the student concepts forward to Oregon BEST for submittal in the Oregon 
BEST Cross Laminated Timber Design Contest.  Springfield was one of three submittals into the 
competition with the winner of the competition receiving financial funding to further support continued 
design and ultimate construction of the awarded structure.    

Over the next 36 months, the City of Springfield will employ SRG Partnership, Inc., to complete 
schematic design of the submitted structure and potentially, at the CITY’s option and sole discretion, 
provide construction documents and project construction management. 

 

 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 12 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 13 of XX 

 

B. Project Purpose and General Expectation 
The Glenwood Riverfront Cross Laminate Timber Parking Garage is part of a larger redevelopment 
district that is proposed to contain residential, retail, office, a conference center, a hotel and a large park 
or open space.   

The primary purpose of the garage is to provide parking for the immediate adjacent mixed uses.    The 
proposed parking garage is 206,400 sf and is four stories tall.   It contains parking spaces for 360 cars, 68 
bicycles and 14 motorcycles.  This count includes six electric vehicle charging stations located on the 
ground floor in a prominent location near the entry and 14 handicap stalls located throughout the 
garage (numbers may shift slightly in design refinement but will continue to meet Oregon Building Code 
and other required regulations).  In addition to the parking garage, 24,000 sf of retail is proposed for the 
site located in three areas as follows: a 7,600 sf area on the south side of the garage that is located 
within the garage structure, an 8,500 square foot retail area in a freestanding building to the north that 
is separated from the parking garage by a plaza that also contains stormwater plantings and a 8,400 sf 
area located on the east edge of the site immediately adjacent to the parking garage.   

The subject of this contract will include professional services, to be managed by SRG Partnership, 
specific to the design of this 214,000 sf parking garage structure and the south retail space.  Services 
include architectural design, structural engineering, fire suppression system design, lighting and energy 
design and engineering, electrical engineering, civil engineering, wind and rain research science, 
stormwater system, including calculation of stormwater mitigation needs, and construction cost 
estimation and visual renderings of the structure.  Contracted services will include completed schematic 
and programmatic structure design.  

C. Project Objectives 

The  Independent Contractor design shall meet the following objectives:  

1) Provide a cost-effective design  that minimizes change orders and is customized to meet the 
specific needs of the project.  

2) Provide responsive customer service. Communication between the Independent Contractor  and 
the CITY representatives shall be open, clear, and timely. A cordial, professional, non-adversarial 
relationship is expected.  

3) Develop, submit, and update schedules for design using Microsoft Project software.  

4) Develop, submit, and follow a project quality assurance and quality control (QA/QC) plan, which 
includes QA/QC during product/equipment selection and drawing and specification 
development of the bid package.  

5) To the extent possible considering budget, design the project with the intent to optimize 
efficient and usable space that is safe, easy to maintain and operate, and environmentally 
sustainable.  

6) Identify and minimize impacts to neighbors and private properties throughout the project 
duration. Identify access restrictions, construction staging areas, easements (new/existing), 
and right-of-ways and possible impacts to the project.  

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 13 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 14 of XX 

 

7) Design erosion control best management practices to protect surrounding properties and 
receiving waters.  

8) Identify opportunities to innovate or increase efficiency or long term functionality of this 
project as they arise during the design development. Communicate these ideas to the CITY 
Project Manager and Project Team so that opportunities can be evaluated appropriately. 

9) The project must comply with all Federal, State, and Local requirements.  

10) Provide a constructability evaluation and incorporate appropriate feedback. 

11) Provide an overall cost-effective solution using life cycle cost spreadsheets as the project team 
develops and evaluates alternatives. 

12) Use of innovative methods of reducing/reusing/eliminating need for hardcopy in submittals. 

D. Project Phasing 
The “Project” contemplated in this Agreement is just Phase 1.  Potentially the work may be divided into 
three (3) phases: Phase 1  

1.1 Schematic Design $289,435 
1.2 Design Development $389,115 

 
The following Phases are at the CITY’s sole discretion 

Phase 2  

2.1 Construction Documents   
2.2 Bidding and Award   
2.3 Construction Contract Negotiation  

Phase 3 

3.1 Construction Administration 
3.2 Project Administration 
3.3 Project Closeout 
  

E. This contract addresses Phase 1, future phases will be completed at the sole discretion of the CITY 
and will be authorized and negotiated through amendments to this contract, or a separate contract 
negotiation process. CITY may also choose to initiate a contract with another Architect for Phase 2 
and 3 services.   
 

F. Project Phasing 
This Project is divided into three (3) phases:  

I. Schematic Design and Design Development 
Future phases: 

II. Construction Documents and Bidding and Negotiation 
III. Construction Administration 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 14 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 15 of XX 

 

G. This contract addresses Phase 1, future phases will be completed at the sole discretion of the CITY 
and will be authorized and negotiated through amendments to this contract, or a separate contract 
negotiation process. 

H. CITY Responsibility 

• Review, comment and approve submittals 
• Attendance at meetings and work sessions 
• Participation in public outreach program 
• Internal CITY communication and project coordination 
• Gain right of entry access to properties not controlled by the CITY for survey and investigation  
• Review and comment on progress submittals 
• Provide copies of all existing project files and technical reports 
• Provide copies of existing drawings for existing facilities  
• CITY shall provide surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility 

locations for the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and 
legal information shall include, as applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and 
adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, 
restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and contours of 
the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other 
improvements and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both 
public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on 
the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark. 

• CITY shall provide current geotechnical reports.  If any additional services are required of 
geotechnical engineers Independent Contractor shall hire as a subcontractor and will work with 
the CITY.  Services may include but are not limited to test borings, test pits, determinations of 
soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, 
ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating 
subsoil conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations. 

 
B .  PROJECT OBJECTIVES 

The Independent Contractor design shall meet the following objectives:  

1) Provide a cost-effective design (and bid package) that minimizes change orders and is 
customized to meet the specific needs of the project.  

2) Provide responsive customer service. Communication between the Independent Contractor and 
the CITY representatives shall be open, clear, and timely. A cordial, professional, non-adversarial 
relationship is expected.  

3) Develop, submit, and update schedules for design, and bidding using Microsoft Project software.  

4) Develop, submit, and follow a project quality assurance and quality control (QA/QC) plan, which 
includes QA/QC during product/equipment selection and drawing and specification 
development of the bid package.  

5) To the extent possible considering budget, design the project with the intent to optimize 
efficient and usable space that is safe, easy to maintain and operate, and environmentally 
sustainable.  

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 15 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 16 of XX 

 

6) Utilize efficient and logical application of proven automation for building systems. 

7) Design erosion control best management practices to protect surrounding properties and 
receiving waters.  

8) Identify opportunities to innovate or increase efficiency or long term functionality of this 
project as they arise during the design development. Communicate these ideas to the CITY 
Project Manager and Project Team so that opportunities can be evaluated appropriately. 

9) The project must comply with all Federal, State, and Local requirements.  

10) Provide a constructability evaluation and incorporate appropriate feedback. 

11) Provide an overall cost-effective solution using life cycle cost spreadsheets when the project 
team is asked to evaluate design alternatives. 

12) Use of innovative methods of reducing/reusing/eliminating need for hardcopy in 
submittals.   
 

D. Standards and General Requirements 

1. Architectural standards/design standards  

a. Generation of drawings and other documents including a site plan, preliminary building 
plans, sections and elevations, study models, perspective sketches, environmentally 
responsible design alternatives, detailed modeling, and design of all building systems 
and construction materials for a parking structure with approximately; 

i. 442 parking spaces; 360 auto, 68 bicycle, and 14 motorcycles. 
b. Final Schematic Design for CITY Approval  
c. Design development of CITY approved schematic design  
d. Final design development drawings, plans, sections, elevations, typical construction 

details and diagrammatic layouts of building systems to fix and describe the size and 
character of the parking structure 

 

2. Software Requirements 

• AUTOCAD Platform 
• MS Word & Excel in version fully compatible with CITY’s current version. 
• (any others please list) 

 
3. Licenses, Registrations, and Qualifications 

Surveying and mapping must be performed by a Professional Land Surveyor, registered in the 
State of Oregon.  Civil design (roadway, drainage, illumination, pavement, and structural) and 
Geotechnical analysis must be performed under the direct supervision of a Registered 
Professional Engineer in the State of Oregon.  Landscape architecture designs must be 
performed under the direct supervision of a Landscape Architect registered in the State of 
Oregon. 
 

4. Design Criteria and Project Assumptions/Conditions 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 16 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 17 of XX 

 

• (Seismic Standard) 
• Design must be performed in English units of measurement 

II. SCOPE OF SERVICES RELATED TO THE PROJECT 

A. PROJECT MANAGEMENT  

Independent Contractor shall designate one (1) person to be the single contact for the CITY Project 
Manager. This person shall be referred to as the “designated contact.” The designated contact will be 
responsible for coordinating the  Independent Contractor’s project team and controlling project 
resources and the overall budget. The designated contact must be empowered with all necessary 
authority to be able to make decisions related to the project on behalf of the Independent Contractor 
team. The designated contact shall prepare and update project schedules, monitor project 
performance related to schedule, control expenses/budget, quality control, and provide monthly 
reports to the CITY Project Manager. The designated contact shall inform and gain written approval in 
the form of a contract amendment from the CITY prior to doing any work that might be outside the 
scope of the contract and fees. The designated contact shall attend CITY meetings in Springfield to 
discuss the project with City Officials, as required/needed. The designated contact cannot be changed 
without prior written approval by the CITY’s Project Manager.  

 
Key Deliverables:  

1) Kick-off meeting with the CITY to establish design parameters, important project 
elements, anticipated scope of work, and roles/responsibilities/communication of the 
project team members. 

2) Kick-off meeting minutes. 

3) Technical review meetings with CITY staff as necessary to review  Independent 
Contractor deliverables including technical memoranda and design submittals.  

4) Project schedule and updates monthly (or sooner as required). Use Microsoft Project 
scheduling software.  

5) Monthly progress reports to the CITY Project Manager including tasks completed 
during prior month, tasks to be completed that month, issues related to the scope of 
services or schedule, and information needed from the CITY.  

6) Regular communication (phone, email, in person) with the CITY Project Manager. 

7) Monthly detailed Independent Contractor t invoices and coordination with the CITY 
Project Manager. The CITY team forecasts cash flow related to project expenses and will 
need  Independent Contractor  input related to the  Independent Contractor contract 
(example – cost loaded schedule). Invoices shall be accompanied by updated schedules 
in Microsoft Project files. Invoices will be considered incomplete and may not be paid 
unless accompanied by updated schedules from the  Independent Contractor team. 

8) Implementation and oversight of the Quality Assurance/Quality Control (QA/QC) plan.  

9) Evaluate and recommend the number of construction bidding packages needed to 
complete the entire project.   

10) Attendance at CITY public meeting(s) in Springfield to discuss the project with 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 17 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 18 of XX 

 

Council, as required/needed. Budget to attend at least two (2) separate CITY public 
meetings lasting approximately two (2) hours each. The CITY Project Manager will 
control this sub-task based on the project needs.  

11) The   Independent Contractor has budgeted for these two meetings to take place at 
the completion of the Development and Evaluation Alternatives, and at the 
completion of Design; however the project may choose to use these at different 
times.  

B. QUALITY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL (QA/QC) PLAN (QAQCP) 

Within the first 30 calendar days following the notice to proceed, the design Independent Contract shall 
provide the CITY with a QAQCP. The  Independent Contractor shall designate a QA/QC person to develop 
and administer the QAQCP. The QAQCP administrator shall work with the  Independent Contractor’s 
designated contact to assemble the QA/QC team, each responsible for reviewing an element or 
discipline within the design (e.g., architectural, structural, electrical, mechanical, Civil, etc.). The CITY 
expects that all deliverables and submittals will be thoroughly reviewed by the  Independent 
Contractor’s QA/QC team in accordance with the QAQCP prior to submitting to the CITY. At a minimum, 
the QAQCP shall: 

• Identify the QA/QC team members. 

• Describe the roles, responsibilities, and budget (level-of-effort) for each team 
member. 

• Provide a QA/QC schedule identifying QA/QC milestones. 

• Describe each deliverable requiring QA/QC including technical memoranda, material 
take-off estimates, cost estimates, equipment sizing and design data, plans and 
specifications, and all associated calculations. 

• Constructability review during design development. 
 

Key Deliverables: 

1) QAQCP for review by CITY staff (1 copy in 3-ring binder and PDF electronic document). 

2) Updates to the QAQCP as required (updated materials to be distributed for insertion 
into existing binders). 

3) Follow up correspondence from QA/QC personnel to the CITY Project Manager 
regarding implementation of plan including copies of specific memorandum providing 
advice to design  Independent Contractor project team. 

4) Written responses to the CITY written review comments using CITY’s comment tracking 
spreadsheet. 

5) Provide constructability review comments and responses during design development. 

C. ARCHITECTURAL PLANNING 

 
  
 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 18 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 19 of XX 

 

Key Deliverables:  

D. DESIGN  

Plans and Specifications shall be of a level of detail customarily provided for projects of this type by 
national professional architectural & engineering (A/E) firms performing similar support facilities to 
parking structures.  Appropriate Independent Contractor team members shall become familiar with the 
existing conditions and infrastructure as they develop the design solution.   

 
 1.  SURVEY TECHNICAL SUPPORT 

 
Gather existing as-built information and review the existing conditions related to the project to 
identify and include specific requirements into the contract documents. If supplemental survey 
information is determined to be necessary by the  Independent Contractor Team, conduct a 
field survey to a level of detail necessary to complete the comprehensive design of the project 
and survey all project related above ground infrastructure. Identify utility crossings and pothole 
and field survey as required. Prior to initiating additional survey activities, the  Independent 
Contractor designated contact shall verify the need with the CITY Project Manager. 

2. SUBSURFACE TECHNICAL SUPPORT (Optional Task Controlled by the CITY Project Manager 
and  Independent Contractor  must seek written pre-approval) 

CITY shall provide all current Geotechnical reports; it is unclear if  Independent Contractor 
subsurface technical support is needed until further review of existing reports and onsite 
investigation. One example that may need subsurface technical support would be if a new 
structure is proposed to be constructed where decontamination is necessary. As needed, the  
Independent Contractor shall conduct a field survey and sub-surface exploration to a level of 
detail necessary to complete the comprehensive design of the project. Evaluate the existing 
conditions and the sub-surface impact for the new structures and systems.   

Key Deliverables: 

1) If needed during design, provide  Independent Contractor onsite investigation and 
document findings. Promptly provide recommendations and reports to Architect to 
incorporate work into the overall design.   

  
 3. 50% DESIGN SUBMITTAL 

 
Interim deliverables shall reflect the quality of a completed design document as well as 
implementation of QA/QC Plan. Where appropriate, incomplete items pending further design 
development should be identified. Two (2) weeks prior to submittal of the design for review, the  
Independent Contractor shall notify the CITY team and verify the submittal date. 

 At the 50% level of design, alternatives analysis shall be complete and utility requirements 
defined. The submittal shall present the interior and exterior layout of facilities, structures, and 
major equipment for review by the CITY project team. The design shall be developed with 
enough detail to show the accessibility of equipment, safety, operability and maintainability of 
equipment, clearance around structures and equipment, and general constructability of the new 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 19 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 20 of XX 

 

facilities. The  Independent Contractor shall identify key design components that are critical or 
time sensitive to avoid delay or changes later in design.   

The 50% Design Drawings shall include the following: 

1) General sheets (approximately 50% complete with placeholders for missing 
information). At a minimum, the general sheets shall include cover sheet, vicinity map, 
location map, drawing index, abbreviations, symbols and notes.  

2) Architectural sheets (approximately 50% complete with placeholders for missing 
information). 

3) Structural sheets (approximately 25% complete with placeholders for missing 
information). Structural sheets will be included as necessary to show the dimensions 
and shapes of structures; the elevations of foundation slabs, tops of walls, etc.; and the 
locations of openings, penetrations, and key features of the main structures.    

4) Mechanical sheets (approximately 50% complete with placeholders for missing 
information). The mechanical sheets shall show the sizes and relative locations and 
elevations of major equipment, piping, ducting, and associated major supports and 
components. 

5) Electrical sheets (approximately 25% complete with placeholders for missing 
information). At a minimum, the electrical sheets shall show an electrical site plan and 
partial plans as necessary identifying sources of power and showing proposed panel 
locations and conduit routing. 

6) Civil sheets (approximately 50% complete with placeholders for missing information). At 
a minimum, the civil sheets shall include overall site plan, existing utilities, stormwater 
facilities, illumination, partial area plans as needed. 

The 50% design specifications shall include the following items: 

1) Preliminary table of contents listing the specification sections anticipated to be included 
in the final design. 

2) Preliminary sequence of work explaining the construction sequencing and identifying 
schedule restrictions. 

The  Independent Contractor shall facilitate a meeting approximately two (2) weeks after the 
submittal to discuss the CITY comments. The  Independent Contractor shall prepare a record of 
the CITY comments and how the comments were (or were not) incorporated into the design 
with appropriate  Independent Contractor written responses and action items.  

Key Deliverables: 

1) 50% design drawings (9 - half size sets – hardcopy format). 

2) QA/QC review and written feedback by  Independent Contractor QA/QC team.   

3) Preliminary design specifications table of contents following Construction Specifications 
Institute (CSI) format (9 copies). 

4) Sequence of work (9 copies). 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 20 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 21 of XX 

 

5) Draft materials selection. 

6) Identify all impacted utilities and follow up coordination with written action items. 

7) Identify the project permits and follow up written action items.  

8) Preliminary Engineer’s Estimate of project costs based on 50% design, including clearly 
identified options (bid alternates, etc.).  

9) One (1) 6-hour 50% design submittal review meeting with the CITY project team and 
associated meeting minutes.  

10) Written record of comments received from the CITY and  Independent Contractor 
written responses. 

 4. 90% DESIGN SUBMITTAL  

The  Independent Contractor team will further develop construction drawings and specifications 
to the 90% level of design. At the 90% design level, the drawings and specifications are 
essentially complete with only minor details left to resolve. This includes all section and detail 
drawings. The 90% design package shall address the CITY comments from 50% design review. 
Changes required after this submittal shall be minor and result from permit reviews, CITY 
project team comments, QA/QC input, and proofreading of the final documents. Substantial 
changes after the 90% design shall not be permitted unless directed by the CITY Project 
Manager and may require additional CITY review. The 90% design documents shall include the 
MWMC’s standard front-end “Division 0” (and “Division 1” as appropriate) documents 
customized for the project by the Independent Contractor team. The Independent  Contractor  
shall reconcile any conflicts within the entire set of 90% drawings and specifications (related to 
Construction Specifications Institute format) prior to submitting to the CITY. Also, the 
Independent Contractor team shall review and address any new building code and/or project 
permit requirements related to the design.   

Two (2) weeks prior to submittal of the design for review, the Independent Contractor shall 
notify the CITY team and verify the submittal date. The Independent Contractor shall facilitate a 
meeting approximately two weeks after the submittal to discuss the CITY comments and any 
final items to address. The Independent Contractor shall prepare a written record of  
Independent Contractor responses to the CITY comments and how they were resolved in the 
design with appropriate  Independent Contractor written responses. The  Independent 
Contractor shall prepare an Engineer’s Estimate of project costs based on the 90% design and 
current market conditions.  Independent Contractor  

Key Deliverables: 

1) 90% design drawings, details and specifications (9 – half size sets – hardcopy format and 
one CD/DVD of design package for reproduction to start the permit review process). 

2) QA/QC review and written feedback by  Independent Contractor QA/QC team.    

3) Schedule and cost estimate (Engineer’s Estimate) based on 90% design and most current 
market conditions, including any bid options to stay under the project budget. 

4) Assume one (1) 5-hour 90% design submittal review meeting with the CITY project team 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 21 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 22 of XX 

 

and provide associated meeting minutes. 

5) Written record of comments received and Independent Contractor written responses. 

6) Meetings/interactions with permitting agencies to ensure permit application submittals 
are complete. 

7) Identify, discuss and document the status of the project permits, utility coordination and 
outstanding issues to address. 
 

5.    100% DESIGN SUBMITTAL 

At the 100% level of design, the comments from the 90% submittal review have been 
satisfactorily addressed and incorporated into the final design. The  Independent Contractor 
team shall submit the 100% design drawings and specifications (bid package) for verification 
that all 90% submittal review issues are resolved and incorporated into the package and any 
errors are corrected. It is expected that errors at this level of design are of the most minor 
nature. Within eleven business days following the 100% design submittal, the CITY Project 
Manager shall provide the Independent Contractor project manager with a document 
containing CITY’s final corrections and comments. The Independent Contractor shall have ten 
business days to incorporate the corrections and submit the final bidding package of the 
completed drawings and specifications. The final bidding package shall be used to establish a 
CITY construction contract and shall not require further revisions.   

Key Deliverables: 

1) 100% design drawings, details and specifications (2 full size sets and 7 half size sets) for 
the CITY final review and comments. 

2) Revised project/construction cost estimate based on the final design and most current 
market conditions. 

3) Written record of comments received and  Independent Contractor written esponses. 

4) Addenda information as required (submitted in electronic format). 

5) Detailed cost estimate (Engineer’s Estimate) based on current market conditions and 
the final design requirements, including all bidding options/alternates. Also, the cost 
information shall relate to the construction bidding line items (Bid Form).    

 
C. Budget 

Work will be authorized, completed and funded in three (3) phases.  Phases to be initiated only as 
authorized by the City of Springfield. See Attachment 2 Fee Proposal and Attachment 3 Project Schedule 

Phase  Anticipated Dates Task Amount 

I  April  2016 to Dec 
2016 

Schematic Design and Design Development $678,550 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 22 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 23 of XX 

 

II TBD – Fall 2017 Construction Documents and Bidding and Negotiation  TBD 

III TBD – 2018 Const. 
(dry weather 
dependent) 

Construction Administration  TBD 

  TOTAL CONTRACT NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT $678,550 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 23 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 24 of XX 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 

Detailed Fee Proposal of Hours and Tasks Specific to Phase I Schematic Design and Design 
Development to be Inserted by SRG Prior to Contract Signing.   

Total of all Activities by Task Shall Not Exceed Established Full Contract Amount of $678,550 Without 
Further Review and Approval by City Council.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 24 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 25 of XX 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 
Detailed Project Timeline to be Negotiated by SRG and City Staff Prior to Signing.  Final Deliverable set 

to be received on or before December 31, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 25 of 26



 

Type 3 Independent Contractor Agreement for Personal Services                                                               DEC. 2015  
Page 26 of XX 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 

Site Vicinity Map & Conceptual Structure Design Rendering 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Franklin 
 

AIS ATTACHMENT 2, Page 26 of 26



Intergovernmental Agreement 
to Make Payments on the SRG Partnership, Inc. Contract 

 
by and between the 

 
Springfield Economic Development Agency, Oregon  

 
and the 

 
City of Springfield, Oregon 

 
 

Dated as of ______________, 2016 

 
 Contract # 1665

AIS ATTACHMENT 3, Page 1 of 7



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Section 1. Definitions and Recitals. ......................................................................................... 1 

(1) Definitions. ....................................................................................................................... 1 
(2) Findings. ........................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 2. The Contract Payments. ......................................................................................... 2 

(1) The Contract Payments. ................................................................................................... 2 
(2) Security for the Obligation of the Agency to Pay the Contract Payments. ...................... 2 

Section 3. Prepayment. ............................................................................................................. 2 

Section 4. Estoppel. ................................................................................................................... 2 

Section 5. Title........................................................................................................................... 2 

Section 6. Miscellaneous........................................................................................................... 2 

(1) Binding Effect. ................................................................................................................. 2 
(2) Severability....................................................................................................................... 3 
(3) Amendments..................................................................................................................... 3 
(4) Execution in Counterparts. ............................................................................................... 3 
(5) Applicable Law. ............................................................................................................... 3 
(6) Rules of Construction. ...................................................................................................... 3 
(7) Headings. .......................................................................................................................... 3 

 
Exhibit A –SRG Partnership, Inc. Contract #1661 
 

AIS ATTACHMENT 3, Page 2 of 7



Intergovernmental Agreement 
to Make Contract Payments 

 
This Intergovernmental Agreement to Make Contract Payments (the “Intergovernmental 
Agreement”) is dated as of _______________, and is entered into by and between the 
Springfield Economic Development Agency, Oregon (the “Agency”) and the City of Springfield, 
Oregon (the “City”).  The parties hereby agree as follows: 

Section 1. Definitions and Recitals. 

(1) Definitions. 

Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, capitalized terms used in this Intergovernmental 
Agreement that are defined in this Section 1(1) shall have the following meanings: 

“Area” means the Glenwood Urban Renewal Area described in the Plan.  

“SRG Partnership, Inc. Contract” means the contract between the City and SRG in the amount of 
$678,550 to prepare the schematic design and design development for the Projects, which is 
dated as of __________, 2016. 

“Contract Payments” means the payments the City is required to make under the SRG 
Partnership, Inc. Contract #1661.   

“Plan” means the Agency’s Glenwood Urban Renewal Plan approved by City Ordinance 
No. 6103, as that plan may in the future be, amended. 

“Projects” means projects described in the Plan, including the construction of a “public parking” 
facility. 

“Tax Increment Revenues” means all revenues that the Agency collects for the Glenwood Urban 
Renewal Area under the provisions of Article IX, Section 1c of the Oregon Constitution and 
Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 457. 

(2) Findings. 

(A) The City has entered into the SRG Partnership, Inc. Agreement to finance costs of 
the Projects and to pay costs of issuance.  

(B) The Projects are properly described as urban renewal projects in the Plan. 

(C) The Agency is authorized to spend Tax Increment Revenues to pay for the costs 
of the Projects. 

(D) The Projects will assist the Agency in carrying out its Plan. 

(E) The Agency has $29,000,000 of unused maximum indebtedness available prior to 
executing this Intergovernmental Agreement. 

AIS ATTACHMENT 3, Page 3 of 7



Section 2. The Contract Payments. 

(1) The Contract Payments. 

The Agency hereby agrees to pay to the City, not less than five business day after receiving the 
invoice for the SRG Partnership, Inc. Contract payments.  The SRG Partnership, Inc. draft 
contract is attached and incorporated to this Agreement in Exhibit A.  Security for the Obligation 
of the Agency to Pay the Contract Payments. 

This Intergovernmental Agreement shall constitute indebtedness of the Agency in the amount of 
the SRG Partnership, Inc. Contract.  The Agency is obligated to make the payments due under 
this Intergovernmental Agreement solely from the Tax Increment Revenues.  Pursuant to Oregon 
Revised Statutes Section 287A.310, the Agency pledges the Tax Increment Revenues to pay the 
amounts described in Section 2(1) of this Intergovernmental Agreement.   

Section 3. Prepayment.  

If the City exercises its option to prepay the SRG Partnership, Inc. Contract in whole or in part, 
unless the Agency consents in advance and in writing, the Agency shall not be obligated to 
prepay the amounts due from it under this Intergovernmental Agreement.   

Section 4. Estoppel. 

The Agency hereby certifies, recites and declares that all things, conditions and acts required by 
the Constitution and Statutes of the State of Oregon and by this Intergovernmental Agreement to 
exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in the execution and the 
delivery of this Intergovernmental Agreement, do exist, have happened and have been performed 
in due time, form and manner, as required by law, and that this Intergovernmental Agreement is 
a valid and binding obligation of the Agency that is enforceable against the Agency in 
accordance with its terms, except to the extent that enforceability may be limited by applicable 
bankruptcy, insolvency, fraudulent conveyance, reorganization, moratorium or other laws or 
judicial decisions or principles of equity relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors’ 
rights or contractual obligations generally. 

Section 5. Title. 

Neither the City nor SRG Partnership, Inc. shall have a lien on or security interest in the Projects.   

Section 6. Miscellaneous. 

(1) Binding Effect. 

This Intergovernmental Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the 
Agency and the City and their respective successors and assigns. 

AIS ATTACHMENT 3, Page 4 of 7



(2) Severability. 

In the event any provisions of this Intergovernmental Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provisions hereof. 

(3) Amendments. 

This Intergovernmental Agreement may be amended only by a written document signed by both 
parties. 

(4) Execution in Counterparts. 

This Intergovernmental Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute the same instrument. 

(5) Applicable Law. 

This Intergovernmental Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Oregon.  Any action regarding this Intergovernmental Agreement or the 
transactions contemplated hereby shall be brought in an appropriate court of the State of Oregon 
in Lane County, Oregon. 

(6) Rules of Construction. 

References to section numbers in documents that do not specify the document in which the 
section is located shall be construed as references to section numbers in this Intergovernmental 
Agreement.  

(7) Headings. 

The headings, titles and table of contents in this Intergovernmental Agreement are provided for 
convenience and shall not affect the meaning, construction or effect of this Intergovernmental 
Agreement. 

AIS ATTACHMENT 3, Page 5 of 7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Agency and the City have executed this Intergovernmental 
Agreement as of the date indicated above. 

For the Springfield Economic Development 
Agency, Oregon 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Authorized Officer 
 
For the City of Springfield, Oregon 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Authorized Officer 

AIS ATTACHMENT 3, Page 6 of 7



EXHIBIT A 
SRG Partnership, Inc. Contract #1661 

AIS ATTACHMENT 3, Page 7 of 7



MASS TIMBER 
PARKING STRUCTURE 

 

September 2015 
 

In 2015, the City of Springfield Oregon partnered with the University of Oregon and 
Centre for Advanced Wood Products Design and Manufacturing to explore the use 
of Cross Laminated Timber (CLT) in the construction of a parking structure to be 
located in the Springfield Glenwood Riverfront Redevelopment Area.  This nationally 
award winning, unique and very visible redevelopment area presents an opportunity 
to pioneer and display sustainable and forward thinking urban design practices.  
Sitting along the Willamette River, between the downtown of Springfield and 
Eugene, near the University of Oregon campus and adjacent to Interstate 5, the 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area provides a unique opportunity to present a non-

traditional design for a 
very traditional concept of 
a parking structure. The 
structure is programmed 
to support planned 

surrounding 
redevelopment, including 
a conference center, hotel, 
open space and mixed-use 
housing and commercial.   

 
Over the last several months, the City of Springfield has worked with SRG 
Partnership, an architecture firm known for design and construction of innovative 
buildings, to advance the student ideas from multiple CLT garage concepts to a 
single, one of a kind, 360 space CLT parking garage design. On March 25th, the City of 
Springfield will submit this design to the Oregon BEST CLT Design Contest.  The 
competition seeks to award a keystone project which generates transferable 
information and tools, eliminating market barriers for use of CLT in future.  

WHY A PUBLIC CLT PARKING STRUCTURE 

The parking garage strives to be the example of what is possible, the 
encouragement to a learning community of the vast potential and application for 
the product.  The project embraces research, testing and application in a way which 
invites the industry and community to, not only witness the process, but experience 
the product and building in active use, over time. The garage offers the opportunity 
for a living, public lab, transparently displaying the advancements explored and 
techniques used, as the building will be open, with the CLT structure clearly visible. 
 
The City of Springfield’s vision is not to instruct the private sector or direct 
development in the application and use of CLT.  Our vision is to support the future 
by modeling it ourselves, illustrating a commitment to the timber industry and its 
bright future.  Springfield will build a structure to showcase the innovation and 
industry, clearly displayed and celebrated, and as a reminder of not only where 
Oregon industry has led, but where it will continue to lead. 
 

SHOWCASE CLT 

 

SUPPORT REDEVELOPMENT 

 

REDUCE EMISSIONS 

 

 

MARKET OPPORTUNITIES 

 Attachment 4, Page 1 of 2



MASS TIMBER 
PARKING STRUCTURE 

 

September 2015 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 4, Page 2 of 2


	2016-05-02 Council Agenda
	WORK SESSION
	Item 1 Main Street Speed Study
	ATT1 - Main Street Speed Study
	ATT2 - Highway 126 Speed Study

	REGULAR MEETING
	SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT
	Item 1 Mayor's Recognition
	1a. Earth Day Poster Contest Winners
	1b. Salvation Army Week Proclamation

	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Item 2 Council Minutes
	2a. March 14, 2016 - Work Session
	2b. March 21, 2016 - Work Session
	2c. March 28, 2016 - Work Session
	2d. April 4, 2016 - Work Session

	Item 3 Resolutions
	3a. Approval to Lease/Purchase One (1) Fire Pumper
	ATT1 - Resolution


	Item 5 Other Routine Matters
	5a. Liquor License Application for a Location Change, Along Came Trudy, LLC, DBA: Along Came Trudy
	ATT1 - OLCC Liquor License Application


	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	Item 1 Setting Local and Regional Wastewater and Stormwater User Fees Effective July 1, 2016
	ATT1 - Resolution
	ATT2 - Council Briefing Memorandum from April 25, 2016 work session

	Item 2 Proposed Changes to Springfield Municipal Code 7.330 and 7.332
	ATT1 - Council Briefing Memo - Follow-Up on Proposed PPV Ordinance
	ATT2 - Proposed Ordinance amending SMC 7.330 and SMC 7.332

	Item 3 Licensing Fee for Medical Marijuana Dispensaries
	ATT1 - Proposed Resolution

	BUSINESS FROM THE CITY MANAGER
	Item 1 Public Right of Way Use Agreement to Allow Private Developer JM Hotel, LLC to Place, Construct, and Maintain: Earth and Structural Fill, Vegetation, Stormwater Facilities, and Remove and Reconstruct an Existing Access Road
	ATT1 - Public Right of Way Use Agreement
	ATT2 - Vicinity Map

	Item 2 Refined Franklin Boulevard Resolution of Necessity 
	ATT1 - Resolution of Necessity with Exhibits A and B: List of Properties, Descriptions and Diagrams
	ATT2 -  90% Design Diagram
	ATT3 - IGA Between City and County for delegation of eminent domain authority

	Item 3 Ratification of the Metropolitan Wastewater Management Commission (MWMC) FY 2016-17 Regional Wastewater Program Budget and Capital Improvement Program
	ATT1 - The Regional Wastewater Program Budget and Capital Improvements Program (CIP) for FY 2016-17, as approved by MWMC

	Item 4 CDBG Fiscal Year 2016-2017 One-Year Action Plan and Substantial Amendments to Prior Year Action Plans
	ATT1 - Springfield CDBG FY2016-2017 One-Year Action Plan
	ATT2 - CDBG Substantial Amendments to Prior Year Action Plans

	Item 5 Glenwood Cross Laminated Timber Parking Garage Design Services Contract with SRG Partnership
	ATT1 - SRG Partnership Sole Source Justification
	ATT2 - Draft SRG Partnership Contract for Professional Services
	ATT3 - Draft Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for SEDA Repayment to the City of Springfield for SRG Professional Services
	ATT4 - Glenwood CLT Parking Garage Overview




